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CitYetteville 
OFFICE OF THE 
CITY MANAGER 

November 26, 2012 

The Honorable Mayor, 
Members of the City Council and Citizens 
City of Fayetteville 
Fayetteville, North Carolina 

Dear Mayor, Members of the City Council, and Citizens: 

It is our pleasure to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of 
Fayetteville, North Carolina for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. State law requires that 
every local government publish a complete set of audited financial statements. The financial 
statements must be presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
(GMP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a firm of 
certified public accountants. This report complies with these requirements . 

The CAFR consists of management's representations concerning the finances of the City. 
Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of 
the information contained in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these 
representations, management of the City has established a comprehensive internal control 
framework that is designed to protect City assets and to compile information for the preparation 
of the City's financial statements in conformity with GMP. The cost of intemal controls should 
not outweigh their benefits; therefore, the internal controls have been designed to provide 
reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from 
material misstatement. 

Cherry, Bekaert & Holland, LLP, Certified Public Accountants, have issued an unqualified 
("clean") opinion on the City of Fayetteville's financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2012. The independent auditors' report is located at the front of the financial section of this 
report. 

Management's discussion and analysis (MOM) immediately follows the independent auditors' 
report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analYSis of the basic financial 
statements. MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with 
it. 
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PROFILE OF THE CITY 

Fayetteville is a thriving community located in the Sandhills region of southeastern North 
Carolina and is the seat of Cumberland County. The City is approximately 60 miles 
south of the State capital of Raleigh. Fayetteville is located adjacent to Interstate 
Highway 95, a major north-south corridor linking the City with New York to the north and 
Miami to the south. 

Fayetteville has been recognized three times as an "All-America City" by the National 
Civic League and is known as a community of "History, Heroes and a Hometown 
Feeling". In 2012 , Fayetteville celebrates the 2501h anniversary of its founding. In 1762, 
the town of Campbellton , located on the Cape Fear River, was chartered by the colonial 
assembly. In 1778, Campbellton united with the neighboring town of Cross Creek to 
become Upper and Lower Campbellton. In 1783, the North Carolina General Assembly 
approved the town's official renaming to Fayetteville in honor of the Marquis de 
Lafayette, the French nobleman who served as a Major General in the Continental Army 
during the Revolutionary War. 

Fort Bragg Army Base, one of the largest military complexes in the world , is located 
approximately 10 miles from the City's downtown and significantly adds to the culture of 
the community and the local economy. Fort Bragg has traditionally been known as the 
home of the Army's only Airborne Corps and the 82nd Airborne Division, as well as the 
U.S. Army Special Operations Command. In 2011 , Fort Bragg also became the 
headquarters for the Army's combat-ready conventional forces and Army Reserve 
following the move of U.S. Army Forces Command (FORSCOM) and U.S. Army 
Reserve Command (USARC) to the base. The base also encompasses Pope Army 
Airfield, formerly Pope Air Force Base, which provides strategic airlift aviation assets 
required to support Fort Bragg's missions. In November 2011, Livability.com recognized 
Fayetteville as the number one city in the country for military veterans to live, noting the 
city as "America's First Military Sanctuary Community" because of the strong support 
offered to service members and their families. 

Fayetteville is the sixth largest municipality in the State with a population estimated at 
208,000, and encompassing 148.64 square miles as of June 30, 2012 . The City's 
population increased by 65.7% or 79,549 residents between the U.S. Census counts 
conducted in 2000 and 2010. Much of the population growth resulted from the City's 
statutory authority to extend its corporate limits through annexation. In September 2005, 
the City completed an annexation, referred to as "Phase V", of approximately 42,000 
residents and 27 square miles. Most recently , the North Carolina General Assembly 
approved legislation to annex portions of Fort Bragg into the City effective September 1, 
2008. This annexation added approximately 26,000 residents and 54 square miles to 
the City. 

The City has a council-manager form of government. Nine members of the City Council 
are elected from districts and the Mayor is elected at large. Each of the Council 
Members and the Mayor serve two-year concurrent terms. The City Council has policy 
making and legislative authority. The Council is responsible for the approval of the 
budget and appointment of the City Manager, City Attorney, Public Works Commission 
and members of other City boards, committees and commissions. The City Manager is 
responsible for implementing Council policies and City ordinances, managing daily 
operations and appointing department directors. 
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The City provides its citizens with a full range of services, including police and fire 
protection , solid waste and recycling services, the construction and maintenance of 
streets, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, stormwater drainage systems and other infrastructure, 
recreation and cultural activities, fixed-route and demand-response transit service , 
airport service, and electric, water and wastewater utilities. This report includes all of the 
City's activities in delivering and administering these services. 

The Council is required to adopt a budget by July 1,I of each year. The City is 
empowered to levy a property tax on both real and personal property located within its 
boundaries. The City's budget ordinance creates a legal limit on spending 
authorizations, and serves as the foundation . for Fayetteville's financial planning and 
control. The annual budget is authorized at the department level in the General Fund , in 
operating, capital and transfer expenditure categories for the Electric, Water and 
Wastewater Funds, and at the fund level for the Storm Water Management Fund and all 
other funds . 

LOCAL ECONOMY 

The infonmation presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when 
it is considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the 
City operates. 

The economy of Fayetteville is greatly stabilized by the presence of Fort Bragg Army 
Base. Approximately 60,000 military personnel are stationed at Fort Bragg, with support 
from an additional 22,000 civilian employees. The direct impact of payroll alone added 
almost $3.4 billion to the regional economy in federal fiscal year 2011. 

The military reorganization resulting from the 2005 Base Realignment and Closure 
Commission (BRAC), most notably the relocation of FORSCOM, has been completed. 
Longer range economic gains anticipated from the relocation of defense contractors , 
however, have yet to be realized. Economists and the Fort Bragg Regional Alliance note 
that the economic impact of BRAC may not be fully attained for five to ten years. Local 
community and business leaders are carefully monitoring and petitioning Congress for 
action in light of the impending January, 2013 deadline to avert significant reductions in 
federal defense spending. 

In addition to Fort Bragg, SUbstantial employment is also offered in the government 
sector through the public school system , colleges and universities, and county and city 
governments. Other major employers in the area include the Cape Fear Valley Health · 
System, manufacturers such as the Goodyear Tire & Rubber Company, which has one 
of the largest tire producing factories in the world , Purolator Products which produces 
auto filters, and Wal-Mart through its distribution center and retail outlets. 

Significant investment to modernize plant equipment has been made at the Fayetteville 
Goodyear plant since 2007 with the State of North Carolina, Cumberland County and the 
City committing to economic incentives for the investment and job retention. In August 
2012 , the plant shut down for one week due to sluggish demand . Goodyear has 
announced plans to eliminate approximately 200 jobs, or about 7% of its workforce, at 
the local plant by the end of November, 2012 by offering buyouts in order to avoid 
involuntary layoffs. 
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During the past five years, Fayetteville's annual unemployment rates have ranged from a 
low of 4.3% to a high of 7.6%, according to the North Carolina Department of 
Commerce, Division of Employment Security. In August 2012, the unemployment rates 
for Fayetteville, North Carolina and the United States were 8.1 %, 9.7% and 8.2%, 
respectively . Historical unemployment rates for Fayetteville, North Carolina and the 
United States are provided in the table below. 

Unemployment Rates· 

Year 
Fayetteville 

North 
Carolina 

United 
States 

2011 7.6 10.5 9.0 
2010 7.3 11 .0 9.6 
2009 6.7 10.5 9.3 
200S 5.1 6.3 5.S 
2007 4 .3 4.S 4.6 

~ Source of unemployment data is the North Carolina Department of 
Commerce. Division of Employment Security 

Per capita personal income in Cumberland County grew 4.1 % percent between 2009 
and 2010, the 21 st highest rate of growth among the nation's large counties. The 2010 
per capita income level of $42,523 ranked fifth among the state's 100 counties. Growth 
in compensation for military and federal civilian workers has helped to fuel local per 
capita income growth over the past decade. 

During fiscal year 2012, the City approved 1,514 permits for new residential units valued 
at $153.6 million and 62 new commercial building permits valued at $36.6 million were 
issued for construction compared to 1,596 permits for new residential units valued at 
$17S.9 million and 87 new commercial building permits valued at $S2.2 million issued in 
fiscal year 2011. 

The City is a major regional trade center in eastern North Carolina, with a significant 
number and variety of shopping plazas, centers and independent retailers . Evidence of 
the strong retail sector is reflected by one of the largest shopping areas of the Carolinas, 
a two-square mile area located within the city Cross Creek Mall, the anchor of the 
shopping district, has more than one million square feet of floor space and four major 
department stores. Taxable sales in Cumberland County for fiscal year 2012 totaled 
approximately $3.53 billion, which represented a 4.6% increase over fiscal year 2011 . 
Historical sales for Fayetteville and Cumberland County are provided in the table below. 

Retail rraxable Sales· 
Fiscal 
Year 

City of 
F avetteville 

% 
Chanqe 

Cumberland 
County 

% 
Chanqe 

201 2 N/A N/A I $3,531 ,570,536 4.6 
2011 N/A N/A 3,375,817,327 4.2 
2010 N/A N/A 3,240,731,656 13.9 
2009 $2 ,348,317,596 2.1 2,S44,376,173 3.4 
2008 2,300,524,240 2.1 2,751,850,S77 0.2 

"The NC Department of Revenue does nol provide mun icipal sales data afte r June 30, 2009. 
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While Fayetteville's economy is stable, the extent of potential local impacts of federal 
defense budget cuts under the 2013 budget sequestration are not known at this time. In 
2011, the Milken Institute ranked the Fayetteville metropolitan statistical area (MSA) as 
the 36'h best-performing of the 200 largest metropolitan areas based upon comparisons 
of job, wage and salary and technology growth. In 2012, the Policom Corporation 
ranked the Fayetteville MSA as having the 59'h strongest economy of the 366 MSAs 
nationwide. 

The City Council adopted a fiscal year 2013 budget based on modest rates of growth in 
the ad valorem tax base and taxable sales. Fayetteville's strong strategic planning 
process and conservative fiscal management continue to allow the City to maintain a 
high priority on both the delivery of quality services and financial stability. 

LONG-TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING and MAJOR INITIATIVES 

The City's long-term vision is evident in Fayetteville's strong commitment to 
neighborhoods, enhanCing the local economy, maintaining a vibrant downtown and 
major corridors , increasing leisure opportunities for its citizens, its diverse culture, rich 
heritage, and partnership with citizens, while maintaining a strong financial position . 

The City Council has committed to key goals and an action agenda consistent with 
Fayetteville's vision. These goals and targets for action are discussed in the City's 
strategic plan on the City's website at www.ci.fayetteville.nc.us. 

In June 2011 , City Council adopted a fund balance policy that establishes a minimum 
General Fund unassigned fund balance of at least 10% of the succeeding year's 
General Fund expenditure budget, excluding the budget for Cumberland County's 
recreation programs. The purpose of the policy is to maintain sufficient resources in the 
General Fund to cover unexpected expenditures and revenue shortfalls. In addition, the 
City's practice has been to appropriate fund balance for one-time expenditures or 
significant capital needs. These goals were aChieved in fiscal year 2012 and were used 
to develop the fiscal year 2013 operating budget. Unassigned fund balance in the 
General Fund was $20.2 million or 14.3 percent of the original FY2013 General Fund 
budget, excluding the county recreation programs; and therefore, exceeded the 10 
percent minimum established by City Council. 

Annually, the City adopts a six-year capital improvement program (CIP) for its electric, 
water and wastewater utility funds and a five-year CIP for other functions such as public 
safety, parks, transportation , storm water system, airport and transit. The City also 
prepares a five-year financial forecast for its General Fund approximately every three to 
five years. The purpose of the forecast is to enhance the City's financial planning 
process. The forecast incorporates the Council-adopted strategiC plan, five-year capital 
improvement plan , capital funding plan, and adopted budget. 

Consistent with its capital funding policy, in fiscal year 2012 the City dedicated an 
amount equivalent to 5.65 cents of the 45.6-cent ad valorem tax rate, as well as 
specifically earmarked revenues , for the repayment of principal and interest on 
installment financing agreements for facilities and equipment and general obligation debt 
and for future cash funding of major capital improvements. The City assigns any excess 
dedicated revenues at year-end and accumulated fund balance for future capital projects 
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consistent with the adopted capital improvement funding plan The City's commitment to 
the capital funding plan will generate significant funding capacity in future fiscal years. 

In September 2009, the City received upgrades of its credit ratings on general obligation 
bonds from AA- to AA+ and from Aa3 to Aa2 from Standard & Poor's (S&P) and Moody's 
Investor Services (Moody's), respectively. In May 2010, Moody's recalibrated the City's 
credit rating for general obligation bonds from Aa2 to Aa 1. These ratings are consistent 
with Council policy. 

The City also followed other practices designed to avoid using one-time revenues for 
recurring expenditures, to ensure an ongoing mix of pay-as-you-go and long-term debt 
funding of capital needs, and to periodically monitor revenues and expenditures to 
budget. 

The City also accomplished or continued work on several other financial, organizational 
and economic development goals including: 

• 	 In July 2011 , the City adopted the Official Zoning Map which completed the 
process to implement its Unified Development Ordinance (UDO), the first 
comprehensive overhaul of its zoning and subdivision regulations in almost 50 
years. The UDO became effective August 1, 2011 to make development 
regulations more user-friendly, streamline the review process, modernize zoning 
districts and uses , establish minimum development standards, encourage high­
quality development, and incorporate sustainable development practices in the 
City's regulations. 

• 	 The City continued enhancements of transit service by adding evening service to 
three routes in September 2011 and extending a route to provide service to 
Methodist University and the Cape Fear Valley Health System's Health Pavilion 
North in January, 2012. These improvements were identified in the Transit 
Development Plan commissioned in 2009 to guide service improvements. From 
calendar year 2008 to 2011, transit system ridership has increased by 53.8%. 

• 	 The City and the County continued work toward the goal of a consolidated 911 
call center by transitioning to a shared computer-aided dispatch system in 
February 2012. This transition and the City's recent implementation of 
emergency medical dispatch training and certifications have served to increase 
effectiveness in handling emergency calls for service. 

• 	 In March 2012, non-stop air service to Washington, D.C. began at the 
Fayetteville Regional Airport after a concerted, two-year local effort to address 
growing demand resulting from Fort Bragg grow1h due to the BRAC transition. 
Local efforts to acquire the service included an air service study conducted in 
2010 and the cooperation of U.S. Airways, the BRAC Regional Task Force, the 
N.C. Division of Aviation , the military, and defense contractors. 

• 	 The Fayetteville Metropolitan Housing Authority (FMHA) was awarded a $20 
million HOPE VI Revitalization grant in April 2008 to demolish and replace two 
public housing projects comprised of barrack-style buildings built in the 1940s 
and 1950s. The City, the City's Public Works Commission (PWC) and the 
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County committed over $18 million for land, infrastructure, park development, 
housing and various fee waivers. The total project investment is expected to be 
approximately $119 million, the balance of which will be funded by private 
investment. During fiscal year 2012, the City acquired properties, approved the 
site and began planning for the HOPE VI Business Park, approved funding for a 
day care center, and established plans for a community resource center. To date, 
the FMHA has relocated 214 public housing residents, demolished 249 units of 
public housing, and has constructed 404 multi-family units. Twenty-five single 
family houses have also been built. Projects over the nex1 year include the 
construction of 230 multi-family units and several single family units, and 
completion of the community resource center and daycare center. 

• 	 In the spring of 2009, the City, Cumberland County and a local developer entered 
into an agreement to develop a 216-acre business park adjacent to Fort Bragg to 
provide office, retail and research and production facilities to serve the needs of 
the military and its partners. The City and County received grants totaling 
$1,325,400 from the Department of Housing and Urban Development to fund 
infrastructure improvements at the All American Military Business Park which 
have been completed. Construction of a 10,000 square foot complex in the park 
was completed in 2011 and a second facility is currently under construction. 

• 	 The Fayetteville-Cumberland County Chamber of Commerce, in partnership with 
the City, the City's PWC and the County, commissioned an economic 
development strategy report for the County which was completed in May 2012. 
The report provided a competitive analysis of the area, recommended target 
industries for recruitment and identified community improvements to enhance 
competiveness for economic development. 

• 	 The City contracted with the Fayetteville-Cumberland County Chamber of 
Commerce to draft a plan of action for redeveloping Murchison Road. Murchison 
Road will become a crucial gateway to the City due to traffic flow changes 
following the closing of Bragg Boulevard through Fort Bragg. 

• 	 The City, with and through its PWC, accomplished or continued work on several 
utility system financial, operational and economic development policies and goals 
including: 

o 	 Completed adjustments of rate classifications to more closely align with 
the cost structure of the new power supply agreement with Progress 
Energy effective July 1, 2012. 

o 	 Began implementation of Navigate, PWC's Comprehensive Information 
Technology system project. The two-year project will replace the 
customer information, financial and work management systems and 
implement asset management and meter data management systems. 

o 	 Began development of a Smart Grid strategy by evaluating infrastructure, 
resources and staffing, and created a Customer Programs Division to 
develop and manage programs made possible through new metering 
technology. 

o 	 Achieved a Moody's rating upgrade of PWC's credit rating from Aa3 to 
Aa2 in July 2012. 
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o 	 Extension of sanitary sewer services to nearly 2,000 properties as part of 
the City's Annexation Phase V utility retrofitting project. Plans call for 
extending service to an additional 6,600 properties by 2024. 

During the year, the City continued or completed work on many significant capital 
projects including the following: 

• 	 In partnership with Cumberland County, the City and its PWC completed 
construction of a 298-space parking deck on Franklin Street in the downtown 
core in February, 2012. The construction of the deck was financed through an 
equity contribution from the City's PWC and the proceeds of a $5.95 million 
Recovery Zone Economic Development Bond 15-year installment financing 
contract executed in August 2010. 

• 	 In March 2012, the City completed construction of Fire Station 19 in north 
Fayetteville. The construction of the single engine company facility began in 
December 2010 and was financed with the proceeds of a $2.7 million 15-year 
installment financing contract. 

• 	 The City made significant progress toward several improvement projects at the 
Fayetteville Regional Airport. During fiscal year 2012, $7.2 million of funding 
from federal and state grants, passenger facility fees and airport operating 
revenues was invested in the projects, which included airport runway, airfield and 
parking improvements. 

• 	 The City acquired land for a future multi-modal center for the bus system. The 
next phase of the project will include demolition of facilities on the acquired 
properties and design of the facility. 

• 	 The City issued a $10.6 million revenue bond for its Storm Water Management 
System in August, 2011 . During fiscal year 2012, the City invested $5.2 million 
of the bond proceeds and storm water system revenues in various drainage 
system improvement projects throughout the community. 

• 	 PWC continued rehabilitation and replacement of both aging water and sanitary 
sewer system infrastructure. The project replaces and re-lines existing water and 
sewer mains to improve the quality of services, reduce losses and unaccounted 
for volumes and extend the life of the distribution and collection systems. 

• 	 PWC also began rehabilitation of aging electric system infrastructure, including 
the rebuilding of substations and the replacement of aging wooden poles with 
steel poles with a 50-year life expectancy. 

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) 
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of 
Fayetteville, North Carolina for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2011 . In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a 
government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive 
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annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting 
principles and applicable legal requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our 
current comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of 
Achievement Program's requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to 
determine its eligibility for another certificate. 

This report is the work of the efficient and dedicated staff of the Finance Department 
We wish to express our appreciation to all members of the department who assisted and 
contributed to the preparation of this report and to the entire City staff for their 
cooperation and assistance. Credit is also due to the Mayor and the members of the 
City Council for their unfailing support of the highest standards of professionalism in the 
management of Fayetteville's finances. 

R"~L 
~.~~ 

Theodore L. Voorhees Lisa . Smith 
City Manager Chief Financial Officer 

A-9 




Certificate of 
Achievement 
for Excellence 

in Financial 
Reporting 

Presented to 

City of Fayetteville 


North Carolina 


For its Comprehensive Annual 


Financial Report 


for the Fiscal Year Ended 


June 30, 20 II 


A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial 

Reporting is presen ted by the Govenunenl Finance Officers 


Association o f the United States and Canada to 
government units and public employee retirement 

systems whose comprehensive annual financial 
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest 
standards in government accounting 

and financial reporting. 

~P~ 
President 

Executive Director 

I 

1 


A-ll 



Fayetteville City Council 
2011·2012 

William Joseph Leon Crisp 

Olsmot 6 

Kady-Ann Davy 

Distm:l2 

Keith A. Bates, Sr. 

District 1 

James William Arp. Jr. 

Mayor Pro T em 

DiStrict 9 

Anthony G. Chavonne 

Mayor 

Valencia A. Applewhite 

Dlslrict 7 

Robert Thomas Hurst, Jr. 

D.stnc! 5 

D.J. Haire 

District 4 

Robert A. Massey, Jr. 

District 3 

Wade R. Fowler, Jr. 

Disltict 8 

City Administrative, Legal and Financial Staff 


Theodore L. Voorhees 

City Manager 

Kristoff Bauer 

Assistant City Manager 

Karen McDonald 

City Attorney 

Lisa Smith 

Chief Financial Officer 

Pamela Megill 

City Clerk 

A-13 




City Of Fayetteville 
Organizational Chart 

Citizen. of Fayeneville 

: . 

Public Work. ComOli••ion C,ly M,nager Cily Atlorney 

As.islanl City Manager Asslslanl City Manager 

Pohco Finance 

A- 15 



Financial Section 

• Independent Auditors ' Report 

• Management's Discussion and Analysis 

• Basic Financial Statements 

• Notes to the Financial Statements 



Independent 

17tq Auditors' Report 
~~'\ 

• 
• 



CF.RTTHFO PUBI Ie 
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CO:-';Sl[ TA..'ITS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

The Honorable Mayor 
and Members of the City Council 

City of Fayetteville 
Fayetteville, North Carolina 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business­
type activities, each major fund , and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of 
Fayetteville, North Carolina (the "City") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012 , which collectively 
comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial 
statements are the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on 
these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States of America. Those standards require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis , evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing . 
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall financial statement presentation . We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for 
our opinions. 

In our opinion, based on our audit, the financial statements referred to above present fairly , in all 
material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of June 30, 
2012, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where appropriate, thereof and 
the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

As discussed in Note 15 to the financial statements, the City's storm water activities have been 
reclassified from governmental funds and governmental activities to an enterprise fund and business­
type activities, respectively, in accordance with a required change in accounting prinCiple. Accordingly, 
an adjustment has been made to governmental and business-type net assets as of June 30, 2011 to 
renect the reclassification . There is no change in total net assets as a result of this reclassification. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 
26, 2012 on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing 
the results of our audit. 

6-1 




Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America recuire that Management's 
Discussion and Analysis and the other required supplementary information as listed in the table of 
contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a 
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, 
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements 
in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context . We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in· accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the 
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we 
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide 
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements taken as a whole. The combining and 
individual fund financial statements and schedules, and other supplemental financial data are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. 
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards is presented for purposes of 
additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of 
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and the State Single Audit Implementation 
Act, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of 
expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required 
by the Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies, for the year ended June 30, 2012 , 
and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund 
financial statements and schedules, other supplemental financial data, the schedule of expenditures of 
federal and State awards, and the schedule of expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges have been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual fund 
financial statements and schedules, other supplemental financial data, schedule of expenditures of 
federal and State awards, and schedule of expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges, are fairly stated 
in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide 
any assurance on them. 

Fayetteville, North Carolina 
November 26,2012 
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--------- CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE --------­

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 


As management of the City of Fayetteville ("the City") , we offer readers of the City's financial 
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2012. We encourage readers to read the information presented here in conjunction 
with additional information that we have furnished in the transmittal letter at the front of this report and 
the City's financial statements, which follow this narrative. 

Fina ncIal Highlights 

• 	 The assets of the City of FayetteVille exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by 
$1 .3 billion (net assets). Of this amount, $303.0 million (unrestricted net assets) may be used to 
meet the govemment's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. The government's total net 
assets increased by $79.9 million. 

• 	 Net assets decreased $16 .3 million to $416.1 million in fiscal year 2012, down from $432.4 
million in fiscal year 2011 in the Governmental activities. The key factor for this decrease was 
the conversion of the Storm Water Management fund to an enterprise fund (previously general 
government special revenue and capital project funds) that resulted in a $21.4 million reduction 
in net assets for govemmental activities. 

• 	 Net assets increased $96.2 million to $896 .6 million in fiscal year 2012, up from $800.4 million 
in fiscal year 2011 in the Business type activities. By far, the largest portion of these net assets, 
$635.2 million or 70.8 percent, reflects the investment in capital assets less any related debt still 
outstanding that was issued to acquire those assets in the Electric, Water and Wastewater, 
Storm Water Management, Transit, Airport and Solid Waste Recycling activities. Capital 
contributions and operating funds offset by capital asset depreCiation contributed to the $23.0 
million increase in Capital Assets , Net of Related Debt. Current and other assets increased 
$56.5 million or 20 .8 percent in the Business type activities. This change is primarily due to a 
$34 .1 million increase in the Electric, Water and Wastewater Funds as well as the conversion of 
the Storm Water system to an enterprise activity that contributed $17 .8 million to this category. 

• 	 As of the close of fiscal year 2012, the City's governmental funds reported an ending fund 
balance of $64.5 million, a decrease of $10.2 million in comparison to the prior year. 
Approximately 40.9 percent of total fund balance, or $26.4 million is nonspendable or restricted. 

• 	 At the end of fiscal year 2012, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $20.2 million 
or 14.7 percent of total General Fund expenditures and transfers out for the fiscal year. 

• 	 The City's total debt decreased by $9.3 million during fiscal year 2012. 
• 	 The City's most recent general obligation bond issue was rated Aa2 (Moody's Investor Services) 

and AA+ (Standard & Poor's). The City's Public Works Commission outstanding revenue bonds 
carry an Aa3 and AA credit rating from Moody's and Standard and Poor's, respectively. During 
fiscal year 2012, Standard and Poor's upgraded the utility systems rating from AA- to AA and 
Moody's corrected its rating from Aa2 to Aa3 by changing the recalibration algorithm. 
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--------- CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE --------­

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Fayetteville's basic 
financial statements which consist of three components; 1) govemment-wide financial statements, 2) 
fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements as shown below. The basic financial 
statements present two different views of the City through the use of govemment-wide statements and 
fund financial statements. In addition to the basic financial statements, this report contains other 
supplemental information that will enhance the reader's understanding of the financial condition of the 
City. This report includes all funds of the City of Fayetteville as well as its component units, which are 
described in the following pages. Note 1 in the financial report includes further discussion of the 
reporting entity and description of funds. 

Required Components of Annual Financial Report 


Figure 1 


Management's Basic 

Discussion and Financial 

Analysis Statements 

Government-wide Fund 

Financial Financial 

Statements Statements 

Notes to the 

Financial 

Statements 

Summary Detail 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE --------­

Basic Financial Statements 

The first two statements in the basic financial statements are the Government-wide Financial 
Statements. They provide both short and long-term information about the City of Fayetteville's 
financial status. 

The next statements are Fund Financial Statements. These statements focus on the activities of the 
individual parts of the City of Fayetteville's government. These statements provide more detail than the 
government-wide statements. There are four parts to the Fund Financial Statements: 1) the 
governmental funds statements; 2) the budgetary comparison statements; 3) the proprietary fund 
statements; and 4) the fiduciary fund statements. 

The next section of the basic financial statements is the notes. The notes to the financial statements 
explain in detail some of the data contained in those statements. After the notes, supplemental 
information is provided to show details about the City's non-major governmental and proprietary funds 
and the internal service funds . The governmental and internal service funds are added together in one 
column on the basic financial statements. Budgetary information required by the General Statutes also 
can be found in this part of the statements. 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of 
the City of Fayetteville's finances , similar in format to a financial statement of a private-sector business. 
The government-wide statements provide short and long-term information about the City's financial 
status as a whole. 

The two government-wide statements report the City's net assets and how they have changed. Net 
assets are the difference between the City 's total assets and total liabilities. Measuring net assets is 
one way to gauge the City's financial condition. 

The government-wide statements are divided into two categories: 1) governmental activities and 2) 
business-type activities. The governmental activities include most of the City's basic services such as 
general administration , public safety, environmental protection, transportation , economic and physical 
development, and recreation and community facilities . Property and other taxes, and state and federal 
grant funds finance most of these activities. The business-type activities are those that the City 
charges customers to provide. These include the electric, water and wastewater, storm water, airport, 
transit and solid waste recycling services offered by the City of Fayetteville or its Public Works 
Commission. 

The government-wide financial statements are on pages 0-1 and 0-2 of this report. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the City of Fayetteville's most significant 
activities. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that 
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like all other governmental entities 
in North Carolina, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect compliance (or non-compliance) with 
finance-related legal requirements, such as the General Statutes or the City's budget ordinance. All of 
the funds of the City can be divided into three categories govemmental funds, proprietary funds and 
fiduciary funds. 
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--------- CITYOF FAYETIEVILLE 

Governmental Funds - Govemmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Most of the City of Fayetteville's 
basic services are accounted for in governmental funds. These funds focus on how assets can readily 
be converted into cash flow in and out, and what monies are left at year-end that will be available for 
spending in the next year. Govemmental funds are reported uSing an accounting method called 
modified accrual accounting which provides a current financial resources focus. As a result , the 
governmental fund financial statements give the reader a detailed short-term view that helps him or her 
determine if there are more or less financial resources available to finance the City's programs. The 
relationship between govemmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the 
Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is described in a reconciliation that is a part of the fund 
financial statements. 

The City of Fayetteville adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required by the General 
Statutes. The budget is a legally adopted document that incorporates input from the citizens of the 
City, the management of the City, and the decisions of the City Council about which services to provide 
and how to pay for them. It also authorizes the City to obtain funds from identified sources to finance 
these current period activities. The budgetary statement provided for the General Fund demonstrates 
how well the City complied with the budget ordinance and whether or not the City succeeded in 
providing the services as planned when the budget was adoptee. The budgetary comparison 
statement on page E-5 of this report uses the budgetary basis of accounting and is presented using the 
same format, language, and classifications as the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes 
in Fund Balance. The statement shows four columns: 1) the original budget as adopted by the City 
Council ; 2) the final budget as amended by the City Council; 3) the actual resources, charges to 
appropriations, and ending balances in the General Fund ; and 4) the difference or variance between 
the final budget and the actual resources and charges. 

Proprietary Funds - The City of Fayetteville has two kinds of proprietary funds. Enterprise Funds are 
usee to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the govemment-wide 
financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its electric, water and wastewater, 
storm water, mass transit, airport and solid waste recycling operations. These funds are the same as 
those functions shown in the business-type activities in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement 
of Activities. Internal Service Funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs 
intemally among the functions of the City. The City uses an intemal service fund to account for its fleet 
maintenance and risk management activities. All of these services predominantly benefit governmental 
functions except for the fleet maintenance fund, which also provides service to the business type 
activities. These services have been included within their respective predominant activities in the 
government-wide financial statements. 

Fiduciary Funds - Trust funds are used to account for the activities of funds the City holds in trust 
for others. The City has one penSion trust fund and two private-purpose trust funds . 

Notes to the Financial Statements - The notes provide additional information that is essential to a 
full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The 
notes to the financial statements are on pages F-1 - F-49 of this report. 

other Information - In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this 
report includes certain required supplementary information conceming the City's progress in funding its 
obligation to provide pension and other post-employment benefits to its employees. Required 
supplementary information can be found beginning on page G-1 of this report . 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE --------­

Government-wide Flnanclal Analysis 

Net Assets. The following is a summary of net assets for the City of Fayetteville at June 30 , 2012 
with comparative data for June 30, 2011 . The City's combined net assets increased $79.9 million, or 
6.5% from fiscal year 2011 to 2012. Net assets may serve over time as one useful indicator of a 
government's financial condition. The information provided below provides a more detailed view of the 
City 's net assets. 

City of Fayetteville 's Net Assets (dol/ars in thousands) 


Figure 2 


Governmental Buslness-type 
Activities Activities Total 

2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 

Current am dher assets $ 128,089 $ 111,743 $ 271,786 $ 328,283 $ 399,875 $ 
e aptal assets 393,022 380,715 746,945 798,131 1,139,967 

Tolal assets 521,111 492,458 1,018,731 1.126414 1,539,842 

l org.tam liabj~lies oolsiancing 63,513 58,928 181,586 181,952 245,099 
Oher liabiities 25,191 17431 36,723 47 ,853 61 914 

Total liabilities 88,704 76,359 218,309 229805 307013 

Net assets: 

Invested in capital assets, net of 
related del.:( 358,665 346,265 612 ,211 635,244 970,876 
Restricted 35,833 26,200 1,803 1,999 37,636 
U..... estrided 3L909 43, 186,408 259,366 224,317 

Total net assets $ 432,407 $ 416, $ 800,422 $ 896,609 $ 1,232,829 $ 

2012 

440,026 
1 178,846 
1,618872 

240,880 
65284 

306164 

981,509 
28,199 

303000 
1,312,708 

The assets of the City exceeded liabilities by $1 .3 billion as of June 30, 2012. Net assets are reported 
in three categories: Invested in capital assets, net of related debt of $981 .5 million; Restricted net 
assets of $28.2 million; and Unrestricted net assets of $303.0 million. 

The invested in capital assets, net of related debt category is defined as the City's investment in City 
owned capital assets (e.g. infrastructure, land , buildings, automotive equipment, office and other 
equipment, and electric, water, wastewater and storm water systems), less any related debt still 
outstanding that was issued to acquire those items. The City uses these capital assets to provide 
services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending . Although the 
City's investment in its capital assets is reported net of the outstanding related debt, the resources 
needed to repay that debt must be provided by other sources, since the capital assets cannot be used 
to liquidate these liabilities. 

Another category of net assets is restricted net assets. This represents resources that are subject to 
ex1ernal restrictions on how they may be used. 

The final category of net assets is unrestricted net assets. This balance may be used to meet the 
government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. At June 30, 2012, $303.0 million , or 23.1 % 
of the reported total net assets of $1 .3 billion, is unrestricted. 
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--------- CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE 

City of Fayetteville's Changes in Net Assets (dollars in thousands) 

Figure 3 

Governmental 
Activities 

2Qll 2Q12 

Business-type 
Activities 

.2Qlj 2Q12 2Qll 
Tdal 

2Q12 

Revenues: 
Pmgam revenues: 

O1arges for SavlceS 
Operating grants and contributions 
Capttal grants and contribulions 

General revenoos: 
Property taxes 
Other taxes 

Grants and contributions nd restricted 
to spa::~c programs 
Other 

Tetal revenues 

$ 16,537 
15,397 
12,245 

59,01 7 
45,850 

916 
1,577 

151,539 

$ 12,235 
12,053 

6,985 

60,130 
47,168 

902 
2,125 

141,598 

$ 270,885 
2,795 

19,915 

-
-

-
2,519 

296,114 

$ 281,427 
2,488 

22,020 

-
-

-
4,231 

310,166 

$ 287,422 
18,192 

32,160 

fe,017 
45,850 

916 
4,006 

447,853 

$ 293,662 
14,541 

29,005 

60,130 
47,168 

902 
6,356 

451764 

Expenses: 
Administration 
Putjic safety 
Environmental prdection 
Transpaic:tiCJ"'l 
Econ()fT]c .... d physical development 
Recreation and commurity facilities 
Interest and fees 
Eloctric 
Water and wastewater 
Storm water mcnagement 
Transit 
Airport 
Solid waste recyding 

Tdal e><penses 

20,763 
70,904 
14,637 

19,233 
9,324 

12,002 
1,585 

-
-
-
-
-
-

149,438 

21 ,6n 
72,119 

8,370 
19,948 

5,569 
13,490 

1,465 

-
-
-
-
-
-

142,638 

-

-
-
-

-
-
-

149,701 
60,744 

-
6,847 
4,681 

1,927 
223,900 

-
-
-

-
-
-
-

146,117 
65,169 
2,891 
7,005 
5,260 
2,145 

229,247 

20,763 
70,904 
14,637 
19,233 
9,324 

12,002 
1,585 

149,701 
00,744 

-
6,847 
4,681 
1,927 

373,338 

21,6n 
72,119 
8,370 

19,948 

5,569 
13,490 

1,465 
146,117 

65,169 
2,891 
7,665 
5,200 
2,145 

371,885 

Increase in net assets before transfers 
and special items 

2,101 (1,040) 72,214 80,919 74 ,315 79,879 

Transfers 7,578 6,083 (7,578) (6,003) - -

Increase in net assets 9,679 5,043 64,636 74,836 74,315 79,879 

Net assets, July 1 422,728 432,407 735,786 800,422 1,158,514 1 232,829 

Chcnge in accomting principle - (21,351) - 21,351 - -

Net assets, June 30 $ 432,407 $ 416,099 $ 800,422 $ 896,009 $ 1,232,829 $ 1,312708 

Governmental activities The storm water special revenue and capital project funds reported as 
governmental activities in the prior year were converted to an enterprise fund and reported as business­
type activities as of the beginning of this fiscal year. This resulted in a $21.4 million reduction in net 
assets for governmental activities. 
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--------- CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE 

Revenues for the City's governmental activities were $141 .6 million, while total expenses were $142.6 
million in fiscal year 2012. The increase in net assets for governmental activities, after transfers in, was 
$5.0 million . Key elements of this increase are as follows: 

• 	 Ad valorem property tax revenues increased $1 .1 million to $60.1 million due to development 
within the City. Property taxes represent 42.6 percent of total governmental revenues. 

• 	 Other taxes, which accounted for $47 .2 million or 33.3 percent of total governmental revenues, 
increased $1 .3 million from 2011 primarily due to increases in sales taxes and privilege 
licenses. 

• 	 Those who directly benefited from 

service-fee based programs paid 


Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities $12.2 million in charges for 
. Charges for Services services which represented a 26.0 


percent or $4.3 million decrease 
 2% 9% _ Operating grants and 
from 2011. This change was co ntributio ns 

primarily due to the Storm water Capit a l grants and ~.~ ...
a. ~ 	 cont ributionsspecial revenue and capital project 
.Property TaICesfunds reported as governmental 

funds in the prior year that were 
1I0ther Taxes converted to an enterprise fund as 


of the beginning of this fiscal year. 

42% . Other 

• 	 Other governments and 
organizations 	 subsidized certain 

programs with operating 
Expenses and Program Revenues -Governmental Activities grants and contributions 

representing a decrease of 
21.4 percent or $3 .3 million 
in 2012. This decrease can 
be primarily attributed to the 
federal and state grants 
totaling $3.4 million for 
emergency protective 
measures and debris 
removal related to the April 
16, 2011 tornado reflected in 
2011 . 

Admin Public ErtJlron Transport EC(fl & Re c & In! on long 
Safely Prote c. t Phys '" Co mm ...Term Debt 

• The governmental activities 
received $10 .0 million in 

70.000,000 !-- ­
• 

60,000,000 t----' 

50,000,000 t--...-, 

.w,OOO.OOO +--­
30.000,000 t-- ­
20,000,000 

10,000,000 

totaling $12.1 million,SO,ooo.COO ...----------------­

other revenues such as capital grants and contributions, interest and unrestricted grants which 
represented a decrease of 32 .1 percent or $4.7 million . This change resulted primarily from a 
$8.7 million decrease in the State grant revenues received in 2011 for development of the North 
Carolina State Veterans Park adjacent to the Airborne and SpeCial Operations Museum offset 
by an increase of $3.4 million in donated infrastructure and $0.7 million in federal grant funding 
for the Military Business Park and the Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant 
(EECBG). 
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--------- CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE 

• 	 The cost of all governmental activities this year was $142.6 million as compared to $149.4 
million in fiscal year 2011. This change resulted from a $6 .3 million decrease in environmental 
protection that can be attributed to converting the storm water special revenue and capital 
project funds to an enterprise fund in the current f iscal year ($3.6 million) and costs associated 
with the April 16,2011 tornado ($25 million); a $3.8 million decrease in economic and physical 
protection that can be attributed to the HOPE VI project ($1.8 million) compared to fiscal year 
2011, CDBG-R and Homeless Prevention (ARRA) grant funding ($0.8 million) and costs 
associated with the Festival Park Plaza Office, LLC ($0.5 million) and the Lake Valley Drive 
Municipal Service District ($0.5 million) that were reflected in the prior fiscal year; an offsetting 
increase in public safety of $1.2 million that primarily consisted of personnel costs ($0.5 million) 
and vehicle fuel and maintenance ($0.3 million), an increase in transportation of $0.7 million 
primarily due to municipal agreement 
projects and a $0.9 million increase in 
administration for personnel costs and Revenues by Source- Business Activities 

miscellaneous contract agreements. 
 • Charges for 

1% 7% 1% Services 

• 	 The City's four largest governmental 
programs public safety (50.6 
percent), administration (15.2 percent), 
transportation (14.0 percent) , and 
recreation and community facilities (9.5 
percent), represent 89.3 percent of the 
total governmental activities. 

• 	 Operating grants 
and contributions 

Capital grants and 

contributions 

• 	 Other 

91% 
Business-type activities: Revenues for the 
City's business-type activities were $310.2 million, while total expenses were $229.2 million in fiscal 
year 2012 . The increase in net assets for business-type activities, after transfers out of $6.1 million and 
the change in accounting principle of $21.4 million was $74.8 million, resulting in net assets of $896 .6 
million . Specifically, net assets increased in the electric, water and wastewater activities by $62.5 
million, resulting in net assets of $806.6 million in fiscal year 2012, compared to $744.1 million in fiscal 
year 2011. By far, the largest portion of these net assets, $568.3 million or 70.5 percent reflects the 
investment in capital assets less any related debt still outstanding that was issued to acquire those 
assets. Capital contributions and operating funds offset by capital asset depreciation contributed to the 
$0.5 million increase in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt in the electric, water and wastewater 
activities. Current and Other Assets in the electric, water and wastewater activities increased $34 .1 
million or 13.2 percent. 

The storm water special revenue and capital project funds reported in the governmental activities in the 
prior year were converted to an enterprise fund as of the beginning of this fiscal year and are reported 
as a business-type activity as of June 30, 2012. The storm water net assets increased $2.4 million in 
fiscal year 2012. The increase is due primarily to operating revenues exceeded operating expenses by 
$2 .3 million . Net assets of the airport funds at the end of the year amounted to $50.0 million, an 
increase of $6.7 million. This increase in net assets is attributable to capital contributions of $6.4 
million. The City continues to subsidize the transit operations, as net assets increased $2 .5 million in 
fiscal year 2012 from $10.1 million to $12.6 million. This increase is essentially due to the 
governmental activities general revenues transfer ($2.8 million) to the transit operations. 
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-------- CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE 

Financial Analysis of the City's Funds 

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance­
related legal requirements. 

Governmental Funds. The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near­
term inflows, outflows, and balances of usable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the 
City's financial requirements . Specifically, unassigned fund balance can be a useful measure of a 
government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

The General Fund is the ch ief operating fund of the City. At the end of fiscal year 2012 , unassigned 
fund balance of the General Fund was $20.2 million , while total fund balance reached $52.0 million. As 
a measure of the General Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance 
and total fund balance to total fund expenditures and transfers out. Unassigned fund balance 
represents 14.7 percent of total General Fund expenditures and transfers out, while total fund balance 
represents 37 .7 percent of that same amount. 

The North Carolina Local Government Commission strongly recommends that local governments 
maintain an available fund balance of at least 8 percent of annual General Fund expenditures. The City 
of Fayetteville has adopted a minimum fund balance policy for the General Fund which instructs 
management to conduct the business of the City in such a manner that unassigned fund balance is at 
least 10% of the succeeding year's General Fund expenditure budget, excluding the budgets for the 
County Recreation Program and JP Riddle Stadium. In the event that the balance drops below the 
established minimum level, the City Council will develop a plan to replenish the fund balance to the 
established minimum level within two years. 

The fund balance of the City's General Fund increased by $3.2 million during the current fiscal year. 
This increase can be primarily attributed to: 

• 	 Overall revenues increased $6.1 million in fiscal year 2012. Specifically, privilege license taxes 
increased $1.3 million. Local sales tax increased $1 .7 million , reflecting modest economic 
growth. Federal grants increased $2.1 million, this increase is primarily attributable to the 
revenues received for the emergency protective measures and debris removal related to the 
April 16, 2011 tornado. Property leases increased $0.5 million , primarily reflecting the Festival 
Park Plaza rental income. 

• 	 Overall expenditures increased $0.8 million in fiscal year 2012. 

• 	 Net other financing uses decreased $4.2 million in fiscal year 2012. 

At June 30 , 2012, the governmental funds of the City reported a combined fund balance 
of $64.5 million, reflecting a 13.7 percent decrease from the previous year. 
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--------- CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE 

General fund Budgetary Highlights 

The City Council approved a $139.5 million general fund budget for fiscal year 2012, which represented 
a $4.8 million or 3.6% increase from the original budget for fiscal year 2011. The tax rate remained the 
same at 45.6 cents per $100 value. Significant appropriation increases for the fiscal year 2012 budget 
included: $2.6 million in transfers to fund capital projects; $1.4 million in increased debt service funding 
due to new debt issuances; $707 ,000 for vehicle maintenance expenditures: and $557,000 for fuel 
expenses. These appropriation increases were offset by a net reduction of $1 .5 mill ion in personnel 
costs . Personnel cost increases for employee pay and benefits were offset by a $2.2 million budget 
reduction for anticipated savings of 4.1 % from position vacancies and employee tumover throughout 
the year. In prior fiscal years, personnel budgets were not reduced by anticipated vacancy savings. 
Rather, the anticipated savings from vacancies were offset by a fund balance appropriation which was 
not anticipated to be needed. 

An additional $1 .5 million in current ad valorem taxes from real and personal property were expected to 
be generated compared to the fiscal year 2011 original budget, primarily reflecting natural grow1h in 
taxable values. Fiscal year 2012 proceeds from sales tax distributions were projected at $1.0 million 
higher than the fiscal year 2011 budget, reflecting modest economic grow1h. Revenues from permits 
and fees were expected to be $1 .0 million higher in fiscal year 2012, primarily reflecting increased 
building activity. The $4 .3 million fund balance appropriation for one-time expenditures for fiscal year 
2012 represented a $1 .3 million increase compared to the original $3.0 million fund balance 
appropriation originally budgeted in fiscal year 2011 . 

During the fiscal year, the City Council approved budget increases of $6.6 million or 4.8%, bringing the 
general fund budget for fiscal year 2012 to $146.2 million. The budget increases related to 
appropriations of: $3 .6 million for expenditures for which funds were restricted or assigned at June 30, 
2011 ; $813,000 for additional reimbursements from increased annexation-related revenues; $271 ,000 
for expenditures related to the City Manager transition; $251 ,000 to fund service delivery for the Gates 
Four annexation area ; $200,000 for expenditures related to recovery from the April, 2011 tornados; and 
$1.5 million to cover year-end projections and other items across multiple departments. The increased 
budget appropriations were funded by additional fund balance appropriations of $4.3 million, an 
additional $1 .0 million in privilege license revenues, an additional $1.1 million in sales tax distributions 
and $200,000 from federal and state tornado recovery cost reimbursements. 

Actual revenues and other financing sources for the general fund totaled $140 .8 million, or $5.3 million 
or 3.7% less than the final amended budget. The shortfall primarily related to a budgeted fund balance 
appropriation of $8.6 million, which is another financing source that is not reflected as current year 
revenue. This shortfall was offset by: intergovemmental revenues that exceeded the budget by $2 .6 
million primarily due to $2.2 million in federal and state reimbursements related to the April, 2011 
tornados and $351,000 in sales tax revenues received beyond budgeted amounts; other taxes which 
exceeded the budget by $553,000; sales and service revenues across multiple functions which 
exceeded the budget by $545,000 ; and permit and fee revenues which fell short of budgeted amounts 
by $210,000. 

Actual expenditures and other financing uses totaled $137.7 million, or $8.5 million or 5.8% less than 
the final amended budget. There were approximately $3.2 million in expenditures budgeted for fiscal 
year 2012 which were restricted or assigned at June 30, 2012to be reappropriated in fiscal year 2013. 
In addition, the final budget retained appropriations of approximately $1 .8 million or 1.25% beyond 
department year-end expenditure projections to ensure sufficient budget for unanticipated expenditures 
through the end of the fiscal year. Personnel expenditures across all departmental budgets were $1 .3 
million or 1.6% less than projected and the remaining $2.3 million variance between the final budget 
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and actual expenditures resulted from a variety of departmental operating expenditures being under 
budget including contract services ($823,000), vehicle maintenance ($320,000) and fuel ($122,000). 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital assets, The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type 
activities as of June 30 , 2012, totals $981 .5 million (net of accumulated depreciation and related debt). 
These assets include infrastructure; buildings; improvements; automotive equipment; office and other 
equipment; and electric, water, wastewater and storm water utility systems. 

Major capital asset investments and contributions during the fiscal year included the following: 

• 	 $8 .2 million in governmental street, sidewalk and drainage infrastructure projects 
• 	 $8.1 million for water and wastewater rehabilitation of mains, laterals and 

transmission lines 
• 	 $7.2 million for airport runway, airfield and parking improvements 
• 	 $6 .0 million for installation of wastewater utility systems in annexed areas 
• 	 $5.1 million for utility system software/hardware upgrade (Navigate) 
• 	 $5.2 million in storm water drainage improvements 
• 	 $3.6 million for public safety (pOlice and fire) vehicles and equipment 
• 	 $3 .5 million for downtown parking deck 
• 	 $2 .6 million for installation of water and wastewater mains and laterals 
• 	 $2.4 million for transit buses and equipment 
• 	 $2 .1 million for electric, water and wastewater system vehicles and power-operated 

equipment 
• 	 $1.9 million for electric distribution system transformers 
• 	 $1 .7 million for environmental services automated refuse trucks and equipment 
• 	 $1 .7 million for new installation and system improvements to electric underground 

distribution 
• 	 $1.4 million for purchase and installation of electric and water meters 
• 	 $1.1 million for Fire Station #19 land, building and improvements 
• 	 $1.0 million for multi modal center land purchases and design 
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City of Fayetteville's Capital Assets (dollars in thousands) 

(net of accumulated depreciation) 


Figure 4 


Goverrmentai 
Activities 

2011 2012 

Business-tyPl 
Activities 

2011 2012 2011 
Total 

2012 

I 

I 
, 

I 

l ard ard land r'ghts 
I ~frastructure 

Bectric utility system 
Wastewater systEm 
Water system 
Equipment and ma:hinery 

Buildings ard rnp-ovements 

Equiprrenl fumiture and 
fixtures 
ColTlpJtff software 
CompJtff equipmert 
Vehicles 
Corslruction in p-cgress 

$ 37,898 
270,151 

-
-
-
-

63,534 

3,563 

1,108 
-

15,155 
1,613 

$ 37,984 
253,439 

-

-

-

-

67,122 

3,EB3 

695 
-

15,740 
2,()l2 

$ 18,251 
39 

173,869 
2EB,021 
173,025 

11,225 

48,292 

714 

1,296 
1,734 

12,172 
37,307 

$ 19,325 
13,815 

177,838 
277,111 
178,094 
11,217 

56,835 

1,440 

2,798 
1,601 

15,190 
42,867 

$ 56,149 
270,190 
173,869 
269,021 
173,025 

11,225 

111,826 

4,277 

2,4()l 
1,734 

27,327 
38,920 

$ 57,309 
267,254 
177,838 
277,111 
178,094 
11,217 

123,957 

5,133 

3,493 
1,601 

30,930 
44,909 

I 

Total $ ~3,022 $ 380,715 $ 746,945 $ 798,131 $ 1,139,967 $ 1,178,846 

As discussed in Note 3 of the Basic Financial Statements, transfers of $13.6 (net of accumulated 
depreciation) were transferred from the Governmental Activities to the Business-type Activities due to 
the conversion of the Storm Water Management fund to an enterprise fund. 

Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found in Note 3 of the Basic Financial 
Statements. 
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Long-term Debt. As of June 30. 2012. The City had total bonded debt outstanding of $171 .1 million 
before loss on defeasance and reacquired debt. premiums. and discounts (see Note 5 in the financial 
statements), of which $16.7 million is debt backed by the full faith and credit of the City. In addition, the 
City has a number of capital leases and several installment notes outstanding . A summary of total 
long-term debt is shown in Figure 5. 

Bonded Debt, Capital Leases and Installment Notes Payable (dol/ars in thousands) 

Figure 5 

Governmental 
Activities 

2011 2012 

Business·type 
Activities 

2011 2012 2011 
Total 

2012 

Bonded debt 
Obligations under capital leases 
Installment note payable 
Total long·tenn debt 

$ 

$ 

19 ,111 
25.781 

1 151 
46043 

$ 15,996 
21 ,999 

600 
S 38595 

$ 

$ 

156,129 
79 

16683 
172 891 

$ 155.089 
59 

15866 
$ 171 014 

S 

$ 

175.240 
25,860 
17834 

218934 

$ 

$ 

171.085 
22.058 
16466 

209.609 

The City's total long-term debt decreased by $9.3 million, or 4.3 percent, during the past fiscal year. 
This decrease is due to regularly scheduled principal payments of $19.9 million; offset by issuance of 
the 2011 series Storm Water System Revenue Sonds totaling $10.6 million during fiscal year 2012. 

The City transferred $475,568 in installment notes payable to business-type activities that were 
previously reported as governmental activities as the govemmental Storm Water Management funds 
were converted to the Storm Water Management enterprise fund. 

The City's other long-term obligations include a liability for the estimated amount of vacation and 
compensatory leave to ultimately be paid (compensated absences) of $9.4 million , and a $19.0 million 
liability for Other Post Employment Benefits (OPES). 

The City's most recent general obligation bond credit ratings received in connection with the Series 
2009 General Obligation Refunding Bonds were upgraded to Aa2 (Moody's Investor Services) and AA+ 
(Standard & Poors). Subsequently, in May 2010, Moody's recalibrated the City's general obligation 
bond credit rating upward from Aa2 to Aa 1. 

The City's Public Works Commission outstanding revenue bonds carry an Aa3 and AA credit rating 
from Moody's and Standard and Poor's, respectively . During fiscal year 2012, Standard and Poor's 
upgraded the utility systems rating from AA- to AA and Moody's corrected its rating from Aa2 to Aa3 by 
changing the recalibration algorithm. 

The State of North Carolina limits the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of government can 
issue to 8 percent of the total assessed value of taxable property located within that government's 
boundaries. The legal debt rnargin for the City is approximately $991 .8 million . The City has no bonds 
authorized but unissued at June 30, 2012. 

Additional information regarding the City's long-terrn debt can be found in Note 5 on pages F-22 - F-32 
of this report. 
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Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget and Rotes 

Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2013 

The City Council approved a $145.5 million general fund budget for fiscal year 2013, which represented 
a $6.0 million or 4.3% increase from the original budget for fiscal year 2012. The tax rate remained the 
same at 45.6 cents per $100 value. Significant appropriation increases in the fiscal year 2013 budget 
included : a $2 .8 million increase in personnel costs which reflected the impact of employee pay 
adjustments, implementation of pay plan adjustments and a net increase of 13 full-time positions; a 
$2.0 million increase in funding for annexation area water and sewer infrastructure projects; and a $1 .1 
million increase for local reimbursement agreements related to annexation revenues. 

The original fiscal year 2013 budget anticipated an additional $1.2 million in current ad valorem taxes 
from real and personal property as compared to the original fiscal year 2012 budget, primarily reflecting 
natural growth in taxable values. Other significant revenue increases anticipated in the original fiscal 
year 2013 budget as compared to fiscal year 2012 original budget included: a $2.5 million increase in 
sales tax distributions reflecting better than expected economic recovery in fiscal year 2012 and 
continued modest growth in fiscal year 2013; a $1.4 million increase in utility tax distributions from the 
State of North Carolina; and a $1 .1 million increase in transfers from the electric fund . The $4.0 million 
fund balance appropriation for one-time expenditures for fiscal year 2013 represented a $331,000 
decrease compared to the original $4.3 million fund balance appropriation originally budgeted in fiscal 
year 2012 . 

The City Council has since approved budget increases of $437,000 , or 0.3%, bringing the general fund 
budget for fiscal year 2013 to $146.0 million . The budget increase was primarily funded by additional 
appropriations from fund balance and largely related to increased appropriations for transit grant 
matches and transportation improvements. 

Requests for Information 

This report is designed to provide an overview of the City's finances for those with an interest in this 
area. Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or requests for additional 
information should be directed to the Chief Financial Officer, City of Fayetteville, 433 Hay Street, 
Fayetteville, NC 28301. You can also call (910) 433-1682 , visit our website 
www.ci .fayetteville.nc.uslfinance or send an email to lsmith@ci.fay.nc.us for more information. 
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Basic 
Financial 
Statements 

These basic financial statements provide a summary of the financial 
position of all governmental and business-type activities and the 
major and nonmajor funds. They also serve as an introduction to 
the more detailed schedules that follow in subsequent sections. 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Statement of Net Assets 

June30, 2012 


Assets 
Cash and investments 
Taxes receivable 
Accounts receivable 

Internal balances 

Assessment receivable 
Due from other governments 
Inventories 
Prepaid expenses 

Noncurrent portion of note receivable 

Restricted asset - cash and investments 

Restricted asset - accounts receivable 

Restricted asset - collateral pledged 

Other assets 

Capital assets: 


Land and construction in progress 

Other capital assets, 


net of depreciation 

Total assets 


Liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Restricted liabilities - accounts payable 
Unearned revenues 
Unearned deposits 
Long-term liabilities: 


Due within one year 

Due in more than one year 


Other liabilities 

Total tiabilities 


Net assets 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Restricted for: 

Capital projects 
Debt service 
Stabilization by State Statute 
Downtown 
Recreational and cultural 
Donations 
Lake Valley Drive MSD 
Public safety 
Economic and physical development 

Unrestricted 

Governmental 

Activities 


$ 74,317,328 
3,234,853 
3,964,819 

(2,656,875) 
988,112 

13,381,626 
170,322 
944,270 

8,770,175 
8,220,005 

2,791 

405,783 

40 ,025,559 

340,689,156 
492,457,924 

13,162,268 
900,630 

2,955,263 
412,398 

10,502,893 
48,425,369 

76,358,821 

346,265,466 

20,733,404 
261,724 

3,518,730 
20,295 

4,302 
1,350,182 

311,486 
43,633,514 

Business 
Type 


Activities 


$ 109,269,263 

46,987,269 
2,656,875 

14,601 ,024 
871,879 

135,124,755 
671,566 
229,404 

17,871,445 

62,191,828 

735,938,727 
1,126,414,035 

30,251,877 
10,591,507 

24,047 
2,143,314 

16,052,645 
165,899,304 

4,841,962 
229,804,656 

635,244,018 

1,958,397 
40,952 

259,366,012 

Total 

Primary 


Government 


$ 183,586,591 
3,234,853 

50,952,088 

988,112 
13,381,626 
14,771,346 

1,816,149 
8,770,175 

143,344,760 
674,357 
229,404 

18,277,228 

102,217,387 

1,076,627,883 
1,618,871 ,959 

43,414,145 
11,492,137 
2,979,310 
2,555,712 

26,555,538 
214,324 ,673 

4,841,962 
306,163,477 

981,509,484 

1,958,397 
40,952 

20,733,404 
261,724 

3,518,730 
20,295 

4,302 
1,350,182 

311,486 
302,999,526 

T otat net assets $ 416,099,103 $ 896,609,379 $ 1,312,708,482 

The notes to the financial statements 
are an integral part of this statement. 0-1 



CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE. NORTH CAROLINA 


Statement of Activities 

Year Ended June 30, 2012 


Net (Expense) Revenue and 
Program Revenues Changes in Net Assets 

Operating Ca pital Prima~ Government 
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type 

Functions/Programs EXE!enses SelVlces Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total 
Primary government: 

Governmental activities: 
Administration $ 21.677 ,385 $ 1,024,970 $ 3.585 $ $ (20,648,830) $ $ (20,648,830) 
Public safety 72,1 t8,645 4,473,761 3,078,134 27,563 (64,539,187) (64,539,187) 
Environmental protection 8,369,933 192,595 272,362 593,228 (7,311 ,748) (7,311 ,748) 
Transpon.alion 19,948,019 1,266,686 5,311,546 3,511,719 (9, 858,066) (9 .858.088) 
Economic and physical development 5,56 8,559 562, 138 3,061,017 847,788 (1,097,6 16) (1,097, 616) 
Recreation and community facilities 13,490.480 4,714,656 140,364 2,004,325 (6,631,1 15) (6,631 ,115) 
Interest and fees 1,464,554 185,82 5 ,1,278,729} (1,278,729) 

Total governmental activities 14 2,63 7,575 12,234,606 12,052,853 6,984,623 (111 ,365,293) (111,365,293) 

Business-type activities: 
Electric 146,116.631 197,656,327 371,766 51 ,911,262 51,911,262 
Waler and wastewater 65,169,196 70,930,218 10,780,807 16, 541,829 16,541,829 
Storm water managememt 2,891 ,487 5,183.444 2,291,957 2,291,957 
Transit 7,664,911 1,025,180 2,050,348 3,59 2,128 (997.255) (997.255) 
Airport 5,259,583 4,346,702 136,1 31 7,275,532 6,500,782 6,500,782 
Solid waste reCYCling 2,145,150 2,285,016 299,525 439,393 439,393 

Total business-type activilies 229,24 7, 158 281.426.889 2,48 8,004 22,020,233 76,687,968 76,687,968 

Total primary government $ 371,884.7~ $__293,66 1,695 $ ~,540,657 _$___29, 004.,856 (1 11,365,293) 76,687,968 (34.677.325) 

General reven ues' 
Ad valorem taxes 60,130,081 60,130,081 
Other taxes 

Sales lax 33,283,642 33, 283,642 
Utility franchise lax 4,774,681 4,774,881 
Telecommunications sales tax 1,852,403 1,852,403 
Piped natural gas ta x 488,99\ 488,991 
Video franchise lax 2,45 2,910 2,452,910 
Vehicle license tax 622,979 649,47 1 1,272,450 
Privilege license 2,557,864 2.557,864 
Cablevision franchise tax 419,653 419,653 
Vehicle gross receipts lax 572,634 572,634 
SOlid wasle disposal tax 142.217 142,217 

Unrestricted grants and contributions 902,467 902,467 
Interest earned on investments 565,944 3,089,310 3,655 ,254 
Miscellaneous 1,174,240 252,092 1,426,332 
Gain on sale of capltal assets 385.076 240,158 625,234 

Total general revenues not including transfers 110,325,7 82 4,231.031 11 4,556,813 
Transfers 6,082,634 (6,082,634) 

Total general revenues and transfers 116,408,416 {1 ,85 1,6031 114,556,813 

Change in net assets 5,043.123 74,836,365 79,879,488 

Net assets - beginning 432,407,196 800,421,798 1,232, 828,994 

Change in accounting prinCiple (21,351 ,216) 21,351,216 

Net assets - ending $ 416,099,103 $ 896,609,379 $ 1,312.706, 482 

TN! ~OI~S to lhe linMclalsllltomMl. are an ,mei)tlll pa rt of Illis $tltlernenl 0-2 



CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Balance Sheet 

Governmental Funds 


June 30, 2012 

Assets 
Cash and investments 
Taxes receivable 
Accounts receivab le 
Assessments receivable 
Prepaid expenses 
lnventOfies 
Restricted cash and investments 
Restricted accounts receivable 

Total assets 

Liabilities and fund balances 
Liabilities ; 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Unearned deposits 
Deferred revenues 
Restricted accounts payable and accrued expenses 

Tolalliabillties 

Fund balances: 
Nonspendable 

For inventories 
Restricted 


Stabilization by State Statute 

For downtown 

For county recreation 

For JP Riddle Stadium 

For donations 

For Lake Valley Drive MSO 

Public safely 

Economic and physical development 

Recreation and community facilities 


Committed 

General government 

Public safety 

Environmental protection 

Transportation 

Economic and physical development 

Recreation and community facilities 


Assigned 

For subsequent yea(s expenditures 

For special purpose 

For capital projects 


Unassigned 

T alai fund balances 


Total liabilities and fund balances 

General 

Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 

$ 

44,711 ,052 
3,051,196 

14,057,164 
988,112 

170,322 
3,596,732 

66,574,578 

$ 11 ,168,888 

10,636,704 

27 

4,623,273 
2,791 

$ 26,431,683 

$ 8,129,253 
41 2,398 

6,137,079 

14,678,730 

170,322 

14,421 .378 
53,425 

3,418,003 
100,707 
20,295 

4,302 

3,933,570 
5,498,398 
4,113,861 

20,161,587 
51 ,895,848 

$ 66,574,578 

$ 1,646,122 

11,233,896 
900,630 

13,780,648 

6.312.026 
208,299 

1,350,182 
311,486 

20 

79,368 
136,180 

2,979,511 
493,187 

1,835,923 

p,055,147) 
12,651 ,035 

$ 26.431,683 

Total 

Governmental 


Funds 


$ 55,879,940 
3,051,196 

24,693,868 
988,112 

27 
170,322 

8,220,005 
2,791 

$ 93,006,261 

$ 9,775,375 
412 ,398 

17,370,97 5 
900,630 

28,459,378 

170,322 

20,733,404 
261,724 

3,418,003 
100,707 

20,295 
4.302 

1,350,182 
311,486 

20 

79,368 
136,180 

2,979,511 
493,187 

1,835,923 

3,933,570 
5.498,398 
4,113,86 1 

19,106,440 
64,546,883 

$ 93,006,261 

The notes 10 lhe financial statements are a n 
Integral part 01 this statement. E-1 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the 

Statement of Net Assets 


June 30, 2012 


Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because: 

Ending fund balance - governmental funds $ 64,546,883 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, 
therefore, are not reported in the funds. Those assets consist of: 378,586,275 

Land 
RighI of Way 
Construction in progress 
Infrastructure 
Buildings and improvements 
Furniture and equipment 
Vehicles 
Accumulated depreciation 

$ 21 ,723,532 
16,260,330 

1,953,604 
442,073,129 

98,249,879 
26,553,557 
41 ,650,667 

(269,878,423) 
$ 378,586,275 

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and, 
therefore; are deferred in the funds. 14,426,545 

Costs of bond issuance are current-period expenditures in the funds, but will be 
deferred in the statement of net assets and amortized over the life of the outstanding 
debt. 405,783 

Prepaid expenses are current-period expenditures in the funds, but are assets not 
available to pay current-period expenditures and, therefore, are capitalized. 558,112 

Accrued tax penalties receivable are not available to pay for current-period 
expenditures and, therefore, are not recorded in the funds. 183,661 

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of PWC 
fleet maintenance and insurance expenses to individual funds. The assets and 
liabilities of the internal service funds are included in governmental activities. 16,127,067 

Accrued interest payable on long-term debt is not a current expenditure and therefore 
not recorded in lhe funds. (381,898) 

Accrued federal subsidy receivable associated with accrued interest payable and therefore 
not recorded in the funds. 39,939 

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current 
period and therefore are not reported in the funds. Those liabilities consist of: (58,393,264) 

General obligation bonds 
Revenue bonds 
Noles payable 
Obligations under capital leases 
Nel OPEB obligalion 
Compensated absences 

$ 

$ 

(12,016,772) 
(4,459,648) 

(600,000) 
(21,998,896) 
(13,558,507) 

(5,759,441 ) 
(58,393, 264) 

Net assets of governmental activities $ 416,099,103 

The notes [0 the nnancial statements are an 
lI"I[egral part of this statement. E-2 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

Governmental Funds 


Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Revenues 
Ad valorem taxes 
Olher laxes and fees 
Unrestricted intergovernmental 

Restricted intergovernmental 

Permits and fees 

Sales and services 

Miscellaneous 

Interest earned on investments 


Total revenues 

Expenditu res 
Current: 

Administration 
Public safely 
Environmental protection 
Transportation 
Economic and physical development 
Planning and development 
Recreation and community facilities 

Debl service: 
PrinCipal 

Interest 


Tolal expendilures 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over (under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Sale of capilal assets 
Transfers in 
Transfe rs oul 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balance - beginning 

Fund balance - ending 

General 

Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 60,089,099 
4,167,422 

44,355,628 
12,186,192 
2,757,155 
4,424,754 
1,966,706 

288,414 
130,235,370 

$ 
637,221 

7,688,085 

2,287,930 
19,051 

10,632,287 

22,479,246 
67,149,982 

8,965,634 
6,715,609 
1,428,819 

12,455,971 

1,410,022 
4,055,696 

4,307 ,048 
8,992,206 

178,653 
1,925,205 

5,756,981 
1,127,387 

126,079,629 

1,215,000 
431 ,750 

22,515,580 

4,155,741 (11,883,293) 

356,285 
10,247,898 

(11,571,467) 
(967 ,284) 

7,095 
6,949,318 

(43,298) 
6,913,115 

3,188,457 (4,970,178) 

48,707,391 17,621 ,213 

$ 51,895,848 $ 12,651,035 

Total 
Governmental 


Funds 


$ 60,089,099 
4,804 ,643 

44,355,628 
19,874,277 
2,757,155 
4,424,754 
4,254,636 

307,465 
140,867,657 

23,889,268 
71 ,205,678 
8,965,634 

11 ,022,657 
10,421,025 

178,653 
14,381 ,176 

6,971 ,981 
1,559,137 

148,595,209 

(7,727,552) 

363,380 
17,197,216 

(11,614,765) 
5,945,831 

(1,781,721) 

66,328,604 

$ 64 ,546,883 

The notes to the financial statements are an 
integral part of this statement. E-3 



CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Ex penditures, and Changes in Fund 

Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activ ities 


Year Ended June 30, 2012 


Amounts reported for governmental activities in the slatement of activities are different because: 

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the 
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated 
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which 
depreciation ($20,951,719) exceeded capital outlay ($18,586,780) in the current 
period. 

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets (i.e. sales, 
trade-ins, and donations) is to increase net assets. 

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financia l resources 
are not reported as revenues in the funds. 

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds, leases) provides current financial 
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term 
debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither 
transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, government funds report 
the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is 
first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of 
activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long­
term debt and related accounts. 

Principal repayments 
Change in net OPES obligation 
Change in compensated absences 
Other miscellaneous 

$ 6,971 ,981 
(2,219,608) 

63,601 
99,714 

$ 4,915,688 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of 
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds. 

The net revenue of certain activities of internal service funds is reported with 
governmental activities. 

Change in net assets of governmental activities 

$ (1,781,721) 

(2,364,939) 

3,216,362 

(2,493,240) 

4,915,688 

1,357,207 

2,193,766 

$ 5,043, 123 

The notes to tMe finer,ciel statements are an Inloglel pM of tn,s sunement. E-4 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual - General Fund 


Year Ended June 30, 2012 


REVENUES 
Ad valorem taxes 
Other taxes 
Unrestricted intergovernmental 

Restricted intergovernmental 

Permits and fees 

Sales and services 

Miscellaneous 

Interest earned on investments 


Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current : 


Administration 

Public safety 
Environmental protection 
Transportation 
Economic and phYSical development 
Recreation and community facilities 

Debt Service: 
Principal 

Interest 


Total expenditures 


Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

Original 
Budget 

$ 60,179,374 
2,614,135 

43,054,309 
9,598,018 
2,967,105 
3,879,432 
2,072 ,180 

364,734 
124,729,287 

22,309,881 
67,712 ,182 

8,776,386 
7,288,182 
1,728, 535 

12,786,715 

6,033,613 
1,661 ,202 

128,296,696 

(3,567,409) 

Final 
Budget 

$ 60,179,374 
3,614,135 

44,189,309 
9,798,018 
2,967, 105 
3,879,432 
2,072,180 

364,734 
127,064,287 

24,184 ,804 
69,483,043 
10,010,001 

7,766 ,591 
2,091 ,112 

13,468,518 

6,269,585 
1,221,207 

134,494,861 

(7,430,574) 

Actual 

$ 60,089,099 
4,167,422 

44,355,628 
12,186,192 
2,757,155 
4,424,754 
1,966,706 

288,414 
130,235,370 

22,479,246 
67,149,982 

8,965 ,634 
6,715,609 
1,428,819 

12,455,971 

5,756,981 
1,127,387 

126,079,629 

4,155,741 

Variance 
With Final 

Positive 
(Negative) 

$ (90,275) 
553,287 
166,319 

2,388,174 
(209,950) 
545,322 

(105,474) 
(76,320) 

3,171,083 

1,705,558 
2,333,061 
1,044,367 
1,050,982 

662 ,293 
1,01 2,547 

512,604 
93,820 

8,415,232 

11,586,315 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Sale of capital assets 230,000 230,000 356,285 126,285 
Appropriated fund balance 4,310,254 8,619,933 (8,619,933) 
Transfers in 10,262,145 10,262,145 10,247,898 (1 4,247) 
Transfers out (11 ,234,990) (11,681,504) (11,571 ,467) 110,037 

Total other financing sources (uses) 3,567 ,409 7,430,574 (967,284) (8,397,858) 

Net change in fund balances $ $ 3, 188,457 $ 3,188,457 

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 

FUND BALANCE - ENDING $ 

48,707,391 

51,895,848 

The notes to the financial statements a re an 
integral part of this statement. E-5 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

SUlement of Net Assets 


Proprietary Fu nds 


June 30, 2012 


Electric 
Fund 

Water and 
Was tewater 

Fund 

Ente~rise Funds 
Storm Waler 
Management 

Fund 

Nonmajor 
Enterprise 

Fun as Total 

Internal 
Service 
Funds 

AssetS 
Current assets 

·Cash ana investments 
ACCOUnts receivable 
Inter1vncl receivable 
Inventories 
Prepaid expenses 

TOlall.R"eSlricted current aS$tts 

$ 64.493.034 
26.147.950 

189.327 
12.829.724 

281.114 
103.921.1 49 

, 24.822.156 
15.038.473 

4.337 
1.563. 11 2 

590.765 
42.018.843 

$ 11.929.393 
179.882 

12.109.275 

, 8.024.680 
5.620.964 

208,188 

13.853.832 

S 109.269.263 
46.987.269 

173.664 
14.801.024 

871.879 
171.903.099 

, 18.437.395 
, .382.812 
(\73.664) 

386,128 
20.032.671 

Reslrided current assets 
RestflCled cash and Inveslments 
~unts recei vable 
Collalernl pledged in lieu Of deposl!s 

Total restricted current assets 

89.860.895 
128.863 
229.404 

90.2 19. 162 

37.693,821 
424.819 

38.118.640 

5.733.405 

5.733.405 

1.838.834 
117.884 

1.954,5 18 

135.124.755 
671,566 
229.404 

136.025.725 

Total curren! assets 194,140.3 11 80.137.483 17.642.680 15.808.350 307.928,824 20.032.871 

Noncurrent assets 
Other as.sets 
Capital assets 

1 etal noncurrent assets 

5.183.253 
236. 109.876 
241.293.129 

12 .607 .649 
489.805.355 
502.414.204 

80.343 
18.794.527 
18.8R870 

53.419.797 
53.419.797 

17,87 1.445 
798.130.555 
818.002.000 

2,128.440 
2. 128.440 

10lal assets 435.433.440 582.551.687 36.717.550 69.228.1 47 1.123,930,824 22.161.1 11 

Uabilhles and net assets 
CUr«!ntltab~i~es 10 be paid ' rom 
unreslrlcted assets 

AccountS payable and accrued expenses 
Current pol'lion of long lerm deb! 
Unearned deposits 

Total cunenliiabtrilies 10 be paid 
Irom ......eslnc\ed assets 

14.159.688 
2.6 10.976 

17.370.664 

10.701 .986 
12.505.035 

23.208,022 

432. 195 
665.064 

1.164.378 

2.28 1.637 

4 .358.008 
270.569 

1.025 

4,829.802 

30.251.877 
16 .052.645 

1.185.403 

47.489.925 

3.004.995 
109.386 

3.1 14.181 

Current hab~ties to be paid from 
restrided as.setS 

Accounts payable and aca\led expenses 
10lal C;1JrrentliablWtles \0 be paid 
from restricted assets 

6.602.1 54 

6.602. 154 

3.715.453 

3,715.453 

258,021 

268.021 

5.879 

5.879 

10.591 .507 

10.591,507 

Total curreni ll ao~it, es 23.972.818 26.923.475 2,549.658 4 .635.48 1 58.08 1.432 3. 11 4.381 

Noncurrent liabilities 
Unearned deposils 
Net OPES obligauon 
Unearned revenues 
Long-term <lObi 
Olher tiabililtes 

l otal I'IOflCUTenl "ablli lies 

815 
1.87 1.790 

12 ,697,205 

14,589 ,810 

957.096 
2.175.132 

137.936,346 
4.8-4 1.962 

145.910.535 

251.299 

10.160.508 

10.431.807 

747.559 
24.047 
39.465 

811 .071 

957.911 
5,045.780 

24.047 
160.853.524 

4641 .962 
171,723.224 

385,017 
10,833 
40,602 

436.452 

10lal liabllilles 18 ,542,628 172.834.011 12,981 .465 5.446.552 229.804.656 3.550.833 

Nel assels 
Invested ... capital assets. net of rel,ned deb1 
Restricted 061 use1S 

Capital p.-ojects 
Debt service 

Unrestricted 
1 otal net asselS 

222.362.214 

10 
174.528.588 

S 396.890.81 2 

345.982,636 

9.758 
40.942 

63.684.340 
S 409,717.676 

13.479,371 

10,256.7 14, 23.736.085 

53,419.797 

1.948.639 

8.4 13. 159 
$ 63.781,595 

635.244.018 

1.958.397 
40.952 

256.882.80 1 
894,126.1 68 

2,128.440 

16.481 .838 , 18.610.278 

Some amounts reponed for busines.s-type activibes in the statement of net assets are different 
because certain Internal sef'llice Iuod assets and ~aol~hes Me InCluded "";lh business fY1)e aClivities. 2.483.21 1 

Net assets ef business·type activities S 896.609.379 

The M teS to the ~naneial statements are an Integral pan of lhis stalemen\. E·6 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes In Fund Net Assets 

Proprietary Funds 


Year Ended June 30, 2012 


Ente!Erlse Funds 
Water and Storm Waler Nonrnajor Internal 

Electric Wastewater Management Enterprise Service 
Fund Fund Fund Funds Total Funds 

Operating revenues 
Charges for services $ 197,656,327 , 70,915,208 , 5,154,229 , 7.463,139 $ 281,198,903 S 
Other revenue from operatIOns 19,215 193.161 212,976 8,537.425 
Inlerfund charges and employee conl/ibulions 15,149,692 
Miscenaneous operating revenue 15,010 15,010 1,390 

Total operating revenues 197,656,327 70,930,218 5,183,444 7,656,900 281.426,889 23,688,507 

Operating expenses 
General and admlnlstrat!ve 13,509,839 14,130,014 27,639,853 
Power supply and generation 103,619,819 103,619,819 
Electric operation 12,501,170 12,501,170 
Mlscenaneous operabng expense - waler 15,010 15,010 
Water operations 14,059,094 14,059,094 
Waslewater operations 12,743,659 12,743,659 
Salanes and employee benefits 1,406,052 5,498,097 6,904,149 291,121 
Other operating expenses 881,254 6,120,635 7,001,899 21,688,505 
Oepreciatlon 15,096,341 16,308,785 559,991 3,011,810 34,976,927 124,727 

Total operating expenses 144,727,169 57,256,562 2,847,307 14.830,542 219.461,580 22,104,353 

Operating Income (loss) 52,929,158 13,673,656 2,335,137 (6,973,642) 61,965,309 1,584,154 

Nonoperating revenue (expense) 
Interest earned on Investments 1,482,999 1,501.482 56,442 48,387 3,089,310 90,816 
Federal and Slate grants 2,188,479 2,188.479 
Passenger Facility Charges 906,962 906,962 
Miscellaneous revenue 252,092 252,092 2,279 
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets (312,517) 154,119 36.470 49,569 (72,359) 16,334 
County revenue 299,525 299,525 
Vehicle fee revenue 649,471 649.471 
Inlerest expense (698,847) (6,790,884) (38,950) (1.438) (7,530,119) 
A.rnonizauon (372,570) (1,108,053) (5,230) (1,485,853) 
Miscellaneous expense (437,684) (437,664) 
Issuance costs (5,728) \13,697) P9,425) 

Total nenoperating revenue (expense) 93,3.37 (6,257,033) 48,732 3,955,383 (2,159,581) 109,429 

Income (loss) before transfers 53,022,495 7,416,623 2,384,869 13,018,259) 59,805,728 1,693,583 

Trans1ers In 20,847 1,311,230 2,833,187 4,165,264 1,094,517 
Transfers out (10,117,820) (297,167) (427,245) (10,842,232) 
Capital COntributions 371.766 10,780,807 9,960,698 21,113,271 

Change in net assets 43,297,288 19,211,493 2,384,869 9,348,381 74,242,031 2,788,100 

Total net assets - beginning 353,593,524 390,506,183 54.433,214 15,822,178 

Change In accounting principle 21,351,216 

Total net assets - ending $ 396,890,812 5409,717,676 $ 23,736,085 $ 63,781,595 S 18,610,278 

Some amounts reperted for business-type activities in the statement of acllvloes are different 
because the net revenue (expense) of certain intemal service funds is reported 'With business-type actiVities, 594,334 

Change In net assets of business, type activities $ 74,836,365 

l11e ,,,,les LO the fJnanoal Slalements are an ,ntegral part Of this SlatemenL E-7 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROUNA 

Statement of Cash Flo~ 


Proprietary Fund~ 


Year Ended June 30, 2012 


Eleetrte 
Fund 

Water and 
Wastewater 

Fund 

Enle!}!rt$(l Funds 
Storm Water 
ManagQment 

Fund 

NonmaJor 
Enlerprt Soll 

Fund s Total 

Internal 
$QrvleQ 
Funds 

OlXlr.ltlng aetlvtt!es 
Cash receNeQ from CUSlOmefS 
Cash recellle<l for in~ral'lCe re ,mboursemems 
Cash p,aid to or on bEil'leir 01 employees lor servlres 
Cash p.ald Ill r goods IIf'ld services 
Cash paid lor power supply aoa generalion 

Net cash provided by (used In) 
openadng acllvltles 

200,180,501 

(15,973,244) 
(10,161,193) 

1'03,619.819) 

70,4 19 ,705 

11,592,750 

(17.243.696) 
(21,896,449) 

32.652.403 

, 5,.427,928 

11.365,534) 
(522.259) 

3540135 

6,30 1,003 

(5.325,&45) 
(3.212,540) 

12.231,362) 

, 28-1,102,242 

(39,908,521) 
136,199,(41) 

( IOl ,619.819) 

104.374.861 

S 22.131 ,6904 
1.092,666 

(2 ,.497,962) 
(19,S.40, 179) 

1. 386 239 

Noncapital tlnanclng activities 
Trans1~ ' n ZO,B47 1.31 1,230 2.833,1 81 4,165,264 1.094,517 
FedeNllllnd SlaUt Ql'ants 2,18$,479 2.188,.179 
COSI 04' deb( 'ssuaoce (85,573) (SS,573) 
Trans1~ out 

Nllt cuh provided (used) by non capital 
!'0. '" 6ZO) (297,167) {4 21,2t5l (10,642,232) 

financing actlvilles (10,096,973) 1,014,063 (65.573l 4.594 421 (4,574,082) 1.0904,517 

Capital and f'CIlatlld flnanclng acllvltles 
Proceeds from sale of capllal assetS 109,715 198,282 38,470 49,569 394,036 16,33-4 
Proceeds trom debtlssuar.ce 10,595.000 10,595,000 
Contributed capital received 371,766 3,988,913 9 ,960,696 14,32' ,3n 
AC(luls'tioo 9nd eonS!l"1Jc~on of capital assets (2 1,469,753) (19,793,738) (5 ,489,825) ( 11 ,996,267) (58,nl ,B01) (599,241) 
Pnno'pal paid in debl marurities 
Interesl paid on debl maturi1Jes 

Nltl caeh provided (used) by c~plt.aJ and 

(2,991.459) 
p,on,145l 

(12 ,670,639) 
0,912.634) 

(290.030) 
1291,7861 

(19, 573) 
P,4381 

(15,971,701) 
(9 ,28l,003) 

relllled fln~nclng activities (25.075,S7Ei) {36,189,814} 4,559.829 (2.009 03ll {56,715,892! 1582 901) 

Investing aClfvldlts 
InU~fes l and dlviOeflds 
Net Cl\ange In IrweSbTlenlS 

Net cash provided (used) by Investing activit ies 

1.462.999 
11,&92.9001 

1409,90t ) 

1,501,462 
( I ,066,922) 

434,560 

72,9&9 

"98' 
46,367 

45.367 

3.105,857 
(2959.822) 

146.035 

90,8 16 

90.816 

Net I...crease (decrease) In cash and cash 
eo.ulvalentsJlnvestments 3-'.835.955 Q ,088,768! 8.087380 396.395 41230,942 1.988.665 

C.Uh and cash ctqulvalllnts/lnveSlments 
BIIglnnlng of year 45.699.754 41 ,618,974 9575.418 9,4B4.919 105.359,065 16.448730 

End 01 yen 80,535,709 39.530, 186 17,662,798 9,861.314 147,590,007 18.437,395 

UnreslricleQ cash and' cash equlvalenl.$linvesllTlcnts 
Restriete(! cash and eqlHvalcntsf,rwcsUT'lenls 

To tal cash and cash equlv~lents/ln""stm"nla 

33,225,739 22,026,280 
17,501.906 
39530.186 

11,929,393 
5,733 405 
17662,7~8 

a.o24,680 
1,636,634 
9861.314 

75,208,092 
12 ,38 1,915 

• 147.590,8<)7 S 

18.437.395 

18.437.395 

The notes 10 the financia l slalemenls are an In;egral part or U'1IS sta lements, 



CITY OF FAYETiEVILLf, NORTH CAROUNA 

Slalliment of CiI$n Flows 

Proprlet.liry Funds 


Year Endt<l June lO, lO1Z 


E ntll~n5 11 Funds 

'",d 

W.lt., Ind SlormWiller NonrTl3Jor Inlllm.ill 
Ere~trlc Wastewate r Manlgemenl Entefllrl~ Service 

Fund Fund Funds TO(.;lI Funds 

Reconclilltion of operating Income (loss) 
to net <;;ish provided by 
(used In) operating Iclivltles 
Opera~ng M'lCOll1e (Io~) , 52,929,158 S 13,873.656 , 2,3J.5,137 S (6,973,642) 6 1,965,309 1,5S4,I54 
Ad)IJslmems 10 reconale operatll'l9 Income (loss) 

10 net <;;iSn pro~ed by (used in) I)perabl'lg 
ac.uv'fies 
OePfeaaoon 15,096.:\41 16,308,18.5 559,991 3,011 .810 34,916,927 124,727 
Nonoperating oa.ymenlS for goods and 5ef'VICe$ (431,864) (431.664) 2,219 
AlIoWiloce fof uncollectible accounls 44.024 25.697 69.721 
Nonopefallng receiJ)ls from GUstorners 2. 106.050 2,106.050 
GaIn liens) on sale of caPllal a~1S (312,517) 154,119 (15&.300) 16,334 

C~nge In assets and Kabiliues 
(fncrease) decrease 10 accounts rectll\lable 3,037,022 63E1.S35 (67,366) (3,459,455) 127 ,036 (466,100) 
(Increase) decreas.a 10 l"Iventory (669,074) (252,nS) (~0.467) (982,319) 
(lncrea~) decrease In prepaid ,tems (.<7.918) 
(Increase) decrease In mlemal balances (327,265) (1 49,241) (476,506) 476,506 
(Increase) decrease In other current assets (5,102) (28,97S) (34,060) 
(Increase) decrea~ in other assets (1,120,418) 45 2,823 (667,595) 
(Increase) decrease in Uf1.eamed depOsliS (6.509) (23,094) 331.650 302,247 
(InCl'ea~) decrea~ In accounts payable 

and acoved Hab,~ties 1,656.610 1,967,744 359,005 3,3&3,226 7,571,785 (267,275) 
(Increase) decrease in aCCNed compensa ted 

ebsences (64,765) (113,165) 1,636 28,296 (167,996) (24,440) 
(1l'I<:nasej <1ecrease in uneerned revenues (4,492) (4,492) (3<:6) 
(Increase) Qeo-ease In Nel OPES ObiIgallOn 38.680 143,956 182.836 8,278 

Tolal adpstments 17.490.547 t8,978,747 1,203,998 4,736,260 42,409.552 (197.915) 

Nel <;.ish provided by lus.edln) opt f3Un9 JC1MUes 70,419.705 !2,~2.403 , 3.540.135 S ~.237 .3822 104.314,861 , 1,386,239 

Nonush InvuUng, capital, ~nd finlnclng ~<::tlvhles 
Conlflbuted capllel e~I$ , S 6,373.633 , , 6 ,37~,633 , 

FIF C~ilS Awarded 
 , , , , , 
FIF C~its App~ed S 418,261 , 418,261 S• 

,.,The notes \0 ~e ~,n~r." al statements are an integral part or this Statements, 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLiNA 


Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets 

Fiduciary Funds 


June 30, 2012 


Assets 
Cash and investments 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Total cash and investm ents 

Accounts receivable 

Total assets 


Liabilities 
Accounts payable 

Total liabilities 

Net assets 

Held in Trust for pension benefits and other 
purposes 

Total net assets 

Pension 

Trust Fund 


$ 	 2,596,407 
2,596,407 

1,773 
2,598, 180 

26,098 
26,098 

2,572,082 
$ 2,572,082 

Private-purpose 

Trusts 


$ 	 1,374,480 
1,374,480 

4,020 
1,378,500 

1,378,500 
$ 1,378,500 

The notas to the r.nanc,al slatomeots are an integral part or this statement E -10 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets 

Fiduciary Funds 


Year Ended June 30, 2012 


Additions 
Employer contributions 
Other contributions 
Investment earnings 

Total additions 

Deductions 
Benefit payments and premiums 

Total deductions 

Change in net assets 

Total net assets - beginning 

Total net assets - ending 

Pension 

Trust Fund 


$ 686,544 

12,971 
699,515 

531,202 
531,202 

168,313 

2,403,769 

$ 2,572,082 

Private-purpose 

Trusts 


$ 
110,606 

11,114 
121,720 

124,675 
124,675 

(2,955) 

1,381,455 

$ 1,378,500 

The notes to the rW'1anClal statements are an integral part of this statement. E-11 



Notes to 

Financial 

Statements 

These notes are intended to communicate information necessary for 
a fair presentation of financial position and results of operations that 
are not readily apparent from , or cannot be included in, the financial 
statements themselves. The notes supplement the financial 
statements, are an integral part thereof, and are intended to be read 
together with the financial statements. 



City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2012 


Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The City of Fayetteville, North Carolina (the "City") was established in 1783. The City operates under a 
council-manager form of government and provides the following services: administration, public safety, 
environmental protection, transportation, economic and physical development, recreation and 
community facilities, electric, water, wastewater and storm water utilities, transit, airport, and solid 
waste recycling . The City receives substantial revenues from Federal and State sources. Ad valorem 
taxes on the City of Fayetteville's citizens represent a significant portion of the general government 
revenues. 

The financial statements of the City of Fayetteville, North Carolina have been prepared in conformity 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to 
governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard­
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more 
significant accounting poliCies of the City are described below. 

A - Reporting Entity 

As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, these financial 
statements present the City and its component units. GASB Statements number 14 and 39 define 
component units as legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary 
government are financially accountable. The primary government is financially accountable if it 
appoints a voting majority of the organization's governing body and a) it is able to impose its will on that 
organization or b) there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or 
impose specific financial burdens upon, the primary government. 

These statements provide two methods for reporting component units in the financial statements of the 
primary government: discrete presentation and blending. Discrete presentation means that data will be 
presented in one or more separate columns to the right of the primary government data columns. 
Blending means that the component unit's financial data is reported as though the unit is part of the 
primary government. If the units provide services or benefits exclusively , or almost exclusively, to the 
primary government, or if the component units and the primary government have "substantively 
identical boards," the legally separate component units should be incorporated by blending. If the units 
do not meet these criteria, their data should be incorporated by discrete presentation . 

Based on evaluating these characteristics, the following is a brief review of the component units in the 
City's reporting entity : 

City of Fayetteville Finance Corporation 

The City of Fayetteville Finance Corporation is a non-profit corporation formed for the purpose of 
issuing bonds to build City facilities and park improvements, as well as for the defeasance and 
refunding of 1989 certificates of partiCipation. The City leases the police administration building , 
Festival Park and Westover Recreation Center from the Corporation with rental revenues being used by 
the Corporation to retire the bonds. The Corporation is shown in a blended presentation as the 
Corporation provides services exclusively to the City. The operating fund of the Corporation is 
presented in the accompanying financial statements as a nonmajor special revenue fund. 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2012 


Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

City of Fayetteville Linear Park, Inc. 

The City of Fayetteville Linear Park, Inc. is a non-profit corporation formed for the purpose of assisting 
in the development of the Linear Park downtown. Linear Park, Inc. is shown in a blended presentation 
as it provides services exclusively to the City. Its operating fund is presented in the accompanying 
financial statements as a nonmajor special revenue fund. 

B - Basis of Presentation 

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display 
information about the primary government (the City) and its component units. These statements include 
the financial activities of the overall government. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double 
cou nting of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business­
type activities of the City. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, 
intergovernmental revenues , and other non-exchange transactions. Business-type activities are 
financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties. 

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for 
the different business-type activities of the City and for each function of the City's governmental 
activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, 
therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Indirect expense allocations that have been 
made in the funds have been reversed for the statement of activities. Program revenues include (a) 
fees and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants 
and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular 
program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as 
general revenues . 

The Government-wide Statements are presented on the full accrual basis in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Fiduciary funds are not 
included in these statements. 

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the City's funds, 
including its fiduciary funds and blended component units. Separate statements for each fund category 
- governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary are presented , even though the fiduciary is excluded from 
the government-wide financial statements. The emphaSis of fund financial statements is on major 
governmental and enterprise funds , each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental 
and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. 

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions 
associated with the principal activity of the fund . Exchange transactions are those in which each party 
receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and 
investment earnings, result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities. 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2012 


Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund. The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It accounts for all financial 
resources of the general government except those that are required to be accounted for in another 
fund. The primary revenue sources are ad valorem taxes, federal and state grants, and various other 
taxes and licenses. The primary expenditures are for public safety, parks and recreation, street 
maintenance, and solid waste. 

The City reports the following nonmajor governmental funds : 

Special Revenue Funds. Special Revenue Funds account for specific revenue sources that are 
legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes. The Emergency Telephone System Fund 
accounts for the City's share of the State tax charged to telephone customers to fund the 911 system . 
The Federal and State Financial Assistance Fund accounts for federal and state grants. The City of 
Fayetteville Finance Corporation Fund accounts for debt service on certain municipal buildings and 
park improvements. The Linear Park Fund accounts for projects associated with development of the 
Linear Park downtown. 

Capital Project Funds. Capital Project Funds account for financial resources to be used for the 
acquisition or constnuction of governmental capital assets. The General Government Fund accounts for 
information technology and other projects supporting the entire government. The Public Safety Fund 
accounts for projects supporting the public safety services provided by the City. The Transportation 
Fund accounts for projects to improve transportation and related services throughout the City. The 
Bond Improvement Fund accounts for bond proceeds and their use. The Economic and PhYSical 
Development Fund accounts for construction and improvement of various public facilities. The 
Recreational and Cultural Fund accounts for resources used for the acquisition and construction of 
facilities such as parks, recreation centers and museums. Resources are provided through 
intergovernmental revenues, facility financing proceeds and transfers from other funds. 

The storm water special revenue and capital project funds reported as governmental funds in the prior 
year were converted to an enterprise fund as of the beginning of this fiscal year because revenue 
bonds were issued and the storm water revenues were pledged. This resulted in a change in 
accounting principle for the amount of storm water net assets as of June 30 , 2011 . 

The City reports the following major enterprise funds: 

Electric Fund. This fund accounts for the operations and maintenance of the Butler-Warner Generation 
Plant and the transmission and distribution of electricity to customers within the City of Fayetteville and 
surrounding areas. 

Water and Wastewater Fund. This fund accounts for the operations, transmission and distribution of 
water and wastewater for customers within the City of Fayetteville and surrounding areas. 

The Electric Fund and the Water and Wastewater Fund are operated under the Public Works 
Commission (PWC) of the City of Fayetteville. 

F-3 




City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30 , 2012 


Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Storm Water Management Fund . This fund accounts for the operations and maintenance of storm 
water facilities for the customers within the City of Fayetteville. The storm water special revenue and 
capital project funds reported in the governmental activities in the prior year were converted to an 
enterprise fund as of the beginning of this fiscal year and are reported as a business-type activity as of 
June 30, 2012. 

The City reports the following nonmajor enterprise funds: The Transit Fund accounts for operation of 
the municipal transit system. The Airport Fund accounts for the operation and capital asset acquisition 
and construction of the Fayetteville Regional Airport. The Solid Waste Recycling Fund accounts for 
specified fees and residential recycling services. 

The City reports the following fund types: 

Internal Service Funds. Internal Service Funds account for the financing of services provided by one 
department or agency to other departments or agencies of the City, on a cost reimbursement basis. 
The Insurance Fund is used to account for the accumulation and allocation of costs associated with 
health, workers compensation, and liability claims. The PWC Fleet Maintenance Fund accounts for the 
accumulation and allocation of costs associated with the City's and PWC's fleet maintenance activities . 

Pension Trust Funds. These funds accumulate contributions in order to pay retirement benefits to 
eligible participants. The Special Separation Allowance Pension Trust Fund accounts for the Law 
Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance, a single-employer, and public employee 
retirement system. 

Private-Purpose Trust Funds. These funds are used to account for resources legally held in trust for 
use by others. The Police Benefit and Firemen's Benefit Trust Funds account for resources held in 
trust for these two groups of individuals . All resources of the funds, including any earnings on invested 
resources, may be used to support the organizations' activities . There is no requirement that any 
portion of these resources be preserved as capital. 

C - Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

In accordance with North Carolina General Statutes, all funds of the City are maintained during the year 
using the modified accrual basis of accounting. 

Government-wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements. The government-wide, 
proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus. The government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are 
reported using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are 
recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. 
Nonexchange transactions, in which the City gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or 
giving) equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, and donations . On an accrual basis, 
revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue 
from grants and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been 
satisfied . 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30,2012 


Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, 
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and 
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general 
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise , general revenues include all taxes. 

The City's proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and 
delivering goods in connection with the funds' principal ongoing operations. The principal operating 
revenues of the City's utility funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating 
expenses for the City's utility funds include the costs of sales and services, general and administrative 
services and depreciation of capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are 
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements. Governmental funds are reported using the current financial 
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, 
revenues are recognized when measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded when the related 
fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and 
judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have 
matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. 
Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other 
financing sources. 

The City considers all revenues available if they are collected within gO days after year-end , except for 
property taxes. Ad valorem taxes receivable are not accrued as a revenue because the amount is not 
susceptible to accrual at June 30, since taxes receivable are materially past due and are not 
considered to be an available resource to finance the operations of the current year. 

Also, as of January 1, 1993, State law altered the procedures for the assessment and collection of 
property taxes on all registered motor vehicles in North Carolina. Effective with this change in the law, 
Cumberland County is responsible for billing and collecting the property taxes on registered motor 
vehicles on behalf of all municipalities and special tax districts in the County, including the City of 
Fayetteville. For motor vehicles registered under the staggered system, property taxes are due the first 
day of the fourth month after the vehicles are registered . The billed taxes are applicable to the fiscal 
year in which they become due . Therefore, the City's vehicle taxes for vehicles registered in 
Cumberland County from March 2011 through February 2012 apply to the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2012 . Uncollected taxes, which were billed during this period, are shown as a receivable in these 
financial statements and are offset by deferred revenues. 

As permitted by generally accepted accounting principles, the City has elected to apply only applicable 
Statements and Interpretations issued on or before November 30, 1989 that do not contradict GASB 
pronouncements in its accounting and reporting practices for its proprietary operations. 

I ntergovernmental revenues and sales taxes collected and held by the State at year-end on behalf of 
the City are recognized as revenue. Sales and services are not susceptible to accrual because 
generally they are not measurable until received in cash . Grant revenues, which are unearned at year­
end, are recorded as unearned revenues. 
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City of Fayetteville , North Carolina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2012 


Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial 
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes where the amounts are 
reasonab ly equivalent in value to the interfund services provided and other charges between the 
government's electric, water and wastewater functions and various other functions of the government. 

Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the 
various functions concerned. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use 
restricted resources first then unrestricted resources, as they are needed . 

D - Budgetary Data 

Budgets are adopted as required by the North Carolina General Statutes. An annual budget is adopted 
for the general, selected special revenue, and enterprise funds. All annual appropriations lapse at 
fiscal year end. Project and grant ordinances are adopted for the Federal and State Financial 
Assistance special revenue fund, Linear Park special revenue fund and capital project funds . 
Enterprise capital project funds are consolidated with the operating funds for reporting purposes. The 
City's internal service funds are intra-governmental service funds, which operate under financial plans 
that were adopted by the governing board at the time the City's budget ordinance was approved, as is 
required by the General Statutes. All budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of 
accounting . Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the departmental level for the 
general, selected special revenue, and proprietary funds and at the project level for selected speCial 
revenue and capital project funds . Any revisions that alter total appropriations at the department or 
project level, as appropriate, of any fund must be approved by the City Council. During the year, 
several amendments to the original budget were necessary . The budget ordinance must be adopted by 
July 1 of the fiscal year or the governing board must adopt an interim budget that covers that time until 
the annual ordinance can be adopted . 

E - Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Equity 

Deposits and Investments 

All deposits of the City are made in board-designated official depositories and are secured as required 
by State law (G.S. 159-31). The City may designate, as an official depository, any bank or savings 
association whose prinCipal office is located in North Carolina . Also, the City may establish time 
deposit accounts such as NOW and Super NOW accounts, money market accounts, and certificates of 
deposit. 

State law (G.S. 159-30(c)) authorizes the City to invest in obligations of the United States or obligations 
fully guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United States; obligations of the State of North 
CarOlina; bonds and notes of any North Carolina local government or public authority (including the 
North Carolina Educational Assistance Authority); obligations of certain non-guaranteed federal 
agencies; certain high quality issues of commercial paper and bankers' acceptances; and the North 
Carolina Capital Management Trust (NCCMT). 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2012 


Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

The City's investments with maturity of more than one year at acquisition and . non-money market 
investments are reported at fair value as determined by quoted market prices. The securities of the 
NCCMT Cash Portfolio, a SEC-registered (2a-7) money market mutual fund, are valued at fair value, 
which is the NCCMT's share price . The NCCMT Term Portfolio's securities are valued at fair value. 
Money market investments that have a remaining maturity at the lime of purchase of one year or less 
and non-participating interest earnings and investment contracts are reported at amortized cost 

In accordance with State law, the City has invested in securities which are callable and which provide 
for periodic interest rate increases in specific incremenls until maturity. These investments are reported 
at fair value as determined by quoted market prices. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The City pools money from several funds to facilitate disbursement and investment and to maximize 
investment income. Therefore, all cash and investments are essentially demand deposits and are 
considered cash and cash equivalents. The Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds consider 
demand deposits and investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be 
cash and cash equivalents. 

Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable 

In accordance with State law (G.S. 105-347 and G.S. 159-136(a)), the City levies ad valorem taxes on 
property other than motor vehicles on July 1, the beginning of the fiscal year The taxes are due on 
September 1 (lien date); however, interest does not accrue until the following January 6. The taxes are 
based on the assessed values as of January 1, 2011. 

Receivables 

The receivables in the utility funds consist primarily of customer receivables for utility services. The 
City provides allowances for uncollectible receivables equal to the estimated collection losses to be 
incurred. The estimated losses are computed using the experience method. The City grants credit to 
residential, business and industrial customers, substantially all of whom are local to the City of 
Fayetteville area. 

Allowance for Uncollectible Receivables 

The City recorded a receivable in the special revenue fund for $3,320,921 related to loans associated 
with grants or other financial assistance that has been awarded. Many of these awarded loans are not 
expected to be collected and are scheduled to be forgiven based upon note compliance; therefore, they 
are included in the allowance for uncollectible receivables . 
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City of Fayetteville, North .Qarolina 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2012 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

The City operates enterprise funds that provide credit in the normal course of business to customers 
primarily located in Fayetteville, North Carolina. The City performs on-going credit evaluations of its 
customers and maintains allowances for doubtful accounts by using the experience method to estimate 
collection losses to be incurred. Credit losses, when realized, have been within the range of the City's 
estimations and historically have not been significant. Other receivables that historically experience 
uncollectible accounts are also shown net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. This amount is 
estimated by analyzing the percentage of receivables that were written off in prior years. 

The receivables shown on the Statement of Net Assets are presented net of the following allowances 
for doubtful accounts as of June 30, 2012: 

Fund 
General Fund: 

Taxes receivable $ 841,966 
Accounts receivable 175,353 
Assessments receivable 147,637 

Special Revenue Fund: 
Notes receivable 3,320,921 

Transit: 
Accounts receivable 10,046 

Airport: 
Accounts receivable 16,141 

Solid Waste Recycling: 
Accounts receivable 747 

Electric Fund: 
Accounts receivable 389,927 

Water and Wastewater Fund: 
Accounts receivable 88,925 

Storm Water Management Fund: 
Accounts receivable 8,398 

Total $ 5,000,061 

Interfund Receivables and Payables 

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods 
provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as "Interfund receivable" 
or "Interfund payable" on the balance sheet in the fund financial statements and as "internal balances" 
on the statement of net assets in the government-wide financial statements. 

The deficit unrestricted net assets balance in the Annexation V Reserve Fund is due to an interfund 
loan advance from the Electric Rate Stabilization Fund (ERSF). The ERSF is loaning funds to this 
reserve fund to pay for projects that are to be financed with revenue bonds. The bonds are expected to 
be issued in fiscal year 2014 and the reimbursement of proceeds will be used to repay the ERSF loan 
and therefore will eliminate this negative balance. 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2012 


Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Inventories 

Governmental inventories of supplies are valued at cost. Other inventories are valued at the lower of 
average cost or market. The costs of governmental fund-type inventories, which consist of materials 
and supplies, are recorded as expenditures when they are consumed rather than when they are 
purchased. The costs of enterprise fund-type inventories, which consist of generation fuel, materials 
and spare parts, are expensed when used rather than when purchased. 

Prepaid Expenses 

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2012, are recorded as 
prepaid items. 

Restricted Assets and Liabilities 

In the general , special revenue, capital project and enterprise funds , the City has classified as restricted 
the assets representing deposits, reserves , capital project appropriations, advance grant funding and 
unexpended bond proceeds because their use is completely restricted to the purpose for which the 
bonds were issued or the purpose for which the funds were set aside . Liabilities due to be repaid from 
restricted assets are classified as restricted liabilities . 

.....****.** 

The remainder of this page intentionally left blank 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2012 


Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Capital Assets 

The City defines capital assets as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 ($2,500 in 
the Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds) and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. 
Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated 
capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. General infrastructure 
assets acquired prior to July 1, 2001 and storm water network assets acquired prior to July 1, 2004 are 
reported at estimated historical cost using deflated current cost. Utility (electric, water, and wastewater) 
capital assets purchased or constructed since 1958 are recorded at cost. Contributed utility assets are 
recorded at estimated value at the date of acquisition. Utility assets acquired prior to 1958 are carried 
on an estimated cost basis. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of 
the asset or materially extend assets' lives are not capitalized. Improvements are capitalized and 
depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets, as applicable . Gains and 
losses on dispositions of capital assets are credited or charged to operations. 

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Estimated 
Useful Lives 

Asset Class (Years) 
Infrastructure 15 - 60 
Buildings 40 
Utility plant systems 20 -45 
Improvements 5 -15 
Vehicles 5 - 20 
Furniture and equipment 5 -10 
Computer software 3 
Com puter equipment 3 

Depreciation includes amortization of intangible assets. Interest expense that relates to the cost of 
acquiring or constructing capital assets in enterprise funds is capitalized. Interest expense incurred in 
connection with construction of capital assets is reduced by interest earned on the investment of funds 
borrowed for construction in accordance with ASC 835-20-30 "Capitalization of Interest Cost in 
Situations Involving Certain Tax Exempt Borrowings and Certain Gifts and Grants." 

Unearned Deposits 

Facility investment fee credits are given on a dollar per dollar basis for off-site water and wastewater 
approach mains necessary to serve City approved projects. The facility investment fee credit , if not 
utilized in the initial development, will be available to the developer for use in other City approved 
projects for a period not to exceed 5 years from the original contract date, unless otherwise stated in 
the contract or through extension approved by the City. 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2012 


Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Compensated Absences 

The vacation policy of the City provides for the accumulation of up to seven (7) weeks earned vacation 
leave with such leave being fully vested when earned . For the City's government-wide and proprietary 
funds, an expense and a liability for compensated absences, including compensatory time and holiday 
pay, and the salary-related payments are recorded as the leave is earned. 

The City's sick leave policy provides for unlimited accumulation of earned sick leave. Sick leave does 
not vest but any unused sick leave accumulated at the time of retirement may be used in the 
determination of length of service for retirement benefit purposes. Since the City has no obligation for 
the accumulated sick leave until it is actually taken, no accrual for that sick leave has been made . 
However, the City's sick leave policy for Electric and Water and Wastewater Fund employees allows 
25% of accumulated sick leave to be paid at the time of retirement. A liability for the estimated amount 
of this sick leave to ultimately be paid is included in the financial statements. 

Statement of Cash Flows 

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the City considers all highly liquid investments with an 
original maturity date of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 

Long-Term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial 
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable 
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond 
premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs , are deferred and amortized over the life of the 
bonds using the straight-line method that approximates the effective interest method. Bonds payable 
are reported net of the applicable bond premiums or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as 
deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt. 

At June 30, 2012 , the City recorded as other liabilities in the government-wide financial statements, 
$2,171,250 for an advance from the ElectriC Rate Stabilization Fund to the WaterlWastewater Fund, 
$657,098 for the non-current portion in advance payments from Fort Bragg for gross receipt taxes, 
$719,012 for the non-current portion due to the Department of Transportation and $1,294,400 for the 
non-current portion in advance from the Electric Rate Stabilization Fund to the Annex Phase V 
Reserve. 

In fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well 
as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other 
finanCing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while 
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other finanCing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not 
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 

Net Assets 

Net assets in government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are classified as invested in 
capital assets, net of related debt; restricted; and unrestricted. Restricted net assets represent 
constraints on resources that are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors , or laws 
or regulations of other governments or imposed by law through state statute. 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2012 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Fund Balances 

In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance is composed of five classifications 
designed to disclose the hierarchy of constraints placed on how fund balance can be spent. 

The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows: 

Nonspendable Fund Balance - consists of funds that cannot be spent due to their form (e.g. inventories 
and prepaid amounts) or funds that legally or contractually must be maintained intact. 

Inventories - portion of fund balance that is not an available resource because it represents the 
year-end balance of inventories, which are not spendable resources. 

Restricted Fund Balance - consists of funds that are mandated for a specific purpose by external 
parties, constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

Restricted for Stabilization by State Statute - portion of fund balance which is not available for 
appropriation under State law (G.S. 159-8(a)). 

Restricted for downtown - portion of fund balance available for appropriation for projects in the 
Central Business District. 

Restricted for county recreation - portion of fund balance available to pay for the recreational 
activities of Cumberland County. 

Restricted for J.P. Riddle Stadium - portion of fund balance available to pay for the recreational 
activities of J.P. Riddle Stadium. 

Restricted for donations - portion of fund balance that is not available for appropriation because 
it represents donor-imposed restrictions. 

Restricted for Lake Valley Drive MSD - portion of fund balance available to pay for drainage 
improvements in the Lake Valley Drive Municipal Service District. 

Restricted for public safety - portion of fund balance that is restricted by revenue source for 
certain emergency telephone system expenditures and external grantors. 

Restricted for economic and physical development - portion of fund balance restricted for 
parking deck expenditures. 

Restricted for recreation and community facilities - portion of fund balance restricted by external 
grantor for the NRPA Return and Restore Program. 

Committed Fund Balance - consists of funds that have been set aside for a specific purpose by formal 
action by the City's highest level of decision making authority (City Council) and that remain binding 
unless removed in the same manner prior to the end of the fiscal year. The same formal action must be 
taken to remove or change the limitations placed on the funds. Any changes or removal of committed 
funds requires the passage of a resolution by a simple majority vote. 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2012 


Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Assigned Fund Balance - consists of funds that are set aside with the intent to be used for a specific 
purpose by the City's highest level of decision making authority or a body or official that has been given 
the authority to assign funds . Assigned funds cannot cause a deficit in unassigned fund balance. The 
City's fund balance policy delegates the authority to assign funds to the City Manager or their designee. 

Subsequent year's expenditures - portion of fund balance that is appropriated in the adopted 
2012 - 2013 budget ordinance that is not already classified as restricted or committed. 

Special purpose - portion of fund balance identified for specific uses in the general fund and 
special revenue funds. 

Capital projects - portion of fund balance that is assigned to capital related projects. 

Unassigned Fund Balance - consists of excess funds that have not been classified in the previous four 
categories. All funds in this category are considered spendable resources. This category also provides 
the resources necessary to meet unexpected expenditures and revenue shortfalls . 

Fund Balance Policy 

The City of Fayetteville has a revenue spending policy that provides guidance for programs with 
multiple revenue sources. The Finance Officer will use resources in the following hierarchy: bond 
proceeds, federal funds, State funds, local non-city funds, city funds . For purposes of fund balance 
classification, expenditures are to be spent from restricted fund balance first, followed in-order by 
committed fund balance, assigned fund balance and lastly unassigned fund balance. The Finance 
Officer has the authority to deviate from this policy if it is in the best interest of the City. 

The City of Fayetteville has also adopted a minimum fund balance policy for the general fund which 
instructs management to conduct the business of the City in such a manner that unassigned fund 
balance is at least 10% of the succeeding year's general fund expenditure budget, excluding the 
budgets for the County Recreation Program and JP Riddle Stadium. In the event that the balance 
drops below the established minimum level, the City Council will develop a plan to replenish the fund 
balance to the established minimum level within two years 

F - Reclassification 

For comparability, certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year financial statements to 
conform to the current year presentation . 

G - Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date 
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting 
period . Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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City of Fayetteville , North Carolina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2012 


Note 2 - Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 

A - Deposits 

All of the City's deposits are either insured or collateralized by using one of two methods. Under the 
Dedicated Method, all deposits that exceed the Federal Depository Insurance coverage level are 
collateralized with securities held by the City's agents in the City's name. Under the Pooling Method, 
which is a collateral pool , all uninsured deposits are collateralized with securities held by the State 
Treasurer's agent in the name of the State Treasurer. Since the State Treasurer is acting in a fiduciary 
capacity for the City, these deposits are considered to be held by the City's agents in their names. The 
amount of the pledged collateral is based on an approved averaging method for non-interest bearing 
deposits and the actual current balance for interest-bearing deposits. Depositories using the Pooling 
Method report to the State Treasurer the adequacy of their pooled collateral covering uninsured 
deposits. The State Treasurer does not confirm this information with the City or the escrow agent. 
Because of the inability to measure the exact amounts of collateral pledged for the City under the 
Pooling Method, the potential exists for undercollaterization, and this risk may increase in periods of 
high cash flows. However, the State Treasurer of North Carolina enforces strict standards of financial 
stability for each depository that collateralizes public deposits under the Pooling Method. 

The State Treasurer enforces standards of minimum capitalization for all pooling method financial 
institutions. The City relies on the State Treasurer to monitor those financial institutions. The City 
analyzes the financial soundness of any other financial institution used by the City. The City complies 
with the provisions of G.S. 159-31 when designating official depositories and verifying that deposits are 
properly secured. The City's policy for custodial credit risk associated with deposits is to comply with 
the applicable North Carolina General Statutes. 

The City places its cash and cash equivalents on deposit with financial institutions in the United States. 
The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) covers $250,000 for substantially all depository 
accounts. The City from time to time may have amounts on deposit in excess of the insured amounts. 

***"'''' •• *.,.''' 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 3D, 2012 

Note 2 - Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (continued) 


At June 30, 2012, the City's demand deposits had a carrying amount of $82,003,823 and a bank 

balance of $84,425,819. Of the bank balance, Federal Deposit Insurance covered $609,247, and 

$83,816,572 was covered by collateral under the Pooling Method. 


At June 30, 2012, the City had certificates of deposit totaling $11,412,269. Of this amount, Federal 

Deposit Insurance covered $250,000, and $11,162,269 was covered by collateral under the Pooling 

Method. 


The City had $10,241 in the petty cash and change funds . 


B - Investments 


The funds of the City of Fayetteville are invested in compliance with the provisions of North Carolina 

General Statutes 159-30 and 159-31 . The City's Investment Policy is a board-approved policy. 


At June 3D, 2012, the City investment balances were as follows: 


Less than 6 

U.S. Government Agencies 
Commercial Paper 

N.C. Capital Management Trust ­
portfolio 
N.C. Capital Management Trust
portfolio 

-

Cash 

Term 

Fair Value 
$ 75.020.212 

89,742,662 

62, 710,724 

10,002, 307 

$ 

Months 

69,431 ,727 

62,710,724 

10.002, 307 

$ 

6Mos·1 VI 

20,310,935 
S 

1·5 Years 
54.772.735 

5-1 0Years 
$ 17.205.643 

10-15 Years 
$ 3,041.634 

Total Pnmary Government 237.475,905 142, 144,758 20,310,935 54.772,735 17.205,643 3,041 ,634 

Reporting Entity Total $ 237.475,905 $ 142,144,758 $ 20, 310,935 $ 54,772,735 $ 17,205,843 $ 3,041,634 

Interest Rate Risk. As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest 
rates , the City's investment policy provides for structuring the investment portfolio so that securities 
mature to meet cash requirements for the ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the need to sell 
securities on the open market prior to maturity. Also the City's investment policy requires purchases of 
securities to be laddered with staggered maturity dates and limits all securities other than Treasuries, 
Agencies, and North Carolina state and local bonds to a final maturity of no more than three years. 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2012 


Note 2 - Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (continued) 

Credit Risk. The City has no formal policy regarding credit risk; however, the State law limits 
investments in commercial paper to the top rating issued by nationally recognized statistical rating 
organizations (NRSROs). The City minimizes credit risk by limiting investments to the types allowed by 
North Carolina General Statutes 159-30. The City diversifies the investment portfolio to minimize the 
impact of potential losses from anyone security or from anyone individual issuer. Also, the City pre­
qualifies the financial institutions' brokers/dealers and requires them to meet specific financial and 
registration conditions. As of June 30, 2012, the City's commercial paper was rated P1 by Moody's 
Investors Service and A 1 by Standard & Poor's. The City's investments in the NC Capital Management 
Trust Cash Portfolio carried a credit rating of AAAm by Standard & Poor's and the NC Capital 
Management Trust Temn Portfolio was unrated as of June 30, 2012 . The City's investments in US 
Agencies (Federal Home Loan Bank, Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac and Federal Farm Credit Bank) are 
rated AA+ by Standard & Poor's and Aaa by Moody's Investors Service as of June 30, 2012. 

Custodial Credit Risk. For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of failure of 
the counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities 
that are in the possession of an outside party. The City requires that investment securities are in the 
name of the City of Fayetteville and are held by a centralized independent third-party custodian. The 
City requires that the independent third-party custodian issue a safekeeping receipt to the Chief 
Financial Officer listing the specific instrument, rate , maturity, and other pertinent information as 
evidence. All investment security purchases and sales are on a delivery verses payment basis and are 
made through the independent third-party custodian by written instruction. 

Concentration of Credit Risk. The City places no limit on the amount that the City may invest in any 
one issuer. More than 5% of the City's investments are in NC Cash Management Trust securities , 
Federal Home Loan Bank securities, Toyota Motor Credit commercial paper, Fannie Mae securities 
and FCAR Owner Trust commercial paper. These investments are 26.41%, 15.81%, 10.67%, 10.54% 
and 10.30% respectively, of the City's total investments. 

Reconciliation to cash and investments: 

Totals per footnote: 
Total investments (including escrow) 
Cash (demand deposits) 
Certificates of Deposit 
Fireman's Relief Fund Certificate of Deposit 
Petty cash 
Total cash and investments 

$ 237,475,905 
82,003,823 
10,048,167 

1,364,102 
10,241 

$ 330,902,238 

Totals per Statement of Net Assets : 
Cash and investments - unrestricted 
Cash and investments - restricted 
Pension trust cash and investments 
Private-purpose trust cash and investments 
Total cash and investments 

$ 183,586,591 
143,344,760 

2,596,407 
1,374,480 

$ 330,902,238 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2012 

Note 3 - Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30,2012, was as follows 

Primary Government 

Govemmental activities: 
Capit al assets not being depreciated: 

Land and land rights 
Construction in prog ress 

T alai capital assets 
not being depreciated 

Bala nce 
Jul y 1, 2011 

$ 37,897,575 
1,613,126 

39,510,701 

Increases 

$ 290,265 
905,585 

1,195,850 

$ 

Dec reases 

(3'9,' 04l 

(319,104) 

$ 

Tran sfers 

(203,980) 

!'57,908l 

(361,888) 

Ba lance 
June 30, 2012 

$ 37,983,860 
2,041,699 

40,025,559 

Capi1 al assets being depleciated : 
Infrastructure 
Buildings and improvements 
Equ ipment. furniture and fixtures 
Computer software 
Vehicles 

Total capital assets 
being depreciated 

46 1, 280,431 
94 .578. 111 
24,280,601 

4,594,649 
41 ,621,956 

626,355 ,748 

8,226,504 
6,7 11 ,015 
1,904,984 

270,673 
4,614, 0 16 

21,727,192 

(20,1 08) 
(2,708,95 1) 

(9 1,639) 
(3,295 ,507) 

(6, 116,205) 

(27,4 33,807) 

(802,133) 
(6,941) 

(995,883) 

(29,238,764) 

442,073, 128 
101 ,269,018 
22,674,501 

4,766,742 
41 ,944,582 

612, 727,971 

Less accumulated depreciation for : 
Infra structure 
Buildings and improvemen ts 
EqUi pment, furn iture and fixtures 
Computer software 
Vehicles 

Total accumula ted depreciation 

(191,1 29,164) 
(31,044, 183) 
(20,7 16,299) 

(3,487,225) 
(26,467,4 93) 

(272 ,844,364) $ 

(12,414 ,577) 
(3,122,529) 
(1,428,200) 

(683, 519) 
(3,427,62Ol 

(21,076,445) 

19,771 
2,708 ,951 

91,639 
3,089,382 

$ 5,909,743 

14,909,414 

454 ,973 
6,941 

600,923 

$ 15,972,25 1 

(188,634,327) 
(34,146,941) 
(18,980,575) 

(4,072,164) 
(26,204 ,808) 

(272,038,815) 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated, net 353,511 ,364 340,689,1 56 

Go vemmental activity capital assets, ne1 $ 393,022,085 S 380,7 14,715 

Transfers are storm water capital assets removed from Governmental Activities and now reported in the 
Storm water Management enterprise fund established this year as discussed in Note 1, 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the governmental activities of the primary 
government as follows: 

Administration $ 310,990 
Public safety 4,293,141 
Environmental protection 1,062,962 
Transportati on 13,014,376 
Econom ic and phySical development 1,007 ,770 
Recreation and com munity facilities 1,262,480 
Capital assets held by certain internal 

service funds are charged to the various 
governmental functions based on the 
usage of the funds 124,726 

Total depreciation expense $ 21,076,445 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2012 

Note 3 - Capital Assets (continued) 
* Disposals in construction in progress are shown as additions to capital assets being depreciated . 

Balance 
Ju\ll,2011 Increases Decreases .. Transfers 

Balance 
June 30,2012 

Business-type aclivties: 
Electric Furd 

Capital assets not beng depreciated: 
Land and laro rights 
Construction in progress 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 

$ 5,270,980 

10,900,861 

16,171,841 

$ 49.480 

19,632,283 

19,681,763 

$ 

(18,765,212) 

(18,765,212) 

$ $ 5,320,480 

11,767,932 

17,088,392 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Elect ric uWity system 
Buildings 
Equipment and machinery 

375,128,299 

41 ,354,654 

16,134,459 

16,877,510 

2,141 ,816 

768)80 

(2,304 ,206) 

(119.099) 

389,701.603 

43,496,470 

16,783,640 

1n1~~les 

Com puter equpment 
Vehicles 

Office equipment 
Total capital assets being depreCIated 

9,416,993 

3,426,399 

6,2 59,959 

1,104,188 

452,824,951 

1,764,525 

247,614 

1,003,137 

42,068 

22,844,950 

(10,08 1) 

(306,400) 

(3621 
(2,740,14 8) 

14,711 

(523) 

14, 188 

11,181,518 

3,663.932 

6,971 ,407 

1,145,371 

472,943,941 

Less accu:nulated depreciation for: 
Electric utiity system 
Bui K:iing s 
Equipment and machinery 
Intang ibles 

Computer equpmenl 
Vehicles 

Office equipment 
Total accumulated depreciation 

(201,259,281 ) 

(15,986,951) 

(8,205,005) 

(8,762,354) 

(2,543,483) 

(3,337,220) 

(1 ,032,369) 

(24 1,126.663) $ 

(12,51 4,861) 

(1.008,7 64) 

(591,449) 

(233,268) 

(288,939) 

(445,207) 

(13,853) 

(15,096.3 41) 

1,91 1,034 

99,069 

10.081 

294,189 

362 

$ 2,314 ,735 $ 

(1 4.710) 

522 
(14,188) 

(211,863,108) 

( 16,995,715) 

(8,697,385) 

(8,995,622) 

(2,822,341) 

(3,502,948) 

(1,045,336) 

(253,922,457) 

Total capital assets being depreciated, ret 211,698,288 219,021,484 

Electric fund capital assets, net $ 227,870,1 29 $ 236,109,876 

"'*****"''''•• 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2012 

Note 3 - Capital Assets (continued) 

BaI8'1ce 
July 1,2011 Increases E:ecreases • Transfers 

Balance 
June 30,2012 

Business-type adivities.: 

Water and Wastewater Fund 
Cap"al assels not being repredaled: 

Land and land rights 
Construdion in progress 

Tolal cap""1 assets nol being depreciated 

$ 9,051,528 
13,192,967 
22,244,495 

$ 243,799 
29,729,8n 
29,973,676 

$ 
(27,594, 721) 
(27,594,721) 

$ $ 9,295,327 
15,328,123 
24 ,623,450 

Caprtal assels being depredated: 
Water system 
SeM3r S)Slem 
8<Jildings 
Equi prrent and machinery 
Inlangibles 

Con"puIer equ~ 
Vehides 
Office eqJ pment 

Tolaleap"al assels being dEpredated 

272,543,748 
406,752,238 

4,942,049 
10,158,000 
8,674,068 
3,268,875 
6,558,147 

466,959 
713,362,102 

10,715,926 
17,034,974 

17,209 
4n,205 

179,851 
675,073 

29,100,238 

(223,681 ) 

(3,113) 
(493,958) 

(362) 
(721,114) 

(14,711) 
523 

(14,168) 

283,259,674 
423,787,212 

4,959,258 
10,409,524 
8,674,068 
3,445,6t3 
6,724,551 

467,120 
741,727,038 

Less ao:::ulTlJlated depredation for: 
Water system 
SeM3r S)Slem 
8<Jildings 
Equi pnnent and machine<y 
Intangibles 
Computer equiprrent 
Vehides 
Office eqlipmenl 
Total acculT<Jlaled depreciation 

(99,5t9,171) 
(137,731,548) 

(2,573,912) 
(6,860,716) 
(8,078,896) 
(2,418,111) 
(3,362,387) 

(421,087) 
(260,965,808) $ 

(5,646,736) 
(8,944,452) 

(107,527) 
(837,497) 

(204,361) 
(271,356) 
(487,172) 

(9,684) 
(16,308,785) 

219,618 

3,112 
493,180 

362 
$ 716,272 $ 

14,710 

(522) 
14,188 

(105,185,907) 
(146,676,000) 

(2,681,439) 
(7,278,595) 
(8,283,257) 
(2,686,355) 

(3,341 ,669) 

(430,911) 
(276,544,133) 

Tolal eap"al assets bei ng dEpredated, nel 452,396,294 465,182,905 

Water and Wastewater fund capital assets, nel $ 474,640,789 $ 489,808,355 

********** 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2012 


Note 3 - Capital Assets (continued) 

Baine Bam::e 
.lIy1,2011 lramses TlG<Sfes J.re 3:), 2012 

asiress-1)?e a:li~ties (catirooj): 
Sorm Vllier M> BJ" I B I FLrd 

~ asses rd oo'll cEp-edatEd 
LmJ an Ia'd rgIs $ $ 29,931 $ $ 203,!ID $ Zl3,951 
Ctnstn.dim in rrcgess 3,932,938 157,0CIl 4,140,846 

Tcta (4ita asses rd oo'll OOpedaed 4,012,919 351,888 4,374,007 

~ a>SElsOOrg<Ep"edaed: 
Irtra9rudi.re 1,411,239 27,433,007 28,846,046 
Furitue, fi rues ax! e::j.ip'rert 2J2,919 (47,1E15) 002,133 957,f'Rf3 
O:npJIer s:i\v.ae 6,941 6,941 
\!aides 00,040 005,883 1,004,923 

Tcta e>¢j asses oo'll dEp'"edatoo 1,713,193 (47, 1E15) 29,Zl8,764 3:),904,793 

Less a::o..mJaoo <Ep"edaicn fer: 
IrtrasIru::1ue (392,64€l (14,SaJ,414) (15,3J2,CBJ) 
Furitue, i>1u"es ax! e::j.ip'rert (75,001) 47,100 (454,973) (483,7C6) 

O:npJIff s:i\v.ae (6,941) (6,941) 
\!aides 191,~ ~,~ 1002,~ 
TdaI a:xu:nJaoo depeciaim $ (5C!l,W1) $ 47,100 $ (15,972,251) (16,485,076) 

Tcta (4ita asses oo'll cip'edaed, ra 14,419,74) 

Sorm Vllier M.-.gmrt ftnj e>¢j a:sset\ ra $ $ 18,794,527 

As discussed above , Storm Water capital assets were transferred from Governmental Activities to the 
Storm Water Management Enterprise fund which was established this year. 

***-1<****** 
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Note 3 - Capital Assets (continued) 

Business-type activi ties (c01linued): 
Nonmajor enterprise funds 
Capital assets not being cepredated: 

Land and land righls 
Construction in progress 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 

Balance 
July 1, 2011 

$ 3,929,146 
13,213,796 
17,142,942 

Increases 

$ 546,204 
7,395,868 
7,942,072 

cecreases 

$ 

Transfers 

$ 
(8, 979,835) 
(8, 979,835) 

Balance 
June 30,2012 

$ 4,475,350 
11,629,829 
16,105,179 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Infrastructure 
Buildings and imprt:>'veITlents 
Fumi1ure, fixtures and equipment 
Computer softvvare 
Vehides 

Total capital assets being depredated 

39,811 
52,408,000 
3,211 ,146 

11 1,844 
10,542,596 
66,313,397 

236,751 
509,874 
490,315 
228,611 

2,590,665 
4,056,216 

(159,228) 
(35,680) 
(50,575) 

(1,286,143) 
(1,531,626) 

8, 979,835 

8,979,835 

276,562 
61,738,481 
3,665,781 

289,880 
11 ,847,118 
77,817,822 

Less accumulated dep-ecialion for: 
Infrastructure 

Buildings and improvements 
Fumiture, fixtures and equipment 
Computer software 
Vehides 
Total acrumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 

(526) 
(31,852,951) 
(2,615,233) 

(65,073) 
(4,489,237) 

(39,023,020) 

27,290,377 

$ 

(3,955) 
(1,986,290) 

(257,687) 
(53,771) 

(708, 107) 
(3,011,810) 

159,228 
35,680 
50,575 

1,286,143 
$ 1,531,626 $ 

(4,481) 
(33, 682,013) 
(2,837,240) 

(68,269) 
(3,911,201) 

(40,503,204) 

37,314,61 8 

Nonmajor enterprise fund capital assets, net $ 44,433,319 $ 53,419,797 

Business-type actIVities capital assets , net $ 746,944,237 $ 798,130,555 

Depreciation expense was charged to business-type activities of the primary govemment as follows : 

Electric 
Water and Wastewater 
Storm Water Management 
Transit 
Airport 

Recyling 
Tdal depreciation expense 

$ 15,096,341 
16,308,785 

559,991 
941 ,053 

2,067,009 
3,748 

$ 34,976,927 

........****. 
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June 30, 2012 


Note 4 - Accounts Payable 

Unrestricted and restricted accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of the following as of June 
30, 2012: 

......., 1N31er3'lCl SomWae NaY«;.­-General Ga-JerrYl"ellai Setvice SUtllOta 8ectnc \"I.asle.'8la" MMaQerr.ei!1 Enterpise Fdriay 
k:m.Jrts payable $ 4,631,005 $ 67'3,010 S 519.595 ";-""'5."'''<;'.''500'' '$"""'9"'.28"'5'>:;5"'0 $ 10,453,634 S 239,485 S 416271 S 
h:.l,m;d Q.( nd rq:oll:ld 2,474,918 2. 474,978 1,026,638 1,025,638 
Cbrtra:::ts~ 1,600,317 1,€03, 317 20026' 3,085.523 
herest p;ttable 219,888 2.117,6.'93 134,936 20 
~tanage payable 578 265,425 67 ,879 679,OOJ 
5aaries3'lCl 
I::e"Iefris paya!:'e 3,400,600 10,422 3,507,112 830,006 819,471 48,655 

Tcta $ 8, 129,253 $ 2.546,752 S 3,004,995 13,681,O'XI $ 21,361 ,842 S 14,417,439 $ 700216 

381.898 
$ 14,C62.800 

~o::nolia6cn 10 a::x:o.nts paya!je: en lhe financia l s1a'enerts: 


U'lreIDided $ 8,129,253 S 1,646,122 $ 3,004,995 S 12,780,370 $ 14 ,759,688 $ 10,701,936 S 432,195 S 4,358,009 S 26.W; 

Rl!s.ndOO 9XI,s:xJ 9XI,~ 6.€O2.154 M79


3,715,453 1:;j268~.02~'t
S 6,129,253 $ 2,546,7S'l $ 3,004.995 13,681,O'XI $ 21,361.842 $ =$ $ 4,383,887 ~'~~26~14,417,439 700216 .W;~ 

381,800 
$ 14,C62.893 

Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations 

A - General Obligation Indebtedness 

The City has issued general obligation bonds (to include general obligation bonds for the benefit of the 
Electric and Water and Wastewater funds) to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major 
capital facilities . General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith, credit, and 
taxing power of the City. They are serviced by the general fund and the water and wastewater fund . 
Principal and interest payments are appropriated when due. General obligation bonds outstanding for 
the year ended June 30, 2012, are as follows: 

Governmental activities 

$5,535,000 Refunding Bonds, Series 2002 due in various 

annual installments through June 1, 2016; 

interest at various rates between 3.75% and 4%. $ 1,260,000 


$8,450,000 Public Improvement Bonds, Series 2005 due in 

various semiannual installments through June 1, 2025; 

interest at various rates between 3.7% and 4.25%. 5,475,000 


$7,896,115 Refunding Bonds, Series 2009 due in 
various annual installments through March 1, 2021 ; 
interest at various rates between 4.0% and 5.0%. 5,141 ,406 

11 ,876,406 

Add: Unamortized Premium 523,848 

Less: Loss on Defeasance (383,482) 
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June 30, 2012 


Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations (continued) 

Total governmental general obligation bonds $ 12,016,772 

Business-type activities 

$3,625,000 Street Improvement Bonds, Series 2002 
due in various annual installments through June 1, 2021 ; 
interest at various rates between 3.75% and 4.5%. 1,825,000 

$4,403,885 Refunding Bonds, Series 2009 due in 
various annual installments through March 1, 2021; 
interest at various rates between 4.0% and 5.0%. 3,018,594 

4,843,594 

Add: Unamortized Premium 290,896 

Less: Loss on Defeasance (83,165) 

Total business-type general obligation bonds 5,051 ,325 

Total general obligation bonds $ 17 068 097 

B - Revenue Bonds 

The City has issued revenue bonds, which have been used to finance the construction of facilities used 
in the City's operations. Resources generated by the facilities ' operations are retiring the bonds , 
Revenue bonds outstanding for the year ended June 30, 2012, areas follows : 

Governmental activities: 

$5,835,000 Municipal Building Project Refunding Bonds, Series 2005, 
due in various annual installments through February 1, 2018; 
interest at various rates between 5.0% and 5.25%. $ 2,790,000 

$2,685,000 Municipal Building Project Bonds, Series 2005, for the construction of 
Westover Recreation Center due in various annual installments 
through February 1, 2019; interest at various rates between 
5.0% and 5.25%. 1 ,330,000 

4,120,000 

Add: Unamortized Premium 339,648 

Total governmental revenue bonds 4,459,648 
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June 30, 2012 

Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations (continued) 

Business-type activities 

$17,025,000 Revenue Bonds, Series 2008 
due in various annual installments through March 1, 2023; 
interest at various rates between 3.75% and 4.5%. $ 14,625,000 

$114,155,000 Revenue Refunding Bonds , Series 2009A 
due in various annual installments through March 1, 2024; 
interest at various rates between 4.0% and 5.0%. 89,235,000 

$36,710,000 Revenue Bonds, Series 2009B 
due in various annual installments through March 1, 2035; 
interest at various rates between 3.5% and 5.0%. 36,055,000 

$10,595,000 Storm Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2011 
due in various annual installments through August 1, 2026; 
interest at 3.135%. 10,330,000 

Total business-type revenue bonds 150,245,000 

Add : Unamortized Premium 12,982,278 

Less: Unamortized Discount (22,795) 

Less: Loss on Defeasance (10,809,229) 

Total revenue bonds $ 152 3922~ 

Interest expense related to the revenue and general obligation bonds totaled $8,157,656 for the year 
ended June 30, 2012 and of that amount, $370,962 was capitalized during the year. 

The City has pledged future electric, water and wastewater customer revenues, net of specified 
operating expenses, to repay $167,890,000 in revenue and revenue refunding bonds issued at various 
times from 2008 through 2010. Proceeds from the bonds provided financing for extensions, additions 
and capital improvements to or the renewal and replacement of capital assets of, or purchasing and 
installing new equipment for, the electric, water, and wastewater systems. The bonds are payable 
solely from electric, water and wastewater customer net revenues and are payable through 2035. The 
total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the bonds is $187.437,388. Principal and interest 
paid for the current year and total customer revenues were $17,583,050 and $268,571 ,535, 
respectively . 

The revenue bond order contains significant covenants respecting annual debt service requirements, 
use of the system and minimum revenue bond coverage, and requires that a reserve fund be 
established and maintained for the 2008 bonds. The reserve fund requirements have been met by the 
City through funding a reserve fund account and the purchase of surety bonds in full amount of the 
bond requirement. The City is in compliance with all such significant covenants at June 30, 2012. 
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June 30, 2012 

Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations (continued) 

The City issued the 2011 series of Storm water System revenue bonds in August 2011 to acquire, 
construct and equip various improvements to the City's natural and structural storm water and drainage 
system, including, without limitation, erosion control projects, drainage projects, culverts, outfalls and 
the acquisition of any related land, rights of way and equipment. With these bonds , the City pledges 
income derived from the operation of the storm water system to pay debt service. Revenue bonds 
outstanding at year-end are as follows: 

Balance 
Date Series Amount of Original Outstanding 

Purpose Interest Rate Date Issued Matures Issue June 30, 2012 

Series 2011 Storm water System 3.135% 8/11/2011 8/21/2026 $ 10,595,000 $ 10,330,000 

Revenue bond debt service requirements to maturity are as follows: 

Year Siormwater Revenue Bonds 

Ended Principal Interest Tolals 

2013 $ 575,000 $ 319,378 $ 894,378 

2014 595,000 301,195 896,195 

2015 610,000 282,385 892 ,385 

2016 625,000 263,183 888,183 

2017 645,000 243,433 888,433 

2018·2022 3,560,000 897,315 4,457,315 

2023·2027 3,720,000 297,356 4,017,356 

$ 10,330,000 $ 2,604,245 $ 12,934,245 

As of June 30, 2012, deposits under the Trust Agreement for the Storm water Revenue Bonds are held 
by the Trustee and the City in institutions designated by the City as an official depository. The deposits 
are held as follows: 

City 
Trustee - Regions Bank 
Trustee - NCCMT 
Total 

$ 

$ 

11,929,393 
2,995,950 
2,737,455 

, 7,662 ,798 

The total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the outstanding revenue bonds was 
$12,934,245 as of June 30, 2012. These revenue bonds are secured by a covenant to budget and 
collect revenues in the storm water system sufficient enough to pay the principal and interest 
requirements. The City has been in compliance with the covenants for the bonds, which required the 
debt service coverage for parity indebtedness (revenue bonds only, as of June 30, 2012) to be 1.20 
and for all indebtedness to be 1.00. Financial information below is from the Storm Water Management 
Enterprise Fund. 
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June 30 , 2012 

Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations (continued) 

Income Available for Debt Service 

Storm water fee revenues $ 
Other operating revenues 

Nonoperating reve nue (expense) 

Less/plus adjustments for: 

Interest earned on bonds proceeds offset by capitalized interest 

Unreali zed gain/loss on investments 

Total revenues 

Operating expenses 


Less adjustments for: 


Depreciation 


Change in OPEB accrual 


Total current expenses 


Income Available for Debt Service 


Unrestricted cash 6/30/2011 (prior year) 


15% of unrestricted cash 


Total resources available for debt service 

Parity Indebtedness Debt Service Requirement 

Series 2011 Revenue Bonds - Principal $ 
Se ries 2011 Revenue Bonds - Interest 

Total Available Resources Debt Service Coverage - Parity Indebtedness 

Revenue Bond Covenant Requirement 

Parity, Subordinated, and System G.O. Debt Service Requirement 

NC Storm water Note Payable 0196 $ 
NC Storm water Note Payable 0231 

Series 2011 Revenue Bonds - Principal 

Series 2011 Revenue Bonds -Interest 

5,164,229 

19,215 

56,442 

(1,614) 

2,488 

57,316 

5,240,760 

2,84 7,307 

(559,991) 

(38,880) 

2,248,436 

8,733,303 

$ 

2,992,324 

1,309,995 

4,302,319 

265,000 

156,850 

$ 421,850 

10.20 

1.20 

11,613 

13,417 

265,000 

156,850 

$ 446,880 

Income Available for Debt Service Debt Service Coverage - All Indebtedness 6.70 

Revenue Bond Covenant Requirement 1.00 
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Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations (continued) 

C - Notes Payable 

Notes payable financed by the governmental funds are serviced by the Federal and State Financial 
Assistance Fund. 

On July 23: 2009, the City entered into a $750,000 loan agreement with the U.S. Department of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) . The loan was made under the Section 108 Loan Guarantee 
Program. During fiscal year 2012 the Series HUD 2011-A was refinanced to fix rates, between 0.31% 
to 2.05%. The purpose of the note is for the financing of a community development project. 

Notes payable financed by the Electric, Water and Wastewater and Storm Water Management Funds 
are accounted for in the respective funds. 

The City has entered into revolving loan agreements for $7,595,127 and $16,969,848 with the State of 
North Carolina . The loans were used for various Wastewater capital projects The City has also 
entered into a loan agreement with South River Electric Membership Corporation (SREMC) utilizing 
funds made available to SREMC by USDA-Rural Development for a water capital project. These notes 
payable are junior, inferior and subordinate in all respects to the Revenue Bonds and General 
Obligation Bonds of the City of Fayetteville as to lien on and source and security for payment from the 
revenues and in all other respects. 

Additionally, in 2010, the City completed two storm water projects which were financed through two 
federal revolving loans for $464,503 and $536,692 administered through the State of North Carolina, 
Department of Environment and Natural Resources. As part of the American Recovery and 
Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA), the unpaid principal was immediately reduced by one half of the 
loan amount to $232 ,252 and $268,346 as "Principal Forgiveness." These notes were previously 
reported as governmental activities. They are now reported as business-type activities, as they were 
transferred to the new Storm water Management enterprise fund which was established this year as 
discussed in Note 1. These notes payable are inferior and subordinate to the Storm Water Revenue 
Bonds of the City of Fayetteville. 

Notes payable in the accompanying financial statements are comprised of the following: 

Governmental activities 

$750,000 HUD Note Payable due in various annual installments of $75,000 
through August 1, 2019; interest rate between 0.31% to 2.05% paid semiannually. 

$_ -"-60=0",,,0=0=0 

Total governmental notes payable 
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Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations (continued) 

Business-type activities 

$7,595,127 State revolving loan due in annual 
installments through May 1, 2021 ; interest at 2.6% paid 
semiannually on May 1 and November 1. $ 3,417,807 

$16,969,848 State revolving loan due in annual 
installments through May 1, 2026; interest at 2.66% 
paid semiannually on May 1 and November 1. 11,878,894 

$396,000 SREMC Loan due in 10 annual installments beginning 
April 5, 2006; no interest 118,800 

$232,252 Federal revolving loan due in annual 
installments through May 1, 2030; non interest bearing, 
paid annually on May 1. 209,027 

$268,346 Federal revolving loan due in annual 
installments through May 1, 2030; non interest bearing, 
paid annually on May 1. 241,511 

Total business-type notes payable 15,866,039 

Total notes payable $ 16466 039 

Interest expense related to the notes payable obligations totaled $435,004 for the year ended June 30, 
2012. 

D - Lease Agreements 

The City has entered into lease agreements as lessee for financing certain equipment, veh icles and 
fixtures. These lease agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes and, therefore, 
have been recorded at the present value of the minimum lease payments as of the date of their 
inception. 

Capital lease obligations are comprised of the following 

Governmental activities 
Capital lease obligations payable in various semi-annual 
installments of approximately $419,190 in 2013 
including interest at rates ranging from 4.19% to 4.55% $ 4,700,973 

Capital lease obligations payable in various monthly 
installments of approximately $60,852 in 2013 
including interest at 3.375% 669,374 
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Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations (continued) 

Capital lease obligations payable in various monthly 
installments of approxim ately $75,388 in 2013 
including interest at 2,06% $ 2,638,564 

Capital lease obligations payable in various monthly 
installments of approximately $50,235 in 2013 
including interest at 1,81 % 1,205,650 

Capital lease obligations payable in various semi-annual 
installments of approximately $332,357 in 2013 
inclUding interest at 5,1%, The City receives a subsidy of 
45 percent of interest cost from the Federal Government 
reducing the effective interest rate to 2,81 % 7,266 ,736 

Capital lease obligations payable in various semi-annual 
installments of approximately $200,764 in 2013 
including interest at estimated ,996% 6,271 ,916 

Capital lease obligations payable in various semi-annual 
installments of approximately $97,652 in 2013 
including interest at estimated 0,73% 2,632,546 

25,385,759 

Less : amount representing interest (3,386,863) 
Present value of the minimum lease payments 21,998,896 

Business-type activities 
Capital lease obligations payable in various monthly 
installments of approximately $1,751 in 2013 
including interest at 2,06% 61 ,301 

Less : amount representing interest (1 ,856) 
Present value of the minimum lease payments 59,445 

Total capital lease obligations $ 22058341 

The following is an analysis of leased property under capital leases as of June 30, 2012: 

Classes of Pro~rty 
Equipment 
Vehicles 
Buildings and improvement 

Total 

Cost 
$ 5,400,160 

1,035,581 
30,578,773 

$ 37,014,514 

Depreciation 
$ 4,158,485 

340,145 
5,209,318 

$ 9,707,948 

Value 
$ 1,241,675 

695,436 
25,369,455 

$ 27,306,566 
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Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations (continued) 

Interest expense related to the capital lease obligations totaled $680,338 for the year ended June 30, 

E - Changes in Long-Term Obligations 

The following is a summary of changes in the City's long-term obligations for the fiscal year ended June 
30,2012: 

Bala1Ce Balance 
July 1, 2011 Increases D9creases June 30, 2012 Curreri Portion 

Goverrmental acti;ities: 

General obligation debt $ 13,851,260 $ $ 1,974,854 $ 11,876,4m $ 1,~8ffi 

Re"",,,,, txxlds 5,260,OOJ 1,140,OOJ 4,12O,OOJ 600CXlJ 
Notes payabl e 1,150,568 550,568 6OJ,OOJ 75,CXlJ 
Capitalized leases 25,781 ,023 3.782,127 21,998,896 3,694001 

Compensated absences 6,049,429 5,693,253 5,833,260 5,909,422 4,174077 
Net OPES ClJIigatioo 11,884,899 2,271 ,044 212,419 13,943,524 

63,977,179 $ 7,964,297 $ 13,493,228 58,448,248 10,502.893 

Mel: Unamortized prerrium 1,063,010 863,496 
Less: loss 00 daea;ance 

(net of amol1i2atioo) (464,731) (363,482) 

Total governrrefltaJ a::tiviti es $ 64,575,458 $ 58,928,262 $ 10,502.893 

As discussed above, notes payable of $475,568 were transferred to business-type activities. The 
transfer is shown as a decrease in the governmental activities above and an increase in the business 
type activities below. 

Balarce Balance 
July 1, 2011 Increases Decreases Jtre 30,2012 Current Portion 

BUSiness-type activities: 
General obligation debt $ 5,648,740 $ $ 805,146 $ 4,843,594 $ 805,145 
Rel.enue bards 150,480,000 10,595,000 10,830,000 150,245,000 11,800,000 
rob!es payable 16,683,349 475,568 1,292.878 15,866,039 1,292,879 
capitalized leases 79,018 19,573 59,445 19,980 
Compensated absences 3,242,843 3,737,064 3,445.801 3,534,106 2,134,641 
Net OPES Obtigation 4,071 ,564 974,216 5,045.780 

180,205,514 $ 15,781 ,848 $ 16,393,398 179,593,964 16,052,645 

AOO: Unamortized premium 14,531,606 13,273,174 
Less: UnamOl'"itzed discount (23,800) (22,795) 
Less: loss on defeasance 

(net of arrortization) (13,127,864 ) (10,892,394) 
Total business-type activities $ 181 .585.456 $ 181 ,951,949 $ 16,052,645 

Governmental compensated absences typically have been liquidated in the general fund . 
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Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations (continued) 

F - Maturities of Long-Term Obligations 

The following table summarizes the annual requirements to amortize all general long-term debt 
outstanding (excluding compensated absences and net OPEB obligation). 

Governmental activities: 

Construction and 
Year Genera Obligation Bonds Reven~ Boods Improvemen t leases 

Ended Principal Interest PrincipcW Interest Prircipal Interest 
2013 $ 1,959,855 $ 518,575 $ 000,000 $ 213,250 $ 1,590,494 $ 503.496 
2014 1.954,855 430,483 620.000 183.250 1,601,174 448,764 
2015 1,939.855 341 ,502 640,000 152.250 1.235,693 398.206 

2016 1,684,855 252,960 665,000 118,650 1,247.002 300,383 
20 17 839,855 176,542 685,000 83,738 1,258,793 322,445 

2018-2022 2,272.131 530, 120 91 0,000 57,750 6,483, 381 1,038.833 

2023-2027 1,225,000 102,001 4,162,200 201,247 
11 ,876,400 2,352,183 4,120,000 808,888 17.598,797 3,273,374 

Ad.:t Unamortized premium 523,848 339.648 
Less: loss on defeasarce 

(net of amortization) (383.462) 
$ 12.016,772 $ 2,352,183 $ 4,459,648 $ 808,888 $ 17,598,797 $ 3,273,374 

Year Capi talized Leases Noles Payable Total Debt Due 
Ended PrindiXil Interest Principal Interest Principal In terest 
2013 $ 2,104,467 $ 72,383 $ 75,000 $ 6,574 $ 6,329.816 $ 1,314.278 
2014 1,474,851 32,624 75.000 6,296 5,725,880 1,101,417 

2015 820,781 8,482 75,000 5,883 4,711,329 900,323 
2016 75,000 5,264 3,671.917 737.277 
2017 75.000 4,478 2,858, 648 587,203 

2018-2022 225,000 6,413 9,890,512 1.633,116 
2023-2027 5,407,200 303,248 

4,400,099 113,489 000,000 3-4,928 6,562,862 
Add : Unamortized premi um 
Less: loss on defeasance 

(net of amortization) (383,482) 
$ 4,400,099 $ 113,489 $ 000,000 $ 3-4.928 $ 39,075,31 6 $ 6, 582,862 

The following schedule includes the City's expected estimated schedule of maturity for the business­
type activities, noted above as well as the annual requirements to amortize all business-type long-term 
debt outstanding (excluding compensated absences and net OPEB obligations) . 
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Business-type activities: 

Year General Obligation Bonds Revenue Bonds Noles Payable 
Erded Principal Inlerest Prindpal Interest Priocipal Interest 
201 3 $ 805,145 $ 216,275 $ 11,800,000 $ 6 ,924,378 $ 1,292,879 $ 404,842 
2014 800,145 178,517 12,380,000 6,462,420 1, 292,879 372,398 
2015 625,1 45 140,510 12,755,000 5,873,510 1,292,879 339,954 
2016 520,145 111,253 13,710,000 5,265,858 1,253,279 307,51 1 
2017 575,145 87,246 15,520,000 4,615,908 1,253,279 275,007 

201 S-2022 1,517,869 161,916 53,385,000 13,228,202 5,886,637 886,683 
202 3-2027 17,900,000 4 ,919,107 3,519,119 225,699 
202S-2032 8,000,000 2,355,750 75,088 
2033-2035 4,815,000 481 ,500 

4,843,594 895,717 150,245,000 50,126,633 15,866,039 2,814,154 
Add: Unamortized premium 290,896 12,982,278 
Less: Unamorized loss (22,795) 
Less: loss on defeasance 

(nel of amortization) (83,165) (10,809,229) 
$ 5,051 ,325 $ 895,717 $ 152,395,254 $ 50,126,633 $ 15,866,039 $ 2,814,154 

Year Capitalized Leases Tolal Debt Due 
Erded Principal Interest Prindpal Interest 

2013 $ 19,980 $ 1,037 $ 13,918,004 $ 7,546,532 

2014 20,396 622 14,493,420 7,013,957 

2015 19,009 197 14,692,093 6,354,17 1 

2016 15,483,424 5,684,622 

2017 17,348,424 4,978,221 


201 S-2022 60,769,506 14,278,801 

2023-2027 21,419,119 5,144,800 

202S-2032 8,075,088 2,355,750 

2033-2035 4,815,000 48 1,500 


59,445 1,856 171,014,078 53,838,380 
Add: Unamortized premium 13,273,1 74 
Less: lk1amorized loss (22,795) 

Less: loss on defeasance 
(net of amortization) (10,892,394) 


$ 59,445 $ 1,856 $ 173,372,003 $ 53,838,380 


G - Legal Debt Margin 

The legal debt margin of the City at June 30, 2012, approximated $991,763,829. 

H - Authorized But Un-issued Debt 

At June 30, 2012, the City had no bonds authorized but un-issued. 
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Note 6 - Defeasance of Debt 

A - Prior Year Defeasance of Debt 

In prior years , the City has defeased various bond issues by creating separate irrevocable trust funds . 
New debt has been issued and the proceeds have been used to purchase U.S. government securities 
that were placed in the trust funds . The investments and related fixed earnings are sufficient to fully 
service the defeased debt until the debt is called or matures. For financial reporting purposes, the debt 
has been considered defeased and therefore removed from the City's liabilities. As of June 30, 2012, 
the amount of prior year defeased debt outstanding and removed from the City's liabilities amounted to 
$0. 

Gains and losses from debt refunding must be deferred and amortized over the lesser of the original 
remaining life of the old debt or the life of the new debt. In addition , gains or losses related to debt 
refunding are to be used in determining the carrying value of the new debt issued to finance debt 
refunding. The carrying values of the 2009A Revenue Refunding Electric Water and Wastewater Bonds 
and the 2009 GO Refunding Bonds have been adjusted for the loss from defeasance (net of 
amortization) of $10,492,316 

In fiscal year 2011 , the City exercised its option to call for early redemption the remaining outstanding 
maturities of the 2001 Revenue Refunding ElectriciWater and Wastewater Bonds totaling $7,680,000 at 
a redemption price of 101% The difference between the amount paid upon reacquisition and the face 
value, plus any unamortized premium, less any unrelated unamortized debt expense, unamortized 
discount and reacquisition costs applicable to the debt redeemed is recorded as an Unamortized Loss 
on Reacquired Debt and is amortized equally on a monthly basis over the original life of the debt. At 
June 30, 2012, the unamortized value of the loss was $400,078. 

**** ****** 

The remainder of this page intentionally left blank 
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Note 7 - Deferred/Unearned Revenues 

The balance in deferred revenue on the fund statements and unearned revenues on the government­
wide statements at year-end is composed of the following elements 

UffilaJ 
R3.m..e 

FfEjBd liCff'SES adfees ret yet earEd (Qre:cj) $ 677,7B1 $ 677,781 
FfEjBd I1:frEE ins..rcrre pmiUTS (IrtE3TEi &:rum) 1Qm3 10,m3 
U ESI aJ rert (Ffq:riEiayj 24,(}17 ~,oo 

U ESI aJ ga1 ia:Efis(~a~) ~~ 00,249 
U ffi I aJ ga1 ia:Efis(Cq:ita RqEds) 2, 1EXl,4JJ 2, 1EB,400 
Ta<ES rroMtJE; rEt (<£n:ra) 3,C61,1m 
Panntsadretsra:efvOOe(Qre:cj) 1,1~ffi8 

Panrtsad rets ra:efvOOe (~a R3.m..e) a937,~7 

~a are:;smrtsra:Evctle, rEt(Qre:cj) 1,:U3,144 
Tc:ta $ 17,~ffi5 $ 2,979,310 

Note 8 - Risk Management 

The City (excluding the electric and water and wastewater funds) is self-insured (self-funded) with 
respect to insurance claims as follows: health insurance (up to $150,000 per individual and 
approximately $11,138,107 for all employees for the policy ending June 30, 2012), general liability (up 
to $350,000 per occurrence), workers' compensation ($600,000 per occurrence) , public officials liability 
(up to $350,000 per occurrence), law enforcement liability ($350 ,000 per occurrence) , and automobile 
liability (up to $350,000 per occurrence). The City maintains excess liability insurance ($10,000,000) to 
cover carastrophic losses. Property insurance on city buildings is for replacement value (less $100,000 
self-funded retention) . The health insurance plan's excess coverage allows expenditures by the City up 
to 125% of expected claims adjusted for industry standard trend adjustments, and for expenditures by 
the City of up to $150,000 per individual. Losses from asserted claims and from unasserted claims 
identified under the City 's incident reporting system are accrued based on estimates that incorporate 
the City's past experience, as well as other considerations including the nature of each claim and 
relevant trend factors . 

The City carries commercial coverage for all other risks of loss. Claims have not exceeded coverage in 
any of the last three fiscal years. 

The Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds are self-insured with respect to workers' compensation 
(up to approximately $1,000,000) and self-insured with respect to health insurance claims (up to 
approximately $2,000,000). In addition , these funds are self-insured with respect to certain policy 
deductible amounts as follows: up to $100,000 per occurrence on public officials' liability, up to 
$1,000,000 per occurrence on liability claims, and up to $250,000 
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Note 8 - Risk Management (continued) 

per occurrence on property claims. In addition, the Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds maintain 
excess liability insurance ($10,000,000) to cover catastrophic losses and auto liability coverage with a 
$5,000 deductible per occurrence. These funds maintain an investment account amounting to 
$3,500,000 to cover possible workers' compensation and other claims. This investment is classified 
under restricted assets in the financial statements. No accrual for possible losses attributable to 
incidents that may have occurred but that have not been identified under the incident reporting system 
has been made, because the amount is not reasonably estimated. Further, a liability for an outstanding 
claim at June 30, 2012 was accrued for $300,000. 

The Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds carry commercial coverage for all other risks of loss. 
There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage since the prior year, and settled 
claims have not exceeded coverage in any of the last three fiscal years. 

At June 30, 2012, a liability for incurred but not reported claims of $4,528,254 is included in accounts 
payable and accrued expenses on the accompanying financial statements. An analysis of claims 
activity for the City and the Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds is presented below. 

2012 2011 

Liability at June 30, $ 3,486,794 $ 3,359,781 

Current year claims and changes 
in estimates 17,365,312 17,057,648 

Actual claim payments (16,323,852) (16,930,635) 

Liability at June 30, :I; 1528251 :I; 3186 Z91 

The City (excluding the electric and water and wastewater funds) carries flood insurance through the 
National Flood Insurance Plan (NFIP) on a particular property commonly known as the police training 
facility located at 671 North Eastern Blvd. This property is covered by a separate insurance policy with 
damage limits of $500,000 for building and $250,000 for contents. The City's insurance carriers 
performed an analysis of the flood maps and made a determination that the remainder of the City 
facilities was not designated an "A" area (an area close to a river, lake or stream) by the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency. 

The Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds carry flood insurance through the commercial insurance 
market. The current policy limit is $50 million with a $1 million sublimit applicable for loss in flood zones 
that is designated an "A" zone . The Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds' standard deductible is 
$100,000 with the exception of a $250,000 deductible set for combustion steam generators. 

In accordance with G.S. 159-29, City employ.ees (excluding employees of the electric, water and 
wastewater funds) who have access to $100 or more of the City's funds at any given time are 
performance bonded through commercial surety bonds. The City's Chief Financial Officer is 
individually bonded for $100,000 . The remaining employees who have access to funds are bonded 
under a blanket bond for $100,000 per theft coverage, with a $1,000 per occurrence deduction . 
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Note 8 - Risk Management (continued) 

Electric and Water and Wastewater fund employees who have access to $100 or more of the utility's 
funds at any given time are insured under a crime policy in accordance with G.S. 159-29. The crime 
policy provides coverage for losses related to employee dishonesty, fraud , forgery/alteration and theft 
of money or securities up to $1, 000,000. This crime policy has a $10,000 deductible per loss. 

Note 9 - Commitments and Contingent Liabilities 

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor 
agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already 
collected, may constitute ·a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which 
may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the City expects such 
amounts, if any, to be immaterial. No provision has been made in the accompanying financial 
statements for the refund of grant money. 

The City is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these proceedings is not presently 
determinable, it is the opinion of management that the resolution of these matters will not have a 
material adverse effect on the financial condition of the City. 

The City is subject to laws and regulations relating to the protection of the environment. While it is not 
possible to quantify with certainty the potential impact of actions regarding environmental matters, 
particularly any future remediation and other compliance efforts, in the opinion of management, 
compliance with the present environmental protection laws will not have a material adverse effect on 
the financial position , results of operations or cash flows of the City. 

The City's bond issues are subject to Federal arbitrage regulations, and the City has elected to review 
its potential arbitrage liability annually on the bond issue dates. The arbitrage rebate payments are 
payable on the fifth anniversary of the bond issue date and every fifth year subsequent to that 
date. Although the actual amount to be paid is not presently determinable, the City believes that an 
adequate provision for arbitrage payables has been provided for in the accompanying financial 
statements. 

The City has authorized expenditures totaling approximately $203.1 million for capital additions and 
const ruction of various administration, public safety, recreation, transportation , economic development, 
bond improvement, linear Park, electric, water and wastewater , storm water , transit and airport 
projects. At June 30, 2012, cumulative expenditures to date totaled approximately $160.6 million 
leaving an unexpended balance of $42.5 million for projects that are expected to be completed at 
various dates in future f iscal years . 

In March 2002, the City entered into a new nine-year purchased power arrangement with Progress 
Energy Carolinas, Inc. (PEG) effective July 1, 2003. This contract terminated on its expiration date of 
June 30, 2012. Under the terms of the contract, the City was committed to purchasing a minimum load 
from PEC at a fixed capacity price and an annually determined energy price. The minimum load 
requirements range from approximately 275 MW to 300 MW during the tenm 
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Note 9 - Commitments and Contingent Liabilities (continued) 

of the contract. The remaining capacity and energy was either produced at the Butler-Warner 
Generation Plant or purchased on the open market. When the market price was greater than the price 
at the Butler-Warner Generation Plant, the City was permitted to market its capacity and energy for sale 
to the open market. 

In June 2009 the City executed a 20-year full requirements Power Supply and Coordination Agreement 
with Progress Energy (PEC) effective July 1, 2012 . Subsequent amendments extended this tenm to 30 
years. Under this agreement, PEC will provide the City's full power supply requirements at an annually 
determined capacity and energy price based on PEC's average system cost. The City will continue to 
utilize its SEPA allocation as permitted in the contract. The City may terminate this agreement effective 
July 1, 2022 with written notice provided by June 30, 2015. Also in June 2009, the City and PEC 
executed a 5-year Butler Warner Power Sales Agreement effective July 1, 2012. Under this 
agreement, the City will generate and deliver energy to PEC pursuant to scheduled energy requests 
provided by PEC. PEC will pay the City for capacity , energy (including any fuel costs) and start costs . 
Either party may terminate this agreement by 3 years advance written notice. 

During the year ended June 30,2012, the purchased power cost to PEC was $95 ,097,746. The City did 
not sell power on the open market in fiscal year 2012. 

The City leases office space to others in the Robert C. Williams Business Center at Lafayette Plaza and 
the Administration Building on Old Wilmington Road. These lease agreements provide for minimum 
rental, have tenms of 3 to 10 years and are due to expire at various dates from 2013 to 2015. Minimum 
lease provisions at June 30 , 2012 will result in rental income for future years as follows: 

Year ending June 30 Rent 
2013 $ 759,953 
2014 625,014 
2015 250,308 
Total $ 1,635,275 

Note 10 - On-Behalf Payments for Fringe Benefits and Salaries 

For the fiscal year ended June 30 , 2012, the City has recognized on-behalf payments for pension 
contributions made by the State as revenue and an expenditure of $50,826 for the 133 employed 
firemen who perform firefighting duties for the City's fire department. These employees elected to be 
members of the Firemen's and Rescue Squad Workers' Pension Fund, a cost sharing, multiple­
employer public employee retirement system established and administered by the State of North 
Carolina. The plan is funded by a monthly contribution paid by each member, investment income, and 
a State appropriation. 
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Note 11 - Employee Retirement Systems 

The City maintains a single-employer, defined benefit pension plan (the Law Enforcement Officers' 
Special Separation Allowance System), which covers the law enforcement officers of the City. In 
addition , the City continues to participate in the statewide local governmental retirement system, a 
multiple-employer, cost-sharing public employee pension plan that covers substantially all employees. 

A - Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System 

Plan Description 

The City contributes to the statewide Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System (LGERS), a 
cost sharing, and multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of North 
Carolina. LGERS provides retirement and disability benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Article 
3 of G. S Chapter 128 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North 
Carolina General Assembly. The Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System is included in the 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The State's CAFR 
includes financial statements and required supplementary information for LGERS. That report may be 
obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller; 1410 Mail Service Center; Raleigh, North 
Carolina 27699-1410 orby calling (919) 981-5454 . 

Funding Policy 

Plan members are required to contribute six percent of their annual covered salary. The City is 
required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. For the City, exclusive of the Electric and 
Water and Wastewater funds , the current rate for employees not engaged in law enforcement and for 
law enforcement officers is 6.96% and 7.05%, respectively, of annual covered payroll . The rate for the 
Electric and Water and Wastewater funds is 12.11%. The contribution requirements of members and of 
the City are established and may be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly. The City's 
contributions to LGERS for all employees, including law enforcement officers and Electric and Water 
and Wastewater funds, for the years ended June 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010, were $8,267,967 , 
$7,714,470 and $6,042,941, respectively. The contributions made by the City equaled the required 
contributions for each year. 

B - Supplemental Employees' Retirement Plan of the Public Works Commission of the City of 
Fayetteville, North Carolina 

Effective April 1, 2001, the Commission transferred the assets of the Employee's Retirement Plan of 
the Public Works Commission of the City of Fayetteville, North Carolina ("ERP plan"), a single-employer 
defined benefit pension plan administered by the Public Works Commission Employees' Retirement 
Plan Board of Trustees into a new retirement plan: The Local Governmental Employees ' Retirement 
System plan ("LGERS") (A cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan administered by the 
State of North Carolina). At the date of transition, approximately $49.7 million of the plan assets were 
transferred to the LGERS plan. 

F-38 



City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2012 


Note 11 - Employee Retirement Systems (continued) 

C - Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance 

Plan Description 

The City administers a public employee retirement system (the "Separation Allowance") , a single­
employer; defined benefit pension plan that provides retirement benefits to the City's qualified sworn 
law enforcement officers. The Separation Allowance is equal to .85 percent of the annual equivalent of 
the base rate of compensation most recently applicable to the officer for each year of creditable service. 
The retirement benefits are not subject to any increases in salary or retirement allowances that may be 
authorized by the General Assembly. Article 120 of G. S. Chapter 143 assigns the authority to 
establish and amend benefit prOVisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Separation 
Allowance is reported in the City's report as a pension trust fund and does not issue separate financial 
statements. The Separation Allowance covers all full-time City law enforcement officers. 

At December 31, 2011, the Separation Allowance's membership consisted of: 

Retirees receiving benefits 
Active plan members 
Total 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Accounting.· Financial statements for the Separation Allowance are prepared using the accrual 
basis of accounting . Employer contributions to the plan are recognized when due and when the City 
has made a formal commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits are recognized when due and 
payable in accordance with the terms of the plan. 

Method Used to Value Investments: Investments are reported at fair value. Short-term debt, deposits , 
and the North Carolina Capital Management Trust Investments are reported at cost or amortized cost, 
which approximates fair value. Certain longer term United States Government and United States 
Agency securities are valued at the last reported sales price. 

Contributions 

The City is required by Article 120 of G. S Chapter 143 to provide these retirement benefits and has 
chosen to fund the amounts necessary to cover the benefits earned by making contributions based on 
actuarial valuations. For the current year, the City contributed $686,544, or 3.52% of annual covered 
payroll . There were no contributions made by employees . The City's obligation to contribute to this 
plan is established and may be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly. 

The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the December 31,2010 
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit actuarial method. The actuarial assumptions included 
(a) 5.00% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses) and (b) projected salary increases 
of 4.25% - 7.85% per year. Both (a) and (b) included an inflation component of 3.00%. The 
assumptions did not .include postretirement benefit increases. The actuarial value of assets was market 
value. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of pay on a 
closed basis. The remaining amortization period at December 31 , 2010 was 20 years. 
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Note 11 - Employee Retirement Systems (continued) 

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation 

The City's annual pension cost and net prepaid pension obligation to the Separation Allowance for the 
current year were as follows: 

Annual required contribution $ 672,542 
Interest on net pension obligation (27,471) 
Adjustment to annual required contribution 32.775 
Annual pension cost 677,846 
Contributions made 686,544 
Increase (decrease) in net pension obligation (8,698) 
Net prepaid pension obligation beginning of year (549,414) 
Net prepaid pension obligation end of year $ 1558 112) 

Three-Year Trend Information 
Annual Percentage Net Prepaid 

Fiscal Year Pension ofAPC Pension 
Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation 
2010 $ 465,302 110.02% $ (533,806) 
2011 689,012 102.27 (549,414) 
2012 677,846 101 .28 (558,112) 

Funded Status and Funding Progress 

As of June 30, 2012 the plan was not funded . The most recent actuarial valuation was December 31 , 
2011. The actuarial value of plan assets was $2,494,212. The actuarial accrued liability (AAL) for 
benefits was $7,577,761 and the unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) was $5,083,549. The 
funded ratio was 32.91 percent. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by 
the plan) was $19,642,118 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 25.88 percent. 

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes 
to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of 
plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. 
The general fund typically liquidates any net pension obligation. 

*****,..**** 
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The fiscal year 2011-2012 financial statements for the City's pension trust funds are as follows: 


STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS 

Special 

Separation 

Allowance 

Pension 

Trust Fund 
ASSETS 

Cash ard cash equivalents $ 2,5£6,407 

Accou1ts reC€i vabe 1,773 

Tatal assets 2,598,180 

UABIUTlES 

hcounts payable 26,098 
Total liab~ities 26,098 

NET ASSETS 

Held in trust fO' tenefits ard other p.....po'"'s 2,572,082 
T ota net assets $ 2,572,082 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RDJCIARY NET ASSETS 

Special 

Separation 


Allowance 

Pension 


Trust Fund 

ADDITIONS 

Empoyer contrii:>Jfions $ 61'li,544 
Investment ea'nings 12,971 

Total addtions 699,515 

DEDJCTlONS 
Benefit payments ard premiums 531 ,202 

T ota dedudioos 531,202 

CHANGE IN t£T ASSETS 168,313 

Total net assets - tegnning 2,403,769 
Total net assets - endng $ 2,572,082 
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Note 11 - Employee Retirement Systems (continued) 

D - Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers 

Plan Description 

The City contributes to the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan (the "Plan"), a defined contribution 
pension plan administered by the Department of State Treasurer and a Board of Trustees. The Plan 
provides retirement benefits to law enforcement officers employed by the City and also those non-law 
enforcement employees who choose 10 make their own contributions. Article 5 of G. S. Chapter 135 
assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions for the law enforcement officers to the 
North Carolina General Assembly. The Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement 
Officers is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North 
Carolina. The state's CAFR includes the pension trust fund financial statements for the Internal 
Revenue Code Section 401 (k) plan that includes the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law 
Enforcement Officers. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 
Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, or by calling (919) 981-5454. 

Funding Policy 

Article 12E of G. S. Chapter 143 requires the City to contribute each month an amount equal to five 
percent of each law enforcement officer's salary, and all amounts contributed are vested immediately. 
The City does not make any contributions for non-law enforcement employees. All employees may 
make voluntary contributions to the Plan. Contributions for the year ended June 30, 2012, were 
$1,902,679, which consisted of $980,715 from the City and $921,964 from employees. 

E - Firemen's and Rescue Squad Workers' Pension Fund 

Plan Description 

As discussed in Note 10, the State of North Carolina contributes , on behalf of Ihe City of Fayetteville, to 
the Firemen's and Rescue Squad Workers' Pension Fund (Fund), a cost-sharing multiple-employer 
defined benefit pension plan with a special funding situation administered by the State of North 
Carolina . The Fund provides pension benefils for eligible fire and rescue squad workers that have 
elected to become members of the Fund . Article 86 of G.S. Chapter 58 assigns the authority to 
establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Firemen's and 
Rescue Squad Workers' Pension Fund is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
(CAFR) for the State of North Carolina . The State's CAFR includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information for the Fund. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the 
State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, or by calling (919) 
981-5454. 

Funding Policy 

Plan members are required to contribute $10 per month to the Fund . The State, a nonemployer 
contributor, funds the plan through appropriations. The City does not contribute to the Fund . 
Contribution requirements of plan members and the State of North Carolina are established and may be 
amended by the North Carolina General Assembly. 
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In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 11, the City (excluding the City's Public Works 
Commission) administers the Other Post Employment Benefit Retiree Healthcare Plan, a single­
employer defined benefit healthcare plan. For employees hired on or after February 1, 2008, this plan 
provides postemployment healthcare benefits to retirees of the City, up to the age of 65 or until they are 
eligible to receive medicare benefits, provided they participate in the North Carolina Local 
Governmental Employees' Retirement System (System) and have at least twenty years of creditable 
service with the City. For employees hired prior to February 1, 2008, employees qualified for similar 
level benefits after at least five years of creditable service with the City and 10 years of service credit 
with the System. The City and reiirees contribute to the cost of coverage for these benefits through a 
self-insured plan. Also, the City's retirees can purchase coverage for their eligible dependents at the 
City's group rates. The City also provides a death benefit through the plan based on the number of 
years of service at retirement. The City may amend the benefit provisions. A separate report was not 
issued for the plan . 

Membership in the healthcare and life insurance benefit plan consisted of the following at December 
31 , 2011, the date of the latest actuarial valuation: 

Retirees receiving health and/or life insurance benefits 520 
Active plan members 1,456 

Total 1,976 

Funding Policy. The City and the qualified retirees share in the cost of healthcare coverage Also, the 
City's retirees can purchase healthcare coverage for their dependents at the City's group rates. The 
City pays the cost of death benefits. 

The current Annual Required Contribution (ARC) rate is 5.01 percent of annual covered payroll as 
reflected in the latest actuarial valuation. For the current year, the City contributed $989,203 or 1.61 
percent of annual covered payroll. The City is self-insured with respect to healthcare coverage up to 
$150,000 per individual and approximately $11 ,138,107 for all employees and retirees for the policy 
ending June 30, 2012. Retiree members contributed $269,444 or 0.44 percent of annual covered 
payroll for retiree and dependent coverage. The City offers a $100 death benefit for each year of 
service up to a maximum of $3,000. The City's and retiree members' obligation to contribute to the 
healthcare plan, including the death benefit, is established and may be amended by the City Manager 
consistent with the annual budget approved by City Council. The City has chosen to fund healthcare 
and death benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. Post-employment expenditures. are made from the 
Insurance Internal Service Fund , which is maintained on the full accrual basis of accounting The 
Insurance Fund charges a monthly rate per retiree to the General Fund, special revenue funds and 
enterprise funds (other than the funds managed by the Public Works Commission) based on the 
number of retirees attributed to each fund to pay for post-employment expenditures. 
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Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The City's annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated 
based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in 
accordance within the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, 
if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded 
actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table 
shows the components of the City's annual OPEB cost for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the 
amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the City's net OPEB obligation for the 
healthcare and death benefits: 

Annual Required Contribution (ARC) 
Interest on net OPEB obligation 
Adjustment to annual required contribution 
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 
Contributions Made 
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation 
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of the year 
Net OPEB obligation, end of the year 

$3,332,873 
488,512 
(421,459) 

3,399,926 
(989,203) 

2,410,723 
12,212,791 

$14,623,514 

The City's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net 
OPEB obligation for 2010 through 2012 were as follows: 

For the Year AnnualOPEB Percentage of Annual NetOPEB 
Ended June 30 Cost OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation 

2010 $ 3,005,268 26 .61% $ 9,810,254 
2011 3,266,270 26.44% 12,212,791 
2012 3,399,926 29.09% 14,623,514 

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of June 30, 2012 the plan was not funded. The most recent 
actuarial valuation was December 31 , 2011 . The actuarial accrued liability for benefits and, thus, the 
unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) was $31,318,000. The covered payroll (annual payroll of 
active employees covered by the plan) was $61 ,529,547 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered 
payroll was 50.90 percent. Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of 
reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. 
Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and healthcare trends. Amounts 
determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the 
employer are SUbject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and 
new estimates are made about the future . The schedule of funding progress, presented as required 
supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend 
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time 
relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for the benefits. 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2012 


Note 12 - Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) (continued) 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based 
on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include 
the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of 
benefit costs between the employer and plan members at that point. The actuarial methods and 
assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in 
actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective 
of the calculations. 

In the December 31 , 2011 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was used . 
The actuarial assumptions included a 4.00 percent investment rate of return which is the expected long­
term investment returns on the employer's own investments calculated based on the funded level of the 
plan at the valuation date, and an annual medical cost trend increase of 9.50 to 5.00 percent annually. 
Both rates included a 3.00 percent inflation assumption. The actuarial value of assets, if any, was 
determined using techniques that spread the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of 
investments . The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open 
basis. The remaining amortization period at December 31,2011 , was 30 years. 

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 11, the City's Public Works Commission 
administers the Public Works Commission Other Post Employment Benefit Retiree Healthcare Plan, a 
single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan for the Electric, Water and Wastewater, and PWC Fleet 
Maintenance funds . This plan provides postemployment healthcare benefits to retirees and their 
dependents up to the age of 65. The Commission may amend the benefit provisions. 

Membership in the Commission's healthcare benefit plan consisted of the following at June 30,2012: 

Retirees 73 
Active members 554 
Total 627 

Funding Policy. The Commission and the qualified retirees share in the cost of coverage. Also, the 
Commission's retirees can purchase coverage for their dependents at the Commission's group rates. 
The Commission has chosen to fund the health care benefits on a pay as you go basis. 

The current Annual Required Contribution (ARC) rate is 6.6 percent of annual covered payroll. The 
Commission is self-insured with respect to healthcare coverage. 

The Schedule of Funding Progress for the postemployment plan immediately following the notes to the 
financial statements presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan 
assets is increasing or decreasing relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits over time. 

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The Commission's annual OPEB cost (expense) is 
calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially 
determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of 
funding that , if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any 
unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following 
table shows the components of the Commission's annual OPEB cost for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2012. 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2012 


Note 12 - Other Postemployment Benefits (OPE B) (continued) 

Annual Required Contribution (ARC) $ 2,125,256 
Interest on net OPEB obligation (981,746) 
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 1,143,510 
Contributions Made (521,392) 
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation 622,118 
Net OPEB obligation , beginning of the year 3,743,672 
Net OPEB obligation , end of the year $4,365,790 

The Commission's annual OPEB cost, percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and 
the net OPEB obligation for current year and two preceding actuarial years are as follows 

For the Year AnnualOPEB Percentage of Annual Net OPEB 

Ended June 30 Cost OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation 


2007 $ 1,070,188 0.00% $ 1,070,188 
2009 1,453,111 39.49% 1,949,481 
2011 2,096,449 45.45% 3,743,672 

As of June 30, 2012 the plan was not funded . The most recent actuarial valuation was June 30, 2011. 
The actuarial accrued liability for benefits and, thus, the unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) was 
$22,033,091. The net OPEB obligation and related OPEB expense are reported in the Electric, Water 
and Wastewater and PWC Fleet Maintenance funds as a noncurrent liability and a general and 
administrative expense, respectively . 

The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) at the last actuarial date 
was $32,487,865 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 67.8 percent. For the current 
year, the Commission's annual covered payroll was $32,261,107 and the ratio of the UAAL to the 
covered payroll was 68.3 percent. Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the 
value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the 
future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and healthcare trends. 
Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of 
the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations 
and new estimates are made about the future. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based 
on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include 
the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of 
benefit costs between the employer and plan members at that point . The actuarial methods and 
assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in 
actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective 
of the calculations. 

In the June 30, 2011 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was used. The 
actuarial assumptions included a 5.25 percent investment rate of return which is the expected long-term 
investment returns on the employer's own investments calculated based on the funded level of the plan 
at the valuation date, and an annual medical cost trend increase of 1000 to 5.00 percent annually. 
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June 3D, 2012 

Note 12 - Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) (continued) 

Both rates included a 3.00 percent inflation assumption . The actuarial value of assets, if any, was 
determined using techniques that spread the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of 
investments. The UAAL is being amortized 
remaining amortization period was 30 years. 
plan is funded on a pay-as-you-go basis. 

as 
Th

a 
er

level dollar amortization 
e are no assets set aside for these benefits. 

on an open basis. The 
The 

Note 13 - Interfund Balances and Activity 

Balances Due to/from Other Funds 

Balances due to/from other funds at June 30, 2012, consist of the following : 

Due To: 

Waler 
Due From: Eleclric Wastewater TOlal 
Internal Service Fund $ 169,327 $ 4,337 $ 173.664 

The interfund balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and 
services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the 
accounting system, and (3) payments between funds are made. 

Transfers to/from Other Funds 

Transfers due tolfrom other funds at June 3D, 2012 , consist of the following: 

Transfer out: 
General 
Nonmajor Governmental 
Electric 
Water and Wastewater 
Nonmajor Enterprise 

General 
$ 

9.820,653 

427.245 

Govemmental 
$ 6,934.420 

14,898 

Electric 
$ 20,847 

Wastewater 
$ 1,311 .230 

Ente!Erise 
$ 2.804,787 

28,400 
$ 

Service 
500,183 

297,167 
297, 167 

$ 
Total 

11 ,571,467 
43. 298 

10, 117 ,820 
297,167 
427.245 

Totals $10,247.898 $ 6 .949,31 8 $ 20,947 $ 1. 311,230 $ 2.833,187 $ 1, 094,517 $ 22,456.99 7 

Transfers are used to move unrestricted revenues to finance various programs that the government 
must account for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations, and include amounts 
provided as matching funds for various grant programs. 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, a total of $9,820,653 was transferred from the electric fund 
to the general fund . This transfer consisted of two components: 3.1 % of electric fund net assets at 
June 30, 2010 totaling $ 9,769,883, and $50,770 to reimburse a portion of general fund street light 
utility expenditures. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2012 


Note 13 -Interfund Balances and Activity (continued) 

Transfers totaling $6,934,420 were made during the fiscal year from the general fund to non-major 
governmental funds . Of this total, transfers for capital projects consisted of: $5,375, 567 for 
transportation projects including street resurfacing, sidewalks improvements, and transportation and 
railroad crossing improvement project commitments under municipal agreements; $1,192,310 for 
general government projects including major facility maintenance projects and computer replacements ; 
$67,000 for a recreational and cultural project for playground equipment improvements. Additionally , 
transfers for special revenue funds included: $296 ,1 17 transferred for local matches for Federal and 
State funded programs, and $3,426 transferred to provide a match for an arts program grant from a 
loca I agency. 

The general fund also made transfers totaling $2,804,787 to a non-major enterprise fund to support 
transit system operations, capital purchases and planning functions . 

Note 14 - Fund Balance 

The following schedule provides management and citizens with information on the portion of General 
fund balance that is available for appropriation: 

Total fund balance - General Fund $ 51,895,848 

Less: 
Inventories 
Stabilization by State Statute 
Central Business Tax District 
Cumberland County Recreation District 
JP Riddle Stadium 
Donations 
Lake Valley Drive MSD 
Appropriated Fund Balance in 2013 budget 
Specific purpose assignments 
Capital funding plan 
Working Capital/Fund Balance Policy 

Remaining Fund Balance $ 

170,322 
14,421 ,378 

53,425 
3,418,003 

100,707 
20 ,295 

4,302 
3,933,570 
5,498,398 
4,113,861 

14,152,548 

6,009,039 

The City's fund balance policy is discussed in Note 1. 

The outstanding encumbrances are amounts needed to pay any commitments related to purchase 
orders and contracts that remain unperformed at year end. 

TOTAL 
Encumbrances General Fund Non-Ma 'or Funds 

$ 6,423,957 $ 1,701,202 $ 4,722,755 
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June 3D, 2012 

Note 15 - Change in Accounting Principle 

In August 2011 the City issued series 2011 Storm Water Revenue Bonds and pledged the revenues 
from storm water operations to pay for the debt. These bonds are not backed by the full faith and credit 
of the City. In these circumstances, generally accepted accounting principles require that an enterprise 
fund be used to account for the storm water activity. As discussed in Note 1, the City has previously 
used special revenue and capital project funds to account for storm water activity. Because of the 
requirement in generally accepted accounting principles, it is preferable to begin accounting for storm 
water activity in an enterprise fund in this year. The effect on beginning balances is reported below. 
Because there was no activity in the former storm water special revenue and capital project funds this 
year, those 
information . 

funds have not been included in the individual and combining fund supplemental 

Governmental Activities 
Busi ness-Type 

Act ivities 

Special 
Revenue 

Capital 
Projects 

Adjustments for 
Full Accrual Total 

Storm W ater 
Management 

Fund 

Fund balance and net assets 
as previously stated , June 30, 
201 1 $ 7, 148.683 $ 1,279,381 $ 12,923,1 52 $ 21,351 ,216 $ 

Effect of change in accounting 
principle (7,148,683) (1,279,381) (12,923 ,152) (21,351,216) 21, 351 ,216 

Fund balance and net assets 
as restated, June 30, 2012 $ _ $ _ $ _ $ $ 21,351,216 

================================ 

Note 16 - Subsequent Events 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through November 26, 2012 in connection with the 
preparation of these financial statements which is the date the financial statements were available to be 
issued. 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance 
Required Supplementary Information 

Schedule of Funding Progress 

Actuarial Accrued 
Actuarial Liability (AAL) Unfunded UAAL as a 

Actuarial Value of - Projec ts Unit AAL Funded Covered % of Covered 
Valuation Assets Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll 

Date ia ) ib) ib-a) (alb) ie) «b-a)/e) 

1213112006 $ 2,023,488 $ 4,632,567 $ 2,609,079 43.68% $ 16,750,277 15.58% 
12131/2007 2,092,180 5,062,285 2,970,105 41 .33% 16,792,423 17.69% 
1213112008 2,101 ,963 5,449,006 3,347,043 38.58% 17,468,170 19.16% 
1213 1/2009 2,161,322 7,423,392 5,262,070 29.12% 18,645,039 28.22% 
12131 /2010 2,299,829 7,099,596 4,799,767 32.39% 19,348,625 24.B1% 
12131/2011 2,494,212 7,577,761 5,Q83,549 32.91 % 19,642,118 25.88% 

The annual required contribution for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 was determined as part of the December 31, 2010 actuarial 
valuation using the projeci unit credit actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions included (a) 5. 00% investment rate of return 
and (b) projected salary increases ranging from 4.25% to 7.85% per year. The inflation component was 3.00%. The assumptions do 
not include postretirement benefit increases. The actuarial value of assets was marKet value . The unfunded actuarial accrued 
liability is being amortized as a level percentage of pay on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at December 31, 2010 
was 20 years. 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE. NORTH CAROLINA 


Law Enforcement Officers' Special Seperation Allowance 

Required Supplementary Information 


Schedule of Employer Contributions 


Year Ended 

June 30 


2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
20 11 
2012 

Annual Required Percentage Actual 
Contribution Contributed Contributions 

$ 	 329,564 
388,882 
415,308 
465,302 
687 ,124 
672,542 

11 7. 11 % $ 
97.54% 

107.04% 
110.02% 
102.55% 
102.08% 

385,957 
379,324 
444,528 
511 ,937 
704,620 
686,544 

Notes to the Required Schedules: 

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as part of the 
actuarial valuation at the dates indicated . Addi tional information as of the latest actuariat va luation 
follows : 

Va luation date 

Actuarial cost method 

Amortization method 

Remaining amortization period 

Asset valuation method 

Actuarial assumptions: 

Investment rate return' 

Projected salary increases' 

• Includes inflation at 

Cost-of-living adjustments 

December 31,2011 

Projected Unit Credit 

Levet percent 01 pay closed 

19 years 

Market va lue 

5% 

4.25 -7 .85% 

3.00% 

N/A 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Other Post Employment Benefit Retiree Healthcare Plan 
. Required Supplementary Information 

Schedu le of Fund ing Progress 

Actu¥ial Accrued 
Actuaria l Liability (AAL) Unfunded UAAL as a 

Actuarial Value of . Projects Unit AAL Funded Covered % of Covered 
Valuation Assets Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll 

Date (a) (b) (boa) (alb) (e) !lb-aFe! 

1213112007 $ $ 27,972,680 $ 27 ,972,680 0.00% $ 53,061,647 52.72% 
' 213 112009 31,906,033 31,906,033 0.00% 59,132,363 53.96% 
12/31/2011 31,318,000 31,318,000 0.00% 61,529,547 50.90% 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Other Post Employment Benefit Retiree Healthcare Plan 

Required Supplementary Information 


Schedule of Employer Contributions 


Year Ended 
June 30 

Annual 
Required 

Contribution 
Actual Amount 

Contributed 

Percentage of 
Annual Required 

Contribution 

2008 
2010 
2012 

$ 6,585,964 
2,963,516 
3,332,873 

$ 995,265 
799,635 
989,203 

15.11 % 
26.98% 
2968% 

Notes to the Required Schedules: 

The information presented in the required supplementary schedule was determined as part of the actuarial 
valuation at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows: 

Valuation date December 31,2011 

Actuarial cost method Projected Unit Credit 

Amortization method Level Percentage of Pay on an Open Basis 

Amortization period 30 years 

Actuarial assumptions: 

Investment rate of return" 4.00% 

Annual medical cost trend rates' 9.5% - 5% 

• Includes inflation at 3.00% 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Public Works Commission Other Post Emp loyment Benefit Retiree Healthcare Plan 
Required Supplementary Information 

Schedule of Funding Progress 

Actuarial 
Valuation 

Date 

Actuarial 
Value of 
Assets 

(a) 

Actuarial Accrued 
Liability (AAL) 
. Projects Unit 

Credit 
(b) 

Unfunded 
AAL 

(UAAL) 
(b-a) 

Funded 
Ratio 
(al b) 

Covered 
Payroll 

(e) 

UAAl as a 
%of Covered 

Payroll 
((b·a)/e) 

6/30107 
6130109 
6130/11 

$ $ 11,080.476 
15,772,610 
22,033,901 

$ 11,080.476 
15,772,610 
22,033,901 

0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 

$ 27,983,314 
29.452,949 
32,487,865 

39.60% 
53.55% 
67,80% 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Public Works Commission Other Post Employment Benefit Retiree Healthcare Plan 

Required Supplementary Information 


Schedule of Employer Contributions 


Year Ended 
June 30 

Annual 
Required 

Contribution 

Actual 
Amount 

Contributed 

Percentage of 
Annual Required 

Contribution 

2007 
2009 
2011 

$ 1,070, 188 
1,464,968 
2,125,256 

$ 
573,818 
952,939 

0.00% 
39.17% 
44.84% 

Notes to the Required Schedules: 

The information presenled in the required supplementary schedule was determined as part of the actuarial 
valuation at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows: 

Valuation date June 30, 20 11 

Actuarial cost method Projected Unit Credit 

Amortization method Level Dollar Amortization on an Open Basis 

Amortization period 

Actuarial assumptions: 

Investment rate of return· 5.25% 

Annual medical cost trend rates· 10% - 5% 

• Includes inflation at 3.0% 
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Supplemental 
Financial Information 

Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statements 
and Schedules 

These statements/schedules provide a more detailed view of the 
"Basis Financial Statements" as presented in the preceding 
subsection. 

Combining statements are presented where there is more than one 
fund of a given type. Individual fund statements are presented only 
if one fund exists in a given fund type. 



Governmental Funds 

• General Fund 

• 	 Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

- Special Revenue Funds 

- Capital Project Funds 

The focus of Governmental Fund measurement is upon 
determination of financial position and changes in financial position 
(sources, uses and balances of financial resources) rather than 
upon net income determination. 



General Fund 

The General Fund is the principal fund of the City and is used to 
account for the receipt and expenditure of resources that are 
traditionally associated with local governments and that are not 
required to be accounted for in another fund . 

Resources are provided primarily through taxes , intergovernmental 
revenues and transfers and are expended for services deemed not 
susceptible to a user charge financing method. 

The General Fund is accounted for on the modified accrual basis of 
accounting. 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Comparative Balance Sheets 

General Fund 


June 30, 2012 and 2011 


ASSETS 2012 2011 

Cash and investments 
Taxes receivable 
Accounts receivable 
Assessments receivable 
Inventories 
Restricted cash and investments 

Total assets 

$ 

$ 

44,711 ,052 
3,051 ,196 

14,057,164 
988, 11 2 
170,322 

3,596,732 

66,574,578 

$ 

$ 

43,292,440 
3,009,540 

16,641,498 
938,565 
160,391 

3,078,342 

67,120,776 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Unearned deposits 
Deferred revenues 

$ 8,129,253 
412,398 

6,137,079 

$ 9,593,146 
291,795 

8,528,444 

Total liabilities 14,678,730 18,413,385 

Fund balances 
Fund balances: 

Nonspendable 
For inventories 

Restricted 
Stabilization by State Statute 
For downtown 
For Lake Valley Drive MSD 
For county recreation 
For JP Riddle Stadium 
For donations 

Assigned 
For subsequent year's expenditures 
For special purpose 
For capital projects 

Unassigned 
Total fund balances 

170,322 

14,421 ,378 
53,425 
4,302 

3,418,003 
100,707 
20,295 

3,933,570 
5,498,398 
4,113,861 

20,161,587 
51,895,848 

160,391 

15,082,516 
72,073 

2,889,768 
82,996 
33,505 

4,280,278 
5,252,660 
4,045,773 

16,807,431 
48,707,391 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 66,574,578 $ 67,120,776 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual - General Fund 


Year Ended June 30, 2012 

With Comparative Actual Statements forthe Year Ended June 30, 2011 


Variance 
Positive 2012 2011 

Budget (Negative) Actual Actual 
Revenues 

Ad valorem taxes 
Current year $ 58,869,974 $ (143,537) $ 58,726,437 $ 57,536,655 
Prior year 993,800 78,622 1,072,422 1,087,651 
Penalties 315,600 (25,360) 290,240 363,133 

Total ad valorem taxes 60,179,374 (90,275) 60,089,099 58,987,439 

other taxes 
Vehicle license tax 630,750 (13,479) 617,271 624,591 
Privilege license 2,102,385 455,479 2,557,864 1,226,057 
Cablevision franchise tax 400,000 19,653 419,653 426,687 
Gross receipts tax on rental property 481,000 91.634 572,634 562,089 

Total other taxes 3,614,135 553,287 4,167,422 2,839,424 

Unrestricted intergovernmental 
Local option sales lax 32,933,043 350,599 33,283,642 31,633,373 
Telecommunications sales tax 1,769,348 83,055 1,852,403 1,893,887 
Utility franchise tax 5,072,555 (297,874) 4,774,681 5,016,756 
Piped natural gas tax 623,720 (134,729) 488,991 631,875 
Video franchise fee 2,342,051 110,859 2,452,910 2,636,167 
Beer and wine lax 845,076 57,391 902,467 915,803 
County - other 213,480 13,303 226,783 222,850 
Local - public safety 298,740 2,036 300,776 290,782 
Local - other 91,296 (18,321) 72,975 106,225 

Total unrestricted intergovemmental 44,189,309 166,319 44,355,628 43,347,718 

Restricted intergovernmental 
Federal - public safety 454,909 175,353 630,262 758,297 
Federal - other 279,725 2,104,408 2,384,133 142,452 
Powell Bill allocation 5,061,811 249,735 5,311,546 5,182,743 
State - other 70,164 (29,871) 40,293 57,603 
Stale - public safety 72,000 40,048 112,048 101,756 
Solid waste disposal tax 134,662 7,555 142,217 140,923 
County recreation 3,494,431 (106,655) 3,387,776 3,430,794 
County - other 131,708 (13,457) 118,251 87,000 
Local - olher 98,608 (38,942) 59,666 198,333 

Total restricted intergovernmental 9,798,018 2,388,174 12,186,192 10,099,901 

Permits and fees 

Sales and services 
Property leases 
Engineering/planning services 
Public safety services 
Environmental services 
Recreation and cultural services 
Parking revenues 
Other fees and services 

Total sales and services 

2,967,105 (209,950) 2,757,155 2,824,584 

736,229 
418,133 

1,073,370 
154,075 

1,265,951 
150,500 

81,174 

186,350 
89,450 
46,638 

56 
148,015 

43,147 
31,666 

922,579 413,215 
507,583 525,201 

1,120,008 1,047,405 
154,131 59,200 

1,413,966 1,249,691 
193,647 186,607 
112,840 80,577 

3,879,432 545,322 4,424,754 3,561,896 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE. NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual - General Fund 


Year Ended June 30, 2012 

With Comparative Actual Statements for the Yea r Ended June 30, 2011 


Variance 
Positive 2012 2011 

Budget (Nesativel Actual Actual 
Revenues (contin ued) 

MlscelJaneous 
Refunds and sundry $ 726.652 $ 36.362 $ 763.014 $ 693.645 
Indirect cost allocation 1. 160.528 (60.470) 1.100.058 1.152.696 
Special use assessment 185.000 (81.366) 103.634 211.959 

Total miscellaneous 2.072,1 80 (105.474) 1,966,706 2.058.300 

Interest earned on investments 364.734 (76.320) 288.414 413.630 

Total revenues 

Expenditures 
Curre nt 

Administration 
Legislative 

Salaries and employee benefits 
Other operating expenditures 

C ity attorney 
Salaries and employee benefits 
Other opera ting expenditures 

Executive 
Salaries and employee benelils 
Other operating expenditures 

Human resources development 
Salaries and employee benefits 
Other operating expendilures 
Capital outlay 

Management services 
Salaries and employee benefits 
Other operating expenditures 
Capital outlay 
Inventory 
COS! redistribution 

Information technology 
Salaries and employee benefits 
Other operating expenditures 
Capital outlay 

Human re lations 
Salaries and employee benefits 
Other operating expenditures 
Payme nts to agencies 

127.064.287 3.171 .08 3 

304,216 22.550 
456.129 74,657 
760.345 97.207 

549.974 1 
511.054 8.790 

1.061.028 8,79 1 

1.300.427 10,357 
150.004 55.774 

1,450.431 66.13 1 

960.992 1.492 
380.548 49.928 

1.341,540 51.420 

S09.852 3.885 
243.37 1 81.732 
49.390 49.390 

125.900 18.893 
(162.500) 2.206 
766.0 13 156.106 

1.348.606 50. 166 
1.465,023 298,629 

104.645 27.1 13 
2.918.274 375.908 

226.350 2,060 
53.005 30.910 

2.389 
281.744 32.970 
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130.235.370 

281.666 
38 1.472 
663.138 

549.973 
50 2.264 

1.052,237 

1.290,070 
94.230 

1. 384.300 

959.500 
330,620 

1.290,1 20 

505.967 
161.639 

107.007 
(164.706) 
609.907 

1.298.440 
1.1 66.394 

77.532 
2.542,366 

224.290 
22.095 

2.389 
248.774 

124 .132.892 

276,927 
195.205 
472.132 

506.41 5 
486.203 
992.618 

1.062,967 
63.690 

1,126,657 

875.086 
200.120 

SO.OOO 
1.125.206 

467,724 
164 .3 17 

97,787 
(176.957) 
552,871 

1.246.297 
1.347.138 

212.926 
13.296 

2.302 
228.524 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual - General Fund 


Year Ended June 30, 2012 

With Comparative Actual Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2011 


Expenditures (continued) 
Current (continued) 

Administration (continued) 
Finance 

Salaries and employee benefits 
Other operating expenditures 

$ 

Budget 

1,192,965 
1,346,314 
2,539,279 

$ 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative} 

14,038 
147,593 
161,631 

$ 

2012 
Actual 

1,178,927 
1,198,721 
2,377,648 

$ 

2011 
Actual 

1,221,445 
1,191,946 
2.413,391 

General government 
Salaries and employee benefits 
Other operating expenditures 
Capital outlay 
Inventory 
Payments to agencies 
Cost redistribuUon 

62,203 
10,627,462 

27,850 
2,297.700 

307,375 
(2.404.700) 
10,917,890 

2,248 
496.457 

1 
56.119 

(54,668) 
500,157 

59,955 
10,131,005 

27,849 
2.241,581 

307,375 
(2,350,032) 
10,417,733 

69,034 
10,068,577 

1,649,835 
376,500 

(1.758,000) 
10.405,946 

Public buildings 
Salaries and employee benefits 
Other operating expenditures 
Capital outlay 

760,930 
1,122,600 

52,279 
1,935,809 

257 
239,616 

13,332 
253,205 

760,673 
882,984 

38,947 
1,682,604 

672,384 
897,442 

1,569,826 

Project management 
Salaries and employee benefits 
Other operating expenditures 

200,304 
12,147 

212,451 

165 
1,867 
2,032 

200,139 
10,280 

210,419 

177,536 
6,544 

184,080 

Total Administration 24,184,804 1,705,558 22,479,246 21,897,819 

Public Safety 
Police 

Salaries and employee benefits 
Other operating expenditures 
Capital outlay 
Payments to agencies 
Cost redistribution 

34,508.768 
6.466,188 
1,716,794 

3,000 
(7.487) 

42,687,263 

355,226 
975,096 
117,113 

(1,363) 
1,446,072 

34,153,542 
5.491,092 
1,599,681 

3,000 
(6,124) 

41,241,191 

33,576.420 
5,179,274 
2,222.444 

3,000 
(10,182) 

40,970,956 

Fire 
Salaries and employee benefits 
Other operating expenditures 
Capital outlay 
Cost redistribution 

19,305,206 
3,196,973 
1.434,600 

(75,000) 
23,861,779 

84,303 
322,350 

47.432 

454,085 

19,220,903 
2,874,623 
1,387,168 

(75,000) 
23.407,694 

18,868,359 
2,628,743 
1,251,057 

(75,000) 
22,673,159 

Inspections 
Salaries and employee benefits 
Other operating expenditures 
Capital outlay 

2,139,960 
794,041 

2,934,001 

26,327 
406,577 

432,904 

2,113,633 
387.464 

2,501,097 

2,053,685 
562,051 

6,966 
2,622,702 

Total public safety 69,483,043 2,333,061 67,149,982 66,266,817 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual - General Fund 


Year Ended June 30, 2012 

With Comparative Actual Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2011 


Variance 
Positive 2012 2011 

Budget ~Nesative) Actual Actual 

Expenditures (continued) 
Current (continued) 

Environmental protection 
Environmental services 

Salaries and employee benefits 
Other operating expenditures 
Capital outlay 
Cost redistribution 

$ 3,867.593 
2.813.928 
2.106.792 

(45.962) 
8.742.351 

$ 85.140 
306.763 
466.722 

(J) 
858.622 

$ 3.782.453 
2,507 .165 
1.640.070 

(45.959) 
7.883.729 

$ 3.962.705 
4.860.497 

714.701 
(J0.791) 

9.507.112 

Cemeteries 
Salaries and employee benefits 
Other operating expenditures 
Capitaloullay 

102.978 
25,100 

145.680 
273.758 

146 
7,762 
7.303 

15.211 

102.832 
17.338 

138.377 
258.547 

100.039 
18.420 

118.459 

Urban forestry 
Salaries and employee benefits 
Other operaling expenditures 

134.253 
15.925 

150.178 

11 2 
2,004 
2,116 

134.141 
13.921 

148.062 

119.366 
11.239 

130.605 

Street sweeping 
Salaries and employee benefits 
Olher operating expenditures 

364 .190 
479.524 
843.714 

14.952 
153.466 
168.418 

349,238 
326,058 
675.296 

367.126 
405,152 
772.278 

Total environmental protection 10,010,001 1,044,367 8,965,634 10,5281454 

Transportation 
Streets 

Salaries and employee benefits 
Other operating expenditures 
Capital outlay 

2.647.433 
2,270.910 

619.916 
5.538.259 

52.107 
335.948 
307 .318 
695.373 

2.595.326 
1,934,962 

312.598 
4.842.886 

2,610.556 
1.990.773 

365.638 
4.966.967 

Engineering 
Salaries and employee benefits 
Other operating expenditures 
Capital outlay 

1.229.768 
591.798 

14 .900 
1.836.466 

1.630 
321 .681 

6.301 
329.612 

1.228.138 
270.117 

1.142 .045 
94.256 

122 
1.236.423 

Parking 
Other operating expenditures 391.866 25.997 365.869 317.447 

Total transportation 7,766,591 11°50,982 6,715,609 6,520,837 

Economic and physical development 
Central business district 

Other operating expenditures 
Capital outlay 
Cost redistribution 

84.508 
6,474 

28.340 
119.322 

15.001 

20 
15.021 

69.507 
6.474 

28.320 
104.301 

69.496 

30.624 
100.120 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual · General Fund 


Year Ended June 30, 2012 

With Comparative Actual Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2011 


Expenditures (continued) 
Current (continued) 

Economic and physical development (continued) 
Community development 

Salaries and employee benefits 
Other operating expenditures 
Cost redistnbution 

S 

Budset 

180.339 
741,578 
(28.340) 
893.577 

$ 

Variance 
Positive 
~Ne9ative~ 

1.200 
431.663 

(20) 
432.843 

$ 

2012 
Actual 

179.139 
309.915 
(28.320) 
460.734 

$ 

2011 
Actual 

142.695 
1.077.014 

pO.624) 
1.189.085 

Planning and development 
Salaries and employee benefits 
Other operating expenditures 
Capital oul/ay 
Payments to agencies 

658.887 
405.126 

10.300 
1.074.313 

9.189 
192.506 

8.834 
210.529 

649,698 
212.620 

1.466 
863.784 

574.053 
319.578 

5.670 
901 

900.202 

Lake Valley Drive MSD 
Other operating expenditures 3.900 3.900 500.000 

Total economic and physical development 2,091,112 662,293 1,428,819 2,689,407 

Recreation and community facilities 
Parks and recreation 

Salaries and employee benefits 
Other operating expenditures 
Capital outlay 

7.193.817 
5.126.705 
1.147.996 

13.468.518 

12.071 
764.727 
235.749 

1.012.547 

7,161 .746 
4.361.978 

912.247 
12.455.971 

7,055.149 
3.939.208 

484,792 
11.479.149 

Total recreation and community facilities 13,468,518 1,012,547 12,455,971 11.479.149 

Debt service 
Principal 6. 269.585 512.604 5.756.981 4.734 .677 
Interest 1.221.207 93.820 1.127.387 1.156.975 

Total debt service 7.490,792 606,424 6,flfl4z368 5,fl91,652 

Total expenditures 134.494,861 8.415.232 126.079.629 125.274.135 


Revenues over (under) expenditures (7.430.574) 11.586.315 4,155.741 p.141 .243) 


Other financing sources (uses) 
Sale of capital assets 230.000 126.285 356.285 296.816 
Appropriated fund balance 8.619,933 (8 .619.933) 
Transfers in 10.262.145 (14 .247) 10.247,898 12.339.363 
Transfers (out) (11 .681.504) 110.037 (11.571.467) (9.376.123) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 7.430.574 (8.397.858) (967.284) 3.260.056 

Revenues and other financing sources 
(uses) over (under) expenditures $ $ 3.188,457 3.188.457 2.118.813 

Fund balance 

Beginning of year - Jury 1 

End of year - June 30 S 

48.707.391 

51.895.848 S 

46.588.578 

48,707.391 
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Nonmajor 
Governmental Funds 



CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Combining Balance Sheet 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 


Ju ne 30, 2012 


Assets 
Cash and investments 
Accounts receivable 
Interfund receivable 
Prepaid expenses 
Restricted cash and investments 
Restricted accounts receivable 

Total assets 

Liabilit ies and fund balances 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Interfund payables 
Deferred revenues 
Restricted accounts payable and accrued expenses 

Tolal liabilities 

Special 
Revenue 

Funds 

Capital 
Project 
Funds 

$ 

$ 

$ 

744,750 
9,518,388 

27 
933,11 2 

629 
11 ,196.906 

$ 

$ 

10,424,138 
1,118,316 

279, 102 

3,690.161 
2.162 

15.513,879 

236,669 
279,102 

9,065,496 
25.615 

9.606,882 

$ 1,409,453 

2,168,400 
875,015 

4,452,868 

Total Nonmajor 

Governmental 


Funds 


$ 11 ,168,888 
10,636,704 

279,102 
27 

4,623.273 
2,791 

$ 26,710,785 

$ 1,646,122 
279,102 

11 .233,896 

Fund balances: 
Restricted 

Stabilization by State Statute 
Downtown 
Public safety 
Economic and physical development 
Recreation and community facilities 

Committed 
Administration 
Public safety 
Transportation 
Economic and physica l development 
Recreation a nd community facilities 

Unassigned 

Total fund balances 


Total liabilities and fun d balances 

1,193,627 

1,238,032 

20 

213,492 
(1,055,147) 
1,590.024 

$ 11 ,196,906 

5,118,399 
208,299 
112,150 
311,486 

79,368 
136,180 

2,979,511 
493,187 

1,622,431 

11 .061 ,011 

$ 15,513,879 

6,312,026 
208,299 

1,350, 182 
311,486 

20 

79,368 
136,180 

2,979,511 
493,187 

1,835.923 
(1,055,147) 
12.651,035 

$ 26,710,785 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 


Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Revenues 
Other taxes and fees 
Restricted intergovemmental 
Miscellaneous 
Interest earned on investments 

Total revenues 

$ 

Special 
Revenue 

Funds 

637,221 
4,850,743 
2,275,142 

7,259 
7,770,365 

$ 

Capital 
Project 
Funds 

2,837,342 
12,788 
11,792 

2,861,922 

Total Nonmajor 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 637,221 
7,688,085 
2,287 ,930 

19,051 
10,632,287 

Expenditures 
Current 

Admin istration 
Public safety 
Transportation 
Economic and physical development 
Planning and development 
Recreation and community facilities 

Debt service: 
Principal 
Interest 

Total expenditures 
Excess (deficiency) of reve nueS 

over (under) expenditures 

2,403,338 

3,333, 344 
178,653 
257,612 

1,215,000 
273,197 

7,661,144 

109,221 

1,410,022 
1,652,358 
4,307,048 
5,658,862 

1,667 ,593 

158,553 
14,854 ,436 

(11,992 ,514) 

1,410,022 
4,055,696 
4,307 ,048 
8,992,206 

178,653 
1,925,205 

1,215,000 
431,750 

22,515,580 

(11,883,293) 

Other financing sources (uses) 

Sale of capital assets 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (u ses) 

7,095 
299,543 
(1 4,898) 
291,740 

6,649,775 
(28,400) 

6,621,375 

7,095 
6,949,318 

(43,298) 
6,913,115 

Net change in fund balances 400,961 (5,37 1,139) (4,970,178) 

Fund balance - beginning 1,189,063 16,432,150 17,621 ,213 

Fund balance - ending $ 1,590,024 $ 11,061,011 $ 12,651,035 
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Special 
Revenue Funds 

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of 
specific revenue sources or to finance specific activities as required 
by law or administrative regulation. 

The following comprise the City's Special Revenue Funds: 

• Emergency Telephone System Fund 

• Federal and State Financial Assistance Fund 

• City of Fayetteville Finance Corporation 

• Linear Park Fund 

All Special Revenue Funds are accounted for on the modified 
accrual basis of accounting. 



CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE. NORTH CAROLINA 

Combining Balance Sheet 

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 


June 30, 2012 


Emergency 
Telephone 

System 
Fund 

Federal 
and State 
Finan cia l 

Assis tance 
Fund 

City of 
Fayetteville 

Finance 
Corp 
Fund 

Linear 
Park 
Fund 

Total Nonmajor 
Special Revenue 

Funds 

Assets 
Cash and investments 
Accounts receivable 
Prepaid expenses 
Restricted cash and investments 
Reslricted accounls receivable 

Total assets 

$ 

$ 

529,541 
53,463 

583,004 

$ 

$ 

9,4 61 .862 
27 

931, 394 
629 

10.393.912 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

215,209 
3,063 

1,718 

219,990 

$ 744,750 
9,518,388 

27 
933,112 

629 
$ 11.1 96.906 

Liabilities and fund balances 
liabilities. 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Interfund payables 
Deferred revenues 
Restri cted accounts payable and accrued expenses 

Totalliabilihes 

Fund balances 
Restricted 


Stabilization by State Statute 

Public safety 

Recreation and community faCilities 


Committed 
Recreation and community facilities 


Assigned 

Unassigned 


Total fund balances 

Tota lliabililies and fund balances 

$ 56,691 

56.691 

53,463 
472.850 

526,313 

$ 583,004 

$ 179,978 $ 
279.102 

9,063,778 
25,615 

9,548.473 

1,135,384 
765.182 

20 

1',055,1471 
845.439 

$ 10,393,912 $ 

$ 

1,718 

1.718 

$ 236,669 
279,102 

9,065.496 
25,615 

9,606,882 

4,760 1,193,627 
1,238,032 

20 

213,492 213,492 

218,272 
1' ,055, 1471 
1,590,024 

$ 219,990 S 11.196.906 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH GAROLINA 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 


Year Ended June 30, 2012 


Revenues 
Other taxes and fees 
Restricted intergovernmental 
Miscellaneous 
Interest earned on investments 

Total revenues 

Expenditures 
Current: 

Public safety 
Economic and physical development 
Planning and development 
Recreation and community facilities 

Debt Service: 

Principal 

Interest 


Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Sale of capital assets 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balance - beginning 

Fund balance - ending 

Emergency 

Telephone 


System 

Fund 


$ 637,221 

2,275 
639,496 

620,409 

620,409 

19,087 

19,087 

507,226 

$ 526,313 

Federal 
and State 
Financial 

Assistance 
Fund 

$ 
4,833,152 

693,056 
4,249 

5,530,457 

1,782,929 
3,330,084 

178,653 
122,085 

75,000 
2,947 

5,491,698 

38,759 

7,095 
299,543 
(14,898) 
291,740 

330,499 

514,940 

$ 845,439 

City of 
Fayetteville 


Finance 

Corp 

Fund 


$ 

1,413,492 
18 

1,413,510 

3,260 

1,140,000 
270,250 

1,413,510 

$ 

Linear Park 

Fund 


$ 
17,591 

168,594 
717 

186,902 

135,527 

135,527 

51,375 

51,375 

166,897 

$ 218,272 

Total Nonmajor 
Special 

Revenue 

Funds 


$ 637,221 
4,850,743 
2,275,142 

7,259 
7,770,365 

2,403,338 
3,333,344 

178,653 
257,612 

1,215,000 
273,197 

7,661,144 

109,221 

7,095 
299,543 
(14,898) 
291,740 

400,961 

1,189,063 

$ 1,590,024 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

Emergency Telephone System Fund 


Year Ended June 30, 2012 

(With Com~arative Actual Amounts For Year Ended June 30, 2011) 


Variance 
Positive 2012 2011 

Budget (Negative) Actual Actual 

Revenues 
Other fees $ 637,221 $ $ 637,221 $ 1,060,306 

Interest earned on investments 3,275 (1 ,000) 2,275 3,062 

Total revenues 640,496 (1,000) 639,496 1,063,368 

Expenditures 
Current 

Public safety 
Other operating expenditures 1,005,827 429,283 576,544 612,775 
Capilal outlay 427,023 
COSl redistribution 7,487 1,363 6,124 10,182 
S.l. 2010-158 Expenditures 38, 255 514 37,741 181 ,403 

Total public safety 1,051,569 431,160 620,409 1,231,383 

Total expenditures 1,051,569 431 ,160 620.409 1,231,383 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (411,073) 430,160 19,087 (168,015) 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Approprialed fund balance 411 ,073 (411 ,073) 
Transfers in 972 

Total other financing sources (uses) 411,073 (411,073) 972 

Revenues and other financing sources 
(uses) over (under) expenditures $ $ 19,087 19,087 (167,043) 

Fund balance 
Beginning of year - July 1 

End of year - June 30 $ 

507,226 

526,313 $ 

674,269 

507,226 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenue s, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

Budget and Actual. Federal and State Financial Assistance Fund 


From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2012 


Project 
Authorization 

Prior 
Years 

Closed 
Projects 

Current 
Year Total 

Revenues 
Restricted intergovernmental 

Federal grants 
State grants 
County 

Tota l restricte d intergovernmental 

$ 22,140,855 
1,651 ,612 

49,304 
23,841 ,771 

$ 14,476,024 
1,554,838 

8,560 
16,039,422 

$ 213.663 
282,485 

2,129 
498,277 

$ 4,428,603 
390,657 

13,892 
4,833, 152 

$ 18,690,964 
1,663,010 

20,323 
20,374, 297 

Miscellaneous 4,389,852 3,585,603 61,751 693,056 4,216,908 

Interest eamed on investments 81 ,869 89,613 4,249 93.862 

Tota l revenues 28,31 3,492 19.714,638 560,028 5.530,457 24 ,685,067 

Expenditures 
Current 

Public safety 
Economic and physical development 
Planning and development 
Recreation and community faci lities 

Total cu rrent 

7,445,44 5 
20,859,688 

200,000 
595,746 

29,100,879 

4,606.451 
14,961,597 

272,231 
19,840,279 

561,712 

31,823 
593,535 

1,782,929 
3,330,084 

178,653 
122,085 

5,413,751 

5, 827.668 
18,291,681 

178,653 
362,493 

24,660,4 95 

Debt service 
Total expenditures 

233,327 
29,334,206 

155,347 
19,995,626 593,535 

77,947 
5,491,698 

233,294 
24,893,789 

Revenue s over (under) 
expenditures p,020,714) (280,988) (33,507) 38,759 (208,722) 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Sale of capital assets 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

89 ,188 
1,110,463 
(178,937) 

1,020,714 

89,187 
876,413 

(169,672) 
795,928 

39,507 
(6,000) 
33,507 

7,095 
299,543 
P4,898) 
291,740 

96,282 
1,136,449 
(178,570) 

1,054,161 

Revenues and other financing 
sources (uses) over (under) 
expenditures $ $ 514,940 $ 330,499 $ 845,439 

Fund balance 
Beginning of year - July 1 

End or year - June 30 $ 

514 ,940 

845,439 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Expenditures by Project 

Budget and Actual· Federal and State Financial Assistance Fund 


From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Project Prior Closed Current 
Authorization Years Projects Year Total 

Expenditures by project: 

Public safety 
Federal and Stale Forfeiture $ 2,223,519 $ 1,417,91 4 $ $ 461,643 $ 1,879,557 
PSN Anti·Gang; Operation Cease fire 60,101 45,529 13,281 58,810 
PSN Task Force 4,162 2,446 2,446 
Domestic Violence Training 2011 17,224 4,614 4,614 
Multi Disciplinary Tearn Training 2011 18,852 
PSN Law Enforcement Consortium 15,492 13,680 13,680 
PSN Media Blitz 23,000 19,889 19,889 
Gangs across the Carolinas 62,069 51,669 51,669 56,293 56,293 
Juvenile Restitution 262,504 152,830 74,527 59,895 138,204 
Sobriety Court Grant 95,419 78,243 78,243 
Cumberland County STARS Drug Treatment Court 265,285 60,848 60,848 
Justice Assistance Grant 698,459 545,174 84,992 198,047 658,229 
COPS Technology Grant 150,000 142,800 142,800 
FY08 Hazmat Equipment 205,714 205,714 
FY09 Hazmat Equipment 135,714 113,283 22,431 135,71 4 
FY10 Hazmal Equipment 51,429 
FY11 Hazma! Equipment and Training 25,000 
FY08 FEMA Firefighter Operations and Safety Grant 144,810 144,810 
FY10 FEMA Defibrillators Grant 100,000 89,224 10,776 100,000 
COPS Hiring Recovery Program (ARRA) 2,528,240 1,011,245 782 ,374 1,793,619 
Justice Assistance Grant (ARRA) 708,976 666,304 18,358 684,722 

Total public safety 7.445.445 4,606,451 561,712 1.782,929 5,827,668 

Economic and physical development 
Community Development Block Grant 11,628,029 8,313,270 1,600,210 9,913,480 
NC Rural Economic Development 47,335 47,320 47,320 
Community Garden 28,261 25,247 25,247 
HOME 7.945.831 5,620,791 1,702,255 7,323,046 
CDSG-R (ARRA) 385,584 375,584 10,000 385,584 
Homeless Preventi on (ARRA) 589,648 579,385 10,262 589,647 
Washington SI School Site Project 235,000 7,357 7,357 

Total economic and 
physical development 20,859,688 14,961 ,597 3,330,084 18,291,681 

Recreation and community facilities 
Wayfinding signage 500,586 188,609 91,927 280,536 
Cultural arts program 38,520 28,468 6,852 35,320 
2010-2011 Take Me Fishing 5,000 5,000 
National Recreation & Parks Association 10,000 
Badges for Baseball 2010 26,823 26,823 
Badges for Baseball 2011 23,331 23,33 1 23,331 
Badges for Baseball 2012 23,309 23,306 23,306 

Total recreation and community facilities 595,746 272,231 31,823 122,085 302,493 

Planning and development 
Bragg Blvd Corridor Plan 200,000 178,653 178,653 

Total planning and development 200,000 178,653 178,653 

Total expenditures by project $ 29, 100,879 $ 19,840,279 $ 593,535 $ 5,413,751 $ 24,660,495 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

City of Fayetteville Finance Corporation Fund 


Year Ended June 30, 2012 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts For Year Ended June 30, 2011) 


Variance 
Positive 2012 2011 

Budset (Negative) Actual Actual 

Revenues 
Miscellaneous 

Property leases $ 1,414,250 $ (758) $ 1,413,492 $ 1,449,979 
Total miscellaneous 1,41 4,250 (758) 1,413,492 1,449,979 

Interest earned on investments 18 18 31 

Total revenues 1,414,250 (740) 1,4 13,510 1,450,010 

Expenditures 
Current 

Economic and physical development 
Other operating expenditures 4,000 740 3,260 3,760 

Debt service 
Principal 
Interest 

Total debt service 

1,140,000 
270,250 

1,410,250 

1,140,000 
270,250 

1,410,250 

1,120,000 
326,250 

1,446,250 

Total expenditures 1,414,250 740 1,4 13,510 1,450,010 

Revenues over (under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 

Total financing sources (uses) 

Revenues and other financing sources 
(uses) over (under) expenditures $ $ 

Fund balance 
Beginning of year - July 1 

End of year - June 30 $ $ 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

Budget and Actual ~ Linear Park Fund 


From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Project 
Authorization 

Prior 
Years 

Closed 
Projects 

Current 
Year Total 

Revenues 
Restricted intergovernmental 

County grants and contributions 
Total restricted intergovernmental 

$ 130,000 
130,000 

$ 110,691 
110,691 

$ $ 17,591 
17,591 

$ 128,282 
128,282 

Miscellaneous 
Other (donations) 

Total miscellaneous 
1,500,654 
1,500,654 

1,500,654 
1,500,654 

168,594 
168,594 

1,669,248 
1,669,248 

Interest earned on investments 42,905 44,932 717 45,649 

Total revenues 1,673,559 1,656,277 186,902 1,643,179 

Expenditures 
Current 

Recreational and community facilities 
Linear Park 

Total expenditures 
1.723,738 
1,723.738 

1,539,559 
1,539,559 

135,527 
135,527 

1,675,086 
1,675,086 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (50,179) 116,718 51,375 168,093 

Other finanCing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 

Total other financing sources (uses) 
50,179 
50,179 

50, 179 
50,179 

SO,179 
50,179 

Revenues and other financing sources 
(uses) over (under) expenditures $ $ 166,897 $ 51,375 $ 218,272 

Fund balance 

Beginning of year - July 1 166,897 

End of year - June 30 $ 218,272 
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Capital 
Project Funds 

Capital Project Funds account for all resources used for the 
acquisition and construction of major capital facilities other than 
those financed by the Proprietary Funds. 

The following comprise the City's Nonmajor Capital Project Funds: 

• General Government Fund 

• Public Safety Fund 

• Transportation Fund 

• Bond Improvement Fund 

• Economic and Physical Development Fund 

• Recreational and Cultural Fund 

All Capital Project Funds are accounted for on the modified accrual 
basis of accounting. 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Combining Balance Sheet 

Nonmajor Capital Project Funds 


June 30, 201 2 


General 
Government 

Fund 

Public 
Safety 
Fund 

Transportation 
Fund 

Bond 
Improvement 

Fund 

Economic and 
Physical 

Deve lopment 
Fund 

Recreati onal 
and Cultural 

Fund 

Total Nonmajor 
Capital Project 

Funds 

Assets 
Cash and investments $ 948.960 $ 136.179 $ 5.368.744 $ $ 1.725,115 $ 2.245,140 $ 10.424.138 
Accoun ts (eceivable 267.576 37,398 337.671 382.477 93. 194 1.118.316 
tnte riund receivable 279.102 279. 102 
Restricted cas h and in vest ments 117, 389 208,299 656. 377 2,708.096 3.690.161 
Restricted accoun ts receivable 147 2.01 5 2. 162 

Total assets $ 1.216.536 S 290.966 $ 6,193,963 $ $ 2,763,969 $ 5.048.445 $ 15.513. 879 

Liabilities and fund balances 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 218.049 $ $ 511.891 $ $ 642,827 $ 36.686 $ 1.409.453 
Oeferred revenues 2.168,400 2.168,400 
Restricted accounts payable and accrued expenses 333.304 541.711 875.015 

Total liabilities 218,049 511.891 976.131 2.746.797 4,452.868 

Fund balances: 
Restricted 

Stabilization by Stale Statute 919.119 42,636 2.494.262 983.165 679. 217 5. 118,399 
Downtown 208,299 208,299 
Public safety 11 2,150 112.150 
Economic and physical development 311,486 311 .486 

Committed 
Adm ini stration 79,368 79,368 
PubliC safety 136.180 136.180 
Transportation 2.979.5 11 2.979.511 
Eco nom ic and physica l deve lopment 49 3.187 493,187 
Recreation and co mmunity facilities 1.622.431 1.622 ,4 31 

Total fu nd balan ces 998.487 290,966 5,682.072 1,787.838 2,301.648 11.061,011 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 1.216.536 $ 290,966 $ 6.193.963 $ $ 2.763.969 $ 5.048,445 $ 15.513.879 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Combining Statement of R.evenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balances 

Nonmajor Capital Project Funds 


Year Ended June 30, 2012 


Revenues 
Restricted intergovernmental 
Miscellaneous 
Inlerest earned in investments 

Total revenues 

General 
Government 

Fund 

$ 593,228 

593.228 

$ 

Public 
Safety 
Fund 

400 
529 
929 

Tran sportation 
Fund 

$ 130,987 
2 

1.089 
132,078 

Bond 
Improvement 

Fund 

$ 

Economic and 
Physical 

Development 
Fund 

$ 845,338 

4.347 
84 9.685 

Recreational 
and Cultural 

Fund 

$ 1, 267.789 
12.386 
5.827 

1,286.002 

Total NonmaJor 
Capital Project 

Funds 

$ 2.837.34 2 
12.788 
11 .792 

2.861 .922 

Expenditures 
Administration 
Public sarety 
Transportation 
Economic and physical development 
Recreation al and community facilities 

Debt service: 
Interest 

Total expenditures 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over (under) expenditures 

1. 410.022 

1,410.022 

(816.794) 

1.652.358 

1,652.358 

(1.651.429) 

4.307.048 

4.307.048 

(4.174 .970) 

5.658.862 

158.553 
5.817.415 

(4.967.730) 

1.667.593 

1.667.593 

(38 1.591) 

1.410,022 
1.652.358 
4.307.048 
5.658.862 
1.667.593 

158.553 
14.854.436 

(11 .992.514) 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 
Tran sfers out 

Tolal other financing sources (uses) 
Net change In fund balances 

1.192.310 

1.192.3 10 
375,516 

14.898 

14 .898 
(1 .636,531) 

5.375.567 
(28.400) 

5.347.1 67 
1.1 72.1 97 (4.967.730) 

67.000 

67 .000 
(314 .59 1) 

6.649.775 
(28.400) 

6.621.375 
(5.371.139) 

Fund balance - beginning 622.971 1.927.4 97 4.509.875 6 .755.568 2.61 6,239 16. 432 .150 

Fund balance· ending $ 998.487 $ 290.966 $ 5.682.072 $ $ 1.787.838 $ 2.301.648 $ 11 .061.011 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVlLLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

Budget and Actual· General Government Fund 


From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2012 


Project 
Authorization 

Prior 
Years 

Closed 
Projects 

Current 
Year Total 

Revenues 
Restricted intergovernmental 

Federal grants $ 1,716.400 $ 345,557 $ $ 593,228 $ 938,785 

Expenditures 
Currenl 

Administration 
Clean Cities project 
Computer replacements 
Telephone system upgrade 
Planning software 
Integrated cashiering system 
Grove Slreel roof replacement 
Building projecls 
Par1<ing 101 projects 
CounCil chambers upgrade 
Ener9Y Efficiency Conservation Bloc\< Grant (ARRA) 

Total expenditures 

385,491 
1,143,262 

123,440 
51,700 

106,180 
60,500 

1,031,085 
206,000 
158,453 

1.645,400 
4,911,511 

192,491 
394,240 
111 ,409 
18,261 
71 ,543 
50,773 

202,750 
138,911 
158,452 
286,557 

1,625,387 

85,756 
411 ,858 

11,834 
33.439 
22,496 

257.411 

587,228 
1.410,022 

278,247 
806,098 
123,243 

51 ,700 
94 ,039 
50,773 

460,161 
138,911 
158,452 
87 3,785 

3,035.409 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (3,195,111 ) 11 ,279,830) 181 6 ,794) (2, 096,624) 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 
Transfer out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

3,202,611 
17,500) 

3,195,111 

1.910,301 
(7 ,500) 

1,902,801 

1,192,310 

1,192,310 

3,102,611 
17,500) 

3,095,111 

Revenues and other financing sources 
(uses) over (under) expenditures $ $ 622,971 $ 375,516 $ 998,487 

Fund balance 

Beginning of year - July 1 622,971 

End of year· June 30 $ 998,487 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

Budget and Actual· Public Safety Fund 


From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2012 


Project 
Authorization 

Prio r 
Years 

Closed 
Projects 

Current 
Year Total 

Revenues 
Restricted intergovernmental 

Siale grants and contributions $ $ 400.000 $ 400.000 $ $ 

Miscellaneous 400 400 

Interest earned on investments 85.000 9,159 529 76,370 

Total revenues 485,000 409,159 929 76,770 

Expenditures 
Current 

Public Safety 
Fire station #1 5 
Police department server upgrade 
Fire slation #12 
Fire training lower 
Fire station #19 
Police department CAD and RMS 
Police department 800mhz radios 

Total expenditures 

2.564,4 10 
208.000 
125,000 

2,692,000 
3.209,917 
3.600,000 

12.399,327 

2,532,054 
184,9 10 

500,000 
1.328.615 
2,757.753 
3.169.870 

10.473.202 

500,000 

500,000 

1.000 

1,274.785 
376.573 

1,652.358 

2.532.054 
185,910 

2.603.400 
3.134,326 
3.169,870 

11.625.560 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (12,399.327) (9.988.202) (90.841) 11.651.429) (11.548.790) 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Issuance of debt 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

11.031.386 
3,748.381 

(2.380,440) 
12.399.327 

10.571 .023 
3.725,116 

(2.380.440) 
11.915,699 

90.841 

90.841 

14.898 

14.898 

10.571 .023 
3.649.173 

(2 .380,440) 
11 .839,756 

Revenues and other financing sources 
(uses) over (under) expenditures $ $ 1.927.497 $ (1, 636.531) $ 290.966 

Fund balance 

Beginning of year - July 1 1,927.497 

End of year · June 30 $ 290,966 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

Budget and Actual - Transportation Fund 


From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2012 


Revenues 
Restri cted intergovernmental 

Federal grants 
State grants 

Total restricted intergovernmental 

Project 
Authorization 

$ 105,000 
570,710 
675,710 

$ 

Prior 
Years 

343,586 
343,586 

$ 

Closed 
Projects 

$ 

Current 
Year 

130,987 
130,987 

$ 

Total 

474 ,573 
474,573 

Mis celJaneous 
Owner contributions 
Other 

Total miscellaneous 

172,217 
15,204 

187,421 

172,217 
35,406 

207,623 
2 
2 

172,217 
35,408 

207,625 

Interest earned on investments 4,413 9,127 1,089 10.216 

Total revenues 867,544 560,336 132,078 692,414 

Expenditures 
Current 

Transportation 
Sidewalks 
Downtown railroad enhancements 
Transportation improvements 

Total expenditures 

2,002,321 
1,892,000 

10,657,341 
14,551,662 

567,944 

7,490,725 
8,058,669 

3,178,332 
3,178,332 

41 3,139 
105,242 

3,788,667 
4,307,048 

981,083 
105,242 

8,101,060 
9,187,385 

Revenues (over) under expenditures (13,684,118) (7,498,333) (3,178,332) (4,174,970) (8,494 ,971) 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 
Transfers oul 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

13,752,518 
(68,400) 

13,684,118 

12,048,208 
(40,000) 

12,008,208 

3,178,332 

3,178,332 

5,375,567 
(28,400) 

5,347,167 

14,245,443 
(68,400) 

14,177,043 

Revenues and other financing sources 
(uses) over (under) expenditures $ $ 4,509,875 $ 1,172,197 $ 5,682,072 

Fund balance 
Beginning of year· July 1 4,509,875 

End of year· June 30 $ 5,682,072 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

Budget and Actual - Bond Improvement Fund 


From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2012 


Project 
Authorization 

Prior 
Years 

Closed 
Projects 

Current 
Year Total 

Revenues 
Interest earned on investments $ 453.801 $ 452.782 $ $ $ 452.782 

Total revenues 453.801 452,782 452.782 

Expenditures 
Current 

Economic and physical development 
Bond administration 54,476 

54.476 
54.475 
54.475 

54.475 
54,475 

Transportation 
Streets 
Sidewalks 

2.971.410 
796,972 

3.768.382 

2.971.401 
796.971 

3.768.372 

2,971,401 
796.971 

3.768.372 

Environmental Protection 
Drainage 584.673 

584.673 
584.672 
584.672 

584 ,672 
584,672 

Public Safety 
FSU Fire Station 3.494 .187 

3.494.187 
3.494 .183 
3.494.183 

3.494,183 
3.494 .183 

Recreational and community facilities 
Cape Fear River Park 902 .239 

902,239 
897 .452 
897 .452 

897.452 
897 .452 

Debt service 
Total expenditures 

457,844 
9.261.801 

457.858 
9,257.012 

457.858 
9.257.012 

Revenues ovef (under) expenditures (8 .808.000) (8.804,230) (8.804.230) 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 
Issuance of debt 

Total other financing SOurces (uses) 

358,000 
8.450.000 
8.808.000 

354.230 
8,450,000 
8.804 .230 

354.230 
8.450.000 
8,804,230 

Revenues and other financing sources 
(uses) over (under) expenditures $ $ $ $ 

Fund balance 

Beginning of year· July 1 

End of year· June 30 $ 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVlllE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

Budget and Actual - Economic and Physical Development Fund 


From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2012 


Project 
Authorization 

Prior 
Years 

Closed 
Projects 

Current 
Year Total 

Revenues 
Restricted Intergovernmental 

Federal grants 
County 

Total restricted intergovernmental 

$ 1,251 ,150 
250.243 

1.501 ,393 

$ 405.709 
250.242 
655.951 

$ $ 845,338 

845.338 

$ 1,251,047 
250,242 

1.501.289 

Interest earned on investments 12.000 6,602 4.347 10,949 

Total revenues 1.513.393 662.553 849.685 1.512.238 

Expenditures 
Current 

Economic and physical development 
300 Block of Hay Street 
Texfr Project 
HOPEVI 
Downtown parking deck 
Military Business Park 
Festival Park Plaza 

Total economic and physical development 

1,857,475 
588.619 

6.526.000 
5,719,998 
1.251.1 50 
6.400.000 

22.343.242 

1,857,474 
519,334 

3,735,177 
2.000.926 

405.709 
6.243.324 

14,761 .944 

40.606 
1.202.970 
3.569.948 

845.338 

5.658.862 

1,857,474 
559.940 

4,938,147 
5,570,874 
1.251 .047 
6,243.324 

20.420.806 

Debt service 242.002 83.449 158,553 242.002 
Total expenditures 22,585,244 14,845.393 5,817.415 20.662.808 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (21 .071.851 1 (14 .182.8401 (4 .967.7301 (19.150.5701 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 
Sale of capilal assets 
Issuance of debt 

Total other financing sources {uses} 

8,487,851 
334.000 

12.250.000 
21 ,071 .851 

8.511 .976 
245,435 

12,180,997 
20.938,408 

8.511.976 
245,435 

12.180.997 
20.938.408 

Revenues and other financing sources 
(uses) over (under) expenditures $ $ 6.755.568 $ (4,967 .730) $ 1.787,838 

Fund balance 

Beginning of year - July 1 6.755.568 

End of year - June 30 $ 1,787.838 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

Budget and Actual - Recreational and Cultural Fund 


From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2012 


Project 
Authorization 

Prior 
Years 

Closed 
Projects 

Current 
Year Total 

Revenues 
Restricted intergovernmental 

Federal grants and contributions 
State granls and contributions 
Local 

Total restricted intergovernmental 

$ 275,000 
18.000,000 

529,202 
18.804.202 

$ 25.000 
14.254,812 

88.202 
14.368,014 

$ $ 
1.124.428 

143.361 
1.267,789 

$ 25.000 
15,379,240 

231.563 
15.635.803 

Miscellaneous 
Other 
Donations 

Total miscellaneous 
225,505 
225.505 

127,750 
228.590 
356.340 

11.406 
980 

12.386 

139.156 
229.570 
368.726 

Interest earned on investments 503.670 521,127 5.827 526.954 

Total revenues 19.533.377 15.245.481 1.286.002 16.531.483 

Expenditures 
Current 

Recreational and community facilities 
Disabled accessibility minibus 
Freedom Park 
NC State Veterans Park 
Western Area Neighborhood Park 
NC State Veterans Park #2 
Playground equipment and improvements 
Reid Ross track facility 
Joint use facilities with Cumberland County 
Cape Fear River Trail Phase 2 

65,000 
482.175 

2.397,000 
800.000 

14.050,000 
526,000 
176.404 
431 ,000 

2.614,345 

54.069 
473.736 

2,298.002 

11.151.115 
424,534 
174,346 

64.161 

4,949 
11.259 

143,361 
1,120.096 

45,707 

282,564 
59,657 

54.069 
478.685 

2.309.261 
143.361 

12,271,211 
470,241 
174,346 
282.564 
123.818 

Total expenditures 21 .541.924 14.639,963 1.667.593 16.307.556 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (2,008,547) 605.518 p81 .591) 223.927 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 
Issuance of debt 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

2,094.702 
(86,155) 

2.008.547 

2.094,520 
(86,155) 

2,356 
2.010,721 

67.000 

67,000 

2,161,520 
(86,155) 

2,356 
2,077.721 

Revenues and other financing sources 
(uses) over (under) expenditures $ $ 2.616,239 $ (314.591) $ 2.301.648 

Fund balance 

Beginning of year - July 1 2.616.239 

End of year - June 30 $ 2,301.648 
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Proprietary Funds 

• Enterprise Funds 

• Internal Service Funds 

The focus of Proprietary Fund measurement is upon determination 
of net income, financial position and cash flows. The accounting 
principles used here are generally accepted in the United States of 
America and are applicable to similar businesses in the private 
sector. 



Enterprise Funds 


Enterprise Funds account for operations that are either financed or 
operated in a similar manner to private businesses or for operations 
that the City has decided that periodic determination of net income 
is appropriate for capital maintenance, management control , 
accountability, public policy or other purposes. 

The following comprise the City's Enterprise Funds: 

• Electric Fund 

• Water and Wastewater Fund 

• Storm Water Management Fund 

• 	 Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 

- Transit Fund 


- Airport Fund 


- Solid Waste Recycling Fund 


All Enterprise Funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of 
accounting . 



CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Combining Balance Shee1 

Electric Fund 

June 30, 2012 

Asse!s 
CutTen! unresb1cled iSSe!s 

Cash and cash equivalenls 
Investmems 

R~lvables 

Imomal balances 
Less allOwanc.e for doubtful iIoCC01.Il""tIS 
Invemones 
Olher(Ulrenl usels 

Tohl curren! unrest ricted assels 

Erecbic 
Fund 

33.225.139 
31 .267.295 
25,531.8n 

'59.327 
(3W.921) 

12.829.124 
281 .114 

103.921.'49 

Ra!e 
S!abIIlUl!lon 

Fund 

S 

TCllal 

33.225.139 
31.267.295 
26.531.877 

169.327 
(389.921) 

l U!29,724 

281.1'4 
\03,921.149 

CutTenl restric ted assets 
Cash and cash equivalenU 
I~tmems 

Collateral pledged rn lieu of deposlls 
R~ivables 

Total CUtTent resb1t1ed a$Sets 

9.029.339 
13.164.900 

229.404 
49.631 

23.073.274 

38.280.631 
28.786.025 

79.232 
67.1~5.888 

47.309.970 
42.550.925 

229. ~04 

128.863 
90.219.162 

ToUI current assets 126.994.42"3 571~.888 19~ ,1~0.311 

Noncurrent assets 
Oll"ler assets 1.717.603 3.465.650 5.183.253 

Capn~1 assets: 
Land 

ConslNCoon in p!"oceS$ 
Elecrnc ut:~1y systems 
Bul ldin~ s 

EqUIpment and mac.tunery 
Complller programs 
100angotl ies 
VehiCles 
OffIce equipmem 

Capital nuts, nel 

5.320.450 
11)67.932 

177.838.495 
25.500,755 
8.086.25.5 

841.591 
2.185.896 
3.458.459 

100.033 
236.109.876 

5.320.460 
, 1.767.932 

In,838,495 
26.500.755 

8.086,255 
841.591 

2.185.896 
3.468.4 59 

100.033 
236.109,876 

Total noncurrent assets 237,827.419 3.455.650 2~1 ,293.129 

Totalassehi S 3(l.ol .821.902 S 10.611.538 S 435.433.440 

Liabilities ilnd net as.sels 
Current liabilities to be paid from unrestricted 

current assets 
Current portion of Ion9- terOl ll ab~lies 
Accounts payable and aC01.led expenses 

Totill currentllablUties 10 be paJd from 
unrestricted cU~llt a$Sets 

2.610.916 
14.159.688 

17.370.664 

S 2.610,976 
14,759.688 

11.370.664 

CurrenllJablUUes to be paid from 
re&tricted curren! ,assets 

Accounts payable and aCCnJed expense$ 
TOlal cummt lIabillt lts 10 be paid from 

restricted c urrem assets 

6,602.154 

6.602.1S4 

6.502.1S4 

6.602.154 

Total currellt liabilities 23.972.818 23.972.818 

Noncurrenlllabllliles 
Long·term liabllil)es 
Other IlaclIG\ies 
Unearned deposois 

TOlal noncun-ent liabilities 

12.697.205 
1.871.790 

61S 
\4 .569.810 

12.697,205 
1,871,790 

"S 
'4.569.610 

TOlalllabllJUes 36.542.628 3&.542.5213 

Net a$.$ets 
Invested in capotal a»ets. net of related debt 
ReslhCted lor -

Capotal PrOle<:" 
Debt service 

IJr"lre$LI"Icted nel assets 
Total nel us.ets 

TotalllabUltJe s and nel assets 

S 

222,262.214 

I. 
103.917.050 
326.219.274 

364,821.902 

10.6 11 .538 
70.811 .5313 

70.6 11.536 S 

222.362,214 

I. 
174.528.588 
396.890,812 

435.433.440 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets 

Electric Fund 


Year ended June 30, 2012 

Operating revenues 
Charges for selVices 

Total operating revenues 
$ 

Electric 
Fund 

197.656,327 
197,656.327 

$ 

Electric Rate 
Stabilization 

Fund 

$ 

Total 

197,656,327 
197,656.327 

Operating expenses 
Power supply and generation 
Eledric operation 
General and administrative 
Depreciation 

Total operating expenses 

103,619,819 
12,501 ,170 
13,509,839 
15.096,341 

144 ,727,169 

103.619,819 
12.501.170 
13.509,839 
15,096.341 

144 ,727,169 

O perating income 52.929,158 52,929,158 

Nonoperating revenue (expense) 
Interest earned on investments 
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets 
Interest expense 

Amortization 
Finance costs 

Total nonoperating revenue (expense) 

1,129.274 
(312,517) 
(698.847) 
(372, 570) 

(5.728) 
(260,388) 

353,725 

353.725 

1,482.999 
(312,517) 
(698,847) 
(372,570) 

(5.728) 
93,337 

Income before transfers 
and contributions 52,668,770 353,725 53,022,495 

Transfers in 
Transfers out 
Transfers in· City of Fayetteville 
Tran sfers out - City of Fayetteville 
Contributions 

(29,624,367) 
20,847 

(9,820,653) 
37 1,766 

29,327,200 29, 327,200 
(29,624.367) 

20,847 

(9.820.653) 
371,766 

Change in net assets 13,616,363 29,680,925 43.297.288 

Totar net assets· beginning 312.662,911 40,930,613 353.593.524 

Totar net assets · ending $ 326,279,274 $ 70,611,538 $ 396,890.812 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Sched ule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non GAAP) ­
Elec tric Fund 

Year ended J une 30, 2012 

(with c omparative actual amounts for the yea r ended June 30, 2011 ) 


2012 
Varia nce 
Positive 2011 

Revenues 
Bud~ et (Ne2atlve) Act ual Actual 

Opera ti ng revenu es 
Electric operations 

Sale of electnclty 
City Services 
Noo-utliity charges 
Service charges 
Miscellaneous 

Total operating revenues 

$ 189.466,400 
3,849,200 
1,801,200 
5,340 ,000 
4,830,000 

205 ,286,800 

$ (3.530.8281 
(2.601.779) 

46,958 
(420.61 4) 

(1,124 .210) 
(7.630. 473) 

$ 185,935,572 
1,247,421 

1,848,158 
4, 919,386 
3,705,790 

197,656,327 

> 186.850,799 
1,100,297 

1,385,620 
2,093,038 

3,381.765 
194,811,519 

Non-o perating revenues 
Gain (loss) on asset disposal 
interest eamed on investments 

Total non-operating revenues 
780,000 
780,000 

(312.5 17) 
349.274 

36,757 

(312.517) 

1.129,274 
8 16,757 

(1.266.138) 
586,663 

(679,475) 

Contributions 
Contributions 

Total contri butions 
1,191,600 
1,1 9 1,600 

(819.834) 
(819.834) 

371,766 
371,766 

1,519,199 
1,519,199 

Transfers in 
Transfer from City of Fayetteville 

Total transfers In 
20 ,800 
20,800 

47 
47 

20,847 
20,847 

20,847 
20,847 

Budgetary appropriations 
Approprialed nel assets 

Total budgetary appropriation s 
5,395,600 
5,395,600 

14 
14 

5,395,61 4 
5,395,614 

264,686 
264,666 

Total revenues $ 212,674 ,800 $ (8,413,489) $ 204,261,311 • 195,936,776 

Expenditures 
Operating expenditu res 
Electric operations 

Power supply and generation 
Administration 
Apparatos repair shop 
Electric meter shop 
CoostruclJon and maintenance 
Substation construction 
Eng ineering 
Fiber 
SCADA 
CT metering creW'S 
Compliance 

Total electric operations 

• 105,613,290 
576,360 
390,1 20 
7 10,430 

6,853,550 
1,711,490 
2,560,760 

17,500 
34,800 

264,800 
94 ,600 

118,827,700 

$ 1,993,471 
41,086 
37,64 3 

182,824 
151,761 

897 
297, 754 

402 
76 

7 18 
79 

2,706,711 

$ 103,619,819 
535,27 4 
352,477 
527,606 

6,701,789 
1,710,593 
2,263,006 

17,098 
34,724 

264,082 
94,521 

116,1 20,989 

• 107,702,994 
41 5,997 
402,862 
848,801 

6,34 1,588 
1,186,4 11 
2,243,597 

119,142,250 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non GAAP)­

Electric Fund 


Year ended June 30, 201 2 

(with comparatlve actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2011) 


2012 

Variance 
PosHJve 20tl 

Budget !Ne~ativel Actual Actual 
EXpendhures (continued) 

General and administrative 

ExeCUtIVe 
Internal audit 

S l,on ,405 
127,830 • 196,298 

22.056 
• 881.107 

105.774 
S 1,410,370 

120,680 
Communica~ and commvnily relslJOns 611.895 21,1 09 590.786 593,995 
Financial adminlstralion 272,560 27.634 244 .926 243.313 
Support systems adminlslrnlJ<)n 623.085 348,782 274.303 165,662 
Human resources 833.700 200,160 633,540 494,857 
AccouOIing 634.375 7.701 626.674 499.884 
Accounts (eceivable 824,450 42.673 781,m 782.756 
Payroll 72.425 4,699 67,526 70.445 
Customer accounts 2,503,575 1,050 2.502.525 2,210.797 
Uti~ty lield serviceS 1.286.825 42,611 1.244,154 1.302,390 
Business planning 195,690 80.733 134,957 265,473 
Corporate development 390,500 205 396.295 318.316 
R1s~ management 451,920 51.899 400,221 560.70<1 
Capilal PfOJSCls 25\,870 10,550 241,320 231,873 
Rates 328,555 37 328,518 148,845 
Bu<lget 121.520 '''' 121.388 118,988 
PlXChasing 258, 290 17 258,273 222,728 
Warehovse 533,600 73 533,527 487,922 
Fleet maintenance 1.041,800 126,135 915,685 9(19,188 
Facilities maintenance 223,190 82 223,108 248,588 
Customer programs and call contc( 111 ,450 99 111,351 
Corporate servICes edmlrislrabon 128,900 128,900 
Development and marxetong 590.470 86,259 524,211 211 ,715 
Telecommunicallons syStems 636,945 83,068 553,877 562 ,451 
Inromtation systems 1,508,580 99 1,506.481 1.196,770 
PenSIon expense 1.000 (17.109) 18.109 2,194 
Me6icalln$urance 3,390,900 116.236 3,274,864 2,873,916 
0"", 3,036,000 832,200 2.203,600 1.382,331 
AlJocated rent and Iitler clearing (2,276,400) '" (2,276,522) (2,457 ,086) 
Overhead cleanng (4,099,600) 208,863 (4,308,663! (2.877,O84! 

Total general and administrative 15.699,105 2.454.535 13.244,570 12,292,737 

Total oper,ting expenditures 134,526,805 5,161,246 129,385,559 131.434,957 

Non-operatlng oxpend"ilUres 

Interest expense 9&4 ,300 265,453 698,847 986,553 
Finance costs 10,000 4.272 5,728 5,471 

Total non.opereting expend"itures 974.300 269.725 704,575 972,024 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVlLLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures· Budget and Actual (Non GAAP) • 

EI«.lric Fund 


Year ended June 30, 201 2 

(wiU1 comparative- actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2011) 


2012 

Variance 
Positive 2011 

Budiet ( Nei~Uvel Actual Actual 

Transfers. 0\11 
Tran sfers to City ot fayettev~!e 

Transfers 10 EleCUlC Rale Stablliullon Furld 
Translers to Fleel Maintenance Fvncl 

Tot;!!1 tr.Insrern out 

S 9,634,900 

29,321,200 
31 3,.:100 

39,415,500 

14,241 

16,233 
30,460 

, 9,620,653 
29, 327.200 

291,161 
39,445,020 

, 9,' 12,113 
15,800,000 

24 ,912,11 3 

Budgetary appropriallons 
Invelltory tncrea s.e (decrease) 
vehicJe and eQVipmenl 
Debt prlncipal payments 
Capl!3l out l a~ 

Fnance costs 
Appropriated net assets 

Total budgetary approprl;!!Uons 

269,1 00 

1, 469, 400 
27,610,400 

8.149,295 
37,698,195 

(587,626) 
24,077 

30 
3,630,584 

3,964,507 
7,051 ,572 

856,126 
(24,077) 

1,459,310 

24,179,816 

4, 164.168 
30,6<16,62'3 

133,786 
286.4 19 

6,319,673 

17,022,661 
42,240 

4,636,200 
28,401 0 ,981 

Tot~1 upendltures 212,674.600 12,513,023 , 2QO, 161, 777 , 185,760,105 

R~onclllaUon 01 change In net Isse\S 
TOlal ('V"nVCl 
Tolal exper.d:lures 

S (6,4 13, 489) 
12, 513,023 

, 2Q.1l ,261,311 
200,16t ,n7 

S 195,936,776 
185,760,105 

Sublotal S 4,099,534 4,099,534 10,H6,671 

Reconciling Ilems: 

Budgetary appropoahons 
Deonloper 

DepreCIation 
Amot\ll'lliotl 
OPE8 e~pense 

To lal leconclllng Items 

25,251,009 

(15,096,34 1) 
(372.570) 

(265,2691 
9,516,829 

28, 176,295 
16,4 15 

(1 5, 159,730) 
(383,670) 
(484, 172) 

12 164,938 

Change In net assets S 13,616,363 , 22,341 ,609 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Changes In the Status 01 Electric Rate Stabitization Fund 

From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2012 


Project 
Authorization 

Total 
Pri or 
Years 

Current 
Year To tal 

Reve nues 
Rate stabilization transfer 
Interest eamed on investments 

Total revenues 

• 4,169, 725 
3,230,000 
7.399,725 

$ 4,169,725 
2,960,888 
7,130

1
61 3 

, 
353,725 
353.725 

$ 4.169,725 
3,314.6 13 
7.484,338 

other financing sources 
Transfer from Electric Fund 
Transfer to Electric Fund 
Loan to Annexation Phase V ReseI'Ve Fund 
Loan to Electric & W/WIN General Fund 
Appropriated net assets 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

68,127.200 
(5,000,000) 
(9,036.235) 
(2. 171 .250) 

,59.319.(40) 
{7,399.725) 

38,800,000 
(5.000,000) 

(2 .171.250) 

31,828,750 

29. 327,200 

(1 .294 ,400) 

28,032.800 

68,127.200 
(5,000,000) 
(1 ,294.400) 
(2.171 .250) 

59,661,550 

Revenues and other finan Cing sources 
over expenditures $ 38,759,363 28,386,525 $ 67,145,888• 

Reconciling items: 
Advance receivable Irom AnnexatiOn Phase V Reserve 1,294,400 

Change In net assets 29,680,925• 
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CITY OF FAYETIeVILLE. NORTH CAROLINA 

Combining Balance Sheet 

Water and Wastewater Fund 


June 30, 2012 


Assets 
Current unrestricted assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Inv891ments 
Receivables 
Internal balances 
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts 
Inventories 
Other currenl assets 

Total current unrestricted assets 

S 

Water and 
Wastewater 

Fund 

22,026,280 
2.793,876 

15,127.398 
1.119,109 

(88,925) 
1,563,112 

590,765 
<13,133,615 

$ 

Water and 
Wastewater 

Rate 
Stabilization 

Fund 

Ft Bragg 
Interim 

Water Service 
Project 
Fund 

, , 

Annexation 
Phase V 
Reserve 

Fund 

(39 1,180) 

(391,180) 

20098 
Revenue Bond 

Capital 
Project 
Fund 

, 

(497,013) 

(497.013) 

Annexation 
Phase V 
Areas 6f7 

Capital Project 
Fund 

---_ . -

, 

Annexation 
Phase V 

Areas 8113 
Capital Project 

Fund 

, 
(226,579) 

(226,579) 

5 

Total 

22 ,028,280 
2,793,676 

15.1 27,398 
4,337 

(88,925) 
1,563,112 

590,765 
42 .018 ,8<13 

Cu trent restricted assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Receivables 

Total current restricted assets 

10,633.392 
15,591,915 

85,456 
26,410,77 3 

1,516,576 
4.500,000 

7.701 
6,024,277 

391.239 

391 ,239 

4,960,699 

42,328 
5003,027 

289, 324 
289,324 

17,501,906 
20,191,915 

<12<1,819 
38,118.6<10 

Total current assets 69,544,388 6,024,277 " 4,506.014 62,7<15 80,137,<183 

Noncurrent assets 
Other assets 12,607,849 12,607,8<19 

Capital Assets: 
Laod 
Construction In process 
Weier syslem 
Sewer system 
Buildings 
Equipment and machinery 
Compuler equipment 
Inlenglbles 
Vehicles 
Office equipment 

CaplLaI assets, net 

9,295,327 
7,922,691 

178,093.787 
277,111, 212 

2,277,819 
3,130,929 

759,258 
390,829 

3,382,882 
36,209 

482.400,923 

2,479,500 

2,479,500 

4,925,932 

4.92 5,932 

9,295.327 
15,328,123 

178,093,767 
277,111 ,212 

2,277,819 
3,130,929 

759,258 
390,829 

3,382,882 
36,209 

489,806,355 

Total noncurrent assets 495,008,772 2,479.500 4,925,932 502,414,204 

Total assets $ 564,553,160 $ 6,024,277 , $ 59 5 6.985 ,514 , S 4,988,677 5 582,551,687 
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CITY OF FAYEITEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Combining Balance Shut 

Water and Wastewater Fund 


June 30, 2012 


Water and Ft Bragg 2009B Annexation ------,o:n-nexation 
Wastewater Interim Annexatlon Revenue Bond Phase V Phase V 

Watet and Rate Water Service Phase V Capital Areas 6n Areas 8113 
Wastewater Stabilization Project Reserve Project Capital Project Capital Project 

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total 

Uabilities and net assets , , , , ,Current pOrt;on of long-Ierm l iab~ilies 12,506,036 12,506,036 
Accounl.s payable and accrued expenses 10,701,986 10,701,986 

Total current liabilities to be paid from 
unrestricted current assets 23,208,022 23,208,022 

Current liabilities to be paId from 
restricted current assets 

Accounls payable and accrued expenses 2,232,371 5,773 190,642 1,286,667 3,7 15,453 
Total current liabilities to be paid from 
f&strlcted current assets 2,232,371 5,773 190,642 1,286,667 3,715.453 

Total current liabilities 25,440,393 5,773 190,642 1,286,667 26,923.475 

Noncurrent Ilabillties 
Long..(erm ~ab~ities 
Other liatMties 
Uneafned deposris 

Total noncurrent liabilities 

137,936,346 
5,722,694 

957,096 
144,616,136 

1,294,400 

1,294.400 

137,936,346 
7,017,094 

957,096 
~910, 536 

Total liabilities 170,056,529 1,300,1 73 190,642 1,285,667 172,834,011 

Net assets 
Invested in capiro' assets, nel 01 related debt 
Reslricted lor ­

Capital ProjeCls 
Debt service 

Unrestncled nel assets 
Total net assets 

338,577,204 

9,758 
40,942 

55,866,727 
394,496.631 

6,024 .277 
6,024,277 

(1.3 00,114} 
(1,300,114) 

2,479,500 

4.31 5,372 
6,794 ,672 

4,925,932 

(1,223.922) 
3.702,010 

345,982,636 

9,758 
40,942 

63,884,340 
409,71 7,676 

Total liabilities and net assets $ 564.553,160 , 6,024 .277 , $ 59 $ 6,985,514 , 4,988,677 $ 582,551,687• 
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CI TY OF FAYEITEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

CombInIng Schedule of Revenues, Expenses an d Changes In Fund Net Assets 

Water and Wastewater Fund 


Year en ded June 30, 20 12 


Water and Ft. 8 ra gg 2009B AnnexatiOn Annexation 
Westewater In terlm Annexation Reven ue Bond Phase \I Phase \I 

Walerand Rate Wa ter Service Pha se \I Capital Areas 6n Areas 8113 
Wastewater StabIlizatIon Project Reserve Project Csplt.1 Project Capital Project 

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Totlll 

OperatIng reven ues , ,Charges for services 70.915.206 S $ S S $ $ 70.91 5.208 
Miscellaneous operating income-water 15.01 0 15.Q10 

Total operating revenues 70.915.208 15.010 70.930.218 

Operallng expenses 
Waler operahons 14.059.094 14.059.094 
Miscellaneous operating expense·walor 15.010 15.010 
Was tewater operaUOns 12.743.659 12.743,659 
General and administrative 14 .130.014 14.130.014 
Oepreaallon 16.308.785 16.308. 785 

Total operating expenses 57.241 .552 15,010 57 .256.562 

Operating Income 13.673.656 13.673.656 

Nonoperating reven ue (expe nse) 
Interest earned on Investmenls 1.473.953 27.292 237 1.501 .482 
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets 154.119 154.11 9 
Inleresl expCl'lse (6.183.932) (6.952) (6.790.884) 
Amo nizatiOn (1 .106 .053) (1.108.053) 
Finance costs (13.697) i13.897) 

Tota l nonoperati ng revenue (expense) (6.277.510) 27.292 (6.715) (6.257.033) 

Income (loss) before tran sfers 
and co ntributions 7.396.046 27.292 ~6.7151 7,416,623 

Transfers in 14 .965.966 250.000 2.608.387 232.262 5.556.709 23.613.324 
Transfers out (3 .155.554) (5,908.010) (9A39. t89) (232.262) (5.175.476) (23.9100491) 

Transfers in - City 01 Fayetlevll\e 385.200 926. 030 1. 31 1.230 
Capital Contribulions 10.180.807 10.780.807 

Change In netasse15 30.372,465 277.292 (2.380.308) (9.206.927) (232,26 2) 381 .233 19.211,493 


Tola l net assets · beginning 3&4.1 24. 166 5.146.985 1.080,194 16.001.799 232.262 3.320.777 390,506.1 83 


To tal net assets - ending , 394.496.631 , 6.024. 277 $ $ (1.300,114) , 6,794,872 $ $ 3,702.010 , 409.7' 7.676 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non GAAP)­
Water and Wastewater Fund 


Year ended June 30, 2012 

(with comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2011) 


2012 
Variance 
Positive 2011 

Budaet iNesativel Actual Actual 
Revenues 
Operating revenues 
Water operations 

Water Sales S 31,786,000 $ (434,289) S 31,351.711 S 30,963,222 
Connection lees 250,000 135,297 385,297 315,583 
Crty ServICes 

Total water operations 
173,200 

32.209,200 
94 ,447 

F04,5451 
267,647 

32,004,655 
214 .263 

31,493,068 

Wastewater operations 
Sewer charges 36.023,500 (837.266) 35,386.234 34.707,277 
Connection fees 170,000 78,952 248,952 172.870 
City services 70,400 24.315 94.715 76.702 

Total wastewater operations 36,263,900 j533,9991 35,729,901 34,956,849 

Other operating revenues 
Non-utility charges 1,218,200 248,214 1.466,414 1,241,382 
Service Charges 1,562,000 (17,707) 1,544,293 463,399 
Miscellaneous 259,300 (89,355) 169,945 267 ,225 

Total other operating revenueS 3,039,500 141.152 3, 180,652 1,972,006 

Total operating revenues 71,512,600 (597.392) 70,915,208 68,421,923 

Non<lperating revenues 
Gain (loss) on asset disposal 
Interest eamed on investments 

Total non-operating revenues 
1,000,000 
1,000,000 

154,119 
47 3,953 
628 ,072 

154,119 
1,473,953 
1,628,072 

62,139 
1,230,093 
1,292,232 

Contributions 
Contributions 

Total contribution s 
3,488,600 
3,468,600 

500,313 
500,313 

3.988.913 
3,988,913 

4,471 ,139 
4.471,139 

Tran sfers In 
Transfer from City of Fayetteville 
Transfer from Annexation Phase V Reserve Fund 

Total transfers in 

385,200 
351.300 
736,500 

385,200 
351.301 
736.501 

385,200 
252.7 89 
637,989 

Budgetary appropriations 
Department of Transponation financing 
Cumberland County note proceeds 
Fort Bragg note proceeds 
Appropnations of net assets 

Total budgetary appropriations 

328,400 
39,600 

143,400 
4.1 3 1,350 
4,642,750 

750,118 

(12.300) 
p,059,313} 
{2.321 ,495) 

1,078,518 
39,600 

131,100 
1,072 ,037 
2,321,255 

39,600 
145,219 
623.105 
807,924 

Total revenues $ 81,380,450 S 1 
' 

,790,501 } S 79,589 ,949 S 75,631.207 

Expenditures 
Operating expenditures 

Water operations 
Administration and engineering S 
Waler meter shOp 
Water maintenance and repair 
Contract system maintenance 
P, O Hoffer water treatment plant 
Glenville lake water treatment plan' 
Water Resources environmental system protection 
Laboratory 
Environmental 
Watersheds 

Total water operations 

1,193,365 
207,620 

4,738,410 
161,550 

4,928,850 
2,358,11 0 

177,910 
236.515 
109, 110 
203,080 

14 ,314,520 

S 58.239 
140.499 

872 
(32,192) 
21.473 
62.903 

2,510 
12 

1,072 
38 

255,426 

S 1,135,126 
67,121 

4,737 .538 
193,742 

4.907,377 
2,295,207 

175,400 
236,503 
108,0 38 
203,042 

14 .059,094 

S 1,077,521 
129,01 8 

4,656,102 
174,361 

4,481 ,531 
1,970.687 

170,600 
225,121 
109.669 
155,208 

13.149,818 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures· Budget and Actual (N on GAAP)­

Water and Wastewater Fund 


Year ended June 30, 2012 

(with comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 3D , 2011) 


2012 
Variance 
Positive 2011 

Budget (Negative} Ac tua l Actual 
Expenditures (continued) 

Operating expend itures (continued) 
Waslewater operations 
Administration and engineenng $ 1,193,365 $ 58.239 $ 1,135,126 S 1,077,521 
Sewer maintenance and repair 5,980.270 (88 1) 5,981 ,15 1 4,853,387 
Contract system maintenance 161.550 32.389 129, 161 116,241 
Cross Creek WoN treatment plant 2,565,320 139,091 2 .• 26.229 2.383.808 
Rockfish Creek ININ treatment plant 2,474,730 219,271 2.255 .• 59 2,400.256 
ReSiduals management 296.630 .0 296,590 266.18. 
Water resource environmental system protection 177,910 2.510 175,400 170,600 
Laboratory 236,515 11 236,50. 225.121 
Environmental 109,110 1.071 108.039 109,669 

Total wastewater operations 13. 195.400 451,741 12,743.659 11.602,787 

General and administrative 
Executive 432,305 33,821 398,484 351.936 
Intemal audit 125,930 21 .323 104,607 119,729 
Communica tions and community relations 610.695 17,873 592,822 578,215 
Financial administration 272.560 35,157 237,403 239,305 
Suppan Systems 185,285 102.081 83,20. 132,194 
Human resources 830,900 211,943 618.957 466,324 
Accounting 507,075 31.008 476,067 497.026 
Accounts receivable 824 ,450 46,029 778.421 782,052 
Payroll 72,425 5,475 66.950 68,962 
Customer accounts 1,883,975 56.249 1,827,726 1.649,837 
Utility field service 1.257.325 50 ,351 1,206,974 1,108,042 
Corporate development 41 3,700 19.008 394,692 312,980 
Business planning 170,620 30.823 139,797 258,632 
Risk management 439,990 55,480 38•. 510 556,978 
Capital prqects 251,870 14,622 237,248 228.388 
Rates 193,255 70,954 122.30 1 103.315 
Budget 121,120 71 121.0.9 118.967 
PurchaSing 257,490 80 257,410 222. 188 
Warehouse 
Fleet maintenance 
FaCilities maintenance 

370,100 
1.595.900 

219.990 

159,577

••
16 

210.523 
1,595,856 

21 9,974 

269.308 
1,605,290 

247,819 
Customer programs adminisl ra tion and call center 104,450 «2 104,008 
Corporate services administration 128,700 50 128.650 
Development and marketing 479,170 47 ,592 431,578 205,475 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures" Budget and Actual (Non GAAP)· 

Water and Wastewater Fund 


Year ended June 30, 2012 

(with comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2011) 


2012 
Variance 
Positive 2011 

Budget (Neaalive) Actual Actual 
Expenditures (continued) 
Operating expenditures (continued) 

General and administrative (continued) 
Telecommunications systems $ 549,745 $ 35 S 549,710 S 558,726 
Information systems 1,503,680 95 1,503,565 1,194, 759 
Pension expenses 1,000 117,109) 18,109 2.194 
MedICal insurance 3,390,900 (1.1 1 1,978) 4,502.878 2,940.267 
Other 1,187,700 249,740 937,960 940,152 
Ovefhead cleanng p,805, 300~ 629.830 (4,43S.130l (4.470 ,497~ 

Tolal general and admini strative 14,577,005 780,682 13,816.32 3 11 ,284,563 

Total operaung expenditures 42,086,925 1,487,849 40.819,076 38,037 ,188 

Non-operating expenditures 
Interest expense 7,620,600 836.668 6,783,932 7,120,583 
Finance costs 25,000 11,303 13,697 15.154 

Total non-operating expenditures 7,645,800 847,971 6,797,629 7,136,337 

Transfers out 
Transfer to WMIW Rate Stabilization Fund 250,000 250,000 500,000 
Transfer to Annexation Phase V Reserve Fund 2,591,400 (16,987) 2,608,387 1,748,898 
Transler 10 Fleet Maintenance Fund 313,300 16,133 297,167 

Total transfers out 3,154,700 (854) 3,155,554 2,248,898 

Budgetary appropriations 
Inventory Increase 488, 700 134,034 354,666 (53,893) 
Vehicle and equipment (239,04 6) 239,046 677,958 
Finance costs 34,560 
Debt principal payments 11,188,700 1, 267 ,925 9,900,775 13,125,472 
Note payments (1,267,849) 1,267,849 1.267,849 
NC DOT project payments 714,100 385.701 328,399 
CapitalouUay 13,081}OO 427 ,051 12,854,649 9,553,300 
Appropriation of net assets 3,040,025 790, 025 2,250,000 4,800,000 

Total budgetary appropriations 28,4 93,225 1,497,84 1 26,995,384 29.405 ,246 

Total expenditures S 81,380,450 3,812,807 $ n,S67,643 $ 74,827,649• 
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Clft OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures· Budget and Actual (Non GAAP)· 

Water and Wastewater Fund 


Year ended June 30,2012 

(with comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2011) 


2012 
Variance 
Positive 2011 

Budget iNegative) Actual Actual 
Reconciliation of change in net assets 

Talai revenue $ (1.790 .501) $ 79,589,949 $ 75,631 ,207 
Total expenditures 3.81 2,807 77.567,643 74.827.649 

Subtotal $ 2.022.306 

Reconciling items: 
Budgetary appropriatrons 
DepreCiation 
Amortization 
OPES expense 
Developer and FIF C/'edlts 
Assessments 
Transfer of assets (to) J from Annexation Capital Project Fund Phase V-1 
Transfer of assets (to)' from Annexation Capital Project Fund Phase V-6f7 
Transfer of assets (to) J from AnnexatJon Phase V, Areas 8-13 
Transfer of assets (to) I from Series 2009B Revenue Bond Capital Project Fund 

Toral reconciling items 

Change in net assets 

2.022.306 

24,674 .129 
(16.308.785) 

(1.108.053) 
(313.691) 

6,594,433 
197 .461 

5.175,476 
9,439,189 

28.350.159 

803.558 

28.597.322 
(15.566.497) 

(1.103.337) 
(572.739) 

6,117 .924 
29,479 

343.412 
5.499,460 

113,647 
5.572.517 

29,031 .188 

S 30,372.465 $ 29,834,746 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Water and Wastewater Rate Stabilization Fund 

From Inception and for the Period Ended June 30, 2012 


Total 
Project Prior Current 

Authorilation Years Year Total 

Revenues 
Interest earned on investments 285,000 $ 246,985 $ 27, 292 . $ 274,277 

Tota l revenues 285,000 246.985 27.292 2741277 

Other finanCing sources 
Transfer from Water and Wastewater Fund 5.750,000 5,500,000 250,000 5.750,000 
Appropria ted net assets 

Total other financing sources 5,500,000 250,000 5,750,000 

Revenues and other financing sources 
over expenditures $ $ 5,746,985 277,292 $ 6,024.277 

Change in net assets $ 277,292 

l · 14 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Fort Bragg Interim Water Service Project Fund 

From Inception and for the Period Ended June 30, 2012 


Total 
Project 

Authorization 
Prior 
Years 

Current 
Year Total 

Revenues 
Miscellaneous Operating Revenues 

Total Revenues 
$ 22.003.776 

22.003.776 
$ 21.968 .766 

21.968.766 
$ 15,010 

151°10 
$ 22,003,776 

22.003,776 

Expenditures 
Design. budget and schedule 
Initial capital payment 
Transition costs 
Interim plant operations 
Interim operations majOr 
Fluoride Spilt RemediaUon 

Total expenditures 

2.396,490 
14,864,714 

274,112 
3,763,455 

291,965 
411,040 

22,003,776 

2,398,490 
14,864,714 

274, 112 
3,763.455 

291 ,965 
396,030 

21.966,766 
15.010 
15.010 

2.398.490 
14,864,714 

274.112 
3,763.455 

291,965 
411.040 

22003.776 

Reven ues and other financing sources 
over expenditures $ $ $ 

Reconciling items: 
Change in net assets $ 

capital Project Fund closed at June 30, 2012. 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Annexation Phase V Reserve Fund 

From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2012 


Total 
Project Prior Current 

Authorization Years Year Total 

Revenues 
tnterest eamed on investments S 6.500 S 3.788 S 237 S 4.025 

Total revenues 6.500 3.788 237 4.025 

Expenditures 
Interest Expense 92.818 6.952 6,952 

Total expenditures 92.618 6.952 6.952 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (86.3 181 3.768 ,6.715} ~2.927) 

Other financing sources 
Advance from Electric Rale Stabilization Fund 9.036.235 1,294.400 1.294.400 
Assessments transfer 1,305,000 931.801 1,017.037 1.948.836 
Transfer from Water and Wastewater Fund 3.908,447 2.317.097 1.591.350 3.906.447 
Transfer from the City 1.804 .133 876,103 926.030 1.804.133 
Transfer from Annexation Phase V. P(Ofect 1 Fund 727.903 727.903 727,903 
Transfer to Annexation Phase V. Areas 8-13 Fund (16.000.000) (3.'34.42') (5.556.710) (S,991,134) 
Transfer to Water and Wastewater Fund (695.'001 1344.074) p5 1.3001 (695.374) 

Tolal other financin g sources (uses) 86.318 1.076,406 (1 ,079.193) (2. 7871 

Revenues and other financing sources 
(uses) over (under) expenditures $ 

Reconciling items: 
Mvance Payable to Electric Rate Stabilization Fund 

Change in net assets 

$ 1.060. 194 

$ 

(t.085.908) 

11.294 .400)
12.380,308) 

$ {5.714) 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Series 2009B Revenue Bond Capital Project Fund 

From Inception and for the Period Ended June 30, 2012 


Revenues 
Interest earned on Invested bond proceeds 

Total reven ues 

Expenditures 
Construction 
Engineering 
land and land Rights 
DOT project paymen ts 
Other 

Total expenditures 

Revenues under expenditures 

Project 

Authorization 


S 44 ,000 
44,000 

33,633,712 

(33,589,712) 

Total 
Prior 
Years 

$ 41,963 
41,963 

19,093,865 
531,308 

20,000 
3,360,277 

834,304 
23,839,754 

(23,797,791) 

Current 

Year 


$ 4,425 
4,425 

5.230,775 
(102,627) 

38,782 
314,044 

5,480,974 

Total 

$ 46,388 
46,388 

24, 324,640 
428. 681 

20,000 
3,399,059 
1,148,3.48 

29,320, 728 

(5,476,549) (29,274.340) 

Other financ in g sources 
Bond proceeds 

Total other financing sources 
33, 589.71 2 
33, 589 ,71 2 

331357,450 
33,357,4 50 

232,262 
232,262 

33,589.712 
33,589.71 2 

Revenues and other financing sou rc es 
over (under) expenditures $ $ 9,559,659 (5,244, 287) $ 4,315,372 

Reconciling items: 
CaPllal ouUay 
DOT project payments 
Transfer of assets (Io)/from the Water and Wastewater Fund 

Change in net assets $ 

5,437,767 
38)82 

19,439,1 89)
19,206,927) 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Annexation - Phase V-Areas 6 and 7 Capital Project Fund 

From Inception and for the Period Ended June 30, 2012 


Project 
Authorization 

Total 
Prior 
Years 

Current 
Year Total 

Revenues 
Interest eamed on invested bond proceeds 

Total revenues 
$ 4,853 

4,853 
$ $ 4,853 

4.853 

Expenditures 
Construction 
Engmeering 
Rights of way 
Less City of Fayetteville participation 
Other 

Total expenditures 5,677 .676 

4,623,471 
691.167 
173,764 

(187,589) 
37 6, 263 

5,677.676 

4,623,471 
691.767 
173,764 

(187,589) 
376,263 

5,677 ,676 

Revenues under expenditures 15,672,823) 15,672,823) 15,672,823) 

Other financing sources 
Bond proceeds 5,905.085 1232,262) 5,672, 823 

Total other financing sources (uses) 5,905,085 1232,262) 5,672.823 

Revenues and other financing sources (uses) 
over (under) expenditures $ $ 232,262 (232 ,262) $ 

Reconciling items: 
Change 10 net assels $ 1232,262) 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Annexation· Phase V-Areas 8 through 13 Capital Project Fund 

From Inception and forthe Period Ended June 30, 2012 


Project 
Authorization 

Total 
Prior 
Years 

Current 
Year Total 

Revenues 
Total revenues $ $ $ $ 

Expenditures 
Conslruction 
Engineering 
Rights of way 
Less CIty of Fayetteville partiCipation 
Other 

Total expenditures 16.000.000 

2,742,965 
1.400,986 

169,722 
(157 ,9081 
300,666 

4,456,651 

4,866,610 
745,741 
239,807 

(511 ,354) 
415.401 

5.758.405 

7,611.795 
2. 146,727 

409,529 
(669,262) 
716.267 

10,215,056 

Revenues under expenditures 11 6.000.0001 ~4.456,651 1 (5.756,4051 110.215.0561 

Other financfng sources 
Transfer from Annexation Phase V Reserve Fund 16.000,000 3,434,424 5,556,709 8.991 .133 

Total other finanCing sources 16.000,000 3,434.424 5,556,709 6,991.133 

Revenues and other finanCing sources 
under expenditures $ $ (1,022.2271 (201 ,696) $ ~1 ,223,923l 

Reconciling items; 
Capital outlay 5,758,405 
Transfer of assets {Io)/from the Water and Wastewater Fund ~5, 175,476i 

Change in net assets $ 381.233 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Balance Sheet 

Sto nn Water Management Fund 


June 30, 2012 


Assets 
Cu rrent assets 

Cash and investments 
Accounts receivable 
Restricted cash and investments 

Total current assets 

Noncurrent assets 
Other assets 
Capital assets 

Total noncurrent assets 

Total assets 

Liabi lities and net assets 
Current liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued e)(penses 
Current portion of long-term liabilities 
Unearned deposits 
Restricted accounts payable and accrued expenses 

Tolal current liabilit!es 

Noncurrenlliabilities 
Net OPES obligation 
Long-term debt 

Total noncurrent liabilities 

Totalliabililies 

Net assets 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Unrestricted 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

2012 

$ 11,929,393 
179,882 

5,733,405 
17,842,680 

80,343 
18,794 ,527 
18,874 ,870 

$ 36,717,550 

$ 432,195 
665,064 

1,184,378 
268,021 

2,549,658 

251,299 
10,180,508 
10,431 ,807 

12,981 ,465 

13,479,371 
10,256,714 
23,736,085 

$ 36,717,550 

The Storm Water Management Fund was converted to an enterprise fund as of the beginning of this fiscal 
year and no comparative information is available. 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets 

Storm Water Management Fund 


Year Ended June 30, 2012 


Operating revenues 
Charges for services 
Other revenue from operations 

Total operating revenues 

Operating expenses 
Salaries and employee benefits 
Other operating expenses 
Depreciation 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income (loss) 

Nonoperating revenue (expense) 
Interest earned on investments 
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets 
Interest expense 
Amortization 

Total nonoperating revenue (expense) 

Income (loss) before transfers 
and contributions 

Change in net assets 

Total net assets - beginning 

Change in accounting principle 

Total net assets - ending 

2012 

$ 5,164,229 
19,2 15 

5, 183,444 

1,406,052 
881,264 
559,991 

2,847,307 

2,336,137 

56,442 
36,470 

(38,950) 
(5,230) 

48,732 

2,384,869 

2,384,869 

21,351,216 

$ 23,736,085 

The Storm W ater Management Fund was converted to an enterprise fund as of the beginning of this 
fiscal year and no comparative information is available, 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures· Budget and Actual (Non·GAAP) 

Storm Water Management Fund 


Year Ended June 30, 2012 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for Year Ended June 30, 2011) 


Budget 
Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

2012 
Actual 

2011 
Actual 

Operating revenues 
Charges for services 
OUier revenue from operations 

Total operating revenues 

$ 5,184,218 
16.550 

5,200,768 

$ (29,866) 
2,665 

(27,201) 

$ 5,154,352 
19,215 

5,173,567 

$ 5,164,363 
25,135 

5.189.498 

Operating expenditures 
Personnel 1,407,022 41,488 1.365.534 1,366,068 
Other operating expenditures 2,590,497 1,784,247 806,250 785.261 
Capital outlay 302,969 1,013 301.956 
Cost redistribuUon 75.000 75.000 75.000 

Total operating expenditures 4.375.488 1,826,748 2,548,740 2.226,329 

Operating income (loss) 825,280 1, 799,547 2.624,827 2.963.1 69 

Nonoperating revenues (expenditures) 
Interest earned on investments 57.000 (11.806) 45,194 57.723 
Debt service· principal payment (290.030) (290,030) (25.030) 
Interest expense (156,851) 1 (156.850) 

Nonoperating revenues (expenditures) (389. 881 1 i".8051 (401.6861 32.693 

Revenues over (under) expenditures 435,399 1,787,742 2,223,141 2.995,862 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Sale of capital assets 36.470 36,470 31,500 
Transfers in 830,789 (830,789) 
Transfers oul (1,718,277) (1,718,277) (3,126.007) 
Appropriated fund balance 452,089 (452.089) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 1435.3991 (',246,408) (1.681.807) (3.094.5071 

Revenues and other finanCing sources 
(uses) over (under) expenditures $ $ 541,~ $ 541,334 $ 198,645) 

Reconciliation of change in net assets 
T olal revenues 
Total expenclilures 

Subtotal 

$ 5,255,231 
4.7 13,897 

541 ,334 

Depreciation 
Change In accrued vacation 
CapitalouUay 
Proceeds from sale of assets 
Gain (lOSS) on disposal of assets 
Principal payment 
Deferred revenue 
Bad debt expense 
Capitalized interest 
Accrued interest 
Net OPES exPense 

Subtotal 

(559,991) 
(1,638) 

301,956 
(36,470) 
36,470 

290,030 
9,877 

(14) 
252,836 

(134,936) 
(38. 8801 
119,240 

Change in net assets $ 660,574 

As discussed in Note 1 10 the Financial Statements, the Stormwater Special Revenue and Capilal Project Funds reported in the prior 
year were converted 10 an enterprise fund as of the beginning of this fiscal year. The 2011 adual revenues. expenditures, and other 
finanCing Sources (uses) reported above are the actual amounts reported for Ihe Siormwaler Special Revenue Fund in the pnor year 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. No reconohahon to the Change in net assets is presenled above for thai year because no 
change in net assets was reported for thai year. 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVlLLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Schedule of Changes in the Status of 

Storm Water Management Capital Project Fund 


From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2012 


Project Prior Closed Curren t 
Authorization Years Projects Year Total 

Revenues 
Restricted intergovernmental 

Local $ $ 10,499 $ $ $ 10,499 
Total restricted Ingovernmental 10,499 10,499 

Interest earned on investments 27.795 27.795 
Total revenues 10,499 27.795 38.294 

Expenditures 
Current 

Environmental Protection 
Annexation area improvements 2.490.085 539.236 769.073 1.308.309 
Godfrey Outfall 58.500 35.100 35.100 
James Creek at Traybum 69.756 49.756 49.756 
NorwoodJAncor 67.421 67,421 67,421 
Bonnie Doone 45.000 35.982 35.982 
Lyon Rd/Rogers Dr Conslruclion 150.006 150.006 150.006 
Lockwood and Ravenhill 216.454 216,702 (248) 216.454 
Seabrook 407,779 63.280 3 11 .730 375 ,010 
Spruce StlF orest Hill Dr 940.260 141,496 76.219 2 17,715 
LaF aye"e Village/Spruce Dr 3.006.989 80.773 2.098.088 2.178.861 
Co"onade 482.194 8.775 462.902 471.677 
Buckhead Creek Group 1 281.649 5.625 252.356 257.981 
McNeill Circle 1.366.886 70.500 56.280 126.780 
Yadkin Rd 2.657.283 78.337 56.378 134 .715 
Summerhill 1.067,246 46.400 353.015 399.4 15 
Anson Pond 322,791 322.791 322.791 
Buckhead Creek Walershe<1 871.908 265.570 330.346 595.9 16 
Siormwater drainage miscellaneous 937.077 87.022 99.656 186.678 

Total expenditures 15.439.284 1,857,125 5.273.442 7.130.567 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (15.439.284) (1.846.626) (5.245.647) (7.092.273) 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 
Bond proceeds 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

4,844,284 
10.595.000 

15.439.284 

3,126,007 

3,126,007 

1.7 18,277 
10.595.000 

12.313.277 

4,844,284 
10.595.000 

15.439.284 

Revenues and other fina ncing sou rces 
(uses) over (under) expen ditures $ $ 1.279.381 $ $ 7.067.630 $ 8.347.011 

Reconciliation of modified accrual 
basis to full accrua l basis: 
Excess of revenues over expenditures $ 7.067.630 
Capital outlay 5.187.869 
Cost of issuance 85.573 
Amortization (5.230) 
Bond proceeds (10.595.000) 
Capi talized interesl (16.547) 

Change in net assets $ 1.724 .295 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Combining Balance Sheet 

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 


June 30, 2012 


Assets 
Current assets 

Cash and investments 
Accounts receivable 
Inventories 
Restricted accounts receivable 
Restricted cash and investments 

Total current assets 

$ 

Transit 
Fund 

276,508 
1,366,353 

181,162 

1,824.023 

$ 

Airport 
Fund 

6,598,925 
4,109,764 

5.609 
117,884 

1.836,634 
12,668.816 

Solid Waste 
Rec~clin9 Fund 

$ 1,149,247 
144,847 

21,417 

1,315,511 

Total Nonmajor 
Enterprise 

Funds 

$ 8,024.680 
5,620,964 

208,188 
117,884 

1.836.634 
15,808.350 

Noncurrent assets 
Capital asse ts 

Total noncurrent assets 
11 ,833,940 
11.833,940 

41,552.125 
41 .552,125 

33,732 
33.732 

53,419,797 
53,419,797 

Total assets $ 13,657,963 $ 54,220,941 $ 1,349,243 $ 69,228,147 

Liabilities and net assets 
Current liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Current portion of long-term liabilities 
Restricted accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Unearned deposits 

Tolal current liabilities 

$ 310,257 
191,002 

501,259 

$ 3,880.572 
78,810 

5,879 
1,025 

3.966,266 

$ 167,179 
757 

167,936 

$ 4,358.008 
270,569 

5,879 
1,025 

4,635,481 

Noncurrent liabilities 
Net OPES obligation 
Unearned revenues 
Long -term debt 

Total noncurrent liabilities 

540,937 

39,465 
580.402 

205,946 
24,047 

229,993 

676 

676 

747,559 
24,047 
39,465 

811 ,071 

Total liabilities 1.081,661 4,196,279 168,612 5,446,552 

Net assets 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Restricted for: 

Capital prOjects 
Unrestricted 

Total net asse ts 

11,833,940 

742,362 
12.576,302 

41 .552,125 

1,948,639 
6,523,898 

50,024,662 

33.732 

1,146.899 
1,180.631 

53,419.797 

1,948,639 
8,413,159 

63.781,595 

Total liabilities and net assets $ 13,657.963 $ 54,220.941 $ 1,349.243 $ 69,228.147 
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CITY OF FAYEnEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets 

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 

Year Ended June 30, 2012 


Transit 
Fund 

Airport 
Fund 

Solid Waste 
Rec~cling Fund 

Total Nonmajor 
Enterprise 

Funds 

Operating revenues 
Charges for services 
Other revenue from operations 

Total operating revenues 

$ 1,013.331 
11,849 

1.025.180 

$ 4.173.705 
172,997 

4.346,702 

$ 2,276.103 
8 ,915 

2.285.018 

$ 7.463.139 
193.761 

7.656.900 

Operating expenses 
Salaries and employee benefits 
Other operating expenses 
Depreciation 

Total operating expenses 

4,197,801 
2 ,524.619 

941 .053 
7.663.473 

1,278,039 
1,476.871 
2.067.009 
4,821 .919 

22,257 
2.119,145 

3,748 
2.145.150 

5.498,097 
6.120.635 
3,011,810 

14,630.542 

Operating income (loss) (6.638.293) (475,217) 139.868 (6,973.642) 

Nonoperating revenue (expense) 
Interest earned on investments 3.508 37.44 1 7,438 48,387 
Federal and State grants 2.050,348 138,131 2.188,479 
Passenger facility charges 906.962 906.962 
Miscellaneous revenues 83,769 168,323 252.092 
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets 19,017 30.552 49,569 
County revenue 299,525 299,525 
Vehicle fee revenue 649,471 649,471 
Interest expense (1,438) (1,438) 
Miscellaneous expense (437,664) (437.664) 

Tolal nonoperating revenue (expense) 2,720,906 759 .191 475,286 3.955,383 

Income (loss) before transfers 
and contributions (3.917 .387) 283.974 615,154 (3,018,259) 

Transfers in 
Translers out 
Capital contributions 

Change in net assets 

2.833,187 

3.592.128 
2,507,928 

6.368,570 
6,652,544 

(427,245) 

187,909 

2,833.187 
(427.245) 

9.960.698 
9,348,381 

Total net assets - beginning 10,068.374 43.372.118 992.722 54.433,214 

Total net assets - ending $ 12.576.302 $ 50,024.662 $ 1.180.631 $ 63.781.595 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Combining Statement of Cash Flows 

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 

Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Transit 
Fund 

Airport 
Fund 

Solid Waste 
Recycling Fund 

Total Nonmajor 
Enterprise 

Funds 

Operating activities 
Cash received from customers 
Cash paid to or on behalf of employees for services 
Cash paid for goods and services 

Net cash provided by (used In) 
operating activities 

• 699.542 
(4.054,459) 
~2.388. 74 8) 

(5.743.665) 

• 2,809.632 
(1.250,562) 
1.145.894 

2.704.964 

S 2.791.829 
(20.824) 

p .S69.S86) 

801.319 

$ 6,30 1.003 
(5.325.845) 
p.212.54Ol 

12.237.382~ 

Noncapital financing activities 
Transfers In 
Federal and Stale grants 
T ranslers out 

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital 
financing activities 

Capital and related financing ilcUvities 
Proceeds .rom sale 01 assets 
Contributed capital received 
AcqUIsition and construction 01 capital assets 
PnnC1pal paid in debt maturities 
Inlerest paid on deb!. maturities 

Net cash provided (USed) by capital and 
related financing activities 

2,833,187 
2.050,348 

4.883.535 

138. 13 1 

138.1 31 

(427.245} 

(427 .245) 

2.833.)87 
2.188,479 
(427.245) 

4,594.421 

19,017 
3,592,128 

(3, 772.894) 
(19.573) 

p .438) 

(,82,760! 

30.552 
6.368.570 

(8.187.913) 

(1.788,791~ 

(37.480) 

P7,480} 

49,569 
9, 960.698 

(11.998,287) 
(19.573) 

(1 .438) 

(2.009. 0312 

Investing activities 
Interest and dividends 3.508 37.44 1 7.4 38 48.387 

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 3,508 37.441 7,438 48,387 

Net increase (d~rease) In cash and cash 
equivalentslinvestments (1,039.38 21 1,091 ,745 344.032 396.395 

Cash and cash equlvalentsfinveslJl'lents 
Beginning of year 1.315,89 0 7.343.81 4 805.215 9.464 ,919 

End of year $ 276,508 8,435.559 $ 1,149.247 9.861.314 

Cash and cash equivalents S 276.508 8.435,559 1.149,247 9,861.314 
Total cash and cash equivalents/Investments 276 .508 8,435,559 S 1,149 ,247 $ 9,861 .314 

Unrestricted cash and cash equlvalen ts/inveslments 276,508 S 6,598.925 1.149,247 8.024.680 
Restricted cash and equivalents/inveslments 1.836,63.4 1,836.634 

Total cash and cash equivalents/investments $ 276 .508 $ 8,435,559 $ 1,149,247 9,861,314• 
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CITY OF FAYETIeVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Combining Statement of Cash Flows 


Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 


Year Ended June 3D, 2012 


Total Nonmajor 
Transit Airport Solid Waste Enterprfse 
Fund Fund Reclclins: Fund Funds 

Reconciliation of Op9raling income (loss) 
to net cash provided by 
(used in) operating activities 
Operating Income (loss) S (6.638 ,293) $ (475.217) $ 139.868 S (6.973.642) 
Adjustments 10 reconCile opera ling income (loss) 

to nel cash provided by (used in) operating 
actIVities: 
Depreciallon 941,053 2.067,009 3.748 3.011.810 
Nonoperating payments for goods and selVices (437,684) (437 ,664) 
Nonopera1mg receipts from customers 649.4 71 990.731 467 ,848 2,108,050 

Change in assets and liabililles 
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (975,109) (2.523.309) 38,963 (3.459,455) 
(Increase) decrease in invefllOly (24,41 0) 1,662 (17.719) (<10 .467) 
(IncreaSe) decrease in prepaid ilems 
(Increase) Oe<:rease in unearned deposils 
(Increase) decrease in accounts payable 

and accrued liabilities 160.281 3.058.767 167 .178 3,386.226 
(InCrease) decrease in accrued compensated 

absences 33,890 (6,351) 757 28.296 
(InCrease) decrease in unearned revenues (4,492) (4.492) 
(Increase) decrease in Net OPES ObligCltlon 109,452 33.828 143,956.7. 

T alai adjustments 894 .628 3,180,181 661.'1 51 4.736,260 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (5.743.665) 2,704,964 S 801,319 (2.237.382) 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP) 

Transit Fund 


Year Ended June 30, 2012 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for Year Ended June 30, 2011) 


Operating revenues 
Charges for services 
Other revenues from operations 

Total operating revenues 

$ 

Budget 

878,424 
13,981 

892,405 

Variance 
Positive 

{Negative} 

$ 134,907 
(2 ,132) 

132,775 

$ 

2012 
Actual 

1,013,331 
11 ,849 

1,025,180 

$ 

2011 
Actual 

878,366 
13,088 

89 1,454 

Operating expenditures 
Salaries and employee benefits 
Other operating expenditures 

Total operating expenditures 

4,055,1 79 
2,236.452 
6,291 ,631 

720 
217,382 
21 8,1 02 

4,054 ,459 
2,019,070 
6,073,529 

3,678,756 
2, 075,001 
5,753,757 

Operating loss (5,399,226) 350,877 (5,048,349) (4,862,303) 

Nonoperating re venues (expenditures) 
Interest earned on investments 3, 508 3,508 
Federal grants 1,230,282 (36,386) 1,193,896 1,004,786 
State grants 552,496 122,502 674 ,998 587,762 
Vehicle fee revenue 623,750 1,532 625,282 612,880 
Interest expense (1,445) 7 (1,438) (1,843) 
Debt service - principal payment (19,573) (19,573) (19,174) 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenditures) 2,385,510 91,163 2,476,673 2,184,411 

Revenues under expenditures (3,013,716) 442,040 (2,571,6761 (2,677,892) 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 2,995,716 (440,076) 2,555,640 2,677 ,884 
Proceeds from sa le of assets 18,000 1,017 19,017 

Total other financing sources (uses) 3,013,716 (439,059) 2,574,657 2,677,864 

Revenues and other financing 

sources (uses) over (under) expenditures $ $ 2, 981 $ 2,981 $ (28) 


Reconciliation of change in net assets: 
Total revenues 
Total expenditures 

Subtotal 

$ 6,097 ,521 
(6,094,540) 

2,981 

$ 5,774 ,746 
(5,774, 774) 

(28) 

Depreciation 
Net OPEB expense 
Change in inventory 
Decrease (increase) in accrued vacation 
Bad debt expense 
Debt principal payments 
Deferred revenue 
Proceeds from sale of assets 
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets 

Subtotal 

(941,053) 
(109,452) 

8,284 
(33,890) 

(344) 
19,573 
24, 189 

(19,017) 
19,017 

p ,032,693) 

(754,462) 
(101,057) 

2,030 
(2,802) 

19,174 
32,725 

(804,3921 

Change in net assets $ (1 ,029) 12) $ (804,420) 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Changes in the Status of 

Trans it Capital Project Fund 


From Inception and for Year Ended June 30, 2012 


Project 
Authorization 

Prior 
Years 

Closed 
Projects 

Current 
Year 

Total 

Revenues 
Federal grants $ 10,729,025 $ 6,148,948 $ $ 2,936,538 $ 9,085,486 
State grants 1,147,545 315,157 655,590 970,747 
Miscellaneous 43,000 43,000 

Total revenues 11,876,570 6,507, 105 3,592,128 10,099,233 

Expenditures 
FT A Capital 0327 940,000 385,922 483,404 869,326 
FT A Capital 0406 270,209 159,222 96,309 255,531 
FTA Capital 0425 387,000 377,853 6,988 384,841 
FTA Capital 0444 
FTA Capital 04 .0027 1,880,844 1,888,832 5,130 1,873,962 
Multi-Modal Center (no grant) 372,144 278,387 655 279,042 
FTA Capital 0457 203,422 179,768 23,652 203,420 
NCDOT Capital 09-AT-004 419,012 394 ,084 394,084 
FTA Capital 0464 811,667 319,503 314,634 634 ,137 
Improvements & Enhancements (no grant) 466, 909 263,296 84,065 347,381 
New Freedom Sidewalks FY11 200,000 198,281 198,281 
Transit Multimodal Center Land 1,662, 307 628,809 545,597 1,174,406 
FT A Capital 90.469 2,856,131 1,931,964 1,931,964 
New Freedom Sidewalks FY12 145,426 
AR RA Capital 06.002 3,129,010 2,959,662 2,959,662 

Total expenditures 13,744,081 7,421,254 4,084,763 11 ,506,017 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (1,867,511 ) (914,149) (492,635) (1,406,784) 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Proceeds from the sale of assets 
Transfe rs in 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Revenues and other financing 
sources (uses) oyer (under) 
expenditures $ 

1,867,511 
1,867,511 

$ 

23,592 
1,793,764 
1,817,356 

903,207 $ $ 

257,547 
257,547 

(235,088) $ 

23,592 
2,051 ,311 
2,074,903 

668,11 9 

Reconciliation of modified accrual basis 
to full accrual basis: 
Excess of revenues over expenditures 
Capital outlay 
Non-capitalizable items 

Change in net assets 

$ 

$ 

(235,088) 
4,084,763 
(311 ,869) 

3, 537,806 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Changes in the Status of 

Transit II Capital Project Fund 


From Inception and for Year Ended June 30, 2012 


Project 
Authorization 

Prior 
Years 

Closed 
Projects 

Current 
Year 

Total 

Revenues 
Intergovernmental 

Federal grants 
State grants 

Total intergovernmental 

$ 1,025,946 
128,243 

1,154,189 

$ 615,477 
76,934 

692,411 

$ $ 161,293 
20,161 

181,454 

$ 776,770 
97,095 

873,865 

Total revenues 1,154,189 692,411 181,454 873,865 

Expenditures 
Current 

Transportation 1,282,433 769,343 201 ,620 
Total expenditures 1,282,433 769,343 201 ,620 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (128,244) (76,932) (20,166) (97,098) 

Ottler financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 128,244 128,244 20,000 148,244 

Total other financing sources (uses) 128,244 128,244 20,000 148,244 

Revenues and other financing 
sources (uses) over (under) 
expenditures $ $ 51,312 $ $ (166) $ 51,146 

Reconciliation of modified accrual basis 
to full accrual basis: 
Excess of revenues over expenditures S (166) 

Change in net assets $ (166) 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Expenditures by Project 

Transit II Capital Project Fund 


From Inception and for Year Ended June 30, 2012 


Expenditures by project: 

,Transportation 
FTA 90.2406 
FTA 90.2425 
FTA 90.2453 
FTA 90.2464 
FTA 90.2469 

Total transportation 

Total expenditures by project 

Project 
Authorization 

$ 	 292,300 
181,750 
300,000 
273,236 
235,147 

1,282,433 

$ 1,282,433 

Prior 

Years 


$ 278,868 
156,618 
236,250 
97,607 

769,343 

$ 769,343 

Closed Current 
Projects Year 

$ $ 	 11,413 
23,988 
43,975 
93,364 
28,880 

201,620 

$ $ 201,620 

Total 

$ 290,281 
180,606 
280,225 
190,971 
28,880 

970,963 

$ 970,963 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP) 

Airport Fund 


Year Ended June 30, 2012 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for Year Ended June 30, 2011) 


Variance 
Positive 2012 2011 

Budset {Nesative) Actual Actual 
Operating revenues 

Charges for services $ 4,037,711 $ 135,994 $ 4,173,705 $ 3,987,507 
Other revenues from operations 149.448 23,549 172,997 169,956 

To(al operating revenues 4,187,159 159,543 4,346,702 4,157.463 

Operating expenditures 
Salaries and employee benefits 1,290,287 39,725 1,250,562 1,216,945 
Other operating expenditures 1,819,448 360,716 1,458,732 1,308,870 
Capital outlay 370.419 46,180 324,239 192,388 

Total operating expenditures 3.480,154 446,621 3,033,533 2,718,203 

Operating income (loss) 707,005 606,164 1,313,169 1,439,260 

Nonoperating revenues 
Interest earned on investments 
Miscellaneous 
Federal and Slate grants 

Total nonoperating revenues 

32.400 
84,298 

146,583 
263,281 

(11.767) 
(529) 

(8,452) 
(20,748) 

20,633 
83.769 

138,131 
242,533 

24,355 
84 ,297 

144,153 
252,805 

Nonoperating expenditures 
Interest expense 
Debt service - principal payment 
Public safety reimbursements 

Total nonoperating expenditures 
437,665 
437,665 

437,664 
437,664 

9,068 
213,918 
395,750 
618,736 

Revenues over (under) expenditures 532,621 585,417 1.118,038 1 ;073,329 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Proceeds from sale ot assets 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 
Appropria ted fund balance 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

(1,208,491) 
675,870 

(532,621 ) 

5,552 
21,034 
44,067 

(675,870) 
(605,217) 

5,552 
21 ,034 

(1,164,424) 

(1,137,838) 

11,727 
30,075 

(734,677) 

(692,875) 

Revenues and other financing sources 
(uses) over (under) expenditures $ $ (19,800) $ (19,800) $ 380.454 

Reconciliation of change in net assets 
Total revenues 
Total expenditures 

Subtotal 

$ 4,615,821 
4,635,621 

(19,800) 

$ 4,452,070 
4,071,616 

380.454 

Depreciation 
Change in accrued vacation 
Change in inventory 
Capital outlay 
Proceeds from sale of assets 
Gain (k)ss) on disposal of assets 
Principal payment 
Bad debt expense 
Net OPEB expense 

Subtotal 

(2,067 ,009) 
6,351 

(1,662) 
324,239 

(5,552) 
5,552 

(15,904) 
(33,828) 

(1,787,813) 

(1,677.475) 
(1,142) 
1,897 

192,388 
(11,727) 
11,727 

213,918 

(34,649) 
(1 ,305,063) 

Change in net assets $ (1,807,613) $ (924,609) 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Schedule of Changes in the Status of 

Airport Capital Project Fund 


From Inception and for Year Ended June 30, 2012 


Project Prior Closed Current 
Authorizati on Years Projects Year Total 

Revenues 
Federal grants $ 24,087,642 $ 16,545, 127 $ 3,226,008 $ 6,217,220 $ 19,536,339 
Slate grants 923,809 980,092 276.561 151,350 854,881 
Passenger facili ty charges 1,389.763 2,704,524 62,900 906,962 3,548,586 
Investment income 88,303 16,808 339,731 

Total revenues 26.489.517 3,565,469 7,292,340 24,279,537 

Expenditures 
Siom Wa ter Improvements 227,920 227,920 
AIP-30 Loop, Building. Beacon 3,558,021 3,340,963 3,340,963 
AIP-31 Airport Fire Training Facility 1,257,990 1,257,990 
AIP-32 Airport Improvement ProjeC1s 738,420 714,656 2,214 716,870 
West GA Ra mp Rehabilitation 746,378 720,983 720.983 
AIP-33 Airfie ld Lighting Vault 2,090,066 2,090,066 
Taxiway A Rehabilitation 206,7 10 
AIP-35 ARFF Re habilitation and AIP-36 1,693,090 1,506,150 3,148 1,509,298 
Vegetation Management Project 54,000 54,000 
Visual Navigational Aide 11,600 11,600 
Local Match/Future Projects 349,000 
AIP-34 Runway 4/22 Rehabilitation 7,161,016 6,738,790 248,342 6,987,132 
Fingerprint Machine Replacement 13,772 13,772 
Tree Clearing Runways 10 & 4 250,000 30,643 168,166 198,809 
Taxiway A, C, D, F Rehabilitation 7,190,279 1,728,569 4,535,988 6,264, 557 
Airport Land Acquisition 699,949 699,949 
ARFF Airport Vehicle 700,000 695,26 1 695,261 
AIP-38 Apron Rehab, Taxiway 5,243,379 1,735,93 1 1,735,931 
Renovation of Airport Park ing 1,542,969 1,431,060 4,679 1.435,739 
Jetbridge 4 Replacement 489,500 467,917 467,917 
Stormdrain Pipe Installa tion 115,000 2,600 2,600 
GA Fence Replacement 175,000 
North GA Parki ng 165,000 
Runway 4 Safety Area FAA Reimbursement 71,779 

Total expenditures 30,395,541 20,567,111 4,355,297 7,864,246 24,076,060 

Revenues over (u nder) expendi tures (3,906,024) (14,445) (789,828) (571,906) 203,477 

Other fina ncrng sou rces (uses) 
Transfers in 
Transfers oul 
Proceeds from sale of assets 

Total other fi nancing sources (uses) 

3,996,797 
(94,057) 

3,284 
3,906,024 

3,669,942 
(120,763) 

3,284 
3,552,46 3 

837,569 
(47,74 1) 

789,828 

1,164,424 
(21,034) 
25,000 

1,168,390 

3,996,797 
(94,056) 
28,284 

3,931,025 

Revenues and other financing sources 
(uses) over (under) expenditures S $ 3,538,01 8 $ S 596,484 S 4,134,502 

Reconciliation of modified accrual 
basis to full accrual basis: 
Excess of revenues over expenditu(es 
Capital outlay 
Non-capitalizable items 

Change in net assets 

$ 

$ 

596,484 
7,864 ,246 

(573) 

8, 460,1 57 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP) 

Solid Waste Recycling Fund 


Year Ended June 30, 2012 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for Year Ended June 30, 2011) 


Budget 
Variance 
Positive 

(Nesative) 

2012 
Actual 

2011 
Actual 

Operating revenues 
Charges for services 
Other revenue from operations 

Total operating revenues 

$ 2,261 ,627 
8,000 

2,269,627 

$ 12,081 
915 

12,996 

$ 2,273,708 
8,915 

2,282,623 

$ 2,259,190 
8,331 

2,267,521 

Operating expenditures 
Personnel 
Other operating expenditures 
Capital outtay 

Total operating expenditures 

23,800 
2,192,282 

37,480 
2,253,562 

2,976 
73,137 

76 ,113 

20,824 
2,119,145 

37,480 
2,177,449 

1,926,760 

1,926,760 

Operating income (loss) 16,065 89,109 105,174 340,761 

Nonoperating revenues (expenditures) 
County revenue 
Miscellaneous 
Interest earned on investments 

Nonoperating revenues (expenditures) 

298,180 
105,000 

8,000 
411 ,180 

1,345 
63,323 

(562) 
64,106 

299,525 
168,323 

7,438 
475,286 

298,005 
119,608 

6,634 
424,247 

Revenues over (under) expenditures 427,245 153,215 580,460 765,008 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 
(427,245) 
(427,245) 

(427,245) 
(427,245) 

Revenues and other financing sources 
(uses) over (under) expenditures $ $ 153,215 $ 153,215 $ 338.078 

Reconciliation of change in net assets 
Total revenues 
Total expenditures 

Subtotal 

Depreciation 
Change in accrued vacation 
Net OPEB expense 
Deferred revenue 
Capital outlay 

Subtotal 

$ 2,757,909 
2,604,694 

153,215 

(3,748) 
(757) 
(676) 

2,395 
37,480 
34,694 

$ 2,691,768 
2,353,690 

338,078 

7,657 

7,657 

Change in net assets $ 187,909 $ 345,735 
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Internal 
Service Funds 

Internal Service Funds account for the financing of services 
provided by one department or agency to other departments or 
agencies of the City on a cost reimbursement basis. 

The following comprise the City's Internal Service Funds: 

• Insurance Fund 

• PWC Fleet Maintenance Fund 

All Internal Service Funds are accounted for using the accrual basis 

of accounting. 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Combining Balance Sheet 

Internal Service Funds 


June 30, 2012 


Assets 
Current assets 

Cash and investments 
Accounts receivable 
Interfund receivable 
Prepaid expenses 

Total current assets 

$ 

Insurance 
Fund 

18,437,395 
15,731 

386,128 
18,839,254 

PWC 
Fleet 

Maintenance 
Fund 

$ 
1,367,081 
(173,664) 

1,193,417 

$ 

Total 

18,437,395 
1,382,812 
(173,664) 
386,128 

20,032,671 

Noncurrent assets 
Capital assets 

Total noncurrent assets 
2,128,440 
2,128,440 

2,128,440 
2,128,440 

Total assets $ 18,839,254 $ 3,321,857 $ 22,161,111 

Liabilities and net assets 
Current liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Current portion of long-term debt 

Total current liabilities 

$ 2,620,389 
6,443 

2,626,832 

$ 384 ,606 
102,943 
487,549 

$ 3,004,995 
109,386 

3,114,381 

Noncurrent liabilities 
Net OPEB obligation 
Unearned revenues 
Long-term debt 

Total noncurrent liabilities 

66,147 
10,833 

76,980 

318,870 

40,602 
359,472 

385,017 
10,833 
40,602 

436,452 

Total liabilities 2,703,812 847,021 3,550,833 

Net assets 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Unrestricted 

Total net assets 
16,135,442 
16,135,442 

2,128,440 
346,396 

2,474,836 

2,128,440 
16,481 ,838 
18,610,278 

Total liabilities and net assets $ 18,839,254 $ 3,321 ,857 $ 22,161,111 

M-1 
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CITY OF FAYETIeVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets 

Internal Service Funds 


Year Ended June 30, 2012 


Insurance 
Fund 

pwe 
Fleet 

Maintenance 
Fund Total 

Operating revenues 
Other revenue from operations 
Interfund charges and em pjoyee contributions 
Miscellaneous operating revenues 

Total operating revenues 

• 1.092,686 
15.149.692 

16.242,378 

• 7.444. 739 

1.390 
7.446.1 29 

$ 8.537.425 
15,149,692 

1,390 
23,688,507 

Operating expenses 
Salaries and employee benefits 
Other operating expenses 
Deprecialion 

Total operating expenses 

291.121 
14.350,769 

14.641,890 

7,337,736 
124. 7'27 

7,462.463 

291 .121 
21.688.505 

124,727 
22.104.353 

Operating income (loss) 1,600.488 (16.334) 1.584.154 

Nonopera ting revenue (expense) 
Interest eamed on investments 
Miscellaneous revenue 
Gam (loss) on disposal of capital assets 

Total nonoperating revenue (expense) 

90,8 16 
2,279 

93,095 
16,334 
16,334 

90,816 
2,279 

16,334 
109.429 

Income (loss) before transfers 
and contributions 1,693,583 1,693.583 

Transfers in 
Change in net assets 

500,183 
2,193,766 

594.334 
594.334 

1,094.517 
2.788,1 00 

Tota l net assets - beg inning 13,941.676 1,880.502 15.822.178 

Total net assets - ending $ 16,135,442 2,474.836 18.610,278 
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CITY OF FAYEneVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Combining Statement of Cash Flows 

Internal Service Funds 


Year Ended June 30, 2012 


Insurance 
Fund 

pwe 
Fleet 

Maintenance 
Fund Total 

Operating activl tles 
Cash received trom CUSlomefS 
CaSh received 'rom Insurance reimbursements 
Cash paid to or on behalf of employees for services 
Cash paid IOf goods and selVtces 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
operating activities 

S 15,160,105 
1,092,686 
(283 .793) 

\14571.332) 

1.397,666 

$ 6,971 ,589 

(2.214,1 69) 
{4.7GB,547) 

{11,427! 

$ 22 ,131 ,694 
; ,092,686 

(2.497,962) 
{19. 340. H91 

1.386.239 

Noncapital financing activitie s 
Transfers In 

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital 
financing activities 

500, 183 

SOO,183 

594,334 

594,334 

1,094,511 

1,094.517 

Capital and related financing activities 
Proceeds from sale of assets 
AcquiSition and conslruCllon of capital assets 

Net cash pro.... rdfHt (used) by capital and 
related financing acti .... ities 

16.334 
(599.241) 

~582.907~ 

16,334 
(599.24 1) 

~582.907} 

Investing activities 
Inlerest and dividends 90,816 90, 816 

Net cash pro.... ided (used) by Investing activities 90,816 90,816 

Net Increase (decrease) In cash and cash 
equ ivalentsfinvestmenls 1.988.865 1,988,665 

Cash and cash equivalentslin....estmenlS 
Beginning of year 16,448.730 16.448,730 

End of year • 16.437,395 • S 18.437.39 5 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Total cash and cash equivalentslinvestments 

$ 

$ 

18,437,395 
18.437.395 

$ 

S 
•• 

18.437,395 
18. 437.395 

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalenlslin .... estments 
Total cash and cash equivalentslinvestments 

S 
$ 

$ 
$ 

$

• 
Reconciliation of operating income (loSS) 

to net cash provided by 
(used In) operating activiti es 
Operating income (loss) S 1.600,488 S (16.334) S 1,584,154 
Adjustmenls to reconcile operaling income (loss) 

to nel cash provided by (used in) operating 
activities: 
Depreciallon 124.726 124,726 
Nonoperating rece ipts from cuslomers 2.279 2,279 
Gain (loss) on sale 01' capital assets 16,334 16,334 

Change in assets and liabililles 
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 8,440 (474,540) (466.100) 
(Increase) decrease in prepaid items (47. 917) (47 ,917) 
(Increase) decrease in internal balances 476.506 478,506 
(Increase) decrease in aceounts payable 

and accrued liabilities (172.646) (114,629) (287.275) 
(Increase) decrease in accrued compensatoo 

absences (950) (23.490) (Z4,440) 
(Increase) decrease in unearned fCvenues (306) (306) 
(Increase) decrease in Net OPES Obligation 

Net cash pro.... ided by (used in) operating activities • 
8.278 

1,397.666 $ (1 1.427) • 
8,278 

386.239 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROUNA 

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP) 

Insurance Fund 


Year Ended June 30, 2012 

(Wilh Comparalive Aclual Amounls for Year Ended June 30, 2011) 


Variance 
Positive 2012 2011 

Budgel (Negalive) AClual Actual 

Operating revenues 
Other revenues from operations 
lnterfund charges and employee contributions 

Total operating revenues 

$ 108,947 
15,993,473 
16,102,420 

$ 983,739 
(843,781) 
139,958 

$ 1,092,686 
15,149,692 
16, 242,378 

$ 371,497 
14,912,635 
15,284,132 

Operating expenditures 
Salaries and employee benefils 
Other operating expenditures 

Total operating expenditures 

286,975 
17,287,226 
17,574,201 

3,182 
2,906,068 
2,909,250 

283,793 
14,381 ,158 
14,664,951 

326,468 
13,235,448 
13,561,916 

Operating income (loss) (1 ,471, 781) 3,049,208 1,577,427 1,722,216 

Nonoperating revenues (expenditures) 
Interest earned on investments 126,500 (35,684) 90,816 87,039 
Miscellaneous 2,279 2,279 3,860 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenditures) 126,500 (33,405) 93,095 90,899 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (1,345,281) 3,015,803 1,670,522 1,813,115 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 500,183 500,183 439,641 
Appropriated fund balance 845,098 (845,098) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 1,345,281 (845,098) 500,183 439,641 

Revenues and other financing sources (uses) 
over (under) expenditures $ $ 2,170,705 $ 2,170, 705 $ 2,252 ,756 

Reconciliation to change in net assets: 
Total revenues 
Total expenditures 

Subtotal 

$ 16,835,656 
14,664,951 
2,170, 705 

$ 15,814,672 
13,561,916 
2,252,756 

Decrease (increase) in accrued vacation 
Change in net OPES expense 
Decrease (increase) in insurance liability 

Subtotal 

950 
(8,278) 
30,389 
23,061 

11 ,053 
(8,953) 

(139,381 ) 
(137,281 ) 

Change in net assets $ 2,193,766 $ 2,115,475 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non GAAP)­
PWC Fleet Maintenance Fund 


Year ended June 30, 2012 

(with comparati ....e actual amounts for the period ended June 3D, 2011) 


Revenues 
Operating revenues 

City sefVlces 
PWC services 
Other revenue 

Tota l operating revenues 

$ 

Budlaet 

5,045.130 
2.296,600 

7,341.730 

$ 

2012 
Variance 
Pos itive 

{Negative} 

359,252 
(258.840) 

3.987 
104,399 

$ 

2012 
Actual 

5, 404.382 
2,037.760 

3.987 
7,446,1 29 

$ 

2011 
Actual 

5,333,948 
2,134, 791 

3.995 
7,472,734 

Non-operating revenues 
Gain ([oss) on asset disposal 

T ata l non-operating revenues 
16,334 
16,334 

16.334 
16.334 

2,834 
2.834 

Total revenues $ 7.341,730 $ 120,733 $ 7.462.463 $ 7.475,568 

ExpenditLires 
Operating expenditures 

Fleet maintenance 
Total operating expenditures 

S 7.341, 730 
7,341,730 

$ 147 .153) 
147.153) 

$ 7.294 ,577 
7,294,577 

$ 7.273.943 
7,273.943 

Budgetary appropriations 
Capital outlay 45 4732

Total budgetary appropriations 45473 

Total expenditures $ 7,341 ,730 $ 147.153) $ 7,294,577 S 7,319,4 16 

Reconciliation of changes in net assets 
T otat revenues 
Total expenditures 

Subtota l 

$ 7,462.463 
7,294.577 

167.886 

S 7,475,568 
7,319,4 16 

156,152 

Reconciling items; 
Budgetary appropriations 
Depreciation 
OPEB expense 

Tota l rec onciling items 

594,334 
(124.727) 

(43.159) 
426,448 

45,473 
(115,026) 

186.599) 
(156.1 52) 

Change in net assets $ 594 .334 $ 
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Fiduciary Funds 

• Pension Trust Funds 

• Private-Purpose Trust Funds 

The focus of Fiduciary Fund measurement differs among the 
various types of funds that may be encompassed by this 
classification. 



Trust Funds 

Trust Funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a 

trustee capacity. 


The following comprise the City's Trust Funds: 


• 	 Pension Trust Funds 

- Special Separation Allowance Trust Fund 

• 	 Private-Purpose Trust Funds 


- Police Benefit Trust Fund 


- Firemen's Relief Trust Fund 




CtTY OF FAYETTEVtLLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets 

Pension Trust Fund 


June 30, 2012 


Assets 
Cash and investments 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Total cash and investments 

Accounts receivable 

Total assets 


Liabilities 
Accounts payable 

Total liabilities 

Net assets 
Held in Trust for: 

Pension benefits 
Total net assets 

Special 

Separation 

Allowance 

Pension 


Trust Fund 


$ 2,596,407 
2,596,407 

1,773 

2,598,180 

26,098 
26,098 

2,572,082 
$ 2,572,082 

N-1 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets 

Pension Trust Fund 


Year Ended June 30, 2012 


Special 
Separation 
Allowance 

Pension 
Trust Fund 

Additions 
Employer conlri butions $ 686, 544 
Investmenl earnings 12,971 

Tota l additions 699,515 

Deductions 
Benefit payments and premiums 53 1,202 

Total deductions 531,202 

Change in net assets 168,313 

Total net assets - beginning 2,403,769 

Total net assets - ending $ 2,572,082 

N-2 



CITY OF FAYEITEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets 

Private-purpose Trust Funds 


June 30, 2012 


Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable 

Total assets 

Liabilities 

Net assets 
Held in Trust for benefits and other purposes 

Total net assets 

Police Firemen's 

Benefit Benefit 


Trust Fund Trust Fund Total 


$ 335 $ 1,374 ,145 $ 1,374,480 
4,020 4,020 

335 1,378,165 1,378,500 

335 1,378,165 1,378,500 
$ 335 $ 1,378,165 $ 1,378,500 

N-3 




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets 

Private-purpose Trust Funds 


Year Ended June 30, 2012 


Police 
Benefit 

Trust Fund 

Firemen's 
Benefit 

Trust Fund Total 

Additions 
Contributions 
Investment earnings 

Total additions 

$ $ 110,606 
11,114 

121,720 

$ 110,606 
11,114 

121,720 

Deductions 
Benefit payments and premiums 

Total deductions 
124,675 
124,675 

124,675 
124,675 

Change in net assets (2,955) (2,955) 

Total net assets - beginning 335 1,381,120 1,381,455 

Total net assets - ending $ 335 $ 1,378,165 $ 1,378,500 
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Other 
Supplemental 
Financial Data 

Other supplemental data is presented to provide a more detailed 
view of the current tax levy and taxes receivable. 

These schedules are not funds and do not measure results of 
operations. 



CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Current Tax Levy 

Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Total 
Property 
Valuation 

Rate 
PO' 

$100 
Amount 
of Le~ 

Property 
Excluding 
Registered 

Motor 
Vehicles 

Registered 
Motor 

Vehicles 

Or1ginal Levy: 
General Fund 
General Fund Deferred Property Taxes{11 

$ 13,234,439,736 

401 ,246 
S 0.456 

0000 
S 60,349,045 S 54,492 ,818 S 5 ,856 ,227 

\...ale listing Penalties. 
General Fund 

Subtotal 
36,255 

60.385,300 
36,255 

54.529,073 5,856.227 

Discoveries: 
General Fund 70,734,561 0456 322,550 31 2,046 10,504 

Late listing PenallJes' 
General Fund 

Subtotal 
66.0 18 

388,568 
66,018 

378.064 10,504 

Releas es 
General Fund (166.472,930) 0.456 (759,117) (162, 528) (596,589) 

Late listing Penalties' 
General Fund 

Subtotal 
{23.8531 

(782.9701 
{23.8S31 

(186,381) (596,589) 

Adjusted Tax Levy 59.990.898 54.720,756 5.270,142 

Uncollected Current Year Taxes at 6/30/201 2 ~1,397,8891 !408.341) j989.54Bl 

City-wide Current Year's Taxes Collected $ 58,593.009 $ 54,312,415 $ 4 ,280,594 

City-wide Current Levy Collection Percentage 97 .67% 99.25% 81 .22% 

(a) Pursuant to N.C.G.S 105-2n 1B, properties Subject to tax defelTal under the Property TaJ( Homestead Circuil Breakel 

0-1 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Taxes Receivable 

June 30, 2012 

Uncollected Uncollected 
Balance Additions Balance 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 & Releases Collections June 30, 2012 

2012 $ $ 59,990 ,898 $ 58,593,009 $ 1,397,889 

2011 1,389 ,425 (113,551) 940,581 335,293 

2010 320,790 (9,345) 62,041 249,404 

All Prior 1,711,705 (148,975) 67,677 1,495,053 
3,421,920 $ 59,719,027 $ 59,663,308 3,477,639 

Less: Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes 
General Fund (818,172) (747,527) 

$ 2,603,748 $ 2,730,112 

General Fund Taxes Receivable $ 3,051,196 
Less: CBTD Taxes Receivable (4,967) 
Less: Vehicle License Fee Receivable (316,117) 

General Fund Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable $ 2,730, 112 

Reconciliations of collections and credit 
with revenues 

Ad Valorem Taxes per the fund financial statements $ 60,089,099 
Less Penalties & Interest (290,240) 
Less Taxes - CBTD (131,024) 
Less Taxes - Lake Valley Dr MSD (4,527) 
Less Barred by Stalule 

General Fund Ad Valorem Taxes $ 59 ,663,308 

0-2 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
STATISTICAL SECTION 

(Unaudited) 

This part of the City of Fayetteville's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents detailed 
information as a context for understanding how the information in the financial statements, 
note disclosures, ana required supplementary information depicts the government's 
overall fmancial health. 

CONTENTS 

Financial Trends 
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how 
the government's financial performance has changed over time. 

Revenue Capacity 
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader assess the City's 

most significant local revenue source. 

Debt Capacity 
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader assess the affordability 
of the City's current levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to 
issue additional debt in the future. 

Demographic and Economic Information 
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader 
understand the environment within which the City's financial activities 
take place. 

Operating Information 
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand 
how the information in the City's financial report relates to the services 
the City provides and the activities it performs. 

Sources: Unless othenwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the relevant year. 



City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
Net Assets by Component 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(accrual basis of accounting) 

(Unaudited) 

Schedule 1 

2003 2004 "-OS-­ Fiscal Year 
200S --­'-007 2008 2009 2010 201 I 

-
2012 

Gove rnmental Activihes 
Inves ted In I:8pilal assels. net of re lated debl 
Restricted lor: 

, 258.851l .830 , 252.737.261 • 263.057.769 $ 351.1 70.168 , 353.407.779 $ 354.482.766 • 351 .059.848 , 349.626 .575 , 358.665,197 , 146.265.456 

Capital projects 1.047,622 
Oil'll!! purposes 2.369.817 2.446.529 2}02,7 13 3,525.148 35,632.753 26.200.123 
Grant compliance I .8S3,445 1.885.171 3.225. 781 

Unreslflcted 
Total governmental a c\i\ll\le s net assets 

53.401.259 , 310.250.089 
80.1 10 .564 , 315,217 .842 

63.005.01 6 , 328,509.314 
69.389.779 , 423.242,660 

73.912.222

• 430.645,149 
70.335.9 14 , 427,7 49.747 , 72.912.216 

425,657,235 , 69.673.837 
42 2.126.293 

37.909,246 , 432.407,1 95 , 43.633.5 14 
41 6,099, 103 

Business" ype a cliville s 
Invested In capllal a ssets, net of re lated debl 
Res tricted IOf: 

• 364.181,31 8 , 384,135,802 , 426,048.564 • 432,390.389 , 459.237, 550 $ 505,941.437 , 524 .282,726 $ 572,740.1 21 , 612,211 .243 , 635.244.Q18 

Capita l projects 10,953.452 51 2.536 527.965 420.040 2.075,210 943,364 806.982 1.761 ,371 t ,958, 397 
Oebt service 25.695 8,998.44./1 817,633 806.520 816,070 11,462 2,743 41,256 41 .390 40,952 
Olher plKllose s 10.501.859 
Grant comp~ance 

UOfestncted 
Total bus!'le5s-type aChvi lies net assets 

69.185,451 
$ 464.494,323 

71 .918.803 

• 476,007.501 
73, 155.311 , 500.5~.044 

97,657.37 4 , 531.384 ,248 
121,366,653 

• 581.840,313 
122,199.694

• 830,226,012 
148,697.773 , 673,906,606 , 162. 197,81 9 

735.166,180 
186,407.194 , 800,421 ,798 

259,366.Ql 2 

• 896.609,379 

Primary Government 
Invested in capital assels. ne t of rela ted debt 
Restricled for: 

• 641.040,148 • 836,874.063 , 689,1 06,333 • 783.560.557 • 612,645,329 • 660,424,203 , 875,322,574 , 922.368. 796 , 97 0,876,440 , 961,509,4 84 

Capilal Pfojects 10,953,4 52 512.538 527.985 420,040 3 ,122,841 943.384 808.982 1.161 ,37 1 1,958.397 
Oebt service 25,895 8,998,444 61 7,633 808.520 816.Q70 11 ,462 2.743 41 ,256 41,390 40.952 
Olt\er purposes 10.501,859 2.369,817 2,446,529 2.702,7 13 3.525,148 35,832,753 26,200,12 3 
Gram compliance 1,883,445 1,885,171 3,225.181 

Ullresl riC ted 
Towl primary govemmonl net assets $ 

123.188,710 
774 .1 54.41 2 S 

132,029,367 
791.225.1 43 

136.160.327 , 829 .043,358 
187,027 ,153

• 954 .628.908 
195 .278.875 

$ 1.012,685.462 $ 
192,535,808 

1.057,977 ,759 S 
22 1,609,969 

1,099,763.841 S 
232,071 .556 

1. 158.514 ,473 
224.317,040 

$ 1,232 .628.994 
302.999.526 

$ 1.312 ,708,482 

P-l 



City of Fayetteville , North Carolina 


Changes in Net Assets 


Last Ten Fiscal Years 


(accrual basis of accountIng) 


(Unaudited) 


Schedule 2 

Fiscal Ye~ r 

~ 2004 2006 2<)" 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 
EllHlnses 
Governmenlel AcWlIl8S 

AdmlfllslraliOn 12.38J,637 S 10,560,621 , 11,541,&35 13,268,565 19,032,812 S 19,090,122 S 11,815,439 S 19,932.008 20,162,810 , 21,6n,385 
PublIC salety 40,5n ,181 43.682,505 47,285,632 52,152,676 56,609,52 1 83,458,091 54,355,111 72. 106,569 70,903,587 72.116,645 
Environmental Pfol$Clion 7,957,251 8,87 1,462 7, 514,882 9,940,411 11 ,000,841 12.1 26,391 12,046.837 11 ,098,182 14,635.753 6,369,933 
Transponallon 12.123,658 13,&46,642 14,016.133 17,115,971 18.102,0 14 20,386,537 18,965,800 20,29 1,43 1 19.233,330 19,948,0 19 
EconomiC and pflyslClII dtwelopmet'll 5,459.943 4.4 16,4n 5,827,998 5,132,048 1,229,375 4,558,635 4,532, 166 5,371.176 9,323,817 5,568,559 
RecreaUOh and commUrljty lacllities 6,525,686 6,13<1,504 9,305,228 1O,501,6n 14,020,434 12,11 3,546 12,880,611 13, 117,175 12,992,237 13,490,480 
Debt ServICe: 

Interasl and lees 2,783,9\2 2.542,194 2,541 ,380 2,766.700 2,62 1,502 2,061.409 1.981.641 1,693,633 1,565.197 1.454,554 
TOlal govemmcntal aCllvitles 87,81 2,260 90,054,611 9&,135,716 111,498,134 123,2 16,559 133,795,431 132,579.405 143,610,274 149,437,531 142,537,575 

Business Iype acwilies 
Electric 142,761,4Q.) 132,6n, I li 131 ,305, 788 1:37,856,324 130,839,305 137,561,749 144,7 14.1 14 142,995,626 149.100,92 1 146,116,831 
Waler and wastewater 45,973,455 44,147, 344 45, 275.516 45,659,650 49,623,073 52}67, 11:3 65, 163,237 69,063,071 6O}A3)59 65, 169,196 

Storm waler m~nagemenl' NlA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA 2.69 1,487 
Tran~1 5,073,264 5,021,030 4.910,142 4,864,135 A,864.526 5,56-4,011 5,975, 160 6,230,A49 6,647,47 1 7,6GoI.91 1 
AI_ 3,570,760 3,450,196 3,808,671 3,169,259 A,091,032 3,986.357 4,329,383 A,589,767 <1 ,660,624 5,259,563 
Solid wa5te racycl lflQ 1.945,629 1.9\9,316 1,944, 210 1,926,760 2,1~5,150 

Tola) buslness·type acWtlies 197,376,902 165,295,681 185,298,119 192,349,368 189,417.935 201,844,659 222,101,612 224,613,123 223,899,535 229,247,158 
Tolel pl"Iffi8('fQOvemment 285,191,162 275,350,292 263,433,8J7 $ 3OO.SJ7 ,502 S 312,634,495 335,640,290 S 354,68 1,217 366,433,397 S 373,337,066 S 371,654,733 

ProgT1llm Revenues 
Govert'lm!fl18l Adlvilies 
AcilJlJnlslralioll 
Cflarges for selVlCes 670,144 719,692 , 726,45 1 S 702,004 800,275 S 755,883 S 666,572 S 830.193 996,905 S 1,024,970 
Operaling gl'1W1IS and con:ribul!(lns 5,325 5,215 7,501 5,632 32,296 63,268 7,26A 30,000 31.14 1 3,585 
Capital grants end ConlntlUtlOOS 

Public Safety 
CI'lar9l!s lor sel'llteS 1,68:3,207 2, 1:38,108 2,681.753 4,4.116,932 3,706,443 3,213,741 3,51 2,402 3,648,358 3,906,523 A, A73,761 
Operating grants and con lnCUIlOrlS 1.11 3,043 1,345,821 2..469,423 A80,476 673, 108 309,009 1,111,2 18 2.754,654 3,669,A26 3,078,134 
Cap!lal grants end COI'I\ril)!J iJons 133,554 5,750 5\4,389 387,540 95,667 A5, 154 33,802 5,408 560, 157 27,563 

Ellv/ronme/lfa/ Protecl/OII 
Charges for $(IlVlCes 52,591 66,1 50 23,956 oo,m 40,785 3,418,607 3,494,076 5,321,692 5,313,076 192,595 
Operating granls and oontributlOns 2,259,339 2,300,690 2,330,964 75,000 2.750,040 272.362 
Cepital 91anIS and conlllbvlJOl'lS 520,597 261 ,056 593,228 

Transpof1allon 
Ch8fg3s lor servICes 1.1 46,925 1,454,034 1,468,881 537,061 1,22<1,243 862,698 1 ,048,3~ 924,304 1,44 2,070 1,266,666 
OpeNwng grents end contfibl.i lions 3,919.568 3,920,822 4,254,601 3,633,510 5,710,433 5,954.823 5,545,029 5,509,654 5,2 11,073 5,31 1,546 

Ca%)ilal granls and conlnbulions 98.185 13,446 155,A09 65,372 96,757 204,583 3,511.119 
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City of Fayettev ille, North Carolina 

Changes In Net Assets 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(accrual basis of accounting) 

(Unaudited) 

Schedule 2 

Fllcal v,,,, 

~ 200. 20M 2006 2007 2008 200. 20,. 2011 2012 
EconomIC and plJ~rC81 de'f8k>pment 
Cnarges for se l"YlC6s S 79,367 S 1,073,627 S 715,099 S 57,172 S S 70,995 S 320,748 S 562,138 
Qpefll1ing grants end conlntluliOrls 3,262,965 1,792,478 2,743,690 '.742,466 1,776,640 2,364,262 1,626,540 2,396,646 3,067,922 3,061,017 
Capltet grants end conlnOutioos 1,526,900 2, 060,539 2.423.512 1.153,365 336.664 30.913 383,277 503,61 4 84 7,788 

RecrNllon and community fa '~"19s 
Cl'lerges lot se f'/Ices 394,012 436.338 756,462 4,15 1,275 3,751,071 3,673,02 1 4,012,612 4.428,944 4,557,373 4,714,656­
OJ)erellng 9rants and conuibuUons 309,789 107,567 3,572.557 60,386 45,213 56,292 l5,644 105.460 123,063 140.384 
Cap;tet 9rams aM conlr1blJllons 1,162.740 992,963 2,161,506 2.622,609 781 ,410 1,312,932 2.642,557 10,696,075 2,004,325 

In/aresl end fees 
Op9(ating granls all(! conlnbulions 318.310 

TO liJl QO\' emmentel ee~vllle, program, 12,9~O,530 15~755,466_ .£2.968,2~5 21 ,14~, 217 23~919.355_ 24,515.031 25.255,918 29,755,176 44,179,153 

8uSlnes.s-lype aClivillEw 
ElectrlC 

Charges lor sef'/ices 145,617.727 141 ,96 1,920 146,069,329 155,m,020 159,&<17,302 166,699,655 169.451.426 173,192,601 194,611.519 197.658,327 
()(Ieralif'lg grants ano COOtribuUOO5 
Cap!1a1grants end coolribullons 3,532,702 116,166 951.384 178,965 9n,641 t.05,585 1,044,143 1,407.440 1,535,614 371,766 

Waler and wastewater 
Charg9s rOf S&MceS 43,008035 45,282.126 47.044,634 51,508,272 54,520,163 57,080.057 84,945,746 75.419,483 68,749,604 70,930.2 16 
Operallng grants and contributions 
CapHel grants and comnbu\lOn5 8,605.351 8.029,173 13.900,547 14,125.818 16,730,748 14,452,961 11 ,596,660 22,635.906 10,618.542 10,760,807 

Siorm water management' 
Charges lor sef'llces NIA NIA NIA NIA NfA "'fA NIA NlA NIA 5.183.444 
OperaUog grants ano comnbutlOns NfA NfA NIA NlA NIA NIA NfA NfA NIA 
Copital 9'an t5 and coolribullons NfA NIA NfA NfA NIA NIA NlA N/A NIA 

TranSit 
Charges lor S9f'\IICEIS 
Operaliog 9ranls ana con tribul fOI'IS 

1,128,706 
1,553,753 

842,656 
1,888267 

838,084 
1,900,622 

826.623 
2,097,336 

601.186 
1.922.161 

774.345 
2.149,594 

801.967 
2,681,466 

839,490 
2.337,806 

891 ,1154 
2,353,263 

1.025,160 
2,050,346 

Cap'tel 9raols ao<I conlflDuhOfl$ 234,664 269,732 417.242 63,915 157,361 2,101 ,416 661.664 1,733,733 3.933,065 3,592.1 28 

"""" Charge, for serv)oes 2,353,279 2, 119,754 2.405,129 2,849,936 3.035.265 3,224,170 3,942.522 3.735.652 4,1 57,463 4.346.702 
Operallng granls end conlllbuHons 118.315 14,799 114,360 1413.09 2 1,040,076 14.4 .153 138,131 

CapiLatgranls end conlr1bUlons 1.991,289 2,002,612 2,418,216 1,1 45,829 3.565,764 622,403 6.293,746 3,752,977 3,827.485 7.275,5J2 

Solid waste recydlllg 
CI'Iarges lor services 
()p9raJlng granb ~nd CQnlnbulions 

2.521,038 
283.070 

2,258,683 
296,121 

2.274.461 
298.005 

2,265,01 8 
299,525 

Capital grams all(! oootriDuUons 
TOlel busiooss-rype aC~Ylb&,program 
TOOII primary govemment program S 

208,244 041 
221,214,571 S 

202,547,427 
218,302,695 S 

215944.\67 
236.932,472 

228.571,71 4 

249,720,991 S 
241,472.031 
285.391,385 S 

248,056.301 
272,571,332 

264.225,668 
289,461.766 

266,850.168 
3 18.605,346 

293,594,626 
337,n3.791 S 

305,935,126 
337,207,406 

Net (expenS8),1revenue 
Governmenta) ectivities 
BUSiness-type ecuvllles 

Total primary governmenl net expense 

S 

S 

(74,641.730) 
10.865,139 

(63,976.591 ) 

S f74,299.143) 
17,251,746 

(57.047.397) 

S (75,147,433) 
30,646,006 

(44.501,365) S 

(90,348,857) 
36.222,346 

(54,126,5 11) S 

(99,297,204) 
52,054,095 

(47,243.109) 

S (109,260.400) 
46.2 11,442 , (63,008.958) S 

(107,323.467) 
42,124,056 

(65. 199,431 ) S 

(113.855,096) 
64,027.045 

(49,628.051) 

S (105,258,366) 

69.695.093 
(35,563,275) 

S (111 ,365,293) 
76,687,968 

(J.4,8 n,325) 
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City of Fayetteville. North Carolina 
Changes In Net Assets 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(accrual basis of accounting) 
(Unaudited) 

FI't~1 Year 
2005 2006 2001 2008 2009 2010 2011 

Schedule 2 

2012 

General Rltvltnuell and Other Chlln9lts In Nel Asseb 
GolJernmental 9Clivltles 

Ad valorem laxes 
Othef UI..xes 
Unnu!/'lcted granls and contrlbullon, 
Inlere5\ eamoa 00 InveStmenls 
Miscenaneous 
Gain on sale 0/ capital essets 
Transfers 
$peciaillem 

Tolal governm&nLaI eclMlies 
Buslness·typo activllle$ 

Other la){O$ 
Interes. eemed on Investmems 
Miscellaneous 
Translers 
Geln on sale 01 caPItal assels 
El<traordlnary ilem 

TOI3I buslness·type aClNiUes 
TOlel primary government 

, 34,094,378 
28,116,817 

547,091 
1, 197,764 

87t1,760 

7,902,191 

72.737.001 

1,723,505 
84,297 

(7.902. 191) 

(6,094,3891 
00,642,612 

S 38,495,985 
31 , 1 27,~55 

569,087 
507,606 
385,1 05 

8, 111.258 

79,256,698 

1.493,180 
237,004 

(8,171,258) 

702500 
15.738.568) 
73,518.128 

39,344,522 
34,023,971 

571,232 
1.752,579 

9OS,2OS 

8,418,200 

85.018,712 

2,018,035 
280,640 

(8,418,200) 

{6 , 11 9,525~ 

78.899, 187 S 

47,823,150 
35,863,026 

578,491 
2,321,165 

169,866 

162,992 
8,601,682 

89,5,55,831 
185,062,203 

3,137,307 
84,297 

7.935 

(8,601,682) 
(5.372, 1421 

119,710061 

, 52,929,323 
41,307,138 

788,290 
4,050,088 

474,945 
199,853 

7, 150,056 

106,899 693 

5.173.628 
366.079 

12,319 

(7,150056) 
(1.598,030) , 105,301.663 

54,295,319 
43,193,0 17 

801 ,099 
3,704,974 

627,860 
254.875 

3,307,854 

106,184,998 

5,392,191 
90,271 

(3,307,854) 
1,643 

2,176257 
108,361,255 

, 55,406,617 
42,524,787 

814,901 
2,21 2,641 

665,351 
240,485 

3,366.213 

105.430,915 

4,810,234 
88,058 

(:) .366,213) 
22,459 

1,554,538, 106,985,513 

S 58,518,101 
44,482,890 

295,870 
1,157,768 

652,055 
210,072 

5.409.378 

110,7ZS, I54 

3.133,521 
87.444 

(5.409,378) 
40,942 

12,147.411) 
108.578683 

S 

S 

59,016,746 
45,850,043 

769,192 
1.319.722 

343,836 
7,517,132 

114,937,271 

2,196.769 
247,622 

(7,577,132) 
73.866 

15,059,475) 
109,8n,796 

60,130,081 
47,161,974 

902,467 
565,944 

1,174,240 
385,076 

6.082,634 

116,408,4 16 

649,471 
3,089,310 

252,092 
(6,062,634) 

240,158 

(1 ,851 ,603} 
114,556,613 

Change In Net Assets 
Govemmenlal acllVilIes 
Busmess·type actiVllies 
Total psin'laty governmont 

(2,104,729) 
4110,750 
2,666,021 

S 

, 
d.957,553 

11 ,513.178 
18.470,731 

S 9,871.279 
24,526,543 
34,397L 822 

, 
S 

94,733,346 
30 650.204 
125~3,550 

, 
, 

7,602.489 
50.456,065 
58,058.55<1 

(3.095.402) 
48,387,699 
45.292,297 

, 
, 

(1,892,512) 
43616,594 
41,786,082 

, (3,126,942) 
61.879.574 
58,750,632 

9,676,903 
64,635.618, 74,314,521 

5,043.123 
74,836,355 
79,879,488 

'The Storm waler menagement fund became ell Enterprise Fund elfOCIIVEl With ftscal yeer 2012 
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City of Fayettevil le, North Carolina 

Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 

Last Ten Fiscal Yea rs 

(modified accrual basis of accounting) 

(Unaudited) 

Schedule 3 
Fisc al Ye!r 

2003 2004 '006 20.. 2007 2009 2010 2011 20 12'008 
General Fund 

Reservad 7,177,302 $ 13,309,1 27 , 12,567,572 S 14,222,851 $ 19,688,249 $ 17,226,906 17,984,934 $ 17,972,528 , $ 
Unreserved 22,078,476 28,495,129 31,396,476 29,273,909 29,962,047 35,781,835 27,934,081 28,616,OSO 
Nonspendable 160,391 170,322 
Resl(lClod 16, 180,858 18,018,110 
ComrMled 
Assi!)f'led \3,578,711 13,545,829 
Unassigned 15.807,431 ZO,151587 

Total General Fund , 29,255,778 , 41,804,256 , 43,964,048 $ 43,496.750 , 49,650,296 , 53,OO8,7<l1 $ 45,919,015 , 46,588,578 48,707,391 , 51,895,848• 
Rec rlla llonal snd Cullural Fund' 

ResolI'V9d , $ , , , 1,328, 058 $ 633.469 , S 
Unreserved' 

Capllal ProjOcts 87,800 702. 855 
TOlal ReCfllahonal end CulllKel Fund , , $ , S , 1.4 15.658 ~336,334 $ $• 
All oiller governmental lunda 

ReseNed $ 6,493.91 4 $ 6,99 1.081 , 10,827,524 8.445,918 $ 5,285,887 4.150, 355 10, 100.793 $ 17,707,054 $ , 
Unres&fVed, roponed In nonrnajOl': 


Special Aevenve 2,915,931 2,217,511 2,332,563 2.402,644 3,569,224 3,384.103 2.893,694 3,526.252 

Capllal Projects 6.248,6S3 4,2 13.485 12,668, 139 8,842,541 8,024,751 5.148, 775 4,691.155 2,510,568 


Nonspendable 
ReSlncled \1.611 ,895 8, 182.013 
Commilled 9,188.921 5,524,169 
Assogoed 
Unassigned (1,4 11.5391 (',055,141) 

Total all Olher goverrvnenle1 flKlds $ 15.655,5:)4 $ 131
422.137 , 25,828,226 19.691, 109 $ 16,879,642 $ 12,683,843 , 17,685.642 , 23,743,874 $ 26,049.277 $ 12,651,035 • 

NOle' The Ci ty implomenled GASe Statemenl 54 11'1 Fiscal Year 2011: ther9f()(e. the new I....nd balance caleg()(leS will be reponed prospectively, 

• The ReCfeal!¢l'lal and CuitlKal Fund was reported as a O()(H'I1ajOf lund in all fiscal years except 2009 end 2010. 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 


Changes In Fund Balances, Governmental Funds 


Last Ten Fiscal Years 


(modlfled accrual basis of accounting) 


(Unaudited) 


Schedule 4 

200l 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 
Revenues ,Ad valerem laxes , 33,720,313 , 38,431,862 , 39,622,100 41,590,985 $ 58 ,574,670 , 54,785,677 55,553,012 , 58,699,957 $ 58,987,439 , 60,039,099 
OIt't9r taxes \ 27,850,682 32,436,194 34, 038,280 35,870,282 43,544,220 48,774,154 9,317,809 8,637,309 9,089,228 4,804,643 
!nlergo\lt!mmenla! 6,516,675 9,037,443 14,751,681 12,418,414 13,824,511 13,009,887 

UnreslnCled Inlergevemmencal ' 40,367,06 1 41 ,927,788 43,347,718 44,355,628 

Restncled imer9Qvemmenlal ' 11,828,229 16,964,952 26,722 ,238 19,874,277 
Other funcUonal 3,494 ,800 3,925,901 5,003,804 6,015,649 5,475,181 4,693,419 

ParmilS and lees ' 1,889,968 1,880,274 2,824,584 2,757,155 

Sales and services 1 3,263,932 3,\82,815 3,561,896 4,424,754 
Misce~aneous 2,153,238 2,386,356 3,903,274 5,11 7,571 4,543,675 2,820,264 3,108,912 2,837,133 4,186,300 4,254,636 
!nleresl eamed 00 inveslments 1,067,942 422,368 1,558,697 1,892,6 15 3,895,228 3,030,672 1,748 ,164 929,799 538,984 307,465 

T etal revenues 76,803,650 86,640,124 98,877,830 102,005496 129,657,485 127,094 ,073 127,On,085 135,060,027 14~\258,387 140,867,657 

EKpendllures 
AdministraliOn 8,025,614 10,685,384 11,600,043 13,235,511 18, 261 ,328 17,798,870 17,473.782 19,865,248 22,269,092 23,463,776 
Public safety 38,8 12,855 41,790,686 44,146,545 50,841,673 56,216,348 57.479,621 60,041,364 65,840,.294 65,408,955 66,478,556 
Envlronmental proteclion 7,591,417 8,605,600 6,500,062 8,970,319 10,075,527 10,439,749 10,328,809 9,493,40<1 12,859,355 6,650,<196 
Transpo!1atiOn 3,191,898 4,583,545 4,581,844 4,532,389 7,559,579 7,897, 138 8,111 ,323 7,437,390 6,2 13,150 6,853,125 
Economic and physical developmeol 6,481,655 3,957,976 8,792,621 5,676,733 1,079,198 4,568,228 4,362,581 4,685,4.0\ 1 9,521,505 5,933,527 
RecreatiOn and commu,lity facilities 5,981,710 5,500,353 8,778,825 9,868,865 13,491,872 10,918,848 '11 ,858,912 12,025,817 11,863,297 12,097,631 
Capital outlay 7,178,068 12,201,995 20,236,090 17 ,185,840 19,409,969 14 ,848,258 13,030,239 12,383,988 33,839,406 16,586,780 
Debt Service 

Principal 4,747,232 5,240,181 6,997,440 8,478,1 46 9,1 59,387 8,681 ,198 8,521,585 9.255,316 6,145,096 8,971,961 
lnteresl and fees 2,811,<161 2,506,413 2,262,1 03 2,958,522 2,724,064 2,081,737 1,955,64.0\ 1,526,589 1,487,161 ' ,559,137 
Issuance costs 103,985 58,084 368,693 131,014 
TOlal expenditures 84,925,893 95,119,217 112,262,066 121.745,~8 137,9IJ,272 ']4,51',-841 I33-,-6B4 ,q9 _ 142,646,501 169,607,017 148,595,209 -

Excess (deficiency) af revenues over 
(under) expenditures (8.122,243) (8,479,093) (13,384,230) (18,840,502) (8,319,787) (7,417,566) (8,607,354) (7,586,474) (20,348,630) (7,727,552) 

Other financIng sources (u ses) 
Refunding Bonds ~ssued 9,168,034 3,815,605 21,261,589 7,896,115 
Proceeds from capital leases, bOnds and other debt 1,162,548 8,070,428 3,104,407 3.834,415 4,537,000 3,303,940 6,550,809 1<1,8 57,940 
Transfers in \4,479,695 13,972,839 15,334 ,209 16,793,410 15,283,8'9 20,000,451 22,695,465 23, 323,681 21,357,058 17.197,216 
Transf8(s out (6,907,096) (5,801,581) (5,918,009) (8,391 ,728) (8,158,763) (1 8,724,377) (17,007,152) (17,259,353) (13,106,802) (11,614.765) 

Sale of Capital Assets' 248,972 210,072 328,316 
Payment 10 refund bond escrow agent (5,489,212) (3,788,439) (6,265,297) (8,800,308) 363,380 
Proceeds lrom lOans 1.250,598 
Premium on bonds 431,2 12 663,131 

Total other rll'lancing sources (uses) 12 ,45~,969 16,268,852 27,950, III 12,236,097 11,682,056 6,580,014 5,935,285 '<1,234,74 5 23,436,512 5,945,831 

Net chaf'lge 10 fund 
balances 4,331 726 $ 7,789,759 14,565881 (6604,405) S 3,342.289 , {637,554} , (672,069) 66<18,271 , 3,087682 $ (1 ,78 1,721) 

Debt service as a percenlage 01 
of noncapital exPenditures 988% 9.<\1% 10.46% 10,94% 10,02% 6,99% 868% 8,38% 5,62% 6,56% 

Begtnning fiscal year 2009, prescnlatlOn Of these revenue lIems wa s Changed 10 ren~t a more detailed breakdown 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
Tax Revenues By Source, Governmental Funds 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(modified accrual basis of accounting) 

(Unaudited) 
Schedule 5 

Fiscal Year 
2012 
2011 
2010 
2009 
2008 
2007 
2006 
2005 
2004 
2003 

Ad Valorem 
$ 60,089,099 

58,987,439 
58,699,957 
55,553,012 
54,765,677 
58,574,670 
41,590,985 
39,622,100 
38,431,862 
33,720,313 

$ 

Sales Tax 
33,283,642 
31 ,633,373 
30,789,881 
29,628,044 
31,659,262 
30,488,647 
23,457,449 
22,543,521 
20,698,993 
16,876,147 

Utili~ Taxes' 
$ 9,568,985 

10,178,685 
10,035,192 

9,196,488 
8,072,068 
6,554 ,283 
5.602,548 
5,245,207 
5,121,788 
5,239,383 

Vehicle 
license 

Tax 
$ 617,271 

624,591 
630,853 
630,065 
635,993 
623,019 
533,750 
469,488 
444,521 
408,016 

Privilege 
License 

$ 2,557,864 
1,226,057 

983,146 
1,013,929 

984,727 
920,196 
815,156 
731,719 
684,806 
691 ,861 

Beer and 
Wine Tax 

$ 902,467 
915,803 
295,870 
814,901 
801,099 
788,290 
578,491 
578,481 
561 ,588 
526,288 

Cablevision and 
Other Franchise 

Tax' 
$ 419,653 

426,687 
372,226 
380,944 
491,902 

1,243,013 
1,918,758 
1,547,289 
2,016,045 
1,249,399 

Rental 
Property 

Gross 
RecefE!ts 

$ 572 ,634 
562,089 
477,886 
441,381 
416,176 
391,124 
373,114 
344,913 
305,860 
302,685 

Consolidated 
911 Tax ~ 

$ 

361,922 
1,064,599 

950,499 
996,840 

1,041,170 
1,055,952 

Total 
$ 108,011,615 

104,554,724 
102,285,011 

97,658,764 
98,188,826 

100,647,841 
75,820}50 
72,079,558 
69,306,633 
60,070,024 

Effective January 1, 2007. video programming broadcast services became subject to slate sales taxes and proceeds are now 

reported with Utility Taxes. Only ancillary services remain subjecl to local cablevision franchise taxes after that dale. 

: Effective January 1, 2008, separate local and stale 911 taxes on wire line and wireless phone services were replaced by a consolidated 
state 911 fee. Tax revenues reported for fiscal year 2008 and prior reflect the combined lotal of the previous local and state taxes. 
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Fiscal 
Year Residential Commercial Industrial 
2012 $ 897,373,380 $ 760,894,124 $ 299,898,818 
2011 1,013,170,837 785,669,193 301,732,101 

2010 969,676,167 762,559,263 318,392,654 

2009 950,176,318 761,932,35 1 315,244,653 

2008 920,716,611 769,672,205 337,212,851 

2007 894,699,452 752,650,321 308,222,997 

2006 911,632,771 755,229,052 356,355,125 

2005 865,456,446 743,676,014 376,769,957 

2004 882,688.409 744,796,652 379, 140,092 

2003 884,780,318 738,115,702 390,164,851 

aRate shown is for Res idential SeNice- basic facilities charge. 

b Rate shown is (or Residential Service-energy charge per kWh. 


City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

Revenue Base by Customer Class 


Charges for Services 

Electric Kilowatt Hours Sold 


Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Unaudited) 


Lighting Other Total 
$ 35.420,886 $ 59,706,692 $ 

35,647,580 64,960,101 

34,471,378 60,706.464 

33,636,689 59,890,915 

34,359,901 59,073,420 

28,539,204 54 ,675,687 

27,855,361 53,069,016 

27,107,118 54,415,761 

26, 154,369 53,410,167 

25,201,952 59,984,603 

2,053,293,900 
2,201,179,812 

2,145,805,926 

2,120,880,926 

2,121,034,988 

2,038,787,661 

2,104,141,325 

2,067,425,296 

2,086,189,689 

2,098,247,426 

Base 
Ratea 

$10.80 
10.80 

9.90 

9.00 

9.00 

9.00 

9.00 

800 

8.00 

8.00 

Schedule 6 

Total Direct Rate 

Electric 

Usage Rate b 

first 500 kWh e. kWh> 500 
$0.0946 $0.0946 

0.0900 0.0977 

0.0825 0.0896 

0.0750 0.0815 

0.0750 0.0815 

0.0719 0.0794 

0.0719 0.0794 

0.0710 0.0670 

0.0710 0.0670 

0.0710 0.0670 
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City of Fayetteville. North Carolina 
Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Schedule 7 

Fiscal Estimated 

Year Public Less: Total City Actual Sales 
Ended Real Personal Services Tax Exempt Assessed General Taxable Assessment 

June 30 Proper:!l Property Property , Real Property I Value Tax Rate Value Ratio I 

2012 $ 11,453,552,799 $ 1,705,019,913 $ 167,761,204 $ 187,231 .303 13,139,102.613 $0.456 13,131,221,705 100.07% 

2011 11 ,261.620,799 1,628,238,092 161,145,492 175.051,710 12.875,952,673 0.456 12.893.719,611 99.84% 

2010 11,041.771,668 1,638,183,540 162,847,740 111,810.830 12,730.992,118 0.456 12,743,028,314 99.89% 

2009 8,663,471,270 1,699,962,844 144,941,408 76.918,867 10,431,456,455 0.530 12,384,609,990 81.72% 

2008 8,432,008,954 1,699.309,481 156,856,864 71,058,615 10,217,116,684 0530 11,603,736,461 86.00% 

2007 8,166,720,922 1,634,081 ,615 172,573,842 74.375.245 9,899,001,134 0.530 10,853.177,565 89.65% 

2006 6.275,715,436 1,431.355,898 138,799,665 65,483,117 7,780,387,882 0.530 8,286.824.738 92.46% 

2005 6,119,634.059 1.207,511,007 133,171 .846 63,057,620 7,397.259,292 0.530 7,500,121.924 98.33% 

2004 6,022,674.221 1,150,100.683 127,680,027 61,704,378 7,238,750.553 0.530 7.238,750,553 100.00% 

2003 5.101,782,633 1,196,714,445 120,570,113 6,419,067,191 0.530 6,742,981,286 94 .03% 

Source: Cumberland County Tax Office 

Note: A revaluation of real property is required by North Carolina General Statutes at least every eight years. A County-wide revaluation of real property was effective with the 
tax levy for fiscal year 2009-2010. Property is assessed at actual value; therefore, the assessed values are equal to actual value. 

1 Public service companies' property includes real and personal property of utilities, railroad and buslines, etc. These assessments are made by 
the North Carolina Department of Revenue wilh no distinction between real and personal property. 

2 Exempt real estate only. Fiscal year 2003 real property exemptions are reflected in real property. 

3 Estimated actual values and the ratio of total assessed value to total estimated actual value have been adjusted to reflect updated sales 
assessment ratio percentages from the North Carolina Department of Revenue. 

~ Denotes the year in which a revaluation was effective January 1st and reflected in the following fiscal year's property value. 

Source: Cumberland County Tax Office 
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City of Fayetteville , North Carolina 

Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Per $100 of Assessed Value) 

(Unaudited) 

Fiscal 
Yea r Centra l Lake Valley Drive 

Ended City General Business Tax Municipal Service 

June 30 Tax Rate District Rate District Rate2 

Schedule 8 

Overla~ping Rates 1 


Cumberland Coun!}l: 


Coun!}: wide 
2012 $0.456 $0.100 $0.345 $0.740 
201 1 0.456 0.100 0.740 
201 0 0.456 0. 100 0.766 
2009 0.530 0.100 0.860 
2008 0.530 0.100 0.880 
2007 0.530 0.100 0.880 
2006 0.530 0.100 0.880 
2005 0.530 0.100 0.880 
20()4 0.530 0.100 0.880 
2003 0.530 0.100 0.925 

Source: Cumberland Co unty Tax Office 

1 Overlapping rate s are those of local and county governments th at apply to property owners within the City of 
Fayetteville. 

2 The Lake Valley Drive Municipal Service Districl was effective for the first time in fisca l year 2012. 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 


Principal Property Taxpayers 


Ten Year Comparison 


(Unaudited) 

Schedule 9 

2012 ' 2003 2 

Percentage of Percentage of 
Total Taxable Total Taxable 

Taxable Assessed Assessed Taxable Assessed Assessed 
Taxpayer Value Rank Value Value Rank Value 

Cross Creek Mall LLC $ 113,194,500 1 0.86% 

Carolina Telephone 54,806,136 2 0.42% $ 60,416,109 2 0 .94% 
Piedmont Natural Gas Co. Inc. 51,255,160 3 0.39% 

Wal-Mart 39,027,713 4 0,30% 

Centurion Aviation Services 34,600,000 5 0.26% 

Westlake at Morganton LLC 28,107,800 6 0.21% 

Hidden Creek Village 24,803,500 7 0.19% 

DDRM Fayettevi lle Pavilion LLC 23,862,500 8 0.18% 

Eagle Point Village Apartments 22,919,500 9 0.17% 
Fayetteville Publishing Company 21,671 ,548 10 0.16% 26,725,092 5 0.42% 

Cumberland Associates 68,500,000 1.07% 

NC Natural Gas Corporation 27 ,351,953 3 0.43% 

UDRT of North Carolina 26,900,000 4 0.42% 

Edward Rose Bldg Company 14,130,851 6 0.220/0 

Progress Energy Carolinas, Inc. 13,089,760 7 0.20% 
Kings Pointe Apartments 12,580,000 8 0.20% 

MJ Soffe Company 12,240,323 9 0.19% 

BNP Chason Ridge LLC 11.780.400 10 0.18% 

$ 414,248,357 3.140/0 $ 273,714,488 4.27% 

1 Assessed valuations are as of January 1, 2011 and the associated tax levies were due in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. 
:2 Assessed val uations are as of January 1, 2002 and the associated lax levies were due in the fiscal year ended June 30. 2003. 

Source: Cumberland County Tax Office 
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City of Fayetteville. North Carolina 


Property Tax Levies and Collections 1 


Last Ten Fiscal Years 


(Unaudited) 


Collected within the 
Fiscal Year of the Le~ 

Fiscal 
Year Taxes Levied Collections 

Ended for the Percentage in Subsequent 
June 30 Fiscal Year Amount ofLe~ Years 

2012 $ 59,990,898 $ 58,593,009 97.67% $ 
2011 58,795,924 57,406,499 97.64% 940,581 
2010 58,418,406 57,126,777 97.79% 921,176 
2009 55,349,877 53,901,099 97 .38% 1,062,805 
2008 54,216,530 52,738,807 97.27% 1,085,259 
2007 52,534,182 50,964,492 97.01% 1,192,534 
2006 2 41,311,088 39,855,571 96.48% 1,115,705 
2005 39,252,202 37,879,950 96.50% 1,090,823 

2004 38,404,079 36,806,753 95.84% 1,297,379 

2003 34,059,814 32,457,441 95.30% 1,311,669 

Schedule 10 

Total Collections to Date 

Amount 
$ 58,593,009 

58,347,080 
58,047,953 
54,963,904 
53,824,066 
52,157,026 
40,971,276 
38,970,773 

38,104,132 

33,769,110 

1 Schedule reffects the general tax levy only. 
2 	Does not include $6,400,613 in 2005 real and personal property taxes related to the Phase V annexation areas 

since payment of these taxes were due in three installments in fiscal years 2007 through 2009 as a result of 
legislation approved by the North Carolina General Assembly in May 2006. 

Source: Cumberland County Tax Office 
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Percentage 
ofLe~ 

97.67% 
99.24% 
99.37% 
99.30% 
99.28% 
99.28% 
99.18% 
99.28% 

99.22% 

99.15% 



City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type 


Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Unaudited) 


Fiscal 
Year 
2012 
201 1 
2010 
2009 
2008 
2007 
2006 
2005 
2004 
2003 

Governmental Activities 

Capita I ized Notes 
Bonded Debt Leases Pa~able 

$ 15,996,406 $ 21,998,896 $ 600,000 
19,111,260 25,781,023 1,150,568 
22,216,115 13,863,293 1.250,598 
28,937 ,8 25 10.267,567 
33.383,061 14,343.916 

38,108,296 14,990,943 5,000 
52,240,000 14,203,330 65,000 
57 ;485,000 13,551,475 125,000 
46,470,000 13,341,744 185,000 
50,265,000 6,479.845 245,000 

$ 

General 
Obligation 

Bonds 
4,843, 594 
5,648,740 

6,453,885 
7,412,175 
9,041,939 

10,626,704 
2,705,000 
3,640,000 
4.585,000 

15,560,000 

Business-~~e Activities 

Revenue Bonds Notes Pa:z:able 
$ 150,245,000 $ 15,666,039 

150,480.000 16,683,349 
169,120,000 17,951,198 
155,045,000 19,219.047 
167,735,000 20,486,896 
162,360,000 64,396,136 
172,565,000 136,357,559 
184,320,000 18,303,144 
194,630,000 11 ,867,713 
178,910,000 6,835,614 

$ 

Capitalized 
Leases 

59.-445 
79,018 
96,191 

Total Primary 
Government

• 209,609,360 
218,933,958 

230,953,280 
220,881,614 
244 ,990,812 
290,487,079 
378,135,889 
277,424,619 
271,079.457 
258,295,459 

Note: Delails regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements. 

1 See schedule 16 for per capita personal income and population data . 

Schedule 11 

Percentage of 

Personal Income 1 Per Ca~ita 1 

NfA 1,008 
NJA 1.0S1 

2.614% 1,112 
2.980% 1,217 
3.319% 1,350 
4.371% 1,670 
8.208% 2,894 

8297% 2,120 
6.857% 2.074 
7.230%~ 2,086 
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Fiscal 
Year 
2012 
2011 
2010 
2009 
2008 
2007 
2006 
2005 
2004 
2003 

City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding 


Last Ten Fiscal Years 


General Bonded Debt 

Outstanding 


General 
Obligation 


Bonds 

$ 	 16,720,000 

19,500,000 
22,290,000 
26,620,000 
31, 140,000 
35,600,000 
40,005,000 
44,450 ,000 
40,075,000 
53,980,000 

Revenue Bonds 
$ 	 154,365,000 

155,740,000 
175,500,000 
164,775,000 
179,020,000 
175,495,000 
188,505,000 
200,995,000 
205,610,000 
190,755,000 

(Unaudited) 

Total Primary 
Government 

$ 	 171,085,000 
175,240,000 
197,790,000 
191,395,000 
210,160,000 
211,095,000 
228 ,510,000 
245,445,000 
245,685,000 
244,735,000 

Percentage of 
Actual Total 

Assessed Value of 
Property , 

1.30% 
1.36% 
1.55% 
1.83% 
2.06% 
2.13% 
2,94% 
3.32% 
3.39% 
3.81% 

Schedule 12 

Per Capita 2 

823 
841 
952 

1,055 
1,158 
1,214 
1,749 
1,876 
1,880 
1,976 

Note: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements. 

1 See Schedule 7 for property value data . 


2 Populalion data can be found in Schedule 16. 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 


Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt 


For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2012 


(Unaudited) 

Schedule 13 

Governmental Unit 

Debt repaid with property taxes: 

Cumberland County 

Subtotal, overlapping debt 

City of Fayetleville direct debt 

Total direct and overlapping debt 

Debt Outstanding 1 

$ 214,728,771 

Estimated Percentage 
Applicable 

60.95% $ 

$ 

Estimated share of 
Overlapping Debt 

130,876,754 

130,876,754 

38,595,302 

169,472,056 

Sources: Assessed value data used to estimate applicable percentages provided by the Cumberland County Tax Administrator. Debt 
outstanding provided by Cumberland County. 

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the City. This schedute 
estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overtapping governments that is borne by the residents and businesses of The City of 
Fayetleville. This process recognizes that, when considering the government's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt 
burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account. However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident, 
and therefore responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlappin9 90vernment. 

The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated usin9 taxable assessed property values. Applicable percentages were 
estimated by determining the portion of Cumberland County's taxable assessed value that is within the city's boundaries and dividing it by 
Cumberland County's total taxable assessed value. 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
Legal Debt Margin Information 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(amounts expressed in thousands) 

(Unaudited) 

Schedule 14 

Deb! Limit 

Total nel debt applicable 

10 limIt 

Legal debt marg'" 

Total net debt applicable 10 the 
hf1l1\ as 0' percen1aga 01 debl timlt 

2003 

.$ 513,525,375 

2004 2005 2006 

579.1 OQ,Q.14 $ 591,780.143 S 522,4 31.031 

79385:459 76,449,457 93, lQ.1 819 91,755,668 

S 434,139,9 16 .$ 502.650 587 S 498.676,124 $ 530,615,143 

15 46% 13.20% 15.13% 

Logal Debt MargIn C.lculation for FIscal Yoar 2012 

Assessed Value 

Debt limit (8% of lotat asseS51)d va!ue) 

Oebt applicable to l"tnll. 

Bonded debl 

Notes payable 
Capilalized leases 

Sublotal 

AuI~oflzed and uoissued (lebl 

To\al Gross Oebt 

Leu: SlatutOl)' deduehons 
Bonds ISSUed and o\r.Olanchng rOt water and SOW8\" purposes 

Aulhotized and unlssuod (lebl 

1<174% 

2007 

$ 791,920,091 

85,462.079 

S 106, 458.012 

1079°1. 

.$ 

$ 

2006 

617,369,3l5 

71 ,255,812 

740. 11:3,523 

945% 

.$ 

.$ 

2009 

834,518,516 

65.836.814 

768.619.902 

''''''' 

S 

$ 

2010 

1,018,479,369 

61 ,833,280 

956,646,089 

807% 

S 

S 

2011 

1,030,076,213 

68,453,958 

961,622,255 

665% 

2012 

.$ 1,051 .128,209 

59,364.380 

$ 991.163,829 

565% 

S 13.139,102.613 

1,051,128,209 

20,840,000 
16,465,039 
22.058,34 1 
59,364.380 

59,364,380 

TOlal amount of dobt applicable to debt Ilmil 

legal dobl margin $ 

59,364,380 

991,763,829 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 


Pledged Revenue Coverage - Utility 


Last Ten Fiscal Years 


(Unaudited) 

Schedule 15 

Fiscal 
Year Utility Less: Net 

Ended Service Operating Other Available Debt Service Requirements ' 

June 30 Charges Expenses 1 Adjustments2 Revenue Principal Interest 3 Total Coverage • 
2012 
201 1 
2010 
2009 
2008 
2007 
2006 
2005 
2004 
2003 

$ 268,571 ,535 
263,233,442 
237,548,315 
226,977 ,025 
222,216,687 
212,755,158 
207,281,292 
193,1 13,963 
187,264,046 
188,625,762 

$ 170,563,595 
168,529,066 
162,270,074 
162,615,432 
150,679,743 
139,562,295 
145,596,083 
14 1,516,235 
140,800,522 
150,292,023 

36,339,385 
70,472,808 
34,298,883 

$ 98,007,940 
94, 704,376 
75,278,241 
64,361,593 

107,876,329 
143,665,671 
95,984,092 
51,597,728 
46,463,524 
38,333,739 

$ 11,832,848 
19,907,849 
12,267,849 
13,957,849 
55,559,241 
83,646,456 
39,499,356 
10,689,756 

7,794,756 
8,004,756 

$ 7,312,245 
8,041,630 
7,529,204 
8,467 ,888 
6,997,294 
9,739,550 
9,882,230 
7,067,747 
7,164,702 
8,342,813 

$ 

Notes: 

1 Operating expenses include operating expenses exclusive of depreciation and al/ other amortization . 

2 Other adjustme nts is the recognition of Prepaid Purchase Power Supply net of discount. 

3 Interest represents accrual based interest excluding ca pitalized interest. 

4 Coverage ralios do not represent coverage calculations as defined in the bond order. 

S Debt service include s revenue bonds and notes and excludes G.O. bonds. 

Note: Details regardin g the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial stateme nts. 

19,145,093 $ 5.12 
27,949,479 3.39 
19,797,053 3.80 
22,425,737 2.87 
62,556,535 1,72 
93,386,006 1,54 
49,381 ,586 1,94 
17,757,503 2.91 
14,959,458 3,11 
16,347,569 2.34 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 


Pledged Revenue Coverage - Stormwater 


Last Ten Fiscal Years1 


(Unaudited) 

Schedule 16 

Fiscal 
Year Stormwater Less: Net 

Ended Servi ce Operating Available Debt Service Requirements 5 

June 30 Charges Expenses 2 Revenue Principa l Interest 3 Total Coverage 4 

2012 $ 5,164,229 $ 2,287 ,316 $ 2,876,913 $ 265,000 $ 38,950 $ 303,950 $ 9.47 

Notes: 

1 The Stormwater Fund became an Enterprise Fund effective with fiscal year 2012. 

2 Operating expenses include operating expenses exclusive of depreciation and all other amortization . 

3 Interest represents accrual based interest excluding capitalized interest. 

4 Coverage ratios do nof represent coverage calculations as defined in the bond order. 

S Debt service includes revenue bonds and excludes notes payable . 

Note: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements . 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

Demographic and Economic Statistics 

Last Ten Calendar Years 

(Unaudited) 
Schedule 17 

Per Capita Retail Sales 
Personal Personal School Unemployment in Billions 6 

Year Po~u lation 1 Income Income 2 Enrollment .) Rate 4 C i!y Coun~ 

2012 208,001 NIA NIA 53,063 NIA N/A(8} $3.532 
2011 208,291 NIA NIA 53,361 7.6% N/A j8) 3.376 
2010 207,779 8,835,386,417 42,523 52,187 7.3% N/A(a) 3.241 

2009 181,481 7,411 ,502,559 40,839 53,162 6.7% 2.348 2.844 

2008 181,453 7,380,419,322 40.674 52,912 5.1% 2.301 2.752 

2007 173,898 6,646,207,662 38,219 53,912 4.3% 2.253 2.747 

2006 130,646 4,606,708,606 35,261 53,403 4.3% 2.062 (0' 2.505 (0' 

2005 130,850 4,405,981 ,200 33,672 53,399 5.1% 2.987 3.684 

2004 130,692 3,953,433,000 30,250 53,092 5.9% 2.680 3.352 

2003 123,844 3,572,404,024 28,846 52,223 6.9% 2.421 3.018 

Sources: 
1. Office of State Budget and Management, Official Municipal Population Estimates for July 1, 2001 through July 1, 201 1. 

2. Bureau of Economic Analysis, US Department of Commerce. Data presented for Cumberland County, NC. 2011 and 2012 data not yet available. 

3. Cumberland County Schools, District Profile. 

4. NC Employment Security Commission. Calendar year unemployment statistics for Fayetteville, NC. 2012 data is not yet available. 

5. North Carolina Department of Revenue , Policy AnalySiS and Statistics Division. State Sales and Use Tax Statistics. 

(a) Municipal tax reporting not available after June 30, 2009. 

(b)Tax reporting changed to reflect only taxable sales effective July 2005. 

(c)Tax reporting changed to add use tax effective December 2001 . 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

Principal Employers 


Current Year and NIne Years Ag o 

(Unaudited) 


Schedule 18 

2012 2003 
Percentage of Percentage of 
Total County Total County 

Employer Employees Rank Emprolment Employees Rank Emplolment 
U.&DepLO( Defense (Civi lian) 14,1 25 1 10 86% 8,030 2 6.96% 
Cumberland County Board of Educalion 6,531 2 5.02% 8.790 1 7.62% 
Cape Fear Valley Hearth System 5,356 3 4.12% 3,700 3 3.2 1% 
Wal-Mart Associates Inc 2,876 4 2.21% 
Goodyear Tire & Rubber Company 2,468 5 1.90'% 2.700 4 2. 34 % 
Cumberland County Government 2, 315 6 1.78% 2,40 0 5 2.08% 
City of Fayel1eville 1,978 7 1.52"10 1, 580 6 1.37% 
Fayetteville Technica l Community CoHege 1,340 8 1.03% 1,320 8 1. 14% 
Veterans Administration 1,133 9 0.87% 
Fayetteville Sla te University 858 10 0.66% 
US Postal Service 1,400 7 1.21 % 
PUfolalor, Inc. 1,300 9 1.13% 
Bla ck & Decker 1,300 10 1.1 3% 

Tota l Employment [ren largest Civilian Employers) 38,980 29.97% -­3-2, 520 28.19% 

Sources: Fayel1eville-Cumberland County Chamber of Commerce, North Carolina Department o( Commerce Division of Employment Security, Individual Employers 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 


Full-time City Government Employees by Function 


Last Ten Fiscal Years 


(Unaudited) 

Schedule 19 

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

Administration 85 84 85 76 92 97 91 91 93 96 

Public Safety 674 751 800 806 834 827 827 829 875 851 

Environmental Protection I 101 101 108 91 123 145 118 136 124 85 

Transportation 54 53 60 57 77 52 79 79 72 77 

Economic and physical development 10 11 10 14 18 15 15 19 24 20 

Recreation and community facilities 78 120 127 115 126 125 125 133 114 121 

Electric 246 244 244 254 254 237 244 255 240 249 

'nlernal Service 30 32 45 45 30 44 44 52 48 45 

Water 154 154 153 145 139 193 194 194 143 150 

Wastewater 133 134 135 133 142 90 96 100 142 152 

Transit 59 48 53 52 50 54 54 61 76 87 

Airport 13 13 15 14 21 18 18 18 18 19 

Stormwater1 26 

Solid Waste Recycling 

Total 1,637 1,745 1,835 1,802 1,906 1,897 1,905 1,967 1,969 1,978 

Source: City Finance Office Annual Cost Allocation Plan and PubliC Works Commission 


'The Stormwater Fund became an Enterprise Fund effective with fiscal year 2012 and is no longer included with Environmental Protection. 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 


Operating Indicators by Function/Program 


Las t Ten Fiscal Years 

(Unaudited) 

Schedule 20 

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2'>10 20 11 1012 

Public Sal" ly 
Fire ") 

EmOfgenc:y responses 
Fires e::cl,nguishOd 
Fire inS peC) I(II'IS 

13,991 

". 
',860 

14 ,424 

867 
3,358 

15,391 

98' 
3, 359 

\5,882 

',065 

',"'" 
20,215 
1,0195 

4,524 

22,608 

1,092 

6,052 

23,191 

930 
4,159 

25, 186 

1,118 

5,670 

25,272 ... 
',900 

20,526nl 

536~ 

5,159!2l 

Pollee II, 

Number of lew VIOIalioM 
Physical a(rest s 1,912 7,'" 7,'" 7,801 8,522 9,372 7,968 5,865 10,335 7, 133rn 

Traffic cl(altOf'iS 28,653 26,9-4" 22,111 19,225 28,339 39,2-40 35,-484 -45,982 48,162 25,209~3' 

Wamlng Cllalions 9,669 9,026 11,526 11,114 12,493 12,572 13,481 13,096 21,034 15 ,46if" 

Calls fo r $et'Vlce H4,353 185,200 191 ,331 199,31-4 204,549 215,791 215, 127 219,-4 28 222, 136 183,623':11 

OENek)pm&n1 Services 
Number of penniiS iswed, 

ResiCenllal ' 
New 5'0910 fam:ly 

New multi-family 
277 335 36' 691 586 "" 317 '" ". '" 

Number of UnitS 3" '" 713 1,111 U 54 '59 712 619 1,165 966 
Rel1O't'3hOl"l S 672 735 750 1,095 1,222 1,303 1,"" 1,297 1,390 1,350 

Commercial: 
N,w 
RenovallOl"l$ 

50 
305 

63 
300 

61 
307 

93 ,.. .. 
30' 

60 
299 

52 
259 

60 
2" 

87 
.61 

62 
6" 

Other. 
MI$Citlianeous 11.189 11 ,653 12.] 16 16.695 18,057 14,824 16,731 16.185 17.598 19,290 
Yard sale '45 I, H3 1,075 1,202 1,227 1,229 1,1 75 1,186 1,186 1,114 
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City of Fayetteville . North CarolJna 

Operating Indicators by Function/Program 


Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Schedule 20 

2003 2004 2005 200' 2007 2008 200' 2010 2011 2012 

Cultural and Racroatlonal l') 

Yout '" Spons partiCipants 4,689 7,905 t1,953 12}18 10,921 ' ,560 11,543 9,871 16,081 10,870 
Adult Spons pan lclpanls 1.195 1,797 2,267 1,168 1,676 ".... 2.100 5,348 6,112 1,036 

Senior parllC1pants "fA 39.189 53,1 36 54,172 66,718 85,564 89.461 62,816 92,894 102,170 

Thefapeulic paniapants "fA "fA " fA 26,926 30,993 34,169 38,996 2,)48 22,192 20,()48 

Aquatics partlclpanls "fA "fA " fA "fA "fA "fA "fA "fA 23,8 11 24 ,903 

Park programs partiCIPants NfA "fA "fA 25,209 29,161 29,359 21,584 16,810 24,182 24,074 

Special ellenls paniCipanls " fA "fA "fA 5,415 3,698 2,745 2.841 2,979 6,561 11,161 

Permit led evenlS 

Mobile stagalbleac:n8l' (amals 
"fA 
"fA 

NfA 

"fA 

NfA 

" fA 

44 

48 
35 
3. 

61 
50 

66 

" ".. 81 

51 

64 

" RaO'oation center panicipQms "fA "fA NIA NlA 419,041 514.943 613,934 430,554 508,801 524,772 

Historical propeF1t9S pal1~anlS NfA "fA "fA NlA 14,499 15,713 22,354 15,401 34,011 134,247 

PICniC shelter rentals NfA "fA "fA "fA 28,597 30,041 29,211 31,112 38,38 1 5O.2HI 

Fe~lYal Park "fA " fA " fA "fA 107,1<18 323,028 267,794 NfA "fA " fA 
Tier 1 Evants ( 0 • 500 Attendees) "fA "fA " fA NlA "fA " fA "fA 6 2 5 
Tier 2 Events ( 501 '2.500 Atlel"ldees) NfA "fA "fA NfA "fA " fA "fA 12 7 11 
Tier 3 Evants (2,501+ Al1endees) "fA "fA "fA "fA NJA "fA "fA 15 13 \4 

Transportation 

Street Maintenance 

Streets mair.tained (miles) 

Sireel resurfacing and cape sealing (miles) 

52352

." 
529 53 

6." 
532 22 

12 15 

GaS,65 
8,82 

104.48 

13.29 

721 ,19 

14,68 

72238 

2042 
72439 

31.11 

72651 

25,05 

130,79 

19.52 

NvmbEN' or traffic Signals 

maintalned(') 166 170 169 175 178 176 205 225 225 225 

Engineering 

Driveway permits (residential) 

Driveway permits (commercial) 

255 
52 

21 7 
40 

34' 
66 

433 
33 

561 
75 

323 ., 310 
40 

378 
23 

428 
42 '"'2 

Public Utilitial 

Waler System 

Waler malll breaks 155 126 152 119 128 146 130 16() 162 165 
Average daily consumptlOfl (Mgals) ~ 20.933 20,524 20,635 2 ~ , 850 21,675 22,879 22.<150 22,423 25.446 26,124 
P&aKs (MGDI (7) 461 333 308 334 32.6 370 384 34.' 372 394 37 9 
Total sold (Mga)s)~ 7,303,494 7,039.<176 1.136,082 1,$61,199 7,555,333 7.894,590 7,707.256 7.1<19, 106 8,888,870 8,960.423 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 


Operating Indicators by Function/Program 


Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(UnaudIted) 

Schedule 20 

2003 "0< 2005 200S 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 --22.!.! 

S8'W(lr System: 
Main broaks 
Average dally consumpl'on (Mge/s)(11 
Peaks (MOO) (I, 

Total sold IMgals) 1<'1 

'"1<1,955 

270 
5,458,<156 

122 
14,941 

32,0 

5,453,295 

1<' 
15,331 

2. , 

5,583,643 

208 
15,810 

26.6 
5.754,764 

'SO 
18,026 

279 
5,637 ,838 

,.. 
16,509 

277 
6,014 ,627 

,., 
16,338 

9150 

5,953,806 

"'2 
18,436 

86' • 
5,999,105 

293 
16,557 

615,3 

6.0-43,126 

"'2 
2<1,720 

35,9 

5,912,764 

Elec\flC System' 
Eleelric oulagas (minutes) 
PeM$ (MW) (~I 

lolal KwtI sold<iC1 

Average delly consumption (Kwh) UQI 

10,316,0\2 

4-43,4 

2,047,025,958 

5,748,623 

1,219,101 

4-40,1 

2,041,587,5-43 

5.7 11,1 <12 

3,449,900 

439,3 

2,022,146,431 

5,66-4,119 

3,450,039 

<1701,S 

2,060,661,493 

5,764,171 

2,019,483 

462,5 

1,993,610,584 

5, 565)20 

3,016,526 

416,6 

2,073,630,914 

5,611,055 

2,210,506 

459,5 

2,07<1 ,008,439 

5,8'0,633 

2,296,534 

<162,4 

2, 139,521 ,914 

5,876,920 

2,340,93' 
459,1 

2,' 94,905,986 

6,030,630 

2,607 ,700 

4591 

2,053,364,900 

5,917,385 

Airpo"ll) 

Numbw of enplane<! passengers 

Number oll$eplenod passengers 

120,651 

120,720 

158,762 

156,621.> 

153,52-4 

150,675 

153,164 

15-4,677 

115,-432 

174,967 

199,438 

191,092 

229,-480 

229.993 
259,-454 

2.54,89 1 

2.54 ,134 

256,719 

190,90TH 
) 

190,-471" " 

(I) Stallslic.s fO( \he fire, pohce and alrpon (UI"IC\Ions are base<! on calendar yeers 
(2) Siahstics ror tns Fire Oepatiment for 2012 are rerlecled through SeplCf1tler 30, 2012 
(3) SlatislJCS '01 the Police Oepanment fOf 20'2 are reneaed thfough 0cI~ 12, 2012, eKeep! for tr.Jff'oe CI\.3110(1S reponed through 10/4112 

(4) $Iallslic.s for 2005 Mid t>8yon<J renee!. Ihe merger of Curnbe-l1and County and 
Cilyof Fay8lteville Parks at"I(l R9CtB31ion 08p3rtmenls 

(5) Renects the number 04118ffoe SignalS m3!OtaW'ied by the Clly 01 Fayeuevllle 
(6) Mgals = 1,000 gallons 
(7) Renea$ highest ml)(lthly average 

(6) MGO '" 1,000,000 gallons per day 
(9) MW" megaW8115 
(10) KWh " Mowatt hours 
(1 I) $Iatishcs (Of Ihe Ajlpol'llor 2012 are ranecled through S~lemt>8r 30,2012, 

Source Inlorml'lIlOO prOVided by various cily depanments end Public Works COrM'llSSIOll 
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City of Fayettevi lle. North Carolina 

Capital Assets Statistics by Function 


Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Unaudited) 


Schedule 21 

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 201 0 2011 2012 

Public Safety 
Fire 

Number of sta tions 11 13 13 15 15 16 16 16 16 16 

Police 
Number of sta tions 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 

Cultu ral and Rec reational 
Mini parks (. 5 - 3 acres) 
Neighborhood parks (7 - 15 acres) 

N/A 
N/A 

N/A 
N/A 

N/A 
N/A 

13 
13 

12 
14 

12 
l' 

12 
14 

12 

" 
12 

" 
12,. 

Community parks (30 - 50 acres) N/A N/A N/A 7 6 6 6 6 6 7 
Sports complexes (40 - 80 acres) N/A N/A N/A 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 
Green spaces N/A N/A N/A 7 8 8 8 8 8 8 
Neighborhood school-parks N/A N/A N/A 32 34 34 34 34 34 3. 
Community school-paf1(s N/A N/A N/A 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Linear parks N/A N/A N/A 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 
Special use parks N/A N/A N/A 12 6 7 7 7 7 8 
Program sites 
Reg ional parks (100 - 250 acres) 
Community center with gym 

N/A 
N/A 
N/A 

N/A 
N/A 
N/A 

N/A 
N/A 
N/A 

8

• 
N/A 

8 
3 
16 

8 
3 
16 

8 
3 
16 

8 
3 
16 

8 
3 
16 

8 
3 
16 
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City of Fayelteville, North Carolina 

Capital Assets Statistics by Function 


Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Unaudited) 


Schedule 21 

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

Public Utilities 
Water System: 

Miles of water main 
Number of new service 

connections 
Maximum daily capacity of 

treatment plant (MGD) P} 
St orage capacity (MGD) 11) 

1.162.1 

3.284 

50.0 
36.1 

1.179.3 

2.300 

57.5 

36.1 

1.198.2 

2.360 

57.5 

36.1 

1.229.0 

2.962 

57.5 

36.1 

1.245.0 

3.154 

57.5 

36.1 

1.278.5 

2.285 

57.5 

36.1 

1.296.3 

1.220 

57.5 
36.1 

1.316.4 

616 

57.5 

36.1 

1.329.2 

962 

57.5 

36.1 

1.351 .5 

2.649 

57.5 

36.1 

Sewer System: 
Number of new service 

connections 
Miles of sanitary sewer mains 
Maximum daily capacity of 

lreatment plant (MGD) (I) 

2.253 
1.021 .3 

41.0 

2.408 
1.039.8 

41.0 

2.299 
1.051.0 

41 .0 

3.142 
1.092. 0 

41.0 

3.006 
1.103.0 

41 .0 

2.260 
1.132.5 

41 .0 

1.752 
1.149.7 

46.0 

317 
1.231 .9 

46.0 

1.140 
1.246.0 

46.0 

1.612 
1.272.0 

46.0 

Elect ri c System: 
Number of new service 

connections 
Distribution line circuit miles 

1.05 1 
2.609.95 

1.251 
2.572.00 

1.426 
2.750.50 

2.245 
2.781.86 

1.744 

2.962.40 
1.151 

2.982.10 

471 

2.986.88 
650 

1,305.49 (2) 

533 
1.313.79 

1.359 

1.316.73 

Transp ortation 
Street Maintenance 

Streets maintained (miles) 
Number of traffic signals (3) 

523.52 
27 

529.53 
27 

532.22 
27 

688.65 
29 

704.48 

28 

721.19 
28 

722.38 
28 

724.39 

28 

726.51 
28 

730.79 

28 

(1) MGD = 1.000.000 galions per day 
(2) Reflects correction of presentation of previous data 
(3) Reflects the number of traffic signals owned by the City of Fayetteville 

Source: Information provided by various cily departments and Public Works Commission 

P-26 



OMB Circular A-133 
and State Single Audit 
Implementation Act 
Compliance Section 

• 	 I ndependent Auditors' Report on I nternal Control over Financial 
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit 
of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards 

• 	 Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance with Requirements 
Applicable to Each Major Federal Program and Internal Control Over 
Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and the State 
Single Audit Implementation Act 

• 	 Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance with Requirements 
Applicable to Each Major State Program and Internal Control Over 
Compliance in Accordance with Applicable Sections of OMB Circular 
A-133 and the State Single Audit Implementation Act 

• 	 Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

• 	 Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 

• 	 Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards 



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MAnERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 


IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 


The Honorable Mayor 
and Members of Ihe City Council 

City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

We have audiled the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregated remaining fund information of the City of Fayetteville, North 
Carolina, (the "City") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012 , which collectively comprises the City 's basic 
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 26, 2012, We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial 
reporting. In planning and perfonming our audit, we considered the City's internal control over financial reporting 
as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over 
financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control 
over financial reporting. 

A defiCiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their aSSigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material wea kness is a defiCiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of the intemal control over finan cial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financia l 
reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined 
above, 

Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Ci ty's financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of 
financia l statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with th ose provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion . The results of our tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 
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This report is intended solely for the informalion and use of management, others within the entity, members of the 
City Council, and federal and State awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and 
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties . 

Faye~eville, North Carolina 
November 26, 2012 
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CERTIAED PUBLIC 

ACCOlTNTA.I\ITS & 

CONSt;LTA!'I.TS 


INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH 

MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH 


OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND THE STATE SINGLE AUDIT IMPLEMENTATION ACT 


The Honorable Mayor 
and Members of the City Council 

City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

Compliance 
We have audited the City of Fayetteville, North Carolina, (the "City") compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance 
Supplement and the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, issued by the Local Government 
Commission, Ihat could have a direct and rnaterial effect on each of the City's major federal programs for the year 
ended June 30, 2012. The City's major federal programs are identified in the surnmary of auditors' results 
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of 
laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the 
City 's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City's compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments and Non-Profit Organizations, and Ihe State Single Audit Implementation Act. Those standards, 
OMB Circular A-133, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes 
examining , on a test basis, evidence about the City's compliance with those requirements and performing such 
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City's compliance with 
those requirements. 

In our opinion, the City complied , in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above that 
could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2012. 

Internal Control Over Compliance 
Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance 
with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable 10 federal programs. In planning and 
performing our audit, we considered the City's internal conlrol over compliance with requirements that could have 
a direct and material effect on a major federal program to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of 
expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance 
with OMB Circular A-133, but nol for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control 
over compliance. Accordingly , we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control 
over compliance. 
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A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of perfomning their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a 
timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected , on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be 
deficiencies, Significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the entity, members of the 
City Council, federal and State awarding agencies, and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and 
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Fayetteville, North Carolina 
November 26, 2012 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH 

MAJOR STATE PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH 


APPLICABLE SECTIONS OF OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND THE STATE SINGLE AUDIT IMPLEMENTATION 

ACT 


The Honorable Mayor 
and Members of the City Council 

Ci ty of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

Compliance 
We have audited the Cily of Fayetteville, North Carolina, (the "City") compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, issued by the Local 
Government Commission, that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major State programs for the 
year ended June 30, 2012. The City's major State programs are identified in the summary of auditors' resulls 
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of 
laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major State programs is the responsibility of the 
City 's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City's compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; applicable sections of OMB Circular A-133 as described 
in the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. 
Those standards, applicable sections of OMB Circular A-133, and the State Single Audit tmplementation Act 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the 
types of compliance requirements referred to above that cou ld have a direct and material effect on a major State 
program occurred . An audit includes examining , on a test basis, evidence about the City's compliance with those 
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We 
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion . Our audit does not provide a legal 
determination of the City's compliance with those requirements. 

In our opinion, the City complied , in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above that 
could have a direct and material effect on each of its major State programs for the year ended June 3D, 2012. 

Internal Control Over Compliance 
Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance 
with the requirements of laws, regulations , contracts and grants applicable to State programs. In planning and 
performing ou r audit, we considered the City's internal control over compliance with the requirements that could 
have a direct and material effect on a major State program to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose 
of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance with applicable 
sections of OMB Circular A-133 and the State Single Audit Implementation Act, but not for the purpose of 
exp·ressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over compliance. 
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A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct , noncompliarice with a type of compliance requirement of a State program on a 
timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a State program will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be 
deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses . We did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses , as defined above. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the organization, 
members of the City Council, federal and State awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended 
to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Fayetteville, North Carolina 
November 26, 2012 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 


Year Ended June 30, 2012 


SECTION I. Summary of Auditors' Results 
Financial Statements 

Type of audilors' report issued: Unqualified 

Intemal control over financial reporting: 

Material weakness(es) identified Yes 

Significant deficiency(s) identified 
that are not considered to be 
material weaknesses Yes _X_ None reported 

Noncompliance material to financial 
statements noted Yes ~ No 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major federal programs : 

Material weakness(es) identified Yes ~ No 

Significant deflciency(s) identified 
that are not considered to be 
material weaknesses Yes ~ None reported 

Noncompliance material to federal 
awards Yes ~ No 

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major federal programs: Unqualified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are 
required to be reported in accordance 
with Section 51 O(a) of Circular A-133 Yes ~ No 

Identification of major federal programs: 

CFDA Number Names of Federal Program or Cluster 
14.218 Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 
14.253 ARRA - Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 
14.251 Economic Development Initiative 
16.738 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 
16.738 ARRA - Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 
16.804 	 ARRA - Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program/Grants to Units of 

Local Government 
81.128 ARRA - Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant Program 
97.036 Disaster Grants - Public Assistance 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish 
between Type A and Type B Programs $ 593997 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X Yes No 
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C~TY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 


Year Ended June 30, 2012 


State Awards 

Internal control over major State programs: 

Material weakness(es) identified Yes ~ No 

Significant deficiency(s) identified 
that are not considered to be 
material weaknesses Yes ~ None reported 

Noncompliance material to State awards Yes ~ No 

Type of auditors' report issued on cornpliance for major State programs: Unqualified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are 
required to be reported in accordance 
with the State Single Audit 
Implementation Act Yes _X_ No 

Identification of rnajor State prograrns: 

Program Narne 
Maintenance Assistance 
Capital and Planning 
Powell Bill 

Section II. Financial Statement Findings 

None reported. 

Section III. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

None reported . 

Section IV. State Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

None reported . 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 


Year Ended June 30, 2012 


None reported. 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards 


Year Ended June 30, 2012 


GRANTORJPASS-TH ROUGH 
Grantor/program Title 

Federal 
CFDA 

Number 

Statel 
Pass-through 

Grantor's 
Number 

Federal (Direct 
& Pass-through) 

Expenditures 
State 

Expenditures 
Total 

Expenditures 

US DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

Community Development Btock Grant Cluster 

CDBG Entitlement Grant FY2009-2010 
CDBG Entrllemenl Grant FY201G-2011 

14218 
14218 

B-09-MC-37 -0005 
B-1 0-MC-37-OOO5 

236.261 
1,115.759 

, 236.261 
1,115}59 

ARRA . COBG Enllllement Granl (COBG-R) 

HOME Investment Partnership Program 

14253 B-09·MY -37-0005 10.000 
1.362.020 

10.000 
1.362.020 

FY2008-2009 
FY2009-2010 
FY201G-2011 

14239 
14.239 
14239 

M08·MC370203 
M09·MC370203 
Ml0·MC370203 

514,409 
812,929 

70.693 

514,409 
812.929 

70.693 

1.398.031 1.398.031 

Homeless Prevention and Rapid Re-houslng Program Grant 

ARRA· 2009 HPRP 14257 S-09-MY-37-000s 10.262 
10.262 

10.262 
10.282 

Economic Development Initiative - Special Project Neighborhood 
initiative and Miscellaneous Grants 

Military Business Peril 
M~ltary Busmess Peril 
Mililary Busmess Parll 
Mliltary Business Peril 
MIJi(ary BuSiness Peril 

Economic Development Admlnlsl!]!tlon 
Planning and Locel Technical Assistance Program 

~Mn.'Eln OF DEFENSE 
Fort Bra9g Regional AUiance 

Bra99 Boulevard Comdor P1an 

14251 
14.251 
14251 
14251 
14251 

11302 

12.807 

B-06·SP·NC-Q607 
B-06-SP·NC-0005 
B-08-SP-NC-QS86 
B-08-SP-NC-Q099 
B-10-SP·NC-Q257 

NfA 

HQ0005111oo38 

9,535 
198.000 

7.440 
....066 

584.297 
845.338 

5.980 
5.980 

133.990 

9.535 
198.000 

7.440 
46.066 

584.297 
8<15.338 

5.980 
5.900 

133.990 

US DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR 

National Park Service 
Wayflndlng Sl9nage NIA 37-QS-PA--4030 45.984 

45.984 
45.964 
45,964 

US DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

Justice AsSistance Grant Cluster 
Ot11ce Of Justice Programs 

ARRA - COPS Hiring Grant 
Pass through from Cumberland County, NC 

ARRA _Justice Assistance Grant 
Juslice Assistance Grant 
JustJce ASSistance Grant 
Jusllce Assistance Grant 

Pass through from NC Department of Public Safety 
Gangs Across the Garolmas 

Office of Justice Programs 
Cumberland COlK1ty STARS Adult Drug Treatment COUIi PrOject 

16.804 

16738 
16.738 
16.738 
16.738 

16738 

16.585 

2009-RJ-WX-D060 

2OO9·S8-89-0936 
2009-0J-BX-D396 
2010-0J-BX-0269 
2011-0J-BX-2635 

2011·0J-8X-2091 

2011-0C-BX-D120 

782,374 

18,359 
28.108 
20.166 

149.774 

42,220 
1.041.001 

43.856 
43.856 

782,374 

18,359 
28.108 
20.166 

149}74 

42.220 
1,041.001 

43.856 
43,856 

Orfice of Justlce Programs 
Bulletproof Vest Pannership 16.607 NfA 7.877 7,877 

Equitable Shanng Program 16922 NfA 233.326 233.326 

Pass throu9h from NC Department of PubliC Safety 
PSN Anll-Gang: Operation Ceasefile FY10 
PSN Anti·Gang: Operation Ceaseflle FY11 
PSN A TF Task Force 
PSN Law Enforcement Consortium AOOI 
PSN Law Enforcement Consortium 

16609 
16.609 
16609 
16.609 
16.609 

028-1-07 -QOl-AZ-725 
026-1-1G-001-AZ-D72 
2009-GP-8X·0051 
2011-GP-BX-D018 
2oo9-GP-BX-DOS2 

(321) 
13.281 
2.447 

"'6 
12.836 
29.089 

(321) 
13.281 
2.447 

"" 12,836 
29,089 

ARRA - VIOlence A9ainst Women FY11 16588 2011-WF-AX-0050 3,461 3.461 

OFFICE OF JUVENILE JUSTICE AND DELINQUENCY PREVENTION 
Pass through from Cal Rlpken, Sr. Foundallon 

2012 Badges fOI Baseball Program 16.726 20 12·FEO-MSM ·B4B·NC·l 23.309 
23.309 

23.309 
23.309 

Q-10 



CITY OF FAYEnEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Award s 


Year Ended June 30, 2012 


Slilte! 
Fed~flIl Pass·through FedOral (Direct 

GRANTOR/PASS·THROUGH CFOA Granlor's &. Pan·through) Stale Total 
Granlor/Progum nUe NUmber Number £J:pendllures £J:pendltures £J:pendllure!> 

US DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY 
Treasury Foneiture Fund Pro;ram 

u .s. OEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
S~c:t~1 Program s for Ihe Aging 

PUS Thru NC Department of Iotulttl &. Hum,n ~,..,.Ic:n 
SOflI(lr Crfl.l:ens SOI'llC8 Center 

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY 
Ornce of EIIerg), Emclency & Renewable En~rgy 

ARRA · Enemy ElflClency Conurvalion Block (3f"nl 

Nallon,1 Energy Technology Laboratory 
Pass Ihru Triangle Counc il o f Govemment!> 

ARRA • Clean CIlIe!> FY09 Petroleum ReduI;lion T~hnology Pro,ec:t 

u S DE:PARTM£NT OF TRANSPORTATION 

FC'der.J1 AvIation Admll'llstTlUon 
Alrpon Impro ...emen1 Progr.m 

Airporl RlnWiY 4122 RehatlillaLion Pnase II • Constn.ction 
Alrporl Rthao..lIle A.-cratt Rescue and Fife Fighllng BuiI!lng, Phase I 
Alrpot1 Rth9bIII1atl ....c·M: Rescue and Fire Flghcing BUIkI!n~. Phase II 
TVrw3y A.C.O F. RetlaO AlP 37 
Rehab Carrier Apron 

Passed thrOugh NC Dept of Tnnsponallon 

SAFETEA·LU 
Reil~/C!ltIdalelRam5ey SIdewalk, 
Rus&et Street Sidew9lk& 
Ramsey SlIRelity Rd SidewalK!> 

GOvemors Iotlghway Safety Program 
Sobnl ly Coun Grant FY1 1 
$obnl ly Coun Grant FY12 

Federal Transoort.l1on Administration 

Prevlnlaliv. Maintenance 8; American wi lh Di sab~llies ACI 
Ca>lltal Granl!>: Capllal 

Capital 
Capital 
Capital 
Capital 
Capital 
Capital 
Capilal 
Capilal 

Planning GranlS' Plar'V'ing 

"'~,
PlaMll'lg 
PlanrunQ 
Planning 

US Department o( Homeland Security 
Halmal (EqUipment Grant) 2009 
AfG (Oefio:iltalor Grant) 2010 
$lalr,ng jor Adequate Fire and Em(>fgenc:y Re~ (SAFER) FY2008 
Law Enforcement orrteer Reimbursement Agreemenl Progfilm 

Federal Emergency Mln'gement Agency 
LaXe Rim Rec,ealJon Cenler _ Equipment 
DeDns Removal 
ROllout Cans 
S~e Re~oratloo 

Fire, Poke, ECC 
City WodeJWaler Uti.IyIEPM 
Camel''' E:MJipmenVSCAOA A(II;enna PIge 
City Wlde/UlillryfElecllical Repain 
Sewer Main Repalf 
Fiber OptICS 
OeDmNlllhy Easement!> 

21000 

93.044 

81 128 

81041 

20 ")6 

20 ")6 

20 ",. 
20'''' 
20.106 

20.205 
20205 
20.205 

20601 
20601 

20 "" 
20.501 
20.507 
20.507 
20.501 
2050' 
20.501 
20.501 
20.507 
20.507 
20.507 
20.507 
20.507 
20501 

20 "" 

97067 
. , 044 
., 044 
., 090 

97.038 
97.036 
97036 
., 036 
97036 
97036 
91 036 
., 036 
97038 
97.006 
97.006 

NtA 

NIA 

DE·SCOOO21535 

DE·EEOOO2491 

FAA·3-31.Q021·3<: 
FAA·3-37~21-35 

FAA·3-37~21·36 

FAA·3-37 {)()2 1,J7 
FAA·3-31.Q021·38 

EL·5102 
Y~806AA 

SR·SOOI G 

K8·110254 
K8·120233 

NC 9(lX514 
HC 90 0327 
NC 90.0406 
NC 90.0425 
NC.04.0027 
NC 9O.()457 
NC90.0464 
NC 04.0033 
NC 51 0010 
NCo 90.0469 
NCo 90.2-406 
NC 90 2425 
NC 90 2453 
NC 90 2464 
NC 90 2469 

2009·SS·T9.Q046 
EMW·201()'FQ.06625 
EMW·20()6.FF -Q1043 
HSTS0208HSLR141 

CFGJS06 
CFAJSOI 
CFJSD8 
CFGJS09 
CFBJS03 
PWSJSOl 
PWEK803 
PWFJS02 
PWFKB06 
PWFKBOS 
PFAKB06 

, ,
99797 S 99,797 
99,797 99,797 

25,2().4 25,2Q.4 
25,204 25,204 

587,228 581,228 

6,000 6,000 

593,228 593,228 

245.91(5 245,916 
15,121 15,121 
(2.1 -4 0) (2,1-40) 

-4 ,309,189 4,309,189 
1,649, 134 1,649,13<: 
6,217,220 15,217,220 

62.068 62,068 
70,000 70.000 
p .318} 11.318) 

130.150 130,750 

40,383 40.383 
32,182 32.182 
72.565 72.565 

1,1 93,896 1,1 93,896 
386.723 386.723 

77,048 77,048 
5,590 5,590 
4.221 4,227 

18,922 18.922 
251,107 251 ,707 
436.-478 -436,478 
158.625 158,625 

1.591.218 1.597,2 18 
9.129 9,129 

19,190 19,190 
35,180 35,180 
74 ,690 7-4,690 
23,104 23,104 

-4291}27 4,291,727 

22.432 22.432 
8.62 1 8,62 1 

4 22•.506 422,506 
138. 131 '38.13 ' 
591 690 591,690 

5,172 5.172 
2,045,632 2,045.632 

-4 0.096 40,098 
165,609 185,609 
82,963 82,963 

8. 157 8,157 
3,"" 3,544 

38.518 38,518 
9,375 9.315 

27.049 27.(}49 
168.093 168.093 

2,594.208 2,594.2Q6 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards 

Year Ended June 30, 2012 

GRANTORJPASS, THROUGH 
Gr1InIOr/Prognm nile 

Federal 
CFDA 

Number 

Stitef 
Pass-through 

Graf'llOr's 
Number 

Federal (Direct 
& PaSS4hrough) 

EX2e ndilures 
Siale 

El.eendllures 
Tolal 

EX2endliures 

STATE GRANTS; 

NC QEPA8TM!;;NI QF TM.NS;PORTAnQ~ 

Avlallon Division 
Tree Clearing Runways 10 &.<1 NJA 362.<1.<1 ,27.10.1 , S 151.350 151.350 

151.350 151.350 

Public Transparta.llan Divi sion 
Mamtanance As sistance NfA 67.<1.998 674.998 
Capital N<A 362237.53 46.340 48.340 
Capital NJA 36231.3.2 2/.3 9.401 9 . .<101 
Caprtal NfA 36232.22 103M 149".Capdal NfA J62)\ 3.4.3 2.365 2,365 
Capital NfA 36232.22.23 ".560 54.SOO 
Capital NfA 36235 13.1 8 354.675 354.675 
Capital NfA 36231353 29,606 29,6~ 
Capilal NfA 36231.363 156.49<1 156.494 
Planning NfA 315231.3 5 6 9.336 .. ". 
Planntnll NfA 36231 32.6 1.141 1.1.<11 
PIMI"II:'Ig NfA 36231 3.3.6 2,399 2.399 
Plamin~ NfA 36231 3 . .<1 .6 .<1.398 .<1 ,398 
PlarYllng NfA 36231 3.6 6 2.8&7 2.681 

1.350.749 1.350,749 

PowaP6111 NfA 5.311,546 5,311 .546 

Oivlslon of Highways 
u S .<101 Sldewaf1( was 3606.3 oe N<A ER-2971 F 231 237 

237 231 

NC OEPARTMliiNT QF P!.!!UIC SAFETY 
Hazmat (RRT Grant) NfA RRT 3 2011 57.000 57,000 
Lak.e Rim Recreation Cenler • Equipment NfA DSR 00418 1,72.<1 1.724 
RoliOUl Carts NfA DSR 00420 13.365 13,365 
City WidefWaler UUrtyIEPM NfA OSR 00409 2,719 2,719 
Camera EquipmenllSCAOA Antenna Pipe NfA DSR Q0400 1.181 1,161 
City Wida/lMly/Eleclnc.al Repairs NfA OSR 00411 12.839 12.639 
Sewer Main Rep~r NfA DSROOMI 3.125 3,125 
Fiber OptICS NfA DSR Q{)4.d4 9,0115 9.0115 
DecrisfUlllity Easements WA DSR 00453 56.031 56.031 

157.000 157.000 

p~u thraugh from Cumberland County 
JlNen.a RestiMlon FYE 2012 NfA 526-10413 45.41 2 45A 12 

.d5A I2 45.412 

NC VETERAN S AFFAIRS Drvl~ION 

NC Veterans Pai1ls Ph3$e tl2 NJA NCGA SMale BIN 1611" 1.1 13.622 1.113.622 
NC Veterans Pei1ls NfA 1 301-S3696o-177 17711 10,606 10.800 

1.12.<1 ..<126 1.12.01 428 

, 19.799.893 6140722 S 27.9<10.615 

NOTES TO THIii S;CHEDlJLIii OF liiXPENOITURES OF FEQERAl AND STAlE AWARDS: 

1. The accompaf'l)'lng schedule of expendllum 01 Federal and SLale awards inclvdes the Federal anc:! Stale grant 8Cllvlly of the Clly 0{ FayelleviJle and Is presented on the modified accrual 
baStS 01 acr.O\..I"1 llng The rlfOrTnl!tion ffI lhls sChedule Is pre$eoled 10 aCCOfdance wJh Ille requiremen ts or OMS Clttutar A-133 ""Audits of Slales l ogl Govemmen!5 arKI No!'I.pfO~ 1 Qroantzallons· 
end : ~,e Stale Single Audil lmplemenlahon AcL TherefOfe. some amounts presenleCl ln\tlls sChedule may drtfer from OO1OUf1ls pt"i)sen ted <n, or use<ll'"l lI"Ie preparation of lhe basIC financial stalementS 

2. The lotal lecal malch requirements far the Federal and Slale Transit aperabng assistance grants was $973,.<172, The acluallOcal malch Whicn the City of Fayetteville e)(pended for lhe ope.-alions 
of llle transit syslem \o'II1lS 5973 . .<172 

3 The 10lalloc.al OOrIlnbuticf"ls lor lhe Slale Powell Bill asslSlance amounled 10 S 15.956 (fhls Iepresonis assessmetUS receJved aoo mfere51 eamed IhfClif}h 0SI30/12) 

4 The alTlOlJ(\l 01 HOME Inva5UT1enl Partnerships provided to CHOO's Is $2!i2.536 as of June 30.2012. 

5. Powell Bill expenditures as reported above tcp(esenl eligible expenditures ,eported 10 lIle NOM Carolina Oepanmenl of TranSpOrtation lor !he ft sc.a l year ending Jvoe 30. 2012 
The Ciry Is rlKluired to repon aMually 10 the Nooh Carolina OepaMlent 01 Tr.J(I5portatkln on (he accumulated unexpended Powell Bill lunas. Unexpended Powen 6il ll\.nC1s are accounted 
for ar.d mainlalned Wltnin the lranspOnaLion fund. The IOIe! vnexpende<ll:lalance on·haM al Jvne 30, 201 2 IS SO. 
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Passenger 
Facility Charge 
Compliance Section 

• 	 Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance with Requirements 
Applicable to the Passenger Facility Charge Program and Internal 
Control Over Compliance in Accordance with the Passenger 
Facility Charge Program Audit Guide 

• Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

• Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 

• Schedule of Expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges 



CF.RT[RED PUBLIC 
ACCOUi'nANTS & 
CONSUl.TANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUiREMENTS APPLICABLE TO THE 

PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGE PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN 


ACCORDANCE WITH THE PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGE PROGRAM AUDIT GUIDE 


The Honorable Mayor 
and Members of the City Council 

City of Fayetleville, North Carolina 

Compliance 
We have audited the City of Fayetleville, North Carolina, ("the City") compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies, issued by the Federal 
Aviation Administration (Guide), for the City's passenger facility charge program for the year ended June 30, 
2012 . Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to its passenger 
facility charge program is the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion 
on the City's compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the Guide. Those standards and the Guide require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types 
of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on the passenger facility 
charge program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City's compliance 
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide 
a legal detemnination of the City's compliance with those requirements. 

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above that 
could have a direct and material effect on its passenger facility charge program for the year ended June 30, 2012. 

Internal Control Over Compliance 
Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance 
with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to the passenger facility charge program. 
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over compliance with requirements 
that could have a direct and material effect on the passenger facility charge program to determine the auditing 
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control 
over compliance in. accordance with the Guide, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly , we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the City's internal control over comptiance. 
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A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees , in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of the passenger facility 
charge program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 
combination .of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that 
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of the passenger facility charge program will not 
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be 
deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that we consider to be rnaterial weaknesses, as defined above. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the entity, members of the 
City Council, the Federal Aviation Administration, federal and State awarding agencies, and pass-through entities, 
and is not intended to be, and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Fayetteville, North Carolina 
November 26, 2012 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 


Year Ended June 30, 2012 


SECTION I. Summary of Auditors' Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditors' report issued: Unqualified 

Internal control over financial reporting : 

Material weakness(es) identified Yes No~ 

Significant deficiency(s) identified 
that are not considered to be 
material weaknesses Yes _X_ None reported 

Noncompliance material to financial 
statements noted Yes _X_ No 

Passenger Facility Charge Program 

Internal control over passenger facility charge program: 

Material weakness(es) identified Yes X No 

Significant deficiency(s) identified 
that are not consid ered to be 
material weaknesses Yes _X_ None reported 

Noncompliance material to passenger 
facility charge program Yes _X_ No 

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for passenger facility charge program: 
Unqualified 

Any audit findings disclosed Yes ~ No 

Section II. Financial Statement Findings 

None reported. 

Section III. Passenger Facility Charge Findings and Questioned Costs 

None reported. 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 


Year Ended June 30, 2012 


None reportable . 
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CITY OF FAYETIEV1LL E, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule ot Expenditure. of Passenger Facility Charges 


Year Ended June 3D, 2012 

I...pos. U04I T_IPfC...pp.o.....:! 
\,I.... ;n .......
f~ EIf~ ~""""'(» ,...lo. Pfe's 	 PrI",YUtsD.n, D-\. 

2D,m.z u s ',1)6 ,..)" S 

101111005 '0/"111005 !.eO,077 S 614,1500 	 S )0,740 S 21I,CQooI 

ObU\lCllQn RunowJ 	 ,0/112OOS 1011120(15 1,477 ,6$$ 1>31 ,$00 76,575 U ,$.8! 

\0/"112005 100 lfZ«lS lQi, ! t 7 295.000 " ,750 

I IlIIrzo05 ,(\1 1"'00$ ',~' 
10I\f2005 101\12005 24 ,$00 I,ns ,,,. ,..,. 
10/" ,1200$ \0/"11"2005 ..", ',9~'.'" '.'" 
1(.11112005 10/1f2005 ..... 10 ,.00 	 ... ... 
11)'112005 IOt'nOO6 12.866 12,164 

1,1" 1,01)0 7,7e9 1.719 

,n,no 123,no 61 ,$.85 6 1,&45 " ... 
'Oilf200S IO/I~ 56,on 	 5,607 $.601..'" 
'0I1tXM» ,QIlr2Q05 eo, l IO 1110.000 	 .... '.'" 
101112005 10/"'1200$ Ill.0iS 250,000 ~,655 

lOill'2'OO$ 10111'2005 .to.OOO 

10110005 ' 011/2005 ~o ,ooo 80,000 U,7~2 11.711 

11~,na 570.000 	 5.139 

'O/lnoos 10/'12005 6:1:0.000 31 ,000 5,709 

SIMCO 5 15 ,000 

~15,OOO 

,..IO/I~ '011/2005 7.550 	 10,000 

'01"112006 101"1120(1$ 

150,000 37,SOO 

~.ooo $00.000 2'5 ,000 

40,101 "... "."" "... 	 "."" 
700.000 3S,ooo 

10/,n005 101"1/2005 10.000 10,000 

TOl4L ''''POSE AHO US E APPUCAnON 1 U 70.J'0 , I,U7,' " , 6 U ,6U S n ....ll s 3U,2)1 

AlP 32 · AAFF R"".~ . Owgn 

71112C09 71l l2OOi ' ,050,151 	 13,717 S 1.1,717 S 83 ,717 

"'.... "'.'" 
7111201)9 61 $,000 6 1,500 61,~ 6u eo 

711 n009 1I1!2'OO9 60,123 60.&23 	 ",.m 

35,81 8 l 5.118 33,475 

7/112009 757.99'0 1.1&8,7.0 l7,toO 319()O 

71112009 

6,1 13 

1,270 a.z10 'F' 
11 3.9:20 

Jllnoo, 71112009 221.120 l30,ooo 22,79:1 tV92"." 
157,000 	 67.1:11071 112009 "'" 

5,OO3,IllO 250 ,1 90 

11112009 3 11 119 3U.606 

71112009 71112009 ,..,00 
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CITY OF FAYETTE\IILlE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule ot Expenditures or Passenger Facility Charges 


Year Ended June 30, 201:1 

Impo,~ UM ~¥. Approve<! ""­ PFC Rt~..""", PFC Rev"' ....... TOI:1I PFC 

P'OI OCI 
E""-:l'IYt ,.. Elft<1iote 

O~I" 
~P<lnd*""" 
A~' -~ 10. PFC's 

01 U... 
1.",,",":1.1 

Uo.edln 
P rIor Yo" ... 

UMdln 
CurrHl'ly .... , 

Ru enu,", 

UM' 

Rep..,. AAF F Trug; 1/I1lOO9 711f2009 695.2~ 1 , 100,000 , "'"'''' , ~95,261 , 
""" 

p.;. C l rn~r~. Rehab Nrr:.o OHign 11112009 " II2(109 7lI,OCO '.5<>0 
lait1W>y A o.slgn, ShotJ""". O«rl&'1 . :...jI(o 7111'X109 71112009 195.000 9.150 

E>:Icr..;! h ......,.,. A OHI~n 7I1noo~ mmos '"'''' ."" 
CQ~".....-yAS_=. o.~,,,,y,l4'!o 7/112009 71112009 1.000.000 150,000 

TOTAl IMPOSE N/D USE APPUCAnollll 1'.5",08'7 , 22 .-4J6,N1 , Ut2.908 , ~,160 , 707,678 , 1,5.37,8.l11 
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